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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The following select abbreviations or acronyms are used in this Form 10-K:

Abbreviation or Acronym Definition

AEP Generation

AES

AMI
AQCI
ARO
ASU
BTU
CFTC
CAA
CAIR
CCEM
CO,
ComEd
CRES
CSAPR
Dark spread

DPL
DPLE

DPLER

DP&L

Duke Energy

EBITDA
EGU
EIR
EPS
ESOP
ESP

AEP Generation Resources, Inc., a subsidiary of American Electric Power
Company, Inc. ("AEP”). Columbus Southern Power Company merged into the
Ohio Power Company, another subsidiary of AEP, effective December 31, 2011,
The Ohio Power generating assets (including jointly-owned units) were transferred
into this new AEP subsidiary, effective January 1, 2014,

The AES Corporation, a global power company, the ultimate parent company of
DPL

Advanced Metering Infrastructure
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Asset Retirement Obligation

Accounting Standards Update

British Thermal Units

Commodity Futures Trading Commission
Clean Air Act

Clean Air Interstate Rule

Customer Conservation and Energy Management
Carbon Dioxide

Commonwealth Edison

Competitive Retail Electric Service
Cross-State Air Pollution Rule

A common metric used to estimate returns over fuel costs of coal-fired electric
generating units

DPL Inc.

DPL Energy, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of DPL that owns and operates
peaking generation facilities from which it makes wholesale sales

DPL Energy Resources, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of DPL which sells
competitive electric energy and other energy services

The Dayton Power and Light Company, the principal subsidiary of DPL and a
public utility which sells electricity to residential, commergial, industrial and
governmental customers in a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio. DP&L
is wholly-owned by DPL

Affiliates of Duke Energy with which DP&L co-owns electric generating units in
Ohio (Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.} and Kentucky (Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.)

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
Electric generating unit

Environmental Investment Rider

Earmnings Per Share

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

The Eleciric Security Plan is a cost-based plan that a utility may file with the PUCO
o establish SSO rates pursuant to Ohio law



GLOSSARY OF TERMS (cont.)

Abbreviation or Acronym Definition

2009 ESP Stipulation

FASB
FASC
FASC 805
FERC
FGD

First and Refunding
Mortgage

FTRs

GAAP

GHG

IFRS

kwh

Master Trust

MC Squared

Merger

Merger agreement

Merger date
MRO

MTM
MVIC

MW

MWh

NERC
Non-bypassable

NOV

A Stipulation and Recommendation filed with the PUCO on February 24, 2009
regarding DP&L's ESP filing pursuant to SB 221. The Stipulation was signed by
the Staff of the PUCQO, the OCC and various intervening parties. The PUCO
approved the Stipulation on June 24, 2009,

Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB Accounting Standards Codification

FASB Accounting Standards Codification 805, “Business Caombinations”
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

Flue Gas Desulfurization

DP&L’s First and Refunding Mortgage, datad October 1, 1935, as amended, with
the Bank of New York Mellon as Trustee

Financial Transmission Rights

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America
Greenhouse Gas

International Financial Reporting Standards

Kilowatt hour

DP&L. established a Master Trust to hold assets that could be used for the benefit
of employees participating in employee benefit plans

MC Squared Energy Services, LLC, a retail electricity supplier wholly-owned by
DPLER which was purchased by DPLER on February 28, 2011

The merger of DPL and Dolphin Sub, Inc. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES) in
accordance with the terms of the Merger agreement. At the Merger date, Dolphin
Sub, Inc. was merged into DPL, leaving DPL as the surviving company. As a result
of the Merger, DPL became a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES.

The Agreement and Plan of Merger dated April 19, 2011 among DPL, AES and
Dolphin Sub, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES, whereby AES agreed to
acquire DPL for $30 per share in & cash transaction valued at approximately $3.5
billion plus the assumption of $1.2 billion of existing debt. Upon closing, DPL
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES.

November 28, 2011, the date of the closing of the merger of DPL and Dolphin Sub,
Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES

Market Rate Option, a market-based plan that a utility may file with PUCO to
establish SSO rates pursuant to Ohio law

Mark to Market

Miami Valley Insurance Company, a wholly-owned insurance subsidiary of DPL
that provides insurance setvices to DPL and its subsidiaries and, in some cases,
insurance services to partner companies relative to jointly-owned facilities operated
by DP&L

Megawatt
Megawatt hour
North Ametican Electric Reliability Corporation

Charges that are assessed to all customers regardless of whom the customer
selects to supply its retail electric service

Notice of Violation



GLOSSARY OF TERMS (cont.)

Abbreviation or Acronym Definition

NO,
NPDES
NSR

NYMEX
CAQDA
occC
Ohio EPA
oTC
OVEC

PJM
Predecessor
PRP

PUCO

RPM

RSU
RTC
SB 221

SCR

SEC

SECA

SEET

SERP

Service Company

SFAS
SO,
SO,

Nitrogen Oxide
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

New Source Review is a preconstruction permitting program regulating new or
significantly modified sources of air pollution

New York Mercantile Exchange

Chio Air Quality Development Authority
Ohio Consumers' Counsel

Ohio Environmental Protection Agency
Over the counter

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation, an electric generating company in which DP&L
holds a 4.9% equity interest

PJM Interconnection, LLC, an RTO
DPL prior to the Merger date
Potentially Responsible Party
Public Utilities Commission of Ohio

The Reliability Pricing Model is PJM's capacity construct. The purpose of RPM is
to enable PJM to obtain sufficient resources to reliably meet the needs of electric
customers within the PJM footprint. Under the RPM construct, PJM procures
capacity, through a multi-auction structure, on behalf of the load serving entities to
satisfy the load obligations. There are three RPM auctions held for each Delivery
Year (running from June 1 through May 31}. The Base Residual Auction is held
three years in advance of the Delivery Year and there is one Incremental Auction
held in each of the subsequent three years. DP&L's capacity is located in the “rest
of” RTO area of PJM.

Restricted Stock Unit
Regional Transmission Organization

Ohio Senate Bill 221, an Ohio electric energy bill that was signed by the Governor
on May 1, 2008 and went into effect July 31, 2008. This law required all Ohio
distribution utilities to file either an ESP or MRO to be in effect January 1, 2009.
The law also contains, among other things, annual targets relating to advanced
energy portfolic standards, renewable energy, demand reduction and energy
efficiency standards.

Selective Catalytic Reduction

Securities and Exchange Commission
Seams Elimination Charge Adjustment
Significantly Excessive Earnings Test
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

AES US Services, LLC, the shared services affiliate providing accounting, finance,
and other support services to AES’ US SBU businesses

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
Sulfur Dioxide

Sulfur Trioxide



GLOSSARY OF TERMS (cont.)

Abbreviation or Acronym Definition

S80 Standard Service Offer represents the retail transmission, distribution and
generation services offered by the utility through regufated rates, authorized by the
PUCO

SSR Service Stability Rider

Successor DPL after the Merger

TCRR Transmission Cost Recovery Rider

TCRR-B Transmission Cost Recovery Rider — Bypassable

TCRR-N Transmission Cost Recovery Rider — Nonbypassable

USEPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

USF The Universal Service Fund (USF) is a statewide pragram which provides qualified

low-income customers in Ohio with income-based bills and energy efficiency
education programs

us SBU AES’ reporting unit covering the businesses in the United States, including DPL
VRDN Variable Rate Demand Note



PART |

Item 1 — Business

This report includes the combined filing of DPL and DP&L.. On November 28, 2011, DPL became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of AES, a global power company. Throughout this report, the terms “we,” “us,” "our” and “ours”
are used {o refer to both DPL and DP&L, respactively and altogether, unless the context indicates otherwise.
Discussions or areas of this report that apply only to DPL or DP&L will clearly be noted in the section.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this report are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Matters discussed in this report that relate to events or developments
that are expected to occur in the future, including management's expectations, strategic objectives, business
prospects, anticipated economic performance and financial condition and other similar matters constitute forward-
looking statements. Forward-looking statements are based on management's beliefs, assumptions and
expectations of future economic performance, taking into account the information currently available to
management. These statements are not statements of historical fact and are typically identified by terms and
phrases such as “anticipate,” "believe,” "intend,” “estimate,” “expect,” “continue,” "should,” “could,” “may,” "plan,”
“project,” “predict,” "will" and similar expressions. Such forward-looking statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties and investors are cautioned that outcomes and results may vary materially from those projected
due to various factors beyond our control, including but not limited to:

+ abnormal or severe weather and catastrophic weather-related damage;

¢ unusual maintenance or repair requirements;

s changes in fuel costs and purchased power, coal, environmental emission allowances, natural gas and
other commeodity prices;

« volatility and changes in markets for electricity and other energy-related commodities;
» performance of our suppliers;

* increased competition and deregulation in the electric utility industry;

+ increased competition in the retail generation market;

s changes in interest rates;

s state, federal and foreign legislative and regulatory initiatives that affect cost and investment recovery,
emission levels, rate structures or tax laws;

» changes in environmental laws and regulations to which DPL and its subsidiaries are subject;

» the development and cperation of RTOs, including PJM to which DPL’s operating subsidiary (DP&L) has
given control of its transmission functions;

+ changes in our purchasing processes, pricing, delays, contractor and supplier performance and
availability;

» significant delays associated with large construction projects;
s growth in our service territory and changes in demand and demographic patterns;

» changes in accounting rules and the effect of accounting pronouncements issued periodically by
accounting standard-sefting bodies;

» financial market conditions;
+ the outcomes of litigation and regulatory investigations, proceedings or inquiries;
* general economic conditions;
and the risks and other factors discussed in this report and other DPL and DP&L filings with the SEC.

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of the document in which they are made. We disclaim any
obligation or undertaking to provide any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement to reflect any
change in our expectations or any change in events, conditions or circumstarices on which the forward-looking

9



statement is based. If we do update one or more forward-looking statements, no inference should be made that
we will make additional updates with respect to those or other forward-looking statements.

COMPANY WEBSITES

DPL’s public internet site is http//iwww.dplinc.com. DP&L’s public internet site is http://www.dpandl.com. The
information on these websites is not incorperated by reference into this report.

ORGANIZATION

DPL is a regional energy company incorporated in 1985 under the laws of Ohio. Our executive offices are
located at 1065 Woodman Drive, Dayton, Chio 45432 — telephone (937) 224-6000. DPL was acquired by The
AES Corporation on November 28, 2011 and is a wholly-owned, indirect subsidiary of AES.

DP&L is a public utility incorporated in 1911 under the laws of Chio. Beginning in 2001, Ohio law gave Ohio
consumers the right to choose the slectric generation supplier from whom they purchase retail generation
service, however distribution and transmission retail service are still reguiated. DP&L has the exclusive right to
provide such service to its more than 515,000 customers located in West Central Ohio. Additionally, DP&L offers
retail SSO electric service to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers in a 6,000 square
mile area of West Central Ohio and generates electricity at seven coal-fired power stations. Beginning in 2014,
DP&L no longer provides 100% of the generation for its S50 customers. Principal industries located in DP&L’s
service territory include automotive, food processing, paper, plastic, manufacturing and defense. DP&L's sales
reflect the general economic conditions, seasonal weather patterns of the area and the market price of electricity.
DP&L sells any excess energy and capacity into the wholesale market. DP&L also sells electricity to DPLER, an
affiliate, to satisfy the electric requirements of DPLER's retail customers.

DPLER sells competitive retail electric service, under contract, to residential, commercial, industrial and
governmental customers. DPLER’s operations include those of its wholly-owned subsidiary, MC Squared, which
was purchased on February 28, 2011. DPLER has approximately 308,000 customers currently located
throughout Ohio and lllincis. Approximately 130,000 of DPLER’s customers are also electric distribution
customers of DP&L. DPLER does not have any transmission or generation assets and all of DPLER’s electric
energy was purchased from DP&L or PJM to meet its sales obligations.

DPL’s other significant subsidiaries include: DPLE, which owns and operates peaking generating facilities from
which it makes wholesale sales of electricity and MVIC, DPL’s captive insurance company that provides
insurance services to us and DPL’s other subsidiaries.

DPL also has a wholly-owned business trust, DPL Capital Trust Il, formed for the purpose of issuing trust capital
securities to investors.

Ali of DPL’s subsidiaries are wholly-owned. DP&L does not have any subsidiaries.

DP&L’s electric transmission and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state
regulators while its generation business is deemed competitive under Chio law. Accordingly, DP&L applies the
accounting standards for regulated operations to its electric transmission and distribution businesses and records
regulatory assets when incurred costs are expected to be recovered in future customer rates and regulatory
liabilities when current recoveries in customer rates relate to expected future costs.

DPL and its subsidiaries had 1,266 employees as of December 31, 2013. At that date, 1,218 of these employees
were employed by DP&L. Approximately 59% of the employees of DPL and its subsidiaries are under a
collective bargaining agreement which expires on Cctober 31, 2014,

Effective December 22, 2013, AES US Services, LLC {the “Service Company”) began providing services
including accounting, legal, human resources, information technology and cther services of a similar nature on
behalf of the AES U.S. Strategic Business Unit (“U.S. SBU”). The Service Company allocates the costs for these
services based on cost drivers designed to result in fair and equitable distribution. This includes ensuring that the
regulated businesses served, including DP&L, are not subsidizing costs incurred for the benefit of non-regulated
businesses.
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ELECTRIC OPERATIONS AND FUEL SUPPLY

2013 Summer Generating Capacity

(in MW)
Combustion
Turbines,
Diesel Units
Summer Generating Capacity Coal fired and Solar Total
DPL 2,465 988 3,453
DP&L 2,465 432 2,897

DPL’s present summer generating capacity, including peaking units, is 3,453 MW. Of this capacity, 2,465 MW,
or 71%, is derived from coal-fired steam generating stations and the balance of 988 MW, or 28%, consists of
combustion turbines, diesel peaking units and solar.

DP&L’s present summer generating capacity, including peaking units, is 2,897 MW. Of this capacity, 2,465 MW,
or 85%, is derived from coal-fired steam generating stations and the balance of 432 MW, or 15%, consists of
combustion turbines, diesel peaking units and solar.

Our all-time net peak load was 3,270 MW, occurring August 8, 2007.

100% of DP&L’s existing steam generating capacity is provided by generating units cwned as tenants in
common with Duke Energy and AEP Generation. As tenants in common, each company owns a specified share
of each of these units, is entitled to its share of capacity and energy output and has a capitai and operating cost
responsibility proportionate to its ownership share. The coal-fired portion of DP&L’s 100% owned steam
generating station (Hutchings) was deactivated in September 2013. Additionally, DP&L, Duke Energy and AEP
Generation own, as tenants in common, 880 circuit miles of 345,000-volt transmission lines. DP&L has several
interconnections with other companies for the purchase, sale and interchange of electricity.

In 2013, we generated 99% of our electric output from coai-fired units and 1% from solar, oil and natural gas-fired
units.
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The following table sets forth DP&L’s and DPLE's generating stations and, where indicated, those stations which
DP&L owns as tenants in common:

Approximate Summer

MW Rating
Ownership Operating DP&L
Station @ Company Location Portion @ Total
Coal Units
H&W,_mwm,
Conesville-Unit 4 AEP

C Generation Conesville, OH 129 780

_Centerwlle OH
.-Ge"é‘t"“?mlle;ﬁ.

Monument
rﬁ*aﬁl Diegeis?

- Poqg}p, _IN
LENoTaiNe

Total épproxumate summaer generating capacny

(a) W =Wholly-owned C = Commonly-owned
{b) DP&L portion of commoniy-owned generating stations

As part of a settlement with the USEPA, DP&L signed a Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) that was
filed on September 26, 2013 and an Administrative Consent Order. Together, these two agreements resolved
the opacity and particulate smissions NOV at the Hutchings Station and required that all six coal-fired units at
Hutchings cease operating on coal by September 30, 2013, and included an immaterial penalty and the
completion of a Supplemental Environmental Project of $0.2 million within one year. The units were disabled for
coal operations prior to September 30, 2013. The removal of this capacity has besn reflected in the table above.

In addition to the above, DP&L also owns a 4.9% equity ownership interest in OVEC, an electric generating
company. OVEC has two electric generating stations located in Cheshire, Chio and Madison, Indiana with a
combined generation capacity of 2,109 MW. DP&L’s share of this generation capacity is 103 MW.

We have substantially all of the total expected coal volume needed to meet our retail and wholesale sales
requirements for 2014 under contract. The majority of the contracted coal is purchased at fixed prices. Some
contracts provide for periodic adjustments and some are priced based on market indices. Fuel costs are affected
by changes in volume and price and are driven by a number of variables including weather, the wholesale market
price of power, certain provisions in coal contracts related to government imposed costs, counterparty
performance and credit, scheduled/fforced outages and generation station mix. Due to the installation of emission
control equipment at certain commonly-owned units and barting any changes in the regulatory envircnment in
which we operate, we expect to have balanced positions for SO;, NO, and renewable energy credits for 2014.
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The gross average cost of fuel consumed per kWh was as follows:

Average cost of Fuel Consumed
(cents per KWh)

2013 2012 2011

DPL 243 2.75 2.76

DP&L. 2.40 2.72 2.71
SEASONALITY

The power generation and delivery business is seasonal and weather patterns have a material effect on
operating performance. In the region we serve, demand for electricity is generally greater in the summer months
associated with cooling and in the winter months associated with heating compared to other times of the year.
Unusually mild summers and winters could have an adverse effect on our resulis of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

RATE REGULATION AND GOVERNMENT LEGISLATION

DP&L's sales to SSO retail customers are subject to rate reguiation by the PUCO. In addition, certain of DP&L’s
recoverable costs are considered to be non-bypassable and are therefore assessed to all DP&L retail customers,
under the regulatory authority of the PUCO, regardless of whom the customer selects to supply its retail electric
service., DP&L's transmission rates and wholesale electric rates to municipal corporations, rural electric co-
operatives and other distributors of electric energy are subject to regulation by the FERC under the Federal
Power Act.

Ohic law establishes the process for determining SS0 and non-bypassable rates charged by public utilities.
Regulation of retail rates encompasses the timing of applications, the effective date of rate increases, the market
price of power, the cost basis upon which the rates are set and other related matters. Ohio [aw also established
the Office of the OCC, which has the authority to represent residential consumers in state and federal judicial and
administrative rate proceedings.

Ohio legislation extends the jurisdiction of the PUCO to the records and accounts of certain public utility holding
company systems, including DPL. The legislation extends the PUCO's supervisory powers to a holding company
system's general condition and capitalization, among other matters, to the extent that such matters relate to the
costs associated with the provision of public utility service. Based on existing PUCO and FERC authorization,
reguiatory assets and liabilities are recorded on the balance sheets. See Note 4 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated
Financial Statements and Note 4 of Notes to DP&L’s Financial Statements.

COMPETITION AND REGULATION
Ohio Matters

Ohio Retail Rates
The PUCO maintains jurisdiction over DP&L’s delivery of electricity, SS0O and other retail electric services.

On May 1, 2008, substitute SB 221, an Ohio electric energy bill, was signed by the Governor and went into effect
July 31, 2008. This law required that all Ohio distribution utilities file either an ESP or MRO to establish rates for
S80 service. Under the MRO, a periodic competitive bid process will set the retail generation price after the
utility demonstrates that it can meet certain market criteria and bid requirements. Also, under this option, utilities
that still own generation in the state are required to phase-in the MRO over a period of not less than five years.
An ESP may allow for cost-based adjustments to the SSO for costs associated with environmental compliance;
fuel and purchased power; construction of new or investment in specified generating facilities; and the provision
of standby and default service, operating, maintenance, or other costs including taxes. As part of its ESP, a utility
is permitted to file an infrastructure improvement plan that will specify the initiatives the utility will take to rebuild,
upgrade, or replace its electric distribution systern, including cost recovery mechanisms. Both the MRO and ESP
option involve a SEET based on the earnings of comparable companies with similar business and financial risks.

On October 5, 2012, DP&L filed an ESP with the PUCO to establish SSO rates that were to be in effect starting
January 2013. The plan was refiled on December 12, 2012 to correct for certain projected costs. The plan
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requested approval of a non-bypassable charge that was designed to recover $137.5 million per year for five
years from all customers. The ESP proposed a three-year, five-month transition to market, whereby a wholesale
competitive bidding structure would be phased in to supply generation service to customers located in DP&L’s
service territory that have not chosen an alternative generation supplier. An order was issued by the FUCO on
September 4, 2013 and a correction to that order was issued on September 6, 2013 (ESP Order).

The ESP Order stated that DP&L’s next ESP begins January 2014 and extends through May 31, 2017. The
PUCO authorized DP&L to collect a non-bypassable Service Stability Rider (SSR) equal to $110 million per year
for 2014 — 2016. DP&L has the opportunity to seek an additional $45.8 million through exiension of the SSR
through May 31, 2017, provided DP&L meets certain regulatory filing obligations, which include but are not
limited to filing a plan by December 31, 2013 to separate the generation assets from the utility (as noted below,
DP&L filed this on December 30, 2013) and filing a distribution rate case no later than July 1, 2014. The ESP
Order also directs DP&L to divest its generation assets no later than May 31, 2017 and sets DP&L’s SEET
threshold at a 12% ROE. Beginning in 2014, DP&L is no longer permitted to supply 100% of the generation
service for SSO customers. Instead, the PUCQ directed DP&L to phase-in the competitive bidding structure with
10% of DP&L’s SSO load sourced through the competitive bid starting in 2014, 40% in 2015, 70% in 2016, and
100% by June 1, 2017. The ESP Order approved DP&L’s rate proposal to bifurcate its transmission charges into
a non-bypassable component, TCRR-N, and a bypassable compenent, TCRR-B. The ESP order also required
DP&L to establish a $2.0 million per year shareholder funded economic development fund. Applications for
rehearing were filed on October 4, 2013 by DP&L and other parties and are currently pending PUCO action. On
October 23, 2013, the PUCO issued an entry on rehearing denying applications for rehearing that related to the
competitive bid. The PUCO reaffirmed its position that economic development load should be included in the
competitive bid auction and that DP&L affiliates are permitted to bid in the auction.

In accordance with the ESP Order, on December 30, 2013, DP&L filed an application with the PUCO stating its
plan to separate its generation assets to an affiliated entity on or before May 31, 2017.

SB 221 and the implementation rules contain targets relating to advanced energy portfolio standards, renewable
energy, demand reduction and energy efficiency standards. If any targets are not met, compliance penalties will
apply unless the PUCO makes certain findings that would excuse performance. The PUCO has found that DP&L.
met its renewable targets for compliance years 2008 — 2012. PUCO staff recommended that DPLER met its
targets for compliance year 2012. Filing for compliance year 2013 will be made on or before Apri! 15, 2014 and
both DP&L and DPLER expect to be in full compliance with all renewable targets. DP&L plans to file its next
energy efficiency portfolio plan in 2015. However, as the energy efficiency and alternative energy targets get
increasingly larger over time, the costs of complying with SB 221 and the PUCO's implementing rules could have
a material effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

The ESP Order also provided for the continuation of a fuel and purchased power recovery rider which began
January 1, 2010. The fuel rider fluctuates based on actual costs and recoveries and is modified at the start of
each seasonal quarter; March 1, June 1, September 1 and December 1 each year. As part of the PUCO
approval process, an outside auditor is hired each year to review fuel costs and the fuel procurement process.
On June 12, 2013, we received a report from that external auditor recommending a pre-tax disallowance of $5.3
millicn of costs. Hearings in this case were held on December 8-10, 2013, and we expect an order in the case in
the second quarter of 2014.

As a member of PJM, DP&L receives revenues from the RTO related to its transmission and generation assets
and incurs costs associated with its load obligations for retail customers. SB 221 includes a provision that would
allow Ohio electric utilities to seek and obtain a reconcilable rider to recover RTO-related costs and credits.
DP&L’s TCRR and PJM RPM riders were initially approved in November 2009 to recover these costs. In
accordance with the ESP Order, TCRR-N and TCRR-B will begin January 1, 2014. Both the TCRR-B and the
RPM riders assign costs and revenues from PJM monthly bills o retall ratepayers based on the percentage of
S80 retail customers’ load and sales volumes to total retail [oad and total retail and wholesale volumes.
Customer switching to CRES providers decreases DP&L's SSO retail customers’ load and sales volumes,
Therefore, increases in customer switching cause more of the RPM capacity costs and revenues to be excluded
from the RPM rider calculation. RPM capacity costs and revenues are discussed further under "Regional
Transmission Organizational Risks” in Item 1A — Risk Factors. DP&L's annual true-up of these riders was
approved by the PUCO by Order dated April 24, 2013, and its 2014 filings will be made in the first and second
Quarters of 2014.

For calendar year 2012 DP&L was subject to a SEET threshold in which DP&L was required to apply general
rules for calculating the earnings and comparing them to a comparable group to determine whether there were
significantly excessive earnings. Pursuant to an Order issued on February 13, 2014, DP&L’s 2012 earnings

14



were found to not be excessive. Through the ESP Order, the PUCO established DP&L’s ROE SEET threshold at
12% beginning with 2013. In future years, the SEET could have a material effect on our results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows.

On June 29, 2012, DP&L filed its application to establish reliability targets consistent with the most recent PUCO
Electric Service and Safety Standards (ESSS). DP&L and PUCQO Staff reached a settlement establishing new
reliability targets in this case. The settlement was approved by the PUCO on October 4, 2013. According to the
ESSS rules, all Ohio utilities are subject to financial penalties if the established targets are not met for two
consecutive years. As of December 31, 2013, DP&L has not missed any of the reliability targets.

Ohio Competitive Considerations and Proceedings

Since January 2001, DP&L’s electric customers have been permitted to choose their retail electric generation
supplier. DP&L continues to have the exclusive right to provide delivery servics in its state-certified territory and
the obligation to supply and/or procure retail generation service to customers that do not choose an alternative
supplier. The PUCQO maintains jurisdiction over DP&L’s delivery of electricity, SSO and other retail electric
services.

Market prices for power, as well as government aggregation initiatives, have led and may continue io lead to the
entrance of additional competitors in our service territory. As of December 31, 2013, there were thirty-six CRES
providers registered in DP&L's service territory. DPLER, an affiliated company and one of the thirty-six
registered CRES providers, has been marketing supply services to DP&L customers. During 2013, DPLER
accounted for approximately 5,874 million kWh of the total 9,345 million kWh supplied by CRES providers within
DPP&L's service territory. Also during 2013, 87,951 customers with an annual energy usage of 3,471 million kWh
were supplied by other CRES providers within DP&L’s service territory. The volume supplied by DPLER
represents approximately 42% of DP&L's total distribution sales volume during 2013. The reduction to gross
margin in 2013 as a result of customers switching to DPLER and other CRES providers was approximately
$248.4 million and $318.3 million, for DPL and DP&L, respectively. We currently cannot determine the extent to
which customer switching to CRES providers will occur in the future and the effect this will have on us, but any
additional switching could have a significant adverse effect on our future results of operations, financial condition
and cash flows.

Several communities in DP&L’s service area have passed ordinances allowing the communities to become
government aggregators for the purpose of offering retail generation service to their residents. To date, a
number of communities have filed with the PUCO to initiate aggregation programs. if a number of the larger
communities in DP&L’s service area move forward with aggregation, it could have a material effect on our
earnings.

DPLER began providing CRES services to business customers in Ohioc who are not in DP&L's service territory in
2010 and to residential customers in 2012. Additionally, beginning in March 2011 with the purchase of MC
Squared, DPLER services business and residential customers in northern lllincis. The incremental costs and
revenues have not had a material effect on our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Federal Matters

Like other electric utilities and energy marketers, DP&L and DPLE may sell or purchase electric products on the
wholesale market. DP&L and DPLE compete with other generators, power marketers, privately and municipally-
owned electric utilities and rural electric cooperatives when selling electricity. The ability of DP&L and DPLE to
sell this electricity will depend not only on the performance of cur generating units, but alse on how DP&L's and
DPLFE’s prices, terms and conditions compare to those of other suppliers.

As part of Ohio’s electric deregutation law, all of the state’s investor-owned utilities were required to join an RTQ.
In October 2004, DP&L successfully integrated its high-voitage transmission lines into the PJM RTO. The role of
the RTO is to administer a competitive wholesale market for electricity and ensure reliability of the transmission
grid. PJM ensures the reliability of the high-voltage electric power system serving more than 50 million people in
all or parts of Delaware, lllinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, New Jersey, North Carolina, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Virginia, West Virginia and the District of Columbia. PJM coordinates and directs the
operation of the region’s transmission grid, administers the world’s [argest competitive wholesale electricity
market and plans regional transmission expansion improvements to maintain grid reliability and relieve
congestion.

15



The PJM RPM capacity base residual auction for the 2016/17 period cleared at a price of $59/MW-day for our
RTO area. The prices for the periods 2015/16, 2014/15 and 2013/14 were $136/MW-day, $126/MW-day and
$28/MW-day, respectively, based on previous auctions. Future RPM auction results will be dependent not only
on the overall supply and demand of generation and load, but may also be affected by congestion as well as
PJM's business rules refating to bidding for demand response and energy efficiency resources in the RPM
capacity auctions. Increases in customer switching causes more of the RPM capacity costs and revenues to be
excluded from the RPM rider calculation. We cannot predict the outcome of future auctions or customer
switching but if the current auction price is not sustained, it could have a material adverse effect on our future
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

NERC is a FERC-certified electric reliability organization responsible for devseloping and enforcing mandatory
reliability standards, including Critical Infrastructure Protection (CIP) reliability standards, across eight reliability
regions. In December 2012, DP&L underwent routing, scheduled NERC audits conducted by Reliability First
Corperation (RFC), which focused on our performance in supporting PJM as our transmission operator, and our
compliance with the CIP standards. DP&L was found 100% compliant in its performance in support of PJM. in
the CIP audit, four minor documentation-related Possible Alleged Violations (PAVs) were identified, which were
settled through a streamlined process, without any financial penalties. In November 2013, DPLE, DPL’s
merchant generation affiliate, underwent a routing, scheduled NERC audit, during which one minor PAV was
identified; DPL anticipates that it will be settled through a streamlined process, with no financiat penalty.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

DPL’s and DP&L’s facilities and operations are subject to & wide range of federal, state and local environmental
regulations and laws. The environmental issues that may affect us include:

¢ The federal CAA and state laws and regulations (including State implementation Plans) which require
compliance, obtaining permits and reporting as to air emissions,

¢ Litigation with federal and certain state governments and certain special interest groups regarding
whether modifications to or maintenance of certain coal-fired generating stations require additional
permitting or pollution control technology, or whether emissions from coal-fired generating stations cause
or contribute to global climate changes,

¢ Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA and the Ohio EPA that require substantial reductions in
S0,, particulates, mercury, acid gases, NO,, and other air emissions. DP&L has installed emission
controt technology and is taking other measures to comply with required and anticipated reductions,

» Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA and the Ohio EPA that require reporting and may require
reductions of GHGs,

+ Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA associated with the federal Clean Water Act, which prohibits
the discharge of pollutants into waters of the United States except pursuant to appropriate permits, and

¢ Solid and hazardous waste laws and regulations, which govern the management and disposal of certain

waste. The majority of solid waste created from the combustion of coal and fossil fuels is fly ash and
other coal combustion by-products. The USEPA has previously determined that fly ash and other coal
combustion by-products are not hazardous waste subject to the Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act (RCRA), but the USEPA is reconsidering that determination and planning to propose a new rule
regulating coal combustion by-products. A change in determination or other additional regulation of fly
ash or other coal combustion byproducts could significantly increase the costs of disposing of such by-
products,

In addition to imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws and regulations authorize the imposition of
substantial penalties for noncompliance, including fines, injunctive relief and cther sanctions. In the normal
course of business, we have investigatory and remedial activities underway at our facilities to comply, or to
determine compliance, with such regulations. We record liabilities for loss contingencies related to environmental
matters when a loss is probable of occurring and can be reascnably estimated in accordance with the provisions
of GAAP. Accordingly, we have accruals for loss contingencies of approximately $1.1 miilion for environmental
matters. We also have a number of environmental matters for which we have not accrued loss contingencies
because the risk of loss is not probable of a loss cannot be reascnably estimated, which are disclosed in the
paragraphs below. We evaluate the potential liability related to environmentat matters quarterly and may revise
our estimates. Such revisions in the estimates of the potential liabilities could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.
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We have several pending environmental matters associated with our coal-fired generation units. Some of these
matters couid have material adverse impacts on the operation of the power stations; especially the stations that
do not have SCR and FGD equipment installed to further control certain emissions. Currently, the coal-fired
generation unit Beckjord Unit 6, in which DP&L has a 50% ownership interest, does not have such emission-
control equipment installed. This unit is scheduled to be deactivated on June 1, 2015. DPL valued Beckjord Unit
6 at zero at the Merger daie. DP&L is depreciating Unit 6 through December 2014 and does not believe that any
additional accruals or impairment charges are needed as a result of this decision.

DP&L deactivated the coal units at Hutchings Station in September 2013 as part of a settlement with the USEPA
discussed in more detail below.

Environmental Matters Related to Air Quality

Clean Air Act Compliance
In 1990, the federal government amended the CAA {0 further regulate air pollution. Under the CAA, the USEPA

sets limits on how much of a pollutant can be in the ambient air anywhere in the United States. The CAA allows
individua! states to have stronger pollution controls than those set under the CAA, but states are not allowed to
have weaker pollution controls than those set for the whole country. The CAA has a material effect on our
operations and such effects are detailed below with respect to certain programs under the CAA.

Clean Air Interstate Rule/Cross-State Air Pollution Rule

The USEPA promulgated the “Clean Air Interstate Rule” {CAIR) on March 10, 2005, which required allowance
surrender for SO, and NO, emissions from existing power stations located in 27 eastern states and the District of
Columbia. CAIR contemplated two implementation phases. The first phase began in 2009 and 2010 for NO, and
80, respectively. A second phase with additional allowance surrender obligations for both air emissions is
scheduled to begin in 2015, To implement the required emission reductions for this rule, the states were to
establish emission-allowance-based “cap-and-trade” programs. CAIR was subsequently challenged in federal
court, and on July 11, 2008, the United States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit issued an opinion striking
down much of CAIR and remanding it to the USEPA.

In response to the D.C. Circuit's opinion, on July 7, 2011, the USEPA the Cross-State Air Poliution Rule
(CSAPR). Starting in 2012, CSAPR would have required significant reductions in SO, and NO, emissions from
covered sources, such as power stations in 28 eastern states. Once fully implemented in 2014, the rule would
have required additional SO, emission reductions of 73% and additional NO, reductions of 54% from 2005 levels.
Many states, utilities and other affected parties filed petitions for review, challenging the CSAPR before the U.S.
Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. On August 21, 2012, a three-judge panel of the D.C. Circuit Count
vacated CSAPR, ruling that the USEPA overstepped its regulatory authority by requiring states to make
reductions beyond the levels required in the CAA and failed to provide states an initial opportunity to adopt their
own measures for achieving federal compliance. As a result of this ruling, the surviving provisions of CAIR are to
continue to serve as the governing program until the USEPA takes further action or the U.S. Congress
intervenes. On October 5, 2012, the USEPA, several states and cities, as well as environmental and health
organizations, filed petitions with the D.C. Circuit Court requesting a rehearing by all of the judges of the D.C.
Circuit Court of the case pursuant to which the three-judge panel ruled that CSAPR be vacatsed, which were
denied. On June 24, 2013, the U.S. Supreme Court agreed to review the D.C. Circuit Court's decision to vacate
CSAPR and heard cral arguments in the matter on December 10, 2013. Currently, CAIR remains in effect. If
CSAPR were to be reinstated in its current form, we do not expect any material capital costs for DP&L’s stations,
assuming Beckjord unit 8 will not operate on coal in 2015 due to implementation of the Mercury and Air Toxics
Standards (MATS). If the USEPA issues a replacement interstate transport rule addressing the D.C. Circuit
Court's ruling, we believe companies will have three years or more before they would be required to comply with
a replacement rule. At this time, it is not possible to predict the details of such a replacement transpott rule or
what impacts it may have on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Mercury and Other Hazardous Air Pollutants
On May 3, 2011, the USEPA published proposed Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) standards

for coal- and oil-fired electric generating units. The standards include new requirements for emissions of mercury
and a number of other heavy metals. The USEPA Administrator signed the final rule, now called MATS, on
December 16, 2011, and the rule was published in the Federal Register on February 16, 2012. Qur affected
EGUs must come into compliance with the new requirements by April 16, 2015, but may be granted an additionall
year to become compliant contingent on Ohio EPA approval. DP&L is evaluating the costs that may be incurred
to comply with the new requirement; however, MATS could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations and result in material compliance costs.
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On January 31, 2013, the USEPA finalized a rule regulating emissions of toxic air pollutants frem new and
existing industrial, commercial and institutional boilers and process heaters at major and area source facilities.
This regulation affects seven auxiliary boilers used for stant-up purposes at DP&L’s generation facilities. The
regulation contains emissions limitations, operating limitations and other requirements. DP&L expects to be in
compliance with this rule and the costs are not currently expected to be material io DP&L’s operations.

National Ambient Air Quality Standards
On January 5, 2005, the USEPA published its final non-attainment designations for the National Ambient Air

Quality Standard (NAAQS) for Fine Particulate Matter 2.5 (PM 2.5). These designations included counties and
partia! counties in which DP&L operates and/or owns generating facilities. On December 31, 2012, the USEPA
redesignated Adams County, where Stuartt and Killen are located, to attainment status. On December 14, 2012,
the USEPA tightened the PM 2.5 standard to 12.0 micrograms per cubic meter. This will begin a process of
redesignations during 2014, including in counties where we have generating stations. We cannct predict the
effect the revisions to the PM 2.5 standard will have on DP&L’s financial condition or results of operations.

The USEPA published the national ground level ozone standard on March 12, 2008, lowering the 8-hour level
from 0.08 ppm to 0.075 ppm, which was upheld by the U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals in July 2013. No DP&L
operations are currently located in non-attainment areas. The USEPA was expected to review the ozone NAAQS
in 2013 but delayed such a review. Certain environmental groups have sued the USEPA in federal district court
to force the USEPA to set a September 30, 2014 deadline for such review. |t is generally expected that any
revised standard resulting from such review would be more stringent than the current 0.075 ppm standard. In
addition, in December 2013, eight northeastern states petitioned the USEPA to add nine upwind states, including
Ohio, to the Ozone Transport Region, a group of states required to impose enhanced restrictions on ozone
emissions. If the petition is granted, our facilities could be subject to such enhanced requirements.

Effective April 12, 2010, the USEPA implemented revisions to its primary NAAQS for nitrogen dioxide. This
change may aftect certain emission sources in heavy traffic areas like the I-75 corridor between Cincinnati and
Dayton after 2016. Several of our facilities or co-owned facilities are within this area. DP&L cannot determine
the effect of this potential change, if any, on its operations.

Effective August 23, 2010, the USEPA implemented revisions to its primary NAAQS for SO, replacing the current
24-hour standard and annual standard with a one-hour standard. DP&L cannct determine the effect of this
potential change, if any, on its operations. Initial non-attainment designations were made July 25, 2013. Non-
attainment areas will be required to meet the new standard by October 2018.

On May 5, 2004, the USEPA issued its proposed regional haze rule, which addresses how states should
determine the Best Available Retrofit Technology (BART) for sources covered under the regional haze rule. Final
rules were published July 6, 2005, providing states with several options for determining whether sources in the
state should be subject to BART. Numerous units owned and operated by us will be affected by BART. We
cannot determine the extent of the impact until Ohio determines how BART will be implemented.

Carbon Dioxide and Other Greenhouse Gas Emissions

In response to a U.S. Supreme Court decision that the USEPA has the authority to regulate GHG emissions from
motor vehicles, the USEPA made a finding that CO, and certain other GHGs are pollutants under the CAA.
Subsequently, under the CAA, the USEPA determined that CO; and other GHGs from motor vehicles threaten
the health and welfare of future generations by contributing o climate change. This finding became effective in
January 2010. Numerous affected parties have petitioned the USEPA Administrator to reconsider this decision.
On April 1, 2010, the USEPA signed the “Light-Duty Vehicle Greenhouse Gas Emission Standards and
Corporate Average Fuel Economy Standards” rule. Under the USEPA's view, this is the final action that renders
CO; and certain other GHGs “regulated air pollutants” under the CAA.

Under USEPA regulations finalized in May 2010 (referred to as the “Tailoring Rule”), the USEPA began
regulating GHG emissions from certain stationary sources in January 2011. The Tailoring Rule sets forth criteria
for determining which faciiities are required to obtain permits for their GHG emissions pursuant to the CAA
Prevention of Significant Detericration and Title V operating permit programs. Under the Tailoring Ruls,
permitting requirements are being phased in through successive steps that may expand the scope of covered
sources aver time. The USEPA has issued guidance on what the best available control technology entails for the
control of GHGs; and individual states are required to determine what controls are required for facilities on a
case-by-case basis. Various industry groups and states petitioned the U.S. Supreme Court to review the D.C.
Circuit Court's recent decision to uphold the USEPA's endangerment finding, its April 2010 GHG rule and the
Tailoring Rule. On October 15, 2013, the U.S. Supreme Court agreed to review several related cases addressing
the USEPA’s authority to issue GHG Prevention of Significant Deterioration permits under Section 165 of the
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CAA. We cannot predict the outcome of this review. The ultimate impact of the Tailoring Rule to DP&L cannot
be determined at this time, but the cost of compliance could be material.

On September 20, 2013, the USEPA proposed revised GHG New Source Performance Standards for new
electric generating units (EGUs) under CAA subsection 111(b), which would require new EGUs to limit the
amount of CO, emitted per megawatt-hour. The proposal anticipates that affected coal-fired units would need to
rely upon partial implementation of carbon capture and storage or other expensive CO, emission control
technology to meet the standard. Furthermore, President Obama directed the USEPA to propose new
standards, regulations, or guidelines, as appropriate, to address GHG emissions from existing EGUs under CAA
subsection 111(d) by June 1, 2014, and finalize them by June 1, 2015. These latter rules may focus on energy
efficiency improvements at power stations. We cannot predict the effect of these proposed or forthcoming
standards on DP&L’s operations.

Approximately 99% of the energy we produce is generated by coal. DP&L’s share of CO, emissions at
generating stations we own and co-own is approximately 14 million tons annually. Further GHG legislation or
regulation implemented at a future date could have a significant effect on DP&L’s operations and costs, which
could adversely affect our net income, cash flows and financial condition. However, due to the uncertainty
associated with such legislation or regulation, we cannot predict the final outcome or the financial effect that such
legislation or regulation may have on DP&L.

Litigation, Notices of Violation and Other Matters Related to Air Quality

Litigation {nvolving Co-Owned Stations
On June 20, 2011, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that the USEPA’s regulation of GHGs under the CAA displaced

any right that plaintiffs may have had to seek similar regulation through federal common law litigation in the court
system. Although we are not named as a party to these lawsuits, DP&L is a co-owner of coal-fired stations with
Duke Energy and AEP (or their subsidiaries) that could have been affected by the outcome of these lawsuits or
similar suits that may have been filed against other electric power companies, including DP&L. Because the
issue was not squarely before it, the U.S. Supreme Court did not rule against the portion of plaintiffs’ original suits
that sought relief under state law.

As a result of a 2008 consent decree entered into with the Sierra Club and approved by the U.S. District Court for
the Southern District of Ohio, DP&L and the other owners of the Stuart generating station are subject to certain
specified emission targets related to NOy, SO, and particulate matter. The consent decree also includes
commitments for energy efficiency and renewable energy activities. An amendment to the consent decree was
entered into and approved in 2010 to clarify how emissions would be computed during maffunctions. Continued
compliance with the consent decree, as amended, is not expected to have a material effect on DP&L's results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows in the future.

Notices of Violation Involving Co-Owned Units
In November 1999, the USEPA filed civil complaints and NOVs against operators and owners of certain

generation facilities for alleged violations of the CAA. Generation units operated by Duke Energy (Beckjord Unit
6} and AEP Generation (Conesville Unit 4) and co-owned by DP&L were referenced in these actions. The
Conesville complaint was resolved in 2007 as part of a larger seitlement with the USEPA. Conesville was
required to install FGD and SCR at the unit by the end of 2010, and those retrofits have been completed. The
Beckjord complaint was also resolved through litigation. There were no penalties or settlement agreements that
affected Beckjord 6.

In June 2000, the USEPA issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated Stuart generating station (co-owned by DP&L,
Duke Energy and AEP Generation) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOV contained allegations consistent
with NOVs and complaints that the USEPA had brought against numerous other coal-fired utilities in the Midwest.
The NOV indicated the USEPA may: (1) issue an order requiring compliance with the requirements of the Ohio
SIP; or (2) bring a civil action seeking injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for each
violation. To date, neither action has been taken. DP&L cannot predict the outcome of this matter.

In December 2007, the Ohio EPA issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated Killen generating station (co-owned by
DP&L and Duke Energy) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOV alleged deficiencies in the continuous
monitoring of opacity. We submitted a compliance plan to the Ohio EPA on December 19, 2007. To date, no
further actions have been taken by the Ohio EPA.

On March 13, 2008, Duke Energy, the operator of the Zimmer generating station, received an NOV and a Finding
of Violation (FOV) from the USEPA alleging violations of the CAA, the Ohio State Implementation Program (SIP)
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and permits for the Station in areas including SO,, opacity and increased heat input. A second NOV and FOV
with similar allegations was issued on November 4, 2010. Also in 2010, the USEPA issued an NOV to Zimmer
for excess emissions. DP&L is a co-owner of the Zimmer generating station and could be affected by the
eventual resolution of these matters. Duke Energy is expected to act on behalf of itself and the co-owners with
respect to these matters. DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of these matters.

Notices of Vielation Involving Wholly-Owned Stations
In 2007, the Ohio EPA and the USEPA issued NOVs to DP&L for alleged violations of the CAA at the Hutchings

Station. The NOVs' alleged deficiencies relate to stack opacity and particulate emissions. On November 18,
2009, the USEPA issued an NOV to DP&L for alleged NSR viclations of the CAA at the Hutchings Station
relating to capital projects performed in 2001 involving Unit 3 and Unit 6. DP&L does not believe that the two
projects described in the NOV were modifications subject to NSR. As a result of the cessation of operations at
the Hutchings Station discussed in the next paragraph, DP&L believes that the USEPA is unlikely to pursue the
NSR complaint.

As part of a settlement with the USEPA, DP&L signed a Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFQ) that was
filed on September 26, 2013 and an Administrative Consent Agreement. Together, these two agreements
resolved the opacity and particulate emissions NOV at the Hutchings Station and required that ail six coal-fired
units at Hutchings cease operating on coal by September 30, 2013, and included an immaterial penalty and the
completion of a Supplemental Environmental Project of $0.2 million within one year. The units were disabled for
coal operations prior to September 30, 2013.

DP&L also resolved all issues associated with the Ohio EPA NOV through a settiement signed Qctober 4, 2013.
The settlement included the payment of an immaterial penalty.

Environmental Matters Related to Water Quality, Waste Disposal and Ash Ponds

Clean Water Act — Reguiation of Water Intake
On July 9, 2004, the USEPA issued final rules pursuant to the Clean Water Act goveming existing facilities that

have cooling water intake structures. The rules required an assessment of impingement and/or entrainment of
organisms as a result of cooling water withdrawal. A number of pariies appeaied the rules. In April 2009, the
U.S. Supreme Court ruled that the USEPA did have the authority to compare costs with benefits in determining
best technology available. The USEPA released new proposed regulations on March 28, 2011, which were
published in the Federal Register on April 20, 2011. We submitied comments to the proposed regulations on
August 17, 2011. The USEPA is required pursuant to a settliement agresment to issue a final rule by April 17,
2014. We do not yet know the impact the final rules will have on our operations.

Clean Water Act— Requlation of Water Discharge
In December 2006, DP&L submitted a renewal application for the Stuart Station NPDES permit that was due to

expire on June 30, 2007. The Chio EPA issued a revised draft permit that was received on November 12, 2008,
In September 2010, the USEPA formaily objected to the November 12, 2008 revised permit due to questions
regarding the basis for the alternate thermal limitation. At DP&L’s request, a public hearing was held on March
23, 2011, where DP&L presented its position on the issue and provided written comments. In a letter to the Ohio
EPA dated September 28, 2011, the USEPA reaffirmed its objection to the revised permit as previously drafted
by the Ohio EPA. This reaffirmation stipulated that if the Ohio EPA did not re-draft the permit to address the
USEPA’s objection, then the authority for issuing the permit would pass to the USEPA. The Ohio EPA issued
another draft permit in December 2011 and a public hearing was held on February 2, 2012.

The draft permit required DP&L, over the 54 menths following issuance of a final permit, to take undefined
actions to lower the temperature of its discharged water to a level unachievable by the station under its current
design or alternatively make other significant modifications to the cooling water system. DP&L submitted
comments to the draft permit. In November 2012, the Chic EPA issued ancther draft which included a
compliance schedule for performing a study to justify an alternate thermal limitation and to which DP&L
submitted comments. In December 2012, the USEPA formally withdrew their objection to the permit. On
Janhuary 7, 2013, the Ohio EPA issued a final permit. On February 1, 2013, DP&L appealed various aspects of
the final permit to the Environmental Review Appsals Commission. Depending on the outcome of the appeal
process, the effects could be material on DP&L’s cperations.

In September 2009, the USEPA announced that it would be revising technology-based regulations governing
water discharges from steam electric generating facilities. The rulemaking included the collection of information
via an industry-wide questionnaire as well as targeted water sampling efforts at selected facilities. Subsequent to
the information collection effort, it was anticipated that the USEPA would release a proposed rule by mid-2012
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with a final regulation in place by early 2014. The proposed rule was released on June 7, 2013, with a deadline
for a final rule on May 22, 2014, though such final rule’s issuance is expected to be delayed. At present, DP&L is
unable to predict the impact this rulemaking will have on its operations.

In August 2012, PP&L submitted an application for the renewal of the Killen Station NPDES permit which expired
in January 2013. At present, the outcome of this proceeding is not known.

In January 2014, DP&L submitted an application for the renewal of the Hutchings Station NPDES permit which
expires in July 2014. At present, the outcome of this proceeding is not known.

In April 2012, DP&L received an NOV related to the construction of the Carter Hollow landfill at the Stuant
Station. The NOV indicated that construction activities caused sediment to flow into downstream creeks. In
addition, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers issued a Cease and Desist order followed by a notice suspending the
previously issued Corps permit authorizing work associated with the landfill. DP&L installed sedimentation ponds
as part of the runoff control measurses to address this issue and worked with the various agencies to resoclve their
concerns. DP&L signed an Administrative Order from the USEPA on May 30, 2013. A final Consent Agreement
and Final Order was executed on July 8, 2013, and the previously issued permit was reinstated by the Corps on
October 29, 2013.

Regulation of Waste Disposal

In September 2002, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP
for the clean-up of hazardous substances at the South Dayton Dump landfill site. In August 2005, DP&L and
other parties received a general nctice regarding the performance of a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility
Study (RI/FS) under a Superfund Alternative Approach. In October 2005, DP&L received a special notice letter
inviting it to enter into negotiations with the USEPA to conduct the RI/FS. No recent activity has occurred with
respect to that notice or PRP status. However, on August 25, 2009, the USEPA issued an Administrative Order
requiring that access to DP&L’s service center building site, which is across the street from the landfill site, be
given to the USEPA and the existing PRP group to help determine the extent of the landfill site’s contamination
as well as to assess whether ceftain chemicals used at the service center building site might have migrated
through groundwater to the landfill site. DP&L granted such access and drilling of soil borings and installation of
monitoring wells cccurred in late 2009 and early 2010. On May 24, 2010, three members of the existing PRP
group, Hobart Corporation, Kelsey-Hayes Company and NCR Corporation, filed a civil complaint in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio against DP&L and numerous other defendants alleging that
DP&L and the other defendants contributed to the contamination at the South Dayton Dump landfill site and
seeking reimbursement of the PRP group’s costs associated with the investigation and remediation of the site.
On February 10, 2011, the Court dismissed claims against DP&L that related to allegations that chemicals used
by DP&L at its service center contributed to the landfill site’s contamination. The Court, however, did not dismiss
claims alleging financial responsibility for remediation costs based on hazardous substances from DP&L that
were allegedly directly delivered by truck to the landfill. Discovery, including depositions of past and present
DP&L employees, was conducted in 2012. On February 8, 2013, the Court granted DP&L’s motion for summary
judgment on statute of limitations grounds with respect to claims seeking a contribution toward the costs that are
expected to be incurred by the PRP group in performing an RI/FS. That summary judgment ruling was appealed
on March 4, 2013 and the appeal is pending. DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of the appeal. Additionally,
the Court's ruiing does not address future litigation that may arise with respect to actual remediation costs. While
DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of these matters, if DP&L ware required to contribute to the clean-up of
the site, it could have a material adverse effect on its operations.

Beginning in mid-2012, the USEPA began investigating whether explosive or other dangerous conditions exist
under structures located at or near the South Dayton Dump landfill site. In October 2012, DP&L received a
request from the PRP group’s consultant to conduct additional soil and groundwater sampling on DP&L’s service
center property. After informal discussions with the USEPA, DP&L complied with this sampling request and the
sampling was conducted in February 2013. On February 28, 2013, the plaintiffs group referenced above entered
into an Administrative Settlement Agreement Consent Order (ASACO) that establishes procedures for further
sub-slab testing under structures at the South Dayton Dump {andfill site and remediation of vapor intrusion issues
relating to trichloroethylene (TCE), percholorethylene (PCE), and methane. On Apiil 16, 2013, the plaintiffs
group filed a new complaint in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio against DP&L and
34 other defendants alleging that they share liability for these costs. DP&L has opposed the allegations that it
bears any responsibility under the February 2013 ASACO and will actively oppose any atternpt that the plaintiffs
group may have to expand the scope of the new complaint to resurrect issues dismissed by the Court in February
2013 under the first complaint. A motion to dismiss portions of this second complaint relating to alleged migration
of chemicals from DP&L property to the landfiil was denied February 18, 2014, as were motions filed by DP&L
and others to dismiss other portions of the complaint that were viewed by defendants as identical to the
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allegations dismissed in the first complaint proceeding. The Judge found that there were differences in the
allegations and is permitting those allegations to proceed.. Limited discovery has been permitted pending
resolution of the motion including some depositions of former DP&L employees during 2013 and into 2014.
DP&L cannot predict the outcome of this proceeding.

in December 2003, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP
for the clean-up of hazardous substances at the Tremont City landfill site. Information available to DP&L does
not demonstrate that it contributed hazardous substances to the site. While DP&L is unable to predict the
outcome of this matter, if DP&L were required to contribute to the clean-up of the site, it could have a material
adverse effect on its operations.

On April 7, 2010, the USEPA published an Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking announcing that it is
reassessing existing regulations governing the use and distribution in commerce of polychlorinated biphenyls
(PCBs). While this reassessment is in the early stages and the USEPA is seeking information from potentially
affected parties on how it should proceed, the outcome may have a material effect on DP&L. While the USEPA
previously indicated that the official release date for a proposed rule was in April 2013, it has been delayed, likely
until late 2014. At present, DP&L is unable to predict the impact this initiative will have on its operations.

Requlation of Ash Ponds

In March 2009, the USEPA, through a formal Information Collection Request, collected information on ash pond
facilities across the country, including those at Killen and Stuant Stations. Subsequently, the USEPA collected
similar information for the Hutchings Station.

In August 2010, the USEPA conducted an inspection of the Hutchings Station ash ponds. In June 2011, the
USEPA issued a final report from the inspection including recommendations relative to the Hutchings Station ash
ponds. DP&L is unable to predict whether there will be additional USEPA action relative to DP&L’s proposed
plan or the effect on operations that might arise under a different plan.

In June 2011, the USEPA conducted an inspection of the Killen Station ash ponds. In May 2012, we received a
draft report on the inspection. DP&L submitted comments on the draft report in June 2012. On March 14, 2013,
DP&L received the final report on the inspection of the Killen Station ash pond inspection from the USEPA which
included recommended actions. DP&L has submitied a response with its actions to the USEPA. DP&L is
unable to predict the autcome this inspection will have on its operations.

There has been increasing advocacy to regulate coal combustion byproducts under the Resource Conservation
Recovery Act (RCRA). On June 21, 2010, the USEPA published a proposed rule seeking comments on two
options under consideration for the regulation of coal combustion byproducts including regulating the material as
a hazardous waste under RCRA Subtitle C or as a solid waste under RCRA Subtitle D. Litigation has been filed
by several groups seeking a count-ordered deadline for the issuance of a final rule which the USEPA has
opposed. On January 29, 2014, the parties to the litigation entered into & consent decree setting forth the
USEPA's obligation to sign, by December 19, 2014, a notice for publication in the Federal Register taking action
on the Agency’s proposed Subtitle D option. The decree does not require Subtitle D regulation of coal
combustion byproducts — it only requires the Agency to decide by that date whether or not to adopt the Subtitle D
option. At present, the timing for a final rule regulating coal combustion byproducts cannot be determined.
DP&L is unable to predict the financial effect of this regulation, but if coal combustion byproducts are regulated
as hazardous waste, it is expected to have a maierial adverse effect on its operations.

Notice of Violation Involving Co-Owned Units

On September 9, 2011, DP&L received an NOV from the USEPA with respect to its co-owned Stuart generating
station based on a compliance evaluation inspection conducted by the USEPA and Ohioc EPA in 2009. The
notice alleged non-compliance by DP&L with certain provisions of the RCRA, the Ciean Water Act NPDES permit
program and the station’s storm water pollution prevention plan. The notice requested that DP&L respond with
the actions it has subsequently taken or plans to take to remedy the USEPA'’s findings and ensure that further
violations will not occur, Based on its review of the findings, although there can be no assurance, we believe that
the notice will not result in any material effect on DP&L’s results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

LEGAL AND OTHER MATTERS

In February 2007, DP&L filed a lawsuit against a coal supplier seeking damages incurred due to the supplier's
failure to supply approximately 1.5 million tons of coal to two commonily-owned units under a coal supply
agreement, of which approximately 570 thousand tons was DP&L’s share. DP&L obtained replacement coal to
meet its needs. The supplier has denied liability, and is currently in federal bankruptcy proceedings in which
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DP&L is participating as an unsecured creditor. DP&L is unable to determine the ultimate resoiution of this
matter. DP&L has not recorded any assets relating to possible recovery of costs in this lawsuit.

Also see Notes 2 and 16 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about
the Merger and certain related legal matters.

Capital Expenditures for Environmental Matters

DP&L'’s environmental capital expenditures were approximately $2.0 million, $8.0 million and $12.0 million in
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. DP&L has budgeted $11.0 million in environmental related capital
expenditures for 2014,

ELECTRIC SALES AND REVENUES

The following table sets forth DPL’s electric sales and revenues for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012, the period November 28, 2011 (the Merger date) through December 31, 2011 {Successor), and the period
January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011 (Predecessar), respectively.

In the following table, we have included the combined Predecessor and Successor statistical information and
results of operations. Such combined presentation is considered to be a non-GAAP disclosure. We have
inciuded such disclosure because we believe it facilitates the comparison of 2013 operating and financial
performance to 2012 and 2011, and because the core operations of DPL have not changed as a result of the
Merger.

[ DPL |
Successor Combined  Successor |Predecessor
November | January 1,
28, 2011 2011
Year ended Yearended Yearended through through

December December December December | November
31, 2013 31, 2012 31, 2011 31, 2011 27, 2011

Electric sales (miltions of KWh) 19,561 16,454 18,382 1,361 15,021

Billed efectric customers (end of period) 692,670 637,708 516,887
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DPL is structured in two operating segments, DP&L and DPLER. See Note 17 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated
Financial Statements for more information on DPL’s segments. The following tables set forth DP&L’s and
DPLER's electric sales and revenues for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

i DP&L (a)
Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Electric sales (milligns of kWh) 19,423 15,606 15,599
Billed electric customers {end of period) 514,926 513,282 513,383
i DPLER (b)
Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Electric sales (millions of kWh) 9,733 8,315 6,677
Billed electric customers {end of period) 308,047 198,098 40,171

(a) DP&L sold 5,874 million kWh, 6,201 million kWh and 5,731 million kWh of power to DPLER (a subsidiary of DPL) for the years

ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

(b) This chart includes all sales of DPLER, both within and outside of the DP&L seivice territory.

Item 1A — Risk Factors

Investors should consider carefully the following risk factors that could cause our business, operating results and
financial condition to be materially adversely affected. New risks may emerge at any time, and we cannot predict
those risks or estimate the extent to which they may affect our business or financial performance. These risk
factors should be read in conjunction with the other detailed information concerning DPL set forth in the Notes to
DPL’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements and DP&L set forth in the Notes to DP&L’s audited Financial
Statements in ltem 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data and in ltem 7 — Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations herein. The risks and uncertainties described

below are not the only ones we face.

Customers have the opportunity to select alternative electric generation service providers, as permitted

by Ohio legislation.

Customers can elect to buy generation service from a PUCO-certified CRES provider oifering services to
customers in DP&L’s service territory. DPLER, a wholly-owned subsidiary of DPL, is one of those PUCO-
certified CRES providers. Unaffiliated CRES providers also have been certified to provide energy in DP&L’s
service territory. Customer switching from DP&L to DPLER reduces DPL’s revenues since the generation rates
charged by DPLER are less than the SSO rates charged by DP&L. Increased competition by unaffiliated CRES
providers in DP&L’s service territory for retail generation service could result in the loss of existing customers
and reduced revenues and increased costs to retain or aftract customers. Decreased revenues and increased
costs due to continued customer switching and customer loss could have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations, financial condition and cash flows. The following are some of the factors that could result in
increased switching by custormers to PUCO-cettified CRES providers in the future:

+ low wholesale price levels have led, and may continue to lead, to existing CRES providers becoming

more active in our service territory,

¢ additional CRES providers entering our territory, and

24



e we may experience increased customer switching through “governmental aggregation,” where a
municipality may contract with a CRES provider to provide generation service to the customers located
within the municipal boundaries.

We are subject to extensive laws and local, state and federal requlation, as well as related litigation, that
could affect our operations and costs.

We are subject to extensive laws and regulation by federal, state and local authorities, such as the PUCO, the
CFTC, the USEPA, the Ohio EPA, the FERC, the Department of Labor and the Internal Revenue Service, among
others. Regulations affect almost every aspect of our business, including in the areas of the environment, health
and safety, cost recovery and rate making, the issuance of securities and incurrence of debt and taxation. New
laws and regulations, and new interpretations of existing laws and regulations, are ongoing and we generally
cannot predict the future course of changes in this regulatory environment or the ultimate effect that this changing
regulatory environment will have on our business. Complying with this regulatory environment requires us to
expend a significant amount of funds and resources. The failure to comply with this regulatory environment could
subject us to substantial financial costs and penalties and changes, either forced or voluntary, in the way we
operate our business. Additional detail about the effect of this regulatory environment on our operations is
included in the risk factors set forth below. In the normal course of business, we are also subject to various
lawsuits, actions, proceedings, claims and other matters asserted under this regulatory environment or otherwise,
which require us to expend significant funds to address, the outcomes of which are uncertain and the adverse
resolutions of which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and
cash flows.

The costs we can recover and the return on capital we are permitted to earn for certain aspects of our
business are requlated and governed by the laws of Ohio and the rules. policies and procedures of the
PUCO.

On May 1, 2008, SB 221, an Ohio electric energy bill, was signed by the Governor of Ohic and became effective
July 31, 2008. This law, among other things, required all Chio distribution utilities to file either an ESP or MRO,
and established a significantly excessive earnings test for Ohio public ufilities that compares the utility's earnings
to the earnings of other companies with similar business and financial risks. The PUCO order in the 2012 ESP
case changed the Company’s rate structure and the ability to recover certain costs which will affect our results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition. DP&L’s ESP and certain filings made by us in connection with
this plan are further discussed under “Ohio Retail Rates” in ltem 1 — Competition and Regulation.

In Chio, retail generation rates are no longer subject to cost-based regulation, the distribution and transmission
businesses are still regulated. While rate regulation is premised on full recovery of prudently incurred costs and a
reasonable rate of return on invested capital, there can be no assurance that the PUCO will agree that all of our
costs have been prudently incurred or are recoverable. There is also no assurance that the regulatory process in
which rates are determined will always result in rates that will produce a full or timely recovery of our costs and
permitted rates of return. Accordingly, the revenue DP&L receives may or may not match its expenses at any
given time. Therefore, DP&L is subject to prevailing market prices for electricity and would not necessarily be
able to charge rates that produce timely or full recovery of its expenses. Changes in, or reinterpretations of, the
laws, rules, policies and procedures that set electric rates, permitted rates of return, changes in DP&L’s rate
structure, regulations regarding ownership of generation assets, transition to a competitive bid structure to supply
retail gengration service to SSO customers, reliability initiatives, fuel and purchased power {(which account for a
substantial portion of our operating costs), customer switching, capital expenditures and investments and cther
costs on a full or timely basis through rates, power market prices, and changes to the frequency and timing of
rate increases could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows.

Our increased costs due to advanced energy and enerqy efficiency requirements may not be fully
recoverable in the future.

SB 221 contains targets relating to advanced energy, renewable energy, peak demand reduction and energy
efficiency standards. The standards require that, by the year 2025 and each year thereafter, 25% of the total
number of kWh of electricity sold by the utility to retail electric consumers must come from alternative energy
resources. These include “advanced energy resources” such as distributed generation, clean coal, advanced
nuclear, energy efficiency and fuel cell technology; and “renewable energy resources” such as solar, hydro, wind,
geothermal and biomass. At least half of the 25% must be generated from renewable energy resources,
including solar energy. Annual renewable energy standards began in 2009 with increases in required
percentages each year through 2024. The advanced energy standard must be met by 2025 and each year
thereafter. Annual targets for energy efficiency began in 2009 and require increasing energy reductions each
year compared o a baseline energy usage, up to 22.3% by 2025. Peak demand reduction targets began in 2009
with increases in required percentages each year, up to 7.75% by 2018. The advanced energy and renewable
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energy standards have increased our power supply costs and are expected to continue to increase (and could
materially increase) these costs. DP&L is entitled to recover costs associated with its alternative energy
compliance costs, as well as its energy efficiency and demand response programs. DP&L began recovering
these costs in 2009. If in the future we are unable to timely or fully recover these costs, it could have a material
adverse effect on cur results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. In addition, if we were found not to
be in compliance with these standards, monetary penalties could apply. These penalties are not permitted to be
recovered from customers and significant penalties could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows. The demand reduction and energy efficiency standards by design
result in reduced energy and demand that could adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition and
cash flows.

We have no control over the timing or terms of an order by the PUCQ ordering us to separate our
generation business into a separate legal entity from our distribution and transmission business.

As required by the 2013 ESP order, DP&L filed an application for authority to transfer or sell its generation assets
no later than May 31, 2017. There can be no assurance of the terms on which the PUGO would authorize the
separation of cur generation business from our distribution and transmission business. Several regulatory filings
and approvals are required in connection with the separation and certain other consents or approvals may be
required under other agreements to which we are party.

The availability and cost of fuel has experienced and could continue to experience significant volatility

and we may not be able to hedge the entire exposure of our operations from fuel availability and price

volatility.
We purchase coal, natural gas and other fuel from a number of suppliers. The coal market in particular has

experienced significant price volatility in the last several years. We are now in a global market for coal in which
our domestic price is increasingly affected by international supply disruptions and demand balance. Coal exports
from the U.S. have increased significantly at times in recent years. In addition, domestic issues like government-
imposed direct costs and permitting issues that affect mining costs and supply availability, and the variable
demand of retail customer load and the performance of our generation fleet have an impact on our fuel
procurement operations. Qur approach is to hedge the fuel costs for our anticipated electric sales. However, we
may not be able to hedge the entire exposure of our operations from fuel price volatility. As of the date of this
report, DP&L has substantially all of the expected coal volume needed under contract to meet its retail and
wholesale sales requirements for 2014. In 2013, approximately 80% of DP&L’s coal for stations it operates was
provided by four suppiiers, one of which was under a contract in excess of one year with DP&L. Historically,
some of our suppliers and buyers of fuel have not performed on their coniracts and have failed to deliver or
accept fuel as specified under their contracts. To the extent our suppliers and buyers do not meet their
contractual commitments and, as a result of such failure or otherwise, we cannot secure adequate fuel or sell
excess fuel in a timely or cost-effective manner or we are not hedged against price volatility, we could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. In addition, DP&L is a co-
owner of certain generation facilities where it is a non-operating owner. DP&L does not procure or have control
over the fuel for these facilities, but is responsible for its proportionate share of the cost of fuel procured at these
facilittes. Co-owner operated facilities do not always have realized fuel costs that are equal to our co-owners’
projections, and we are responsible for our proportionate share of any increase in actual fuel costs. Fuel and
purchased power costs represent a large and volatile portion of DP&L’s total cost. DP&L implemented a fuel and
purchased power recovery mechanism beginning on January 1, 2010, which subjects our recovery of fuel and
purchased power costs to tracking and adjustment on a seasonal quarterly basis for SSO customers. If in the
future we are unable to timely or fully recover our fuel and purchased power costs, it could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our use of derivative and nonderivative contracts may not fully hedge our generation assets, customer

supply activities, or other market positions against changes in commodity prices, and our hedging
procedures may not work as planned.

We transact in coal, power and other commodities to hedge our positions in these commodities. These trades
are affected by a range of factors, including variations in power demand, fluctuations in market prices, market
prices for alternative commodities and optimization opportunities. We have attempted to manage our
commodities price risk exposure by establishing and enforcing risk limits and risk management policies. Despite
our efforts, however, these risk limits and management policies may not work as planned and fluctuating prices
and other events could adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. As part of
our risk management, we use a variety of non-detivative and derivative instruments, such as swaps, futures and
forwards, to manage our market risks. We also use interest rate derivative instruments to hedge against interest
rate fluctuations related to our debt. In the absence of actively quoted market prices and pricing information from
external sources, the valuation of some of these derivative instruments involves management’'s judgment or use
of estimates. As a result, changes in the underlying assumptions or use of alternative valuation methods could
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affect the reported fair value of some of these contracts. We could also recognize financial losses as a result of
volatility in the market values of these contracts or if a counterparty fails to perform, which could result in a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

The Dodd-Frank Act contains significant requirements related to derivatives that, among other things,
could reduce the cost effectiveness of entering into derivative transactions.

In July 2010, The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (Dodd-Frank Act} was signed
into law. The Dodd-Frank Act contains significant requirements relating to derivatives, including, among others, a
requirement that certain transactions be cleared on exchanges that would necessitate the posting of cash
collateral for these transactions. We are considered an end-user under the Dodd-Frank Act and therefore are
exempt from most of the collateral and margining requirements. We are required to report our bilateral derivative
contracts, unless our counterparty is a major swap participant or has elected to report on our behalf. Even
though we qualify for an exception from these requirements, our counterparties that do not qualify for the
exception may pass along any increased costs incurred by them through higher prices and reductions in
unsecured credit limits or be unable to enter into certain transactions with us. The occurrence of any of these
events could have an adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We are subject to numerous environmental laws and requlations that require capital expenditures,
increase our cost of operations, may expose us to environmental liabilities or make continued operation
of certain generating units unprofitable.

Our operations and facilities (both wholly-owned and co-owned with others) are subject to numerous and
extensive federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations relating to various matters, including air
quality (such as reductions in NO,, 8O, and particulate emissions), water quality, wastewater discharge, solid
waste and hazardous waste. We could also become subject to additional environmental laws and regulations and
other requirements in the future (such as reductions in mercury and cther hazardous air pollutants, SO; (suifur
trioxide), regulation of ash generated from coal-based generating stations and reductions in GHG emissions as
discussed in more detail in the next risk factor). With respect to our largest generation station, the Stuart Station,
we are also subject to continuing compliance requirements related to NO,, SO, and particulate matter emissions
under DP&L’s consent decree with the Sierra Club. Compliance with these laws, regulations and cther
requirements requires us to expend significant funds and resources and could at some point become prohibitively
expensive or result in our shutting down (temporarily or permanently)} or altering the operation of our facilities.
Environmental laws and regulations also generally require us to obtain and comply with a wide variety of
environmental licenses, permits, inspections and other approvals. If we are not able to timely obtain, maintain or
comply with all licenses, permits, inspections and approvals required to operate our business, then our
operations could be prevented, delayed or subject to additional costs. Failure to comply with environmental laws,
regulations and other requirements may result in the imposition of fines and penalties or other sanctions and the
imposition of stricter environmental standards and controls and other injunctive measures affecting operating
assets. In addition, any alleged violation of these laws, regulations and other requirements may require us to
expend significant rescurces to defend against any such alleged violations. DP&L owns a non-controlling
interest in several generating stations operated by our co-owners. As a non-conirelling owner in these
generating stations, DP&L is responsible for its pro rata share of expenditures for complying with environmental
laws, regulations and other requirements, but has limited control over the compliance measures taken by our co-
owners. In addition, DP&L’s ESP permits it to seek recovery for costs associated with new climate change or
carbon regulations. In addition, if we were found not to be in compliance with these environmental laws,
regulations or requirements, any penalties that would apply or other resulting costs would [ikely not be
recoverable from customers. We could be subject to joint and several strict liabilities for any environmental
contamination at our currently or formerly owned, leased or operated properties or third-party waste disposal
sites. For example, contamination has been identified at two waste disposal sites for which we are alleged to
have potential liability. In addition to potentially significant investigation and remediation costs, any such
contamination matters can give rise to claims from governmental authorities and other third parties for fines or
penaities, natural resource damages, personal injury and property damage.

Our costs and liabilities relating to environmental matters could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

If legislation or requlations at the federal, stale or regional levels impose mandatory reductions of
greenhouse gases on generation facilities, we could be required to make large additional capital
investments and incur substantial costs.

There is an ongoing concern nationally and internationally among regulators, investors and others concerning
global climate change and the contribution of emissions of GHGs, including most significantly CO,. This concern
has led to interest in legislation and action at the international, federal, state and regional levels, including
regulation of GHG emissions by the USEPA, and litigation seeking to compel the promulgation or enforcement of
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GHG requirements. Approximately 99% of the energy we produce is generated by coal. As a result of current or
future legislation or regulations at the international, federal, state or regional levels imposing mandatory
reductions of CO, and other GHGs on generation facilities, we could be required to make large additional capital
investments and/or incur substantial costs in the form of taxes or emissions allowances. Such legislation and
regulations could also impair the value of our generation stations or make some of these stations unecoriomical
to maintain or operate and could raise uncertainty about the future viability of fossil fuels, particularly coal, as an
energy source for new and existing generation stations. Although DP&L is permitted under its current ESP to
seek recovery of costs associated with new climate change or carbon regulations, our inability to fully or timely
recover such costs could have a material adverse effect on our resuits of operations, financial condition and cash
flows.

Fluctuations in our sales of ccal and excess emission allowances could cause a material adverse effect
oh our results of operations, rations. financial condition and cash flows for any particular period.

DP&L sells coal to other parties from time to time for reasons that include maintaining an appropriate balance
between projected supply and projected use and as part of a coal price optimization program where coal under
contract may be resold and replaced with other coal or power available in the market with a favorable price
spread, adjusted for any quality differentials. Sales of coal are affected by a range of factors, including price
volatility among the different coal basins and qualities of coal, variations in power demand and the market price of
power compared to the cost to produce power. These factors could cause the amount and price of coal we sell
to fluctuate, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows for any particular period.

DP&L may sell its excess emission allowances, including NO, and SO, emission allowances, from time to time.
Sales of any excess emission allowances are affected by a range of factors, such as general economic
conditions, fluctuations in market demand, availability of excess inventory for sale and changes to the regulatory
environment, including the implementation of CAIR or any replacement rule. These factors could cause the
amount and price of excess emission allowances DP&L sells to fluctuate, which could have a material adverse
effect on DPL’s results of operations, financial condition and cash flows for any particular pericd. Although there
has been overall reduced trading activity in the annual NO, and SQ, emission allowance trading markets in
recent years, the adoption of regulations that regulate emissions or establish or modify emission allowance
trading programs could affect the emission allowance trading markets and have a material effect on DP&L’s
emission allowance sales.

The operation and performance of our facilities are subject to various events and risks that could
nevatively affect our business.

The operation and performance of our generation, transmission and distribution facilities and equipment is
subject to various events and risks, such as the potential breakdown or failure of equipment, processes or
facilities, fuel supply or transportation disruptions, the loss of cost-effective disposal options for solid waste
generated by our faciiities (such as coal ash and gypsum}, accidents, injuries, labor disputes or work stoppages
by employees, operator error, acts of terrorism or sabotage, construction delays or cost overruns, shortages of or
delays in obtaining equipment, material and labor, operational restrictions resulting from environmental limitations
and governmental interventions, performance below expected or required levels, weather-related and other
natural disruptions, vandalism, events occurring on the systems of third parties that interconnect to and affect our
system and the increased maintenance requirements, costs and risks associated with our aging generation units.
Our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows could have a material adverse effect due to the
occurrence or continuation of these events.

Diminished availability or performance of our transmission and distribution facilities could resuit in reduced
custorner satisfaction and regulatory inquiries and fines, which could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. Operation of our owned and co-owned generating
stations below expected capacity levels, or unplanned outages at these stations, could cause reduced energy
output and efficiency levels and likely result in lost revenues and increased expenses that could have a material
adverse effect on our resuits of operations, financial condition and cash flows. In particular, since over 50% of
our base-load generation is derived from co-owned generation stations operated by our co-owners, poor
operational performance by our co-owners, misalignment of co-owners’ interests or lack of control over costs
(such as fuel costs) incurred at these stations could have an adverse effect on us. We have constructed and
placed into service FGD facilities at most of our base-load generating stations. |f there is significant operational
failure of the FGD equipment at the generating stations, we may not be able to meet emission requirements at
some of our generating stations or, at other stations, it may require us to burn more expensive types of coal or
procure additional emission allowances. These events could result in a substantial increase in our operating
costs. Depending on the degree, nature, extent, or willfulness of any failure to comply with environmental
requirements, including those imposed by any consent decrees, such non-compliance could result in the
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imposition of penalties or the shutting down of the affected generating stations, which could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Asbestos and other regulated substances are, and may continue to be, present at our facilities. We have been
named as a defendant in asbestos litigation, which at this time is not material to us. The continued presence of
asbestos and other regulated substances at these facilities could result in additional litigation being brought
against us, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows.

If we were found not to be in compliance with the mandatory reliability standards, we could be subject to
sanctions, including substantial monetary penalties. These would likely not be recoverable from
customers through regulated rates and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows.

As an owner and operator of a bulk power transmission system, DP&L is subject to mandatory reliability
standards promulgated by the NERC and enforced by the FERC. The standards are based on the functions that
need to be petformed to ensure the bulk power system operates reliably and is guided by reliability and market
interface principles. In addition, DP&L is subject to Ohio reliability standards and targets. Compliance with
reliability standards subjects us to higher operating costs or increased capital expenditures. While we expect to
recover costs and expenditures from customers through regulated rates, there can be no assurance that the
PUCO will approve full recovery in a timely manner. If we were found not to be in compliance with the mandatory
teliability standards, we could be subject to sanctions, including substantial monetary penalties, which likely
would not be recoverable from customers through regulated rates and could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our financial results may fluctuate on a seasonal and guarterly basis or as a result of severe weather.
Weather conditions significantly affect the demand for electric power. In our Ohio service territory, demand for
electricity is generally greater in the summer months associated with cooling and in the winter months associated
with heating compared to other times of the year. Unusually mild summers and winters could therefore have an
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. In addition, severe or unusual
weather, such as hurricanes and ice or snow storms, may cause cutages and property damage that may require
us to incur additional costs that may not be insured or recoverable from customers. While DP&L. is permitted to
seek recovery of storm damage costs under its ESP, if DP&L is unable to fully recover such costs in a timely
manner, it could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Qur membership in a regional transmission organization presents risks that could have a material

adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
On October 1, 2004, in compliance with Ohio law, DP&L turned over control of its transmission functions and fully

integrated into PJM, a regional transmission organization. The price at which we can sell our generation capacity
and energy is now dependent on a number of factors, which include the overall supply and demand of generation
and load, other state legislation or regulation, transmission congestion and PJ4M's business rules. While we can
continue to make bilateral transactions to sell our generation through a willing-buyer and willing-seller
refationship, any transactions that are not pre-arranged are subject to market conditions at PJM. To the extent
we sell electricity into the power markets on a contractual basis, we are not guaranteed any rate of return on our
capital investments through mandated rates. The results of the PJM RPM base residual auction are impacted by
the supply and demand of generation and load and also may be impacted by congestion and PJM rules relating
to bidding for Demand Response and Energy Efficiency resources and other factors. Auction prices could
fluctuate substantially over retatively short periods of time and adversely affect our results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows. We cannot predict the cutcome of future auctions, but low auction prices could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

The rules governing the various regional power markets may also change from time to time which could affect
our costs and revenues and have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and
cash flows. We may be required to expand our transmission system according to decisions made by PJM rather
than our internal planning process. Various proposals and proceedings before FERC may cause transmission
rates to change from time to time. In addition, PJM has been developing rules associated with the allocation and
methodology of assigning costs associated with improved transmission reliability, reduced transmission
congestion and firm transmission rights that may have a financial effect on us. We also incur fees and costs to
participate in PJM.

SB 221 includes a provision that allows electric utilities to seek and obtain recovery of RTO-related charges.
Therefore, RTO-related costs associated with serving SSO load are being recovered through our SSO retail
rates. If in the future, however, we are unable to recover all of these costs in a timely manner, and since the SSO
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retail riders are bypassable when additional customer switching occurs, this could have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

As members of PJM, DP&L and DPLE are also subject to certain additional risks including those associated with
the allocation of losses caused by unreimbursed defaults of other participants in PJM markets among PJM
members and those associated with complaint cases filed against PJM that may seek refunds of revenues
previously eamed by PJM members including DP&L and DPLE. These amounts could be significant and have a
material adverse effect on our resulis of operations, financial condition and cash fiows.

Costs associated with new transmission projects could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Annually, PJM performs a review of the capital additions required to provide reliable electric transmission
setrvices throughout its territory. PJM traditionally allocated the costs of constructing these facilities to those
entities that benefited directly from the additions. Over the last several years, however, some of the costs of
constructing new large transmission facilities have been "socialized” across PJM without a direct relationship
between the costs assigned to and benefits received by particular PJM members. To date, the additional costs
charged to DP&L for new large transmission approved projects have not been material. Over time, as more new
transmission projects are constructed and if the allocation method is not changed, the annual costs couid
become material. DP&L is recovering the Ohio retail jurisdictional share of these allocated costs from its SSO
retail customers through the TCRR rider. To the extent that any costs in the future are material and we are
unable to recover them from our customers, it could have a material adverse effect on our results of operation,
financial condition and cash flows.

Qur inability to obtain financing on reascnable terms, or at all, with creditworthy counterparties could
adversely affect our results of operations. financial condition and cash flows.

From time to time we rely on access to the credit and capital markets to fund certain operational and capital
costs. These capital and credit markets have experienced extreme volatility and disruption and the ability of
corporations to obtain funds through the issuance of debt or equity has been negatively impacted. Disruptions in
the credit and capital markets make it harder and more expensive to obtain funding for our business. Access to
funds under our existing financing arrangements is also dependent cn the ability of cur counterparties to meet
their financing commitments. Our inability to obtain financing on reasonable terms, cor at all, with creditworthy
counterparties could adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. If our available
funding is limited or we are forced to fund our operations at a higher cost, these conditions may require us to
curtail our business activities and increase our cost of funding, both of which could reduce our prefitability. DP&L
has variabie rate debt that bears interest based on a prevailing rate that is reset weekly based on a market index
that can be affected by market demand, supply, market interest rates and other market conditions. We also
currently maintain both cash on deposit and investments in cash equivalents that could be adversely affected by
interest rate fluctuations. In addition, ratings agencies issue credit ratings on us and our debt that affect our
borrowing costs under our financial arrangements and affect our potential pool of investors and funding sources.
Our credit ratings also govern the collateral provisions of certain of our contracis. As a result of the Merger and
assumption by DPL of merger-related debt and other factors, our credit ratings were downgraded, resulting in
increased borrowing costs and causing us to post cash collateral with certain of our counterparties. If the rating
agencies were to downgrade our credit ratings further, our borrowing costs would likely further increase, our
potential pool of investors and funding resources could be reduced, and we could be required to post additional
cash collateral under selected contracts. These events would likely reduce our liquidity and profitability and could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

A material change in market interest rates could adversely affect our results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

DPL and DP&L have variable rate debt that bears interest based on a prevailing rate that is regularly reset and
that can be affected by market demand, supply, market interest rates and other market conditions. We also
currently maintain both cash on deposit and investments in cash equivalents that could be adversely affected by
interest rate fluctuations. Any event which impacts market interest rates could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Poor investment performance of our benefit plan assets and other factors impacting benefit plan costs

could unfavorably affect our liquidity and results of operations.
The performance of the capital markets affects the values of the assets that are held in trust to satisfy future

obligations under our pension and postemployment benefit plans. These assets are subject to market
fluctuations and will yield uncertain returns, which may fall below our projected return rates. A decline in the
market value of the pension and postemployment benefit plan assets will increase the funding requirements
under our pension and postemployment benefit plans if the actual asset returns do not recover these declines in
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value in the foreseeable future. Future pension funding requirements, and the timing of funding payments, may
also be subject to changes in legislation. The Pension Protection Act, enacted in August 2006, requires
underfunded pension plans to improve their funding ratios within prescribed intervals based on the ievel of their
underfunding. As a result, our required contributions to these plans at times have increased and may increase in
the future. In addition, our pension and postemployment benefit plan liabilities are sensitive to changes in
interest rates. As interest rates decrease, the discounted liabilities increase benefit expense and funding
requirements. Further, changes in demographics, including increased numbers of retirements or changes in life
expectancy assumptions, may also increase the funding requirements for the obligations related to the pension
and other postemployment benefit plans. Declines in market values and increased funding requirements could
have a material adverse effect on our resulis of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our businesses depend on counterparties performing in accordance with their agreements. If they fail to
perform, we could incur substantial expense, which could adversely affect our liquidity, cash flows and
results of operations.

We enter into transactions with and rely on many counterparties in connection with our business, including for the
purchase and delivery of inventory, including fuel and equipment components (such as limestone for our FGD
equipment), for our capital improvements and additions and to provide professional services, such as actuarial
calculations, payrolf processing and various consulting services. If any of these counterparties fails to perform its
obligations to us or becomes unavailable, cur business plans may be materially disrupted, we may be forced to
discontinue certain operations if a cost-effective alternative is not readily available or we may be forced to enter
into alternative arrangements at then-current market prices that may exceed our contractual prices and cause
delays. These events could cause our results of operaticns, financial condition and cash flows to have a material
adverse effect.

Our consolidated results of operations may be neqatively affected by overall market, economic and other
conditions that are beyond our control.

Economic pressures, as well as changing market conditions and other factors related to physical energy and
financial trading activities, which include price, credit, liquidity, volatility, capacity, transmission and interest rates,
can have a significant effect on our operations and the operations of cur retail, industrial and commercial
customers and our suppliers. The direction and relative strength of the economy has been increasingly uncertain
due to softness in the real estate and mortgage markets, volatility in fuel and other energy costs, difficulties in the
financial services sector and credit markets, high unemployment and other factors. Many of these factors have
affected our Ohio service territory.

Overall lower prices in the retail electricity market have led to increased switching from DP&L to other CRES
providers, including DPLER, who are offering retail prices lower than DP&L's current SSO. Also, several
municipalities in DP&L’s service territory have passed ordinances allowing them to become government
aggregators and some municipalities have contracted with CRES providers to provide generation service to the
customers located within the municipal houndaries, further contributing to the switching trend. CRES providers
have also become more active in DP&L’s service territory. These factors may reduce our margins and could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows may be negatively affected by sustained downturns
or a sluggish economy. Sustained downturns, recessions or a sluggish economy generally affect the markets in
which we operate and negatively influence our energy operations. A contracting, slow or sluggish economy could
reduce the demand for energy in areas in which we are doing business. During economic downturns, our
commercial and industrial customers may see a decrease in demand for their products, which in turn may lead to
a decrease in the amount of energy they require. In addition, our customers’ ability to pay us could also be
impaired, which could result in an increase in receivables and write-offs of uncollectible accounts. Our suppliers
could also be affected by the economic downturn resuliing in supply delays or unavailability. Reduced demand
for our electric services, failure by our customers to timely remit full payment owed to us and supply delays or
unavailability could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Accidental improprieties and undetected errors in our internal controls and information reporting could
result in the disallowance of cost recovery, noncompliant disclosure and reporting or incorrect payment

processing.
Our internal controls, accounting policies and practices and internal information systems are designed to enable

us io capture and process transactions and information in a timely and accurate manner in compliance with
GAAP in the United States of America, laws and regulations, taxation requirements and federal securities laws
and regulations in order to, among other things, disclose and report financial and other information in connection
with the recovery of our costs and with our reporting requirements under federal securities, tax and other laws
and regulations and to properly process payments. We have also implemented corporate governance, internal
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control and accounting policies and procedures in connection with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Our internal
controls and policies have been and continue to be closely monitored by management and our Board of
Directors. While we believe these controls, policies, practices and systems are adequate to verify data integrity,
unanticipated and unauthorized actions of employees, temporary lapses in internal controls due to shortfalls in
oversight or resource constraints could lead to improprieties and undetected errors that could result in the
disallowance of cost recovery, noncompliant disclosure and reporting or incorrect payment processing. The
consequences of these events could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

New accounting standards or changes to existing accounting standards could materially affect how we

report our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The SEC, FASB or other authoritative bodies or governmental entities
may issue new pronouncements or new interpretations of existing accounting standards that may require us to
change our accounting policies. These changes are beyond our control, can be difficult te predict and could
materially affect how we report our resulis of operations, financial condition and cash flows. We could be
required to apply a new or revised standard retroactively, which could adversely affect our financial condition. In
addition, in preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.

The SEC is investigating the potential transition to the use of IFRS promulgated by the International Accounting
Standards Board for U.S. companies. Adoption of IFRS could result in significant changes to our accounting and
reporting, such as in the treatment of regulatory assets and liabilities and property. The SEC does not currently
have a timeline regarding the mandatory adoption of IFRS. We are currently assessing the effect that this
potential change would have on our Consolidated Financial Statements and we will continue to monitor the
development of the potential implementation of IFRS.

If we are unable to maintain a gualified and properly motivated workforce, it could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

One of the challenges we face is to retain a skilled, efficient and cost-effective workforce while recruiting new
talent to replace losses in knowledge and skills due to resignations, terminations or retirements. This undertaking
could require us to make additional financial commitments and incur increased costs. If we are unable to
successfully attract and retain an appropriately qualified workforce, it could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. [n addition, we have employee compensation plans that
reward the performance of our employees. We seek to ensure that our compensation plans encourage
acceptable levels for risk and high performance through pay mix, performance metrics and timing. We also have
policies and procedures in place to mitigate excessive risk-taking by employees since excessive risk-taking by
our employees to achieve performance targets could result in events that could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We are subject to collective bargaining agreements and other employee workforce factors that could

affect our businesses.

Over half of our employees are represented by a collective bargaining agreement that is in effect until October
31, 2014. While we believe that we maintain a satisfactory relationship with our employees, it is possible that
labor disruptions affecting some or all of our operations could occur during the period of the collective bargaining
agreement or at the expiration of the collective bargaining agreement before a new agreement is negotiated.
Work stoppages by, or poor relations or ineffective negotiations with, our employees could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Potential security breaches {including cybersecurity breaches) and terrorism risks could adversely affect

our businesses.

We operate in a highly regulated industry that requires the continued operation of sophisticated systems and
network infrastructure at our generation stations, fuel storage facilities and transmission and distribution facilities.
We alsc use various finangial, accounting and other systems in our businesses. These systems and facilities are
vulnerable to unauthorized access due to hacking, viruses, other cybersecurity attacks and other causes. In
particular, given the importance of energy and the electric grid, there is the possibility that our systems and
facilities could be targets of terrorism or acts of war. We have implemented measures to help prevent
unauthorized access to our systems and facilities, including certain measures to comply with mandatory
regulatory reliability standards. Despite our efforts, if our systems or facilities were to be breached or disabled,
we may be unable to recover them in a timely way to fulfill critical business functions, including the supply of
electric services to our customers, and we could experience decreases in revenues and increases in costs that
could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.
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In the course of our business, we also store and use customer, employee, and other personal information and
other confidential and sensitive information. If our third party vendors’ systems were to be breached or disabled,
sensitive and confidential information and other data could be compromised, which could result in negative
publicity, remediation costs and potential litigation, damages, consent orders, injunctions, fines and other relief.

To help mitigate against these risks, we maintain insurance coverage against some, but not all, potential losses,
including coverage for illegal acts against us. However, insurance may not be adequate to protect us against all
costs and liabilities associated with these risks,

DPL is a holding company and parent of DP&L and other subsidiaries. DPL’s cash flow is dependent on
the operating cash flows of DP&L and its other subsidiaries and their ability to pay cash to DPL.

DPL is a holding company and its investments in its subsidiaries are its primary assets. A significant portion of
DPL’s business is conducted by its DP&L subsidiary. As such, DPL’s cash flow is dependent on the operating
cash flows of DP&L and its ability to pay cash to DPL. DP&L’s governing documents contain certain limitations
on the ability to declare and pay dividends to DPL while preferred stock is outstanding. Certain of DP&L’s debt
agreements also contain limits with respect to the ability of DP&L to incur debt. In addition, DP&L is regulated by
the PUCO, which possesses broad oversight powers to ensure that the needs of utility customers are being met.
While we are not currently aware of any plans to do so, the PUCO could attempt to impose restrictions on the
ability of DP&L to distribute, loan or advance cash to DPL pursuant to these broad powers. As part of the
PUCO's approval of the Merger, DP&L agreed to maintain a capital structure that includes an equity ratio of at
least 50 percent and not to have a negative retained earnings balance. While we do not expect any of the
foregoing restrictions to significantly affect DP&L’s ability to pay funds to DPL in the future, a significant limitation
on DP&L’s ability to pay dividends or loan or advance funds to DPL would have a material adverse effect on
DPL’s results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Impairment of goodwill or long-lived assets would neqatively affect our consolidated results of
operations and net worth.

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from assets acquired in a business combination
(acquisition) that are not individually identified and separately recognized. Goodwill is not amortized, but is
evaluated for impairment at least annually or more frequently if impairment indicators are present. In evaluating
the potential impairment of goodwill, we make estimates and assumptions about revenue, operating cash flows,
capital expenditures, growth rates and discount rates based on our budgets and long-term forecasts,
macroeconomic projections, and currént market expectations of returns on similar assets. There are inherent
uncertainties related to these factors and management’s judgment in applying these factors. Generally, the fair
value of a reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow valuation model. We could be required to
evaluate the potential impairment of goodwill outside of the required annual assessment process if we experience
situations, including but not limited to: deterioration in general economic conditions, operating or regulatory
environment; increased competitive environment; increase in fuel costs particularly when we are unable to pass
along such costs to customers; negative or declining cash flows; loss of a key contract or customer, particularly
when we are unable to replace it on equally favorable terms; or adverse actions or assessments by a regulator.
These types of events and the resulting analyses could result in goodwill impairment expense, which could
substantially affect our results of operations for those periods. See Note 18 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated
Financial Statements for more information on the impairment of Goodwill.

Long-lived assets are initially recorded at fair value when acquired in a business combination and are amortized
or depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Long-lived assets are evaluated for impairment only when
impairment indicators are present whereas goodwill is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis or more
frequently if potential impairment indicators are present. Otherwise, the recoverability assessment of long-lived
assets is similar to the potential impairment evaluation of goodwill particularly as it relates to the ideniification of
potential impairment indicators, and making estimates and assumptions to determine fair value, as described
above. See Note 19 of Notes to DPL’s Financial Statements for more information on the impairment of fixed
assets. Ses Note 15 of Notes to DP&L’s Financial Statements for more information on the impairment of fixed
assets.
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item 1B — Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item 2 — Properties

Information relating to our properties is contained in tem 1 — Electric Operations and Fuel Supply and Note 5 of
Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 5 of Notes to DP&L's Financial Statements.

Substantially all property and stations of DP&L are subject to the lien of the First and Refunding Mortgage.

Iltem 3 - Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of business, we are subject to various lawsuits, actions, proceedings, claims and other
matters asserted under laws and regulations. We are also from time to time involved in other reviews,
investigations and proceadings by governmental and regulatory agencies regarding our business, certain of
which may result in adverse judgments, settlements, fines, penalties, injunctions or other relief. We believe the
amounts provided in our Consolidated Financial Statements, as prescribed by GAAP, for these matters are
adequate in light of the probable and estimable contingencies. However, there can be no assurances that the
actual amounts required to satisfy alleged liabilities from various legal proceedings, claims and other matters
(including those matters noted below) and to comply with applicable laws and regufations will not exceed the
amnounts reflected in our Consolidated Financial Statements. As such, costs, if any, that may be incurred in
excess of those amounts provided as of December 31, 2013, cannot be reasonably determined.

The following additional information is incorporated by reference into this ltem: (i) information about the legal
proceedings contained in ltem 1 — Competition and Regulation of Part 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and
(ii) information about the legal proceedings contained in ltem 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
~— Note 16 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements of Part 1l of this Annuai Report on Form 10-K.

ltem 4 — Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

PART Il

ltem 5 — Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

All of the outstanding common stock of DPL is owned, and has been owned throughout all of 2013 and 2012,
indirectly by AES and directly by an AES wholly-owned subsidiary. As a result, our stock is not listed for trading
on any stock exchange. DP&L’s common stock is held solely by DPL and, as a result, is not listed for trading on
any stock exchange.

Dividends

During the year ended December 31, 2012 (Successor), DPL declared dividends on its common stock to its
parent of $70.0 million. During the year ended December 31, 2013, DPL’s Board of Directors amended the prior
dividend declaration to be equal to the amount paid, $19.1 million, reversing $5.9 million of the 2012 dividends.
Puring the period January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011 (Predecessor), DPL declared dividends of $1.54
per share of common stock. Of this amount, $0.54 per share was paid during the period November 28, 2011
through December 31, 2011 {(Successor}. During the year ended December 31, 2010, DPL declared and paid
dividends per share of common stock of $1.21. DP&L declares and pays dividends on its common shares to its
parent DPL from time to time as declared by the DP&L board. Dividends on common shares in the amount of
$190.0 million, $145.0 million and $220.0 million were declared in the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively. DP&L declared and paid dividends on preferred shares in the amount of $0.8 million in each
of the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

DPL’s Amended Articles of Incorporaticn (the "Articles”) contain provisions which state that DPL may not make a
distribution to its shareholder or make a loan to any of its affiliates (other than its subsidiaries), unless: (a) there
exists no Event of Default (as defined in the Articles) and no such Event of Default would result from the making
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of the distribution or loan; and either (b)(i) at the time of, and/or as a result of, the distribution or loan, DPL’s
leverage ratio does not exceed 0.67 to 1.00 and DPL’s interest coverage ratio is not less than 2.50 to 1.00 or,
{b)(ii) if such ratios are not within the parameters, DPL’s senior long-term debt rating from one of the three major
credit rating agencies is at least investment grade. Further, the restrictions on the payment of distributions to a
sharehoider and the making of loans to its affiliates (other than subsidiaries) cease to be in effect if the three
major credit rating agencies confirm that a lowering of DPL’s senior long-term debt rating below investment
grade by the credit rating agencies would not occur without these restrictions.

As of December 31, 2013, there was no Event of Default - DPL’s Articles generally define an “Event of Default”
as either (i} a breach of a covenant or obligation under the Articles; (i) the entering of an order of insolvency or
bankrupicy by a court and that order remains in effect and unstayed for 180 days; or (iii) DPL, DP&L or one of its
principal subsidiaries commences a voluntary case under bankruptcy or insolvency laws or consents to the
appointment of a trustee, receiver or custodian to manage all of the assets of DPL, DP&L or one of its principal
subsidiaries — but DPL’s leverage ratio was at 0.89 to 1.00 and DPL’s senior long-term debt rating from all three
major credit rating agencies was below investment grade. As a result, and as of December 31, 2013, DPL was
prohibited under its Articles from making a distribution to its shareholder or making a loan to any of its affiliates
{other than its subsidiaries).

DPL’s unsecured revelving credit agreement and DPL’s unsecured term loan were refinanced on May 10, 2013,
The new loan agreements include a provision which restricts all dividend payments from DPL to AES until after
the maturity or termination of the respective credit facilities.

As long as DP&L preferred stock is outstanding, DP&L’s Amended Articles of Incorporation contain provisions
restricting the payment of cash dividends on any of its common stock if, after giving effect to such dividend, the
aggregate of all such dividends distributed subsequent to December 31, 1946 exceeds the net income of DP&L
available for dividends on its common stock subsequent to December 31, 1946, plus $1.2 million. This dividend
restriction has historically not affected DP&L’s ability to pay cash dividends and, as of December 31, 2013,
DP&L’s retained earnings of $426.8 million were all available for DP&L common stock dividends payable to
DPL.
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Item 6 — Selected Financial Data

The following table presents our selected consolidated financial data which should be read in conjunction with our
audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the related Notes thereto and ltem 7 — Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. The “Results of Operations” discussion in kem 7
- Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations addresses significant
fluctuations in operating data. DPL is a whelly-owned, indirect subsidiary of AES and therefore does not report
earnings or dividends on a per-share basis. Other data that management believes is important in understanding

trends in our business are also included in this table.

| DPL |
Successor ¥ Predecessor @
November |January 1,
Year Year 28, 2011 2011 Year Year
ended ended through through ended ended
$ in millions except per share December December December |November December December
amounts or as !ndlcated 31, 2013 31, 2012 31, 2011 27,2011 31,2010 31, 2009

Dlluted earnings per share of

common stock (b}

Totar electrlc sales (mrlltons of

kWh) 19,561

16,454 1,361

15,021 17,237 16,667

200

B 01083

Net income / (Ioss) (b) $

Financial position items at
December 31

$ 1505 $ 2003 § 229.1

Redeemable preferred stock of
subsidiary $
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i DP&L ]

Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended
% in millions except per share amounts or as December December December December December
indicated 31,2013 31,2012 34, 2011 31,2010 31, 2009

Total:elecfnegales;( ‘Aillior

Results_ of operatlonS'

884.0 %

(@) “Predecessor” refers to the operations of DPL and its subsidiaries prior to the consummation of the Merger. “Successor” refers to
the operations of DPL and its subsidiaries subsequent to the Merger. See Note 2 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial
Statements for a description of this transaction. As of the Merger date, the disclosure of per share amounts ne longer applies.

{t) DPL incurred merger-related costs of $37.9 million {$24.6 million net of tax) and a $15.7 million ($10.2 million net of tax} in the
2011 Predecessor and Successor periods, respectively, and had a $25.1 million ($16.3 million net of tax) favorable adjustment in
the period January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011 as a result of the approval of the fuel settlement agreement by the PUCQ.

(c} Of the $1.54 declared in the January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011 period, $0.54 was paid in the November 28, 2011
through December 31, 2011 period.

(d) Goodwill impairment of $306.3 million and $1,817.2 million was recorded in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

(e) Excludes current maturities of long-term debt.

{ff  For DPL, a fixed-asset impairment of $26.2 million ($17.0 million net of tax} was recorded in 2013. For DP&L, fixed-asset
impairments of $86.0 million ($55.9 million net of tax} and $80.8 million {$51.8 million net of tax) was recorded in 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

(g) In2011, DP&L incurred merger-related costs of $19.4 million ($12.6 million net of tax) and had a $25.1 million ($16.3 million net of
tax) favorable adjustment as a result of the approval of the fuel settlement agreement by the PUCO.

lem 7 — Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This report includes the combined filing of DPL and DP&L. Throughout this report, the terms “we,” “us,” “our”
and “ours” are used to refer to both DPL and DP&L, respectively and aitogether, unless the context indicates
otherwise. Discussions or areas of this report that apply only to DPL or DP&L will clearly be noted in the section.

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with DPL’s audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and the related Notes thereto and DP&L’s audited Financial Statements and the related Notes
thereto included in ltem 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Form 10-K. The following
discussion contains forward-locking statements. Our actual results may differ materially from the results
suggested by these forward-looking statements. Please see “Forward-Looking Statements” at the beginning of
this Form 10-K and item 1A — Risk Factors. For a list of certain abbreviations or acronyms in this discussion, see
Glossary at the beginning of this Form 10-K.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

DPL is a regional electric energy and utility company. DPL’s two reporting segments are the Utility segment,
comprised of its DP&L subsidiary, and the Competitive Retail segment, comprised of its DPLER subsidiary and
DPLER's subsidiary, MC Squared. See Note 17 of Notes {o DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements for more
information refating to these reportable segments. DP&L does not have any reportable segments.

DP&L is primarily engaged in the generation, transmission and distribution of electricity in West Central Ohio and
the sale of energy to DPLER in Ohic and lllinois. DPL and DP&L strive to achieve disciplined growth in energy
margins while limiting volatility in both cash flows and earnings and to achieve stable, long-term growth through
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efficient operations and strong customer and regulatory relations. More specifically, DPL’s and DP&L’s strategy
is to match energy supply with load or customer demand, maximizing profits while effectively managing exposure
to movements in energy and fuel prices and utilizing the transmission and distribution assets that transfer
electricity at the most efficient cost while maintaining the highest level of customer service and reliability.

We operate and manage generation assets and are exposed to a number of risks. These risks include, but are
not limited to, electricity wholesale price risk, PJM capacity price risk, regulatory risk, environmental risk, fuel
supply and price risk, customer switching risk and the risk asscciated with electric generating station
performance. We attempt to manage these risks through various means. For instance, we operate a porifolio of
wholly-owned and jointly-owned generation assets that is diversified as to coal source, cost structure and
operating characteristics. We are focused on the operating efficiency of these stations and maintaining their
availability.

We operate and manage transmission and distribution assets in a rate-regulated environment. Accordingly, this
subjects us to regulatory risk in terms of the costs that we may recover and the investment returns that we may
collect in customer rates. We are focused on delivering electricity and maintaining high standards of customer
sefvice and reliability in a cost-effective manner.

Additional information relating to our risks is contained in liem 1A ~ Risk Factors.

The following discussion shouid be read in conjunction with the accompanying Censolidated Financial
Statements and related footnotes included in ltem 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Acduisition by The AES Corporation

On November 28, 2011, DPL merged with Dolphin Sub, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES pursuant to the
Merger agreement whereby AES acquired DPL for $30.00 per share in a cash transaction valued at
approximately $3.5 billion. At closing, DPL became a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES.

See ltem 1A — Risk Factors, and Note 2 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements for additional risks
and information related to the Merger.

Dolphin Subsidiary ll, Inc., a subsidiary of AES, issued $1.25 billion in long-term Senior Notes on October 3,
2011, to partially finance the Merger. See Note 2 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements. Upon
the consummation of the Merger, Dolphin Subsidiary 1l, Inc. was merged into DPL and these notes became long-
term debt obligations of DPL. This debt has had and will continue to have a material effect on DPL’s cash
requirements.

DPL incurred Merger transaction costs consisting primarily of banker's fees, legal fees and change of control
costs of approximately $53.6 million pre-tax during 2011. Other than these costs, interest on the additional debt
and other items noted above, the Merger did not significantly affect DPL and DP&L’s sources of liquidity.

Predecessor and Successor Financial Presentation

DPL’s financial statements and related financial and operating data include the periods before and after the
Merger date, and are labeled as Predecessor and Sucgessor, respectively. In accordance with GAAP, DPL
applied push-down accounting to account for the Merger. For accounting purposes only, push-down accounting
created a new cost basis assigned to assets, liabilities and equity as of the Merger date. AES finalized its
purchase price allocation during the third quarter of 2012, Consequently, DPL’s results of operations and cash
flows for the Predecessor and Successor periods are not presented on a comparable hasis and therefore are
shown separately, rather than combined, in its audited financial statements.

In the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition, we have
included disclosure of the combined Predecessor and Successor results of operations and cash flows. Such
corbined presentation is considered to be a non-GAAP disclosure. We have included such disclosure because
we believe it facilitates the comparison of 2013, 2012 and 2011 operating and financial performance, and
because the core operations of DPL have not changed as a result of the Merger.

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT -

DPL, DP&L and our subsidiaries’ facilities and operations are subject to a wide range of environmental
regulations and laws by federal, state and local authorities. As well as imposing continuing compliance
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obligations, these laws and regulations authorize the imposition of substantial penalties for noncompliance,
including fines, injunctive relief and other sanctions. In the normal course of business, we have investigatory and
remedial activities underway at these facilities to comply, or to determine compliance, with such regulations. We
record liabilities for losses that are probable of occurring and can be reasonably estimated.

e Carbon Dioxide and Other Greenhouse Gas Emissions

There is on-going concern nationally and internationally about global climate change and the contribution
of emissions of GHGs, including most significantly CO,. This concern has led to regulation and interest
in legislation at the federal level, actions at the state level as well as litigation relating to GHG emissions.
In 2007, a U.S. Supreme Court decision upheld that the USEPA has the authority to regulate GHG
emissions under the CAA. In April 2009, the USEPA issued a proposed endangerment finding under the
CAA. The proposed finding determined that CO, and other GHGs from motor vehicles threaten the
health and welfare of future generations by contributing to climate change. This endangerment finding
became effective in January 2010.

Various industry groups and states petitioned the U.S. Supreme Court to review the D.C. Circuit Court's
recent decision to uphold the USEPA's endangerment finding and certain GHG regulations based on that
endangerment finding. On October 15, 2013, the U.S. Supreme Court agreed to review several related
cases addressing the USEPA's authority to issue GHG Prevention of Significant Deterioration permits
under Section 165 of the CAA. As a result of the endangerment finding and other USEPA regulations,
emissions of CO, and other GHGs from EGUs and other stationary sources are subject to regulation.
Increased pressure for GHG emissions reduction is also coming from investor organizations and the
international community. Environmental advocacy groups are also focusing considerable attention on
GHG emissions from power generation facilities and their potential role in climate change. Approximately
99% of the energy we produce is generated by coal. DP&L’s share of CO; emissions at generating
stations we own and co-own is approximately 14 million tons annually. f we are required to implement
control of CO, and other GHGs at generation facilities, the cost to DPL and DP&L of such controls could
be material.

¢ Clean Water Act

In April 2012, DP&L received an NOV related to the construction of the Carter Hollow landfill at the Stuart
Station. The NQV indicated that construction activities caused sediment to flow into downstream creeks.
DP&L is in the process of resolving this NOV with the Ohio EPA. In addition, the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers issued a Cease and Desist order followed by a notice suspending the previously issued Corps
permit authorizing work associated with the landfill. DP&L installed sedimentation ponds as part of the
runoff control measures to address this issue and worked with the various agencies to resolve their
concerns. In March 2013, DP&L received a proposed Administrative Order from the USEPA which, after
negotiation of the terms and conditions, was signed by DP&L management on May 30, 2013. Afinal
Consent Agreement and Final Order was executed on July 8, 2013 and the previously issued permit was
reinstated by the Corps on October 29, 2013,

e NO, and SO, Emissions - CSAPR

The CAIR final rules were published on May 12, 2005. CAIR created an interstate trading program for
annual NQ, emission allowances and made modifications to an existing trading program for SC,.
Litigation brought by entities not including DP&L resulted in a decision by the U.S. Court of Appeals for
the District of Columbia Circuit on July 11, 2008 to vacate CAIR and its associated Federal
Implementation Plan. On December 23, 2008, the U.S. Court of Appeals issued an order on
reconsideration that permits CAIR to remain in effect until the USEPA issues new regulations that would
conform to the CAA requirements and the Court’s July 2008 decision.

In an attempt to conform to the Court’s decision, the USEPA issued CSAPR on July 6, 2011, but
subsequent litigation resulted in CSAPR being vacated and CAIR being reinstated pending the
promulgation of a replacement rule. On December 10, 2013, the U.S. Supreme Court heard oral
arguments as part of its review of the decision to vacate CSAPR. The Ohio EPA has a State
Implementation Plan (SIP) that incorporates the CAIR program requirements, which remain in effect
pending judicial review of CSAPR. If reinstated, we do not believe CSAPR will have a material effect on
our operations, but DP&L is unable to estimate the affect of any replacement requirements, if
promulgated, in future years.
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Climate Change Legislation and Regulation

Cn June 25, 2013, the President of the United States directed the USEPA to issue a new proposed rule
establishing New Source Performance Standards for CO; emissions for newly constructed fossil-fueled
EGUs larger than 25 MW by September 2013, and to issue a final rule in a timely fashion after
considering all public comments. The USEPA issued such new proposed rule in September 2013. The
proposed rule anticipates that newly constructed fossil-fueled power plants generally would need to rely
upon partial implementation of carbon capture and storage technology or other pollution control
technelogy to meet the standard.

In his June 25, 2013 announcement, the President, as anticipated, also directed the USEPA to issue new
standards, regulations, or guidelines, as appropriate, that address CO, emissions from existing power
plants. The President directed the USEPA to (i) issue a proposed rule by June 1, 2014; (ii) issue a final
rule by June 1, 2015; and (jii) require that States submit their implementation plans to the USEPA by no
later than June 30, 20186. Following this announcement, in September 2013, 18 states, including Ohio,
sent the USEPA a white paper questioning the USEPA’s legal authority to impose CO, emission
standards on existing power plants. It is too soon to determine whether any such standards would
materially impact DP&L's operations.

It is impossible to estimate the impact and compliance costs asscciated with any future USEPA GHG
reqgulations applicable to new, moedified or existing EGUs until such regulations are finalized; however,
the impact, including the compliance costs, could be material to our consolidated financial condition or
results of operations.

SB 221 Requirements

SB 221 and the implementation rules contain targets relating to advanced energy portfolio standards,
renewable energy, demand reduction and energy efficiency standards. The standards require that, by
the year 2025, 25% of the total number of KWh of electricity sold by the utility to retail efectric consumers
must come from alternafive energy resources, which include “advanced energy resources” such as
distributed generation, clean coal, advanced nuclear, energy efficiency and fuel cell technology; and
“renewable energy resources” such as solar, hydro, wind, geothermal and biomass. At least half of the
25% must be generated from renewable energy resources, including 0.5% from solar energy. The
renewable energy porifolio, energy efficiency and demand reduction standards began in 2009 with
increased percentage requirements each year thereafter. The annual targets for energy efficiency and
peak demand reductions began in 2009 with annual increases. Energy efficiency programs are to save
22.3% by 2025 and peak demand reductions are expected to reach 7.75% by 2018 compared to a
baseline energy usage. If any targets are not met, compliance penalties will apply, unless the PUCO
makes certain findings that would excuse performance.

SB 221 also contains provisions for determining whether an electric utility has significantly excessive
earnings. The PUCO issued general rules for caleulating the earnings and comparing them to a
comparable group to determine whether there were significantly excessive earnings. Pursuant to the
ESP Stipulation, DP&L was subject to the SEET in 2013 based on 2012 earnings results, which did not
have a material impact. Through the ESP Order the PUCO established DP&L’s ROE SEET threshold at
12%. Infuture years, the SEET could have a material effect on cur results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

SB 221 also requires that all Ohio distribution utilities file either an ESP or MRO. Under the MRO, a
periodic competitive bid process will set the retail generation price after the utility demonstrates that it can
meet certain market criteria and bid requirements. Also, under this option, utilities that still own
generation in the state are required to phase-in the MRO over a period of not less than five years. An
ESP may allow for adjustments to the SSO for costs associated with environmental compliance; fuel and
purchased power; construction of new or investment in specified generating facilities; and the provision of
standby and default service, operating, maintenance, or other costs including taxes. As part of its ESP, a
utility is permitted to file an infrastructure improvement plan that will specify the initiatives the utility will
take to rebuild, upgrade, or replace its electric distribution system, including cost recovery mechanisms.
Both the MRO and ESP options involve a SEET based on the earnings of comparable companies with
similar business and financial risks.

On October 5, 2012, DP&L filed an ESP with the PUCO which was to be effective January 1, 2013. The
plan was refiled to correct certain costs on December 12, 2012. The refiled plan requested approval of a
non-bypassable charge that is designed to recover $137.5 million per year for five years from all
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customers. The ESP proposed a three-year, five-month transition to market, whereby a wholesale
competitive bidding structure would be phased in to supply generation service to customers located in
DP&L’s service territory that have not chosen an alternative generation supplier. An evidentiary hearing
on this case was held March 18, 2013 through April 3, 2013. An order was issued by the PUCQ on
September 4, 2013, and a correction to that order was issued on September 6, 2013 (ESP Order).

The ESP Order stated that DP&L's next ESP begins January 2014 and extends through May 31, 2017.
The PUCO authorized DP&L to collect a non-bypassable Service Stability Rider (SSR) equal to $110
million per year for 2014 — 2016. DP&L has the opportunity to seek an additional $45.8 million through
extension of the SSR through May 31, 2017, provided DP&L mests certain regulatory filing obligations,
which include but are not limited to filing a plan by December 31, 2013 to separate the generation assets
from the utility (as noted below, DP&L filed this on December 30, 2013} and filing a distribution rate case
na tater than July 1, 2014, The ESP Order also directs DP&L to divest its generation assets no later than
May 31, 2017 and sets DP&L’s SEET threshold at a 12% ROE. Beginning in 2014, DP&L will no longer
be permitted to supply 100% of the generation service to its SSO customers. Instead, the PUCO
directed DP&L to phase-in the competitive bidding structure with 10% of DP&L’s SSO load sourced
through the competitive bid starting in 2014, 40% in 2015, 70% in 2016 and 100% beginning June 1,
2017. The ESP Order approved DP&L’s rate proposal to bifurcate its transmission charges into a non-
bypassable component, TCRR-N, and a bypassable component, TCRR-B. The ESP order also required
DP&L to establish a $2.0 million per year shareholder funded economic development fund.

Applications for rehearing were filed on October 4, 2013 by DP&L and cther parties and are currently
pending PUCQ action. On Qctober 23, 2013, the PUCQ issued an entry on rehearing denying
applications for rehearing that related to the competitive bid. The PUCO reaffirmed its position that
economic development load should be included in the competitive bid auction and that DP&L affiliates
are permitted to bid in the auction.

Legal separation of DP&L’s generating facilities

DP&L filed a generation separation application at the end of December 2013, as required in its ESP
order, with the PUCO and on February 25, 2014, filed a supplemental application. In the supplementai
application, DP&L reaffirmed its commitment to separate the generation assets on or before May 31,
2017. DP&L continues to look at multiple options to effectuate the separation including the transfer to an
unregulated affiliate or through a sale process. Assuming a transfer to an affiliate, we have requested
the ability for the DP&L to, among other things: (a) maintain the greater of, {i} total debt of up to $750
million; or (ii) total debt equal to 75% of ratebase; (b) transfer the assets at a fair market value; and (c)
keep OVEC as part of the utility post separation.

COMPETITION AND PJM PRICING

RPM Capacity Auction Price

The PJM RPM capacity base residual auction for the 2016/17 period cleared at a price of $59/MW-day
for our RTO area. The per megawatt prices for the periods 2015/16, 2014/15, and 2013/14 were
$136/MW-day, $126/MW-day, and $28/MW-day, respectively, based on previous auctions. Future RPM
auction results will be dependent not only on the overall supply and demand of generation and load, but
may also be impacted by congestion as well as PJM’s business rules relating to bidding for demand
response and energy efficiency resources in the RPM capacity auctions. The SSO retail costs and
revenues are included in the RPM rider. Therefore increases in customer switching causes more of the
RPM capacity costs and revenues to be excluded from the RPM rider calculation. We cannot predict the
oltcome of future auctions or customer switching but based on actual results attained in 2013, we
estimate that a hypothetical increase or decrease of $10 in the capacity auction price would affect net
income by approximately $6.3 million and $5.0 million for DPL and DP&L, respectively. These estimates
do not, however, take into consideration the other factors that may affect the impact of capacity revenues
and costs on net income such as the levels of customer switching, our generation capacity, the levels of
wholesale revenues and our retail customer load. These estimates are discussed further within
Commodity Pricing Risk under the Market Risk section of this Management Discussion & Analysis.

Ohio Competitive Considerations and Proceedings

Since January 2001, DP&L's electric customers have been permitted to choose their retail electric
generation supplier. DP&L continues to have the exclusive right to provide delivery service in its state
certified territory and the obligation to supply retail generation service to customers that do not choose an
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alternative supplier. The PUCO maintains jurisdiction over DP&L’s delivery of electricity, SSO and other
retall electric services.

Lower market prices for power have resulted in increased levels of competition to provide retail
generation services. This in turn has led approximately 67% of DP&L’s customers to switch their retail
electric services to CRES providers. DPLER, an affiliated company and one of the registered CRES
providers, has been marketing generation services to DP&L customers. The following table provides a
summary of the number of electric customers and volumes provided by all CRES providers in our service
territory during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Sales Sales Sales
{in {in {in
Electric millions Electric millions Electric millions

Customers of kWh) Customers of kWh) Customers  of kWh)

e
Supplied by non- afflllated CRES
rowders

!‘r lt(;iﬁsmka‘: ] :

{a) The KWh sales include all distribution sales, including those whose power is supplied by DPLER and non-affiliated CRES
providers.

The volumes supplied by DPLER represent approximately 42%, 44% and 41% of DP&L’s total
distribution volumes during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. We
currently cannot determine the extent to which customer switching to CRES providers will occur in the
future and the effect this will have on our operations, but any additional switching could have a significant
adverse effect on our future results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, approximately 67% of DP&L’s load was supplied by CRES
providers with DPLER supplying 63% of the switched load. Customer switching negatively affected
DPL’s gross margin during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 by approximately
$248.4 million, $141.0 million and $58.0 million, respectively. Customer switching negatively affected
DP&L’s gross margin during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 by approximately
$318.3 million, $249.0 million and $104.0 million, respectively.

Several communities in DP&L’s service area have passed ordinances allowing the communities to
become government aggregators for the purpose of offering retail generation service to their residents.
To date, a number of communities have filed with the PUCO to initiate aggregation programs. If a
number of the larger communities move forward with aggregation in DP&L’s service area, it could have a
material effect on our earnings. See Item 1A — Risk Factors for more information.

DPLER began providing CRES services to business customers in Ohio who are not in DP&L's service
territory in 2010 and to residential customers in 2012, Additionally, beginning in March 2011 with the
purchase of MC Squared, DPLER services business and residential customers in northern lllinois. The
incremental costs and revenues have not had a material effect on our results of operations, financial
condition or cash flows.

FUEL AND RELATED COSTS

s Fuel and Commodity Prices

The coal market is a global market in which domestic prices are affected by international supply
disruptions and demand balance. In addition, domestic issues like government-imposed direct costs and
permitting issues are affecting mining costs and supply availability. Our approach is to hedge the fusl
costs for our anticipated electric sales. We have substantialiy all of the total expected coal volume
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needed to meet our retail and wholesale sales requirements for 2014 under contract. The majority of the
contracted coal is purchased at fixed prices. Some contracts provide for periodic adjustments and some
are priced based on market indices. Fuel costs are affected by changes in volume and price and are
driven by a number of variables including weather, the wholesale market price of power, certain
provisions in coal contracts related to government imposed costs, counterparty performance and credit,
scheduled/forced outages and generation station mix. Due to the installation of emission controls
equipment at certain commonly-owned units and barring any changes in the regulatory environment in
which we operate, we expect to have balanced positions for SO,, NO, and renewable energy credits for
2014. If our suppliers do not meet their contractual commitrments or we are not hedged against price
volatility and we are unable to recover costs through the fuel and purchased power recovery rider, our
results of operations, financial condition or cash flows could be materially affected.

Effective January 2010, fuel price changes, including coal requirements and purchased power costs,
associated with SS0 load was reflected in the implementation of the fue! and purchased power recovery
rider, subject to PUCQ review. An audit of 2012 fuel costs occurred in 2013. On June 12, 2013, we
received a report from the external auditor recommending a pre-tax disallowance of $5.3 million of costs.
Hearings in this case were held on December 8-10, 2013 and we expect an order in the case in the
second quarter of 2014.
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

In the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition, we have
included disclosure of the combined Predecessor and Successor results of operations and cash flows. Such
combined presentation is considered to be a non-GAAP disclosure. We have included such disclosure because
we believe it facilitates the comparison of 2013 operating and financial performance to 2012 and 2011, and
because the core operations of DPL have not changed as a result of the Merger.

The results of operations for both DPL and DP&L are separately discussed in more detail in the following pages.

The following table summarizes the significant components of DPL’s Results of Operations for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 (Combined):

Successor Combined Successor [Predecessor

November
28, 2011 January 1,
Year ended Yearended Yearended through  [2011 through
December December December  December November
$ in millions 31,2013 31, 2012 31, 2011 31, 2011 27, 2011

Fotalioperatingireve

Cost of revenueS'

s

Bre/i(5ss)Enet:

(a) Forpurposes of discussing operating results, we present and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same information that is used by management to make
decisions regarding our financial performance.

44



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — DPL Inc.

DPL’s results of operations inciude the results of its subsidiaries, including the consolidated results of its principal
subsidiary DP&L. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. A
separate specific discussion of the results of operations for DP&L is presented elsewhere in this report.

In the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition, we have
included disclosure of the combined Predecessor and Successor resuits of operations and cash flows. Such
combined presentation is considered to be a non-GAARP disclosure. We have included such disclosure because
we believe it facilitates the comparison of 2013 and 2012 operating and financial performance to 2011, and

because the core operations of DPL have not changed as a result of the Merger.

Income Statement Highlights — DPL

Successor Combined Successor [Predecessor
November
28, 2011 January 1,
Year ended Yearended Year ended through 2011 through
December December December December November
$ in millions 31,2013 31, 2012 31, 2011 31, 2011 27, 2011

Revenue$'

ams ) from sale of coal

S e e S e BN gD e e

',‘4 -..,r‘a ‘1: =z -.&v.u
et

' Net fuel cost 366.7 361 9 391.6

{(a) Forthe years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, this amount includes $7.2 million and $5.1 million, respectively, related to the
amontization of asset balances related to retall power contracts that were previously accounted for as derivatives, but in
accordance with ASC 815 are no longer derivatives. The fair value of these contracts is to be amortized to eamings over the
remaining term of the associated agreaments. A similar situation did not exist in periods prior to the year ended December 31,
2012,
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(b) For purposes of discussing operating resuits, we present and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same information that is used by management to make
decisions regarding our financial performance.

DPL - Revenues

Retail customers, especially residential and commercial customers, consume more electricity on warmer and
colder days. Therefore, our retail sales volume is affected by the number of heating and coaling degree days
ocourring during a year. Cooling degree days typically have a more significant effect than heating degree days
since some residential customers do not use electricity to heat their homes.

Degree days

Years ended December 31,

Number of days 2013 2012 2011
Heating degree days @ 5,542 4,752 5,368
Cooling degree days @ 1,062 1,264 1,160

(@) Heating and cooling degree days are a measure of the relative heating or cooling required for a home or business. The heating
degrees in a day are calculated as the difference of the average actual daily temperature below 65 degrees Fahrenheit. For
example, if the average temperature on March 20th was 40 degrees Fahrenheit, the heating degrees for that day would be the 25
degree difference between 65 degrees and 40 degrees. In a similar manner, cooling degrees in a day are the difference of the
average actual daily temperature in excess of 65 degrees Fahrenheit.

Since we plan to utilize our internal generating capacity to supply our retail customers’ needs first, increases in
retail demand may decrease the volume of internal generation available to be sold in the wholesale market and
vice versa. The wholesale market covers a multi-state area and settles on an hourly basis throughout the year.
Factors affecting our wholesale sales volume each hour of the year include: wholesale market prices; our retail
demand; retait demand eisewhere throughout the entire wholesale market area; our stations’ and other utility
stations’ availability to sell into the wholesale market; and weather conditions across the multi-state region. Qur
plan is to make wholesale sales when market prices allow for the economic operation of our generation facilities
not being utilized to meet our retail demand or when margin cpportunities exist between the wholesale sales and
power purchase prices.

The following table provides a summary of changes in revenues from prior periods:
$ in millions 2013 vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011

leichange:y.

RTO capacity and other _
O A and e

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Revenues decreased $31.5 million, or 2%, to $1,636.9 million from
$1,668.4 million in the same period of the prior year. This decrease was primarily the result of lower retail and
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wholesale average rates, lower retail volumes, decreased RTO capacity revenues and increased unrealized
MTM losses, partially offset by higher wholesale sales volumes. The revenue compenents for the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to 2012 are further discussed below:

Retail revenues decreased $94.0 million primarily due to decreased prices driven by customer switching
from competition to provide transmission and generation services in our service territory. The DP&L
sales volume decreased 13% from the prior year; however, the effect of sales procured by DPLER and
MC Squared outside our service territory, or off-system sales, offset volume decreases resulting in an
overall 1% increase in total DPL sales volume. The rates offered o the off-system customers are lower
than the rates in our service territory causing an overall 8% decrease in average rates. There was a 16%
decrease in cooling degree days to 1,062 from 1,264 in 2012, as well as a 17% increase in the number of
heating degree days to 5,542 days from 4,752 days in 2012, therefore weather had a minimal impact.
The above resuited in an unfavorable $70.0 million retail price variance and an unfavorabie $33.3 million
retail sales volume variance, partially offset by a $7.0 million shared savings accrual related to DP&L
energy efficiency programs.

Wholesale revenues increased $125.2 million primarily as a result of a 128% increase in wholesale sales
volume due to customer switching, which makes our generation available for wholesale sales, including a
16% increase in total net generation by our power plants, offset slightly by a 3.6% decrease in average
wholesale prices. This resulted in a favorable $133.7 million wholesale sales volume variance partially
offset by an unfavorable wholesale price variance of $8.5 million.

RTO capacity and other revenues, consisting primarily of compensation for use of DP&L’s transmission
assets, regulation services, reactive supply and operating reserves, and capacity payments under the
RPM construct, decreased $60.1 million. This decrease in RTO capacity and other revenues was the
result of a $45.8 million decrease in revenues realized from the PJM capacity auction, and a $12.8 million
decrease in RTO transmission and congestion revenues due to a 2012 settlement related to PJM SECA
revenues and $7 million energy efficiency credits.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, Revenues decreased $159.4 million, or 9%, to $1,668.4 million from
$1,827.8 million in the same period of the prior year. This decrease was primarily the result of decreased retail
and wholesale average rates, decreased RTQ capacity and other revenues, offset by increased retail and
wholesale volume. The revenue components for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to 2011 are
further discussed below:

Retail revenues decreased $37.8 million primarily due to a 3% decrease in average retail rates. The
decrease is the result of customers switching from DP&L to DPLER, an affiliated CRES provider.
Although DP&L had a number of customers that switched their retail electric service from DP&L to
DPLER, DP&L continued to provide distribution services to those customers within its service territory.
The remaining distribution services provided by DP&L were billed at a lower average rate resulting in a
reduction of total average retail rates. The effect of sales procured by DPLER and MC Squared outside
our service territory, or off-system sales, caused sales volume to slightly increase by 0.2%; however the
rates offered to the off-system customers are lower than the average rates in our service territory.
Waeather also contributed to the relatively even volumes; cooling degree days increased 9% and heating
degree days decreased 11% from prior year, however, cooling degree days have more of an impact on
electricity usage than heating degree days due to the non-heat residential customer mix. The above
resulted in an unfavorable $37.8 million retail sales rate variance offset slightly by a favorable $2.5 million
retail volume variance.

Wholesale revenues decreased $25.2 million primarily as a result of a 21% decrease in average
wholesale prices. The decrease was slightly offset by a 2% increase in wholesale volume. This resulted
in an unfavorable $27.8 million wholesale price variance partially offset by a favorable wholesale volume
variance of $2.6 million.

RTO capacity and other revenues, consisting primarily of compensation for use of DP&L’s transmission
assets, regulation services, reactive supply and operating reserves, and capacity payments under the
RPM construct, decreased $94.7 million compared to 2011. This decrease in RTO capacity and other
revenues was primarily the result of a $105.2 million decrease in revenues realized from the PJM
capacity auction and a decrease of $2.3 million in transmission, congestion and other revenues, offset by
the receipt of $12.8 million of revenue recognized as a result of the SECA settlement.
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DPL — Cost of Revenues
During the year ended December 31, 2013:

* Net fuel costs, which include coal, gas, oil and emission allowance costs, increased $4.8 million, or 1%,
compared to 2012, primarily due to increased fuel costs and decreased mark-to-market gaing partially
offset by decreased losses from the sale of coal. There was a 16% increase in the volume of generation
at our stations and no fuel related mark-to-market gains or losses in 2013 compared to $8.5 million of
gains in 2012. Partially offsetting these increases were $0.7 million in realized losses from the sale of
coal in 2013, compared to $11.8 million of realized losses from the same period in 2012.

¢ Net purchased power increased $46.9 million, or 14%, compared to the same period in 2012 due largely
to increased purchased power costs of $62.2 million, $48.3 million due t¢ increased veolume and $13.8
million due to higher average market prices for purchased power. We purchase power to satisfy retail
sales volume when generating facilities are not available due to planned and unplanned outages or when
market prices are below the marginal costs associated with our generating facilities. Partially offsetting
these increases were decreased RTO capacity and other charges of $23.8 million which were incurred as
a member of PJM, including costs associated with DP&L’s load obligations for retail customers. RTO
capacity prices are set by an annual auction. This decrease also includes the net impact of the deferral
and recovery of DP&L’s transmission, capacity and other PJM-related charges.

e Amortization of intangibles decreased in 2013 compared to 2012 primarily due fo the full amortization of
the ESP during 2012.

During the year ended December 31, 2012;

* Net fuel costs, which include coal, gas, cil and emission allowance costs, decreased $29.7 million, or 8%,
compared to 2011, primarily due to increased mark-to-market gains on coal contracts and decreased fuel
costs partially offset by increased losses from the sale of coal. During the year ended December 31,
2012, there was a 10% decrease in the volume of generation at our stations and mark-to-market gains
were $8.5 million compared to $19.2 million of mark-to-market losses for the same period during 2011,
Offsetting these decreases were $11.8 million in realized losses from the sale of coal, compared to $8.8
million of realized gains during the same period in 2011.

» Net purchased power decreased $99.2 million, or 22%, compared to the same period in 2011 due largely
to decreased RTO capacity and other charges of $118.4 million which were incurred as a member of
PJM, including costs associated with DP&L’s load obligations for retail customers. RTO capacity prices
are sef by an annual auction. This decrease also includes the net impact of the deferral and recovery of
DP&L’s transmission, capacity and other PJM-related charges. Partially offsetting these decreases were
increased purchased power costs of $25.5 million, $75.8 million due to increased volume offset by a
decrease of $50.3 million due to lower average market prices for purchased power. Purchased power
volume increased due to lower internal generation and increased off-system sales. We purchase power
to satisfy retail sales volume when generating facilities are not available due to planned and unplanned
outages or when market prices are below the marginal costs associated with our generating facilities.

s Amortization of intangibles increased in 2012 compared to 2011 due to eleven months of amortization of
the ESP during 2012,

DPL - Operation and Maintenance
$_.|n mlllrons - 2013 vs. 20127

(a) Thereis a comresponding increase in Revenues associated with these programs resulting in no impact to Net income.
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During the year ended December 31, 2013, Operation and maintenance expense decreased $9.7 million, or 2%,
compared to the same period in 2012. This variance was primarily the result of:

« decreased expenses for generating facilities largely due to outages related to maintenance activities in
the first and second quarters of 2012 at jointly owned production units relative to the same periods in
2013;

s decreased expense associated with the USF revenue rate rider, which provides assistance to low-income
retail customers; and

+ lower pension expenses primarily related to changes in plan assumptions, specifically a higher discount
rate.

These decreases were partially offset by:
+ increased marketing, customer maintenance and labor costs associated with the competitive retail
business as a result of increased sales volume and number of customers; and

» increased health insurance due to cost increases as well as more employees going on to long-term
disability as compared to the same period in 2013.

$in mﬂﬁor_\s __ _ 2012 vs. 2011 _
t !}qga;-' o : L
Mamtenance of overhead transmlrsslon and distribution fines

= éi“m”n{mgamng - =

{a) Thereis a cormesponding increase in Revenues associated with this program resuiting in no impact to Net income.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, Operation and maintenance expense decreased $18.9 million, or
4%, compared to the same period in 2011. This variance was primarily the result of:
e higher costs in the prior year related to the Merger; and

+ decreased expense related to the maintenance of overhead transmission and distribution lines primarily
as a result of storms, including a significant ice storm in February 2011.

These decreases were partially offset by:

¢ increased expense associated with the USF revenue rate rider, which provides assistance for low-income
retail customers;

o increased marketing, customer maintenance and labor costs associated with the competitive retail
business as a result of increased sales volume and number of customers;

+ increased expenses relating to energy efficiency programs that were put in place for our customers;

» increased expenses for generating facilities largely due to the length and timing of planned outages at
jointly-owned production units relative to the same period in 2011; and

increased expenses related to legal and other consulting services that were not related to the 2011
Merger.

DPL — Depreciation and Amortization
During the year ended December 31, 2013, Depreciation and amortization expense increased $7.5 million, or

6%, compared to 2012. The increase primarily reflects additional investments in fixed assets.
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During the year ended December 31, 2012, Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $15.6 million, or
11%, compared to 2011. The decrease primarily reflects the effect of a reduction in electric generating station
values as a consequence of the Merger, partially offset by additional investments in fixed assets.

DPL — General Taxes

During the year ended December 31, 2013, General taxes increased $1.4 million, or 2%, compared to 2012.
This increase was primarily due to higher property tax accruals in 2013 compared to 2012 partially offset by a
favorable determination of $1.6 million from the Ohio gross receipts tax appeal in 2013.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, General taxes decreased $3.6 million, or 4%, compared to 2011,
This decrease was primarily due to an unfavorable determination of $4.5 million from the Ohio gross receipts tax
audit in 2011 partially offset by higher property tax accruals in 2012 compared to 2011.

DPL — Goodwill Impairment
During the year ended December 31, 2013, DPL recorded an impairment of goodwill of $306.3 million. See Note

18 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, DPL recorded an impairment of goodwill of $1,817.2 million. See
Note 18 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

DPL - Interest Expense

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Interest expense and charge for sarly redemption of debt increased
$1.1 million, or 1%, compared to 2012 due primarily to reduced amortization of debt premium (which offsets
interest expense) partially offset by decreased interest due to reductions in debt and decreased interest rates on
DP&L’s senicr secured bonds.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, Interest expense increased $37.4 million, or 44%, compared to 2011
due primarily to higher interest cost subsequent to the Merger as a result of the $1.25 billion of debt that was
assumed by DPL in connection with the Merger.

DPL — Income Tax Expense
During the year ended December 31, 2013, Income tax expense decreased $25.4 miillion compared to 2012

primarily due to lower pre-tax income (excluding the effect of the goodwill impairment), a 2013 deferred tax
adjustment related to the expiration of the statutes of limitation on the 2007, 2008 and 2009 tax years, an
increase in the tax benefits of Internal Revenue Code Section 199 tax benefits in 2013 and a 2012 adjustment to
state deferred taxes.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, Income tax expense decreased $54.9 million compared to 2011
primarily due to decreases in pre-tax income, lower non-deductible expenses related to the Merger, lower non-
deductible compensation related to the Merger and a 2011 write-off of a deferred tax asset on the termination of
the ESOP. These were partially offset by a reduction in Internal Revenue Code Section 199 tax benefits.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT ~ DPL Inc,

DPL’s two segments are the Utility segment, comprised of its DP&L subsidiary, and the Competitive Retail
segment, comprised of its competitive retail electric service subsidiaries. These segments are discussed further
below:

Utility Segment
The Utility segment is comprised of DP&L’s electric generation, transmission and distribution businesses which

generate and distribute electricity to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers. DP&L
generates electricity at seven coal-fired power stations and distributes slectricity to more than 515,000 retail
customers who are located in a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio. Beginning in 2014, DP&L is
required to procure 10% of the power for SSO customers through a competitive bid process, with the percentage
increasing each year, reaching 100% in June 2017. Further, in December 2013, DP&L filed a plan with the
PUCO to sell or transfer its generation assets by May 31, 2017. DP&L also sells electricity to DPLER and any
excess energy and capacity is sold into the wholesale market. DP&L’s transmission and distribution businesses
are subject to rate regulation by federal and state regulators while rates for its generation business are deemed
competitive under Ohio law.

Competitive Retail Segment
The Competitive Retail segment is comprised of DPLER’s competitive retail electric service business and

includes its wholly-owned subsidiary, MC Squared. DPLER sells retail electric energy under contract to
residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers who have selected DPLER or MC Squared as
their aiternative electric supplier. The Competitive Retail segment sells eleciricity to approximately 308,000
customers currently located throughout Ohic and lllincis. MC Squared, a Chicago-based retail electricity
supplier, serves approximately 144,000 customers in Northern lilinois and is a subsidiary of DPLER. The
Competitive Retail segment’s electric energy used to meet its sales obligations was purchased from DP&L and
PJM. Intercompany sales from DP&L to DPLER are based on the market prices for wholesale power. In periods
prior to 2010, DPLER'’s purchases from DP&L are based on fixed-price contracts for each DPLER customer; the
price approximates market prices for wholesale power at the inception of each customer's contract. The
Competitive Retail segment has no transmission or generation assets. The operations of the Competitive Retail
segment are not subject to cost-of-service rate regulation by federal or state regulators.

Other
Included within Other are other businesses that do not meet the GAAP reguirements for separate disclosure as
reportable segments as well as certain corporate costs including interest expense on DPL’s debt.

Management evaluates segment performance based on gross margin. See Note 17 of Notes to DPL’s
Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of DPL’s reportable segments.

The following table presents DPL’s gross margin by business segment:

Successor Combined Successor Predecessor

November
28, 2011 January 1,
Year ended Yearended Yearended through (2011 through
December December December December | November
$ in millions 31,2013 31, 2012 31, 2011 31, 2011 27, 2011

The financial condition, results of cperations and cash flows of the Utility segment are identical in all material
respects and for all periods presented to those of DP&L which are included in this Form 10-K. We do not believe
that additional discussions of the financial condition and results of operations of the Utility segment would
enhance an understanding of this business since these discussions are already included under the DP&L
discussions below.

Income Statement Highlights — Competitive Retail Segment
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Successor Combined Successor |Predecessor

November
28, 2011 January 1,
Year ended Yearended Yearended through 2011 through
December December December December | Novernber
$ in millions 31, 2013 31, 2012 31, 2011 31, 2011 27, 2011

Revenues:

rﬁetalls(; TN
RTO and other

{a) For purposes of discussing operating results, we present and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same information that is used by management to make
decisions regarding our financial performance.

Competitive Retail Segment — Revenue
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the segment’s retail revenues increased $22.1 million, or 4%,

compared to 2012. The increase was primarily due to an $84.8 million positive volume variance primarily due to
sales growth outside of DP&L's service territory in both Ohio and lllinois. The increased volume was partially
offset by a $62.7 million negative price variance as increased competition in the competitive retail electric service
business in the state of Ohio has resulted in decreased retail prices. The Competitive Retail segment sold
approximately 9,733 million kWh of power to approximately 308,000 customers compared tc approximately 8,315
million kWh of power to approximately 198,000 customers during the same period of the prior year.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the segment’s retail revenues increased $70.6 million, or 17%,
compared to 2011. The increase was primarily driven by an increase of $37.5 million in the lllinois market
primarily by approximately 100,000 additional customers obtained by MC Squared. Alsc contributing to the year-
over-year increase was increased levels of competition in the competitive retail electric service business in the
state of Ohio which in turn has resulted in a significant number of DP&L’s retail customers switching their retail
electric service to DPLER or other CRES providers. As a result of the additional customers and switching to
DPLER discussed above, the Competitive Retail segment sold approximately 8,315 million kWh of power to
198,098 customers in 2012 compared to 6,677 million kWh of power to 40,171 customers during 2011.

Competitive Retail Segment — Purchased Power

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Competitive Retail segment purchased power increased $35.2
million, or 8%, compared to 2012 primarily due to increased purchased power volumes required to satisfy an
increase in customer base as described in the revenue section above. The Competitive Retail segment's electric
energy used to meet its sales obligations was purchased from DP&L. Intercompany sales from DP&L to DPLER
and MC Squared are based on fixed-price contracts for each DPLER and MC Squared customer which
appreximate market prices for wholesale power at the inception of each customer's contract.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Competitive Retail segment purchased power increased $60.6
million, or 17%, compared to 2011 primarily due to higher purchased power volumes required to satisfy an
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increase in customer base resuiting from customer switching and also $35.4 million relating to increased volumes
in the lllinois market related to additicnal customers obtained by MC Squared. The Competitive Retail segment’s
electric energy used to meet its sales obligations was purchased from DP&L and PJM. Beginning September 1,
2012, all of MC Squared’s power needs are supplied by DP&L. Intercompany sales from DP&L to DPLER or its
subsidiary MC Squared are based on fixed-price contracts for each customer which approximate market prices
for wholesale power at the inception of each customer’s contract.

Competitive Retail Segment — Operation and Maintenance
DPLER's operation and maintenance expenses include employee-related expenses, marketing, accounting,

information technology, payroll, legal and other administration expenses. The higher operation and maintenance
expense in 2013 compared to 2012 is reflective of increased marketing and customer maintenance costs
associated with the increased sales volume and number of customers.

DPLER’s operation and maintenance expenses include employee-related expenses, marketing, accounting,
information technology, payroll, legal and other administration expenses. The higher operation and maintenance
expense in 2012 compared to 2011 is reflective of increased marketing and customer maintenance costs
associated with the increased sales volume and number of customers and the purchase of MC Squared.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — The Dayton Power and Light Company (DP&L)

Income Statement Highlights — DP&L

Years ended December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011

RevenueS'

Fpr oy

Retdil

Total revenues

Cost of revenues:
gost of fuel

{a) For purposes of discussing operating results, we present and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it
allows analysis and comparabllity of operating trends and includes the same information that is used by management to make
decisions regarding our financial performance.
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DP&L — Revenues
The following table provides a summary of changes in DP&L’s Revenues from prior periods:

2013 vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011

During the year ended December 31, 2013, revenues increased $19.7 miilion, or 1%, to $1,551.5 million from
$1,531.8 million in the prior year. This increase was primarily the resuit of higher wholesale sales volumes. The
revenue compoenents for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to 2012 are further discussed below:

» Retail revenues decreased $116.4 million primarily due to a 13% decrease in retail sales volumes
compared to the prior year which was a result of customer switching due to increased levels of
competition to provide transmission and generation services in our service territory. There was a 16%
decrease in cooling degree days to 1,062 days from 1,264 days in 2012, as well as a 17% increase in the
number of heating degree days to 5,542 days from 4,752 days in 2012, therefore weather had a minimal
impact. Although DP&L had a number of customers that switched their retail electric service from DP&L
to CRES providers, DP&L continued to provide distribution services to those customers within its service
territory. Average retaii rates decreased slightly overall. The remaining distribution services provided by
DP&L were billed at a lower average rate resulting in a slight reduction of total average retail rates. The
above resulted in an unfavorable $118.5 million retail sales volume variance and an unfavorable $7.3
million retail price variance, partially offset by a $7.0 million shared savings accrual related to DP&L
energy efficiency programs.

* Wholesale revenues increased $187.6 million as a result of an increase in wholesale sales volume which
was largely a result of customer switching discussed in the immediately preceding paragraph. Customer
switching in the DP&L service territory has resulted in increased generation available to seli in the
wholesale market. Also contributing was a 17% increase in net generation available from DP&L’s co-
owned and operated generation plants. These increases were partially offset by a 9% decrease in
average wholesale rates. These resulted in a favorable $252.1 million wholesale volume variance offset
by a $64.5 million unfaverable wholesale price variance.

¢ RTO capacity and other revenues, consisting primarily of compensation for use of DP&L’s transmission
assets, regulation services, reactive supply and operating reserves, and capacity payments under the
RPM construct, decreased $53.4 million. This decrease in RTO capacity and other revenues was
primarity the result of a $39.4 miliion decrease in revenues realized from the PJM capacity auction, and a
$12.8 million decrease in RTO transmission and congestion revenues due to a 2012 settlement related to
PJM SECA revenues.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, Revenues decreased $145.9 million, or 9%, to $1,531.8 miillion from
$1,677.7 million in the prior year. This decrease was primarily the result of lower average retail rates, retail sales
volumes and decreased RTO capacity and other revenues, partially offset by higher wholesale sales volumes
and higher average wholesale prices. The revenue components for the year ended December 31, 2012
compared to 2011 are further discussed below:
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Retail revenues decreased $109.0 million primarily as a result of a 9% decrease in retail sales volumes
compared to those in the pricr year largely as a result of customer switching due to increased levels of
competition to provide transmission and generation services in our service territory. Although DP&L had
a number of customers that switched their retail electric service from DP&L to DPLER, an affiliated
CRES provider, DP&L continued to provide distribution services to those customers within its service
territory, but these services are billed at a lower average rate causing a 2% decrease in retail rates. This
decrease in sales volume was partially offset by improved economic conditions and warmer summer
weather. The weather conditions resulted in a 9% increase in the number of cooling degree days to
1,264 from 1,160 days in 2011 offset slightly by an 11% decrease in the number of heating degree days
to 4,752 days from 5,368 days in 2011. The decrease in average retail rates resulting from customers
switching was partially offset by the fuel and energy efficiency riders, increased TCRR and RPM riders
and the incremental effect of the recovery of costs under the EIR. The above resulted in an unfavorable
$85.8 million retail sales volume variance and an unfavorable $20.3 million retail price variance.

Wholesale revenues increased $42.5 million primarily as a result of a 20% increase in wholesale sales
volume which was largely a result of the effect of customer switching discussed in the immediately
preceding paragraph. DP&L records wholesale revenues from its sale of transmission and generation
services to DPLER associated with these switched customers. This increase was partially offset by a 9%
decrease in average wholesale rates. This resulted in a favorable $87.3 million wholesale volume
variance offset by a $44.8 million unfavorable wholesale price variance.

RTO capacity and other revenues, consisting primarily of compensation for use of DP&L’s transmission
assets, regulation services, reactive supply and operating reserves, and capacity payments under the
RPM construct, decreased $77.2 million compared to the same period in 2011. This decrease in RTO
capacity and other revenues was primarily the result of an $89.0 million decrease in revenues realized
from the PJM capacity auction and a decrease of $1.0 million in transmission and congestion revenues,
offset by $12.8 million of revenue recognized as a result of the SECA settlement.

DP&L — Cost of Revenues
During the year ended December 31, 2013:

*

Net fuel costs, which include coal, gas, oil and emission allowance costs, increased $7.6 million, or 2%,
compared to 2012, primarily due to increased fuel costs and decreased mark-to-market gains on coal
contracts partially offset by decreased losses from the sale of coal. During the year ended December 31,
2013, there was a 17% increase in the volume of generation at our stations and no fuel related mark-to-
market gains or losses compared to $8.4 million of gains in 2012. Partially offsetting these increases
were $0.7 million in realized losses from the sale of coal, compared to $11.8 million of realized losses
from the same period in 2012.

Net purchased power increased $72.4 million, or 23%, compared to the same period in 2012 due largely
to increased purchased power costs of $85.3 million, $74.0 million due to increased volume and an
increase of $11.8 million due to higher average market prices for purchased power. Purchased power
volume increased due o power purchased to supply increased off-system sales. We purchase power to
satisfy retail sales volume when generating facilities are not availabie due to planned and unplanned
outages or when market prices are below the marginal costs associated with our generating facilities.
Partially offsetting these increases were decreased RTO capacity and other charges of $19.2 million
which were incurred as a member of PJM, including costs associated with DP&L’s load obligations for
retail customers. RTO capacity prices are set by an annual auction. This decrease also includes the net
impact of the deferral and recovery of DP&L’s transmission, capacity and other PJM-related charges.

During the year ended December 31, 2012:

Net fuel costs, which include coal, gas, oil and emission allowance cosis, decreased $25.7 million, or 7%,
compared to 2011, primarily due to increased mark-to-market gains on coal contracts and decreased fuel
costs partially offset by increased losses from the sale of coal. During the year ended December 31,
2012, there was an 11% decreass in the volume of generation at our electric generating stations and
mark-to-market gains were $8.4 million compared to $19.2 million of mark-to-market losses for the same
period during 2011. Offsetting these decreases were $11.8 million in realized losses from the sale of
coal, compared to $8.8 million of realized gains during the same period in 2011.

Net purchased power decreased $92.1 million, or 23%, compared to the same period in 2011 due largely
to decreased RTO capacity and other charges of $117.4 million which were incurred as a member of
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PJM, including costs associated with DP&L’s load obligations for retail customers. RTO capacity prices
are set by an annual auction. This decrease also includes the net impact of the deferral and recovery of
DP&L’s transmission, capacity and other PJM-related charges. Partially offsetting these decreases were
increased purchased power costs of $30.1 million, $83.5 million due to increased volume offset by $53.3
million due to lower average market prices for purchased power. Purchased power volume increased
due to lower internal generation and increased power sales to DPLER and MC Squared. We purchase
power to satisfy retail sales volume when generating facilities are not available due to planned and
unplanned outages or when market prices are helow the marginal costs associated with our generating
facilities.

DP&L — Operation and Maintenance
$ in millions ‘ 2013 vs. 20127_ _

& eneratlggaf HoiliticSzoperatihgand: mair
Low-income payment program @
Pénsichiised iy

Health Insurance

LTS

iceieXpenses

Totai operatlon and maintenance expense $ (23.8)'

(@) There is a corresponding increase in Revenues associated with these programs resulting in no impact to Net income.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Operation and maintenance expense decreased $23.8 million, or
6%, compared to 2012. This variance was primarily the result of:

¢ decreased expenses for generating facilities largely due to outages related to maintenance activities in
the first and second quarters of 2012 at jointly owned production units relative to the same periods in
2013;

« decreased expense associated with the USF revenue rate rider, which provides assistance for low-
income retail customers; and

+ lower pension expenses primarily related to changes in plan assumptions, specifically a higher discount
rate.

These decreases were partially offset by:

* increased health insurance due to cost increases as well as more employees going on long-term
disability as compared to the same period in 2013.

$inmilions ,_ 2012 vs. 2011
OB VIentprogram i
Energyefﬂc:lenc Erggrams @

PP A e D Ly

dperatingeandin

{a} There is a corresponding increase in Revenues assoclated with these programs resulting in no impact to Net income.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, Operation and maintenance expense increased $21.1 million, or 6%,
compared to 2011. This variance was primarily the result of:

+ increased expense associated with the USF revenue rate rider, which provides assistance for low-income
retail customers;

» increased expenses relating to energy efficiency programs that were put in place for our customers;
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+ increased expenses for generating facilities largely due to the length and timing of planned outages at
jointly-owned production units relative to the same petiod in 2011;

+ higher pension expenses primarily related to changes in plan assumptions, specifically a lower discount
rate and lower expected rate of returmn on plan assets; and

s increased expenses related to legal and other consulting services that were not related to the Merger.

These increases were partially offset by:

* higher costs in the prior year reiated to the Merger; and

e decreased expense related to the maintenance of overhead transmission and distribution lines prirnarily
as a result of storms, inciuding a significant ice storm in February 2011.

DP&L -~ Depreciation and Amortization

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $1.1 million, or

1%, compared to 2012. The decrease primarily reflects the full-year effect of a reduction of approximately $1.8
million related to a decrease in plant values as a result of impairment in the value of certain electric generating

stations in the third quarter of 2012, partially offset by investments in plant and equipment.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, Depreciation and amortization expense increased $6.4 million, or
5%, compared to 2011, The increase primarily reflects the effect of investments in plant and equipment, partially
offset by a reduction of approximately $1.8 million related to a decrease in plant values as a result of impairment
in the value of certain electric generating stations in the third quarter of 2012,

DP&L — General Taxes

During the year ended December 31, 2013, General taxes increased $2.0 million, or 3%, compared to 2012,
This increase was primarily the result of higher property tax accruals in 2013 compared to 2012 partially offset by
a favorable determination of $1.6 million from the Ohio gross receipts tax appeal in 2013,

During the year ended December 31, 2012, General taxes decreased $1.5 million, or 2%, compared to 2011,
This decrease was primarily the result of lower payroli and Ohic commercial activity taxes in 2012 compared to
2011,

DP&L — Fixed-asset Impairment
During the year ended December 31, 2013, DP&L recorded an impairment of certain generation facilities of

$86.0 million. See Note 15 of Notes to DP&L’s Financial Statements.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, DP&L recorded an impairment of certain generation faciiities of
$80.8 million. See Note 15 of Notes to DP&L’s Financial Statements.

DP&L — Interest Expense
During the year ended December 31, 2013, interest expense decreased $1.9 miilion or 5% compared to 2012

due to a reduction in outstanding debt and lower interest rates on DP&L’s senior secured bonds.

Interest expense recorded during 2012 did not fluctuate significantly from that recorded in 2011.

DP&L - Income Tax Expense
During the year ended December 31, 2013, Income tax expense decreased $36.5 million compared to 2012

primarily due to decreases in pre-tax income, a 2013 deferred tax adjustment related to the expiration of the
statutes of limitation on the 2007, 2008 and 2009 tax years and an increase in the tax benefits of Internal
Revenue Code Section 199 tax benefits in 2013 and a 2012 adjustment 1o siate deferred taxes.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, income tax expense decreased $49.1 million compared to 2011
primarily due to decreases in pre-tax income, iower non-deductible compensation expenses related to the Merger
and a write-off in 2011 of a deferred tax asset on the termination of the ESOP. These were partially offset by a
reduction in Internal Revenue Code Section 199 tax benefits and an adjustment of property-refated deferred
taxes.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

DPL’s financial condition, liquidity and capital requirements include the consolidated results of its principal
subsidiary DP&L. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
The following table provides a summary of the cash flows for DPL and DP&L:

DPL Successor Combined Successor Predecessor

Novermber
28, 2011 January 1,
Yearended Yearended Yearended through 2011 through
December December December December November

$ in millions 31, 2013 31, 2012 31, 2011 31, 2011 27,2011
Nt cashifromioperating actvities & | 1 833:01 % (A4 3344
Net t cash from lnvestlng act:vmes (123.9) (1 99. 2) (1 51 1) (30.4) (1 20. 7)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

period $ 53.2 § 1921 $ 1735 § 1735 § 97.2
DP&L Years ended December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011

The significant items that have impacted the cash flows for DPL and DP&L are discussed in greater detail below:
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DPL — Net Cash provided by Operating Activities
DPL’s Net cash provided by operating activities for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are
summarized as follows:

Successor Combined Successor [Predecessor

November
28, 2011 January 1,
Year ended Yearended Yearended through  [2011 through
December December December  December November
$ in millions 31, 2013 31, 2012 31,201 31, 2011 27, 2011

e

N&tincome/ll
De recnatlon andr amortlzatlon

125.6

hecognltlon of deferred SECA
"é“fla“r'g‘ &ctictrly:edemiption ofidebt

Cash settlement of interest rate hedges,
net of tax

Net cash from operatmg actlwtles $ . 3028 $ ] 291 5 $ 7 3330 $ (1 4)|$ :_5,'34‘,4'

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Net cash provided by operating activities was primarily a result of Net
loss adjusted for the noncash impacts of depreciation and amortization, the impairment of goodwill and deferred
income taxes.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, Net cash provided by operating activities was primarily a resuit of Net
income adjusted for noncash depreciation and amortization, as well as a noncash charge for the impairment of
goodwill.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, Net cash provided by operating activities was primarily a result of Net
income adjusted for noncash depreciation and amortization, combined with the following significant transactions:

¢ The $65.6 million increase to Deferred income taxes primarily results from changes related to pension
contributions, depreciation expense and repair expense.

e A $15.3 million charge for the early redemption of DPL Capital Trust |l securities.

e DP&L made discretionary contributions of $40.0 million to the defined benefit pension plan in 2011,

s DPL made a cash payment of $48.1 million ($31.3 million net of tax) related to interest rate hedge
contracts that settled during the period.

s Other represents items that had a current period cash flow impact and includes changes in working
capital and other future rights or obligations to receive or to pay cash. These items are primarily affected
by, among other factors, the timing of when cash payments are made for fuel, purchased power,
operating costs, interest and taxes, and when cash is received from our utility customers and from the
sdles of coal and excess emission allowances.
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DP&L — Net Cash provided by Operating Activities
DP&L’s Net cash provided by operating activities for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are

summarized as follows:

Years ended December 31,
$ int millions 2013 2012 2011

During the year ended December 31, 2013 the significant componenis of DP&L’s Net cash provided by operating
activities were primarily the result of Net income adjusted for noncash depreciation and amortization, as well as
the impairment of certain generation facilities.

During the year ended December 37, 2012 the significant components of DP&L’s Net cash provided by operating
activities were primarily a result of Net income adjusted for noncash depreciation and amortization, as well as a
noncash charge related to the impairment of certain generation facilities.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the significant components of DP&L’s Net cash provided by
operating activities are similar to those discussed under DPL’s Net cash provided by operating activities above.

DPL — Net Cash used for Investing Activities
DPL’s Net cash used for investing activities for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are

summarized as follows:

Successor Combined Successor [Predecessor

November
28, 2011 January 1,
Year ended Yearended Yearended through  |2011 through
December December December December November
$ in millions 31, 2013 31, 2012 31, 2011 31, 2011 27, 2011

SNeticashrominveshngiacty

During the year ended December 31, 2013, DP&L’s environmental expenditures were primarily related to
pollution control devices at our electric generation stations.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, DP&L’s environmental expenditures were primarily related to
pollution control devices at our electric generation stations.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, DP&L’s environmental expenditures were primarily related to
pollution control devices at our electric generation stations. Additionaily, DPL, on behalf of DPLER, made a cash
payment of approximately $8.3 million to acquire MC Squared. Furthermore, DPL redeemed $70.9 million of
short-term investments mostly comprised of VRDN securities and purchased an additional $1.7 million of short-
term investments during the same period.
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DP&L — Net Cash used for Investing Activities
DP&L’s Net cash used for investing activities for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are
summarized as follows:

Years ended December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011

224
(19.7)

Nei cash from investing activities $ (114 5) (197.5) $ (1 85”.0-)'

During the year ended December 31, 2013, DP&L’s environmental expenditures were primarily related to
pollution control devices at our generation stations. In addition, DP&L received $14.2 million in insurance
proceeds during the year, $6.6 million of which were from DPL’s MVIC subsidiary.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, DP&L’s environmental expenditures were primarily related to
pollution control devices at our generation stations.

During the year ended Decermnber 31, 2011, DP&L’s environmental expenditures were primarily related to
pollution control devices at our generation stations. Additionally, DP&L received proceeds of $26.9 million
related to the liquidation of DPL stock held in the Master Trust.

DPL - Net Cash used for Financing Activities
DPL'’s Net cash used for financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are
summarized as follows:

Successor Combined Successor |Predecessor

November
28, 2011 January 1,
Year ended Yearended Yearended through 2011 through
December December December December November
$ in millions 31, 2013 31,2012 31, 2011 31, 2011 27, 2011

4870)
{291, 5)'

During the year ended December 31, 2013, DPL’s Net cash from financing activities primarily relates to debt
issuance and redemption.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, DPL’s Net cash from financing activities primarily relates to common
stock dividends and payments to a former warrant holder.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, DPL paid common stock dividends of $176.0 million and retired long-
term debt of $297.5 million. Additionally, DPL paid $134.2 million for its purchase of a portion of the DPL Capital
Trust Il capital securities, of which $122.0 million related to the capital securities and an additional $12.2 million
related to the premium paid on the purchase. DPL also paid down the debt of MC Squared which was acqguired
in February 2011. DPL received $425.0 million from the issuance of additional debt. DPL received $26.9 million
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upon the liguidation of DPL stock held in the DP&L Master Trust and $14.7 million from the exercise of 700,000
warrants.

DP&L — Net Cash used for Financing Activities
DP&L’s Net cash used for financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are
summarized as follows:

Years ended December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012

DividandSipaition commonstockes
Retlrement of Iong

-term debt

Nef cash from fmancmg activities $ (226.4) § (146.0) $ (201 0)

During the year ended December 31, 2013, DP&L’s Net cash used for financing activities primarily relates to
$190 million in dividends and the issuance of new senior secured bonds, the proceeds of which were used to
redeem bonds at maturity.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, DP&L’s Net cash used for financing activities primarily relates to
$145 million in dividends.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, DP&L’s Net cash used for financing activities primarily relates to
$220 million in dividends offset by $20 million of additional capital contributed by DPL.

Liquidity

We expect our existing sources of liquidity to remain sufficient to meet our anticipated opsrating needs. Our
business is capital intensive, requiring significant resources to fund operating expenses, construction
expenditures, scheduled debt maturities and carrying costs, potential margin requirements related to energy
hedges, taxes and dividend payments. For 2014 and subsequent years, we expect to satisfy these requirements
with a combination of cash from operations and funds from the debt financing as our internal liquidity needs and
market conditions warrant. We also expect that the borrowing capacity under bank credit facilities will continue to
be avaiiable to manage working capital requirements during those periods.

At the filing date of this annual report on Form 10-K, DPL and DP&L have access to the following revolving credit
facilities:

Amounts
available as of
December 31,
$ in millions Type Maturity Commitment 2013

DP&L’s revolving credit facility, established in May 2013, expires in May 2018 and has nine participating banks,
with no bank having more than 22.5% of the total commitment. This revolving credit facility has a $100.0 million
letter of credit sublimit and DP&L also has the option to increase the potential borrowing amount under this
facility by $100.0 million. DP&L had no outstanding borrowings under this facility at December 31, 2013. At
December 31, 2013, there was a letter of credit in the amount of $0.4 million outstanding, with the remaining
$299.6 million available to DP&L.

DPL’s revolving credit facility was established in May 2013. This facility expires in May 2018; however, if DPL
has not refinanced its senior unsecured bonds due October 2016 before July 15, 2016, then this credit facility
shall expire in July 2018. This facility has nine participating banks with no bank having more than 20% of the
total commitment. DPL’s revolving credit facility has a $100.0 million letter of credit sublimit and a feature which
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provides DPL the ability to increase the size of the facility by an additional $50.0 million. As of June 30, 2013,
DPPL had drawn $50.0 million under this facility. These outstanding borrowings were repaid in full on July 10,
2013 and as of December 31, 2013, there were no letters of credit issued and no outstanding borrowings against
the revolving credit facilities.

Cash and cash equivalents for DPL and DP&L amounted to $53.2 miliion and $22.9 million, respectively, at
December 31, 2013. At that date, neither DPL nor DP&L had short-term investments.

Capital Requirements

CONSTRUCTICN ADDITIONS
] Actual B Projected N
$ in millions 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
DPL $ 201 % 180 $ 114 § 136 $ 124 § 133
DP&L $ 199 $ 177 111 $ 125 $ 116 § 126

Planned construction additions for 2014 relate primarily to new investments in and upgrades to DP&L’s electric
generating station equipment and transmission and distribution system. Capital projects are subject to continuing
review and are revised in light of changes in financial and economic conditions, load forecasts, legislative and
regulatory developments and changing environmental standards, among other factors.

DPL, through its subsidiary DP&L,, is projecting to spend an estimated $- million in capital projects for the period
2014 through 2016. Approximately $5.0 million of this projected amount is to enable DP&L to meet the recently
revised reliability standards of NERC. DP&L is subject to the mandatory reliability standards of NERC and
Reliability First Corporation (RFC), one of the eight NERC regions, of which DP&L is a member. NERC has
recently changed the definition of the Bulk Electric System (BES) to include 100 kV and above faclilities, thus
expanding the facilities to which the reliability standards apply. DP&L’s 138 kV facilities were previously not
subject to these reliability standards. Accordingly, DP&L anticipates spending approximately $65.0 million within
the next five years to reinforce its 138 kV system to comply with these new NERC standards. Our ability to
complete capital projects and the reliability of future service will be affected by our financial condition, the
availability of internal funds and the reasonable cost of external funds. We expect to finance our construction
additions with a combination of cash on hand, short-term financing, long-term debt and cash flows from
operations,

Debt Covenants
In May 2013 DPL terminated its then existing $75.0 million revolving credit facility and $425.0 million term loan
and replaced them with a new $100.0 million revolving credit facility and a drawn $200.0 million term loan facility,

Each of the facilities that were terminated in May had two financial covenanis. The first financial covenant was a
Total Debt to EBITDA ratio. The new DPL revolving credit facility and the new DPL term loan agreement that
were put in place in May 2013, will continue to have a Total Debt to EBITDA ratic that will be calculated, at the
end of each fiscal quarter, by dividing total debt at the end of the current quarter by consolidated EBITDA for the
four prior fiscal quarters. The ratio in the new agreements is not to exceed 8.50 1o 1.00 for the fiscal quarter
ending June 30, 2013 through December 31, 2014; it then steps down to not exceed 8.00 to 1.00 for the fiscal
quarter ending March 31, 2015 through December 31, 2016; and it then steps down not to exceed 7.50 to 1.00
for the fiscal quarter ending March 31, 2017 through March 31, 2018. As of December 31, 2013, the financial
covenant was met with a ratio of 5.89 to 1.00.

The second financial covenant was an EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio. The new DPL revolving credit facility
and the new DPL term loan agreement that were put in place in May 2013, will continue to have an EBITDA to
Interest Expense ratio that is calculated at the end of each fiscal quarter by dividing consolidated EBITDA for the
four prior fiscal quarters by the consolidated interest charges for the same period. The ratio, per the new
agreements is not to be less than 2.00 to 1.00 for the fiscal quarter ending June 30, 2013 through December 31,
2014; it then steps up to not to be less than 2.10 to 1.00 for the fiscal quarter ending March 31, 2015 through
December 31, 20186; and it then steps up to not to be less than 2.25 to 1.00 for the fiscal quarter ending March
31, 2017 through March 31, 2018. As of December 31, 2013, the financial covenant was met with a ratio of 3.09
to 1.00.
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Both DPL’s revolving credit facility and term loan that were terminated in May 2013 and DPL’s new unsecured
revolving credit agreement and new unsecured term loan both executed on May 10, 2013 restrict dividend
payments from DPL. to AES and adjust the cost of borrowing under the facilities under certain rating scenarios.

Also, in May 2013 DP&L terminated its two $200.0 million revolving credit facilities and replaced them with a new
$300.0 million revolving credit facility. Each of the facilities that were terminated in May had a Total Debt to Total
Capitalization financial covenant. DP&L’s new revolving credit facility that was put in place in May 2013, also
has a financial covenant that requires the Total Debt to Total Capitalization ratio to not exceed 0.65 to 1.00. As
of December 31, 2013, this covenant was met with a ratio of 0.44 to 1.00. The above ratio is calculated as the
sum of DP&L’s current and long-term portion of debt, including its guarantee cbligations, divided by the total of
DP&L’s shareholder's equity and total debt including guarantee obligations. In addition, the new DP&L
revolving credit facility that was put in place in May 2013 has a second financial covenant that did not exist in the
previous agreements. The second covenant is an EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio that will be calculated at the
end of each fiscal quarter, by dividing consclidated EBITDA for the four prior fiscal quarters by the consolidated
interest charges for the same period. DP&L’s EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio cannot be less than 2.50 to 1.00.
As of December 31, 2013, this covenant was met with a ratio of 8.76 to 1.00.

Debt Ratings
On April 30, 2013 Standard & Poor’s upgraded DPL’s unsecured debt and maintained all other ratings and the

Stable outlook. On September 9, 2013 and September 10, 2013, Moody’s and Fifch, respectively, downgraded
DPL and DP&L credit and debt ratings and updated their outiooks to Stable.

The following table outlines the debt ratings and outlook for DPL and DP&L, along with the effective dates of
each rating.

DPL @ DP&L ¥ Outlook Effective
Fitch Ratings BB BBB Stable September
2013
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. Ba2 Baa1 Stable September
2013
Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC BB BBB- Stable April 2013

Credit Ratings
The following table outlines the credit ratings (issuer/corporate rating) and outlook for each company, along with

the effective dates of each rating and outlook for DPL and DP&L..

DPL @ pPaL ¥ Outlook Effective
Fitch Ratings B+ BB+ Stable September
2013
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. Ba2 Baa3 Stable September
2013
Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC BB BB Stable April 2013

On April 4, 2013 Standard and Poor's Ratings Services upgraded DPL’s senior unsecured debt rating from BB-
Stable to BB Stable and maintained DPL’s Credit Rating (or Issuer Default Rating) at BB Stable. Standard and
Poor's Ratings Services did not change DP&L's Credit Rating or Debt Rating in 2013.

On November 7, 2012, Fitch Ratings issued a new DPL issuer default rating {Credit Rating) and a new rating on
DPL’s senior unsecured debt (Debt Rating) of BB with an outlook of “Rating Watch Negative”. DP&L did not
receive a new rating on this date, but the outlock on its issuer credit rating and DP&L’s senior secured debt
changed to “Rating Watch Negative”. On September 10, 2013 Fitch resolved “Rating Watch Negative” by
downgrading the DPL issuer default rating to B+ {from BB), affirming DPL’s senior unsecured debt rating at BB,
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downgrading the DP&L issuer default rating o BB+ (from BBB-) and downgrading the DP&L senior secured
rating to BBB (from BBB+). The outlocks of all DP&L and DPL ratings were changed to a Stable outlook.

On November 9, 2012, Moody's Investors Services, Inc. placed all the ratings of DPL and DP&L under review for
possible downgrade. On September 9, 2013, Moody’s resolved this negative outlook by downgrading the DPL
issuer defauli rating to Ba2 (from Ba1), downgrading the DPL senior unsecured debt rating to Ba2 (from Bat),
downgrading the DP&L issuer default rating to Baa3 (from Baa2) and downgrading the DP&L senicr secured
rating to Baai {from A3). The outlooks of all DP&L and DPL ratings were changed to a Stable outlook.

The above mentioned changes in ratings from our rating agencies could have an impact on the market price of
our debt and DP&L’s preferred stock.

if the rating agencies were to reduce our debt or credit ratings further, our borrowing costs may increase, our
potential pool of investors and funding resources may be reduced, and we may be required to post additional
collateral under selected contracts. These events may have an adverse effect on our resuits of operations,
financial condition and cash flows. In addition, any such reduction in our debt or credit ratings may adversely
affect the trading price of our outstanding debt securities. Non-investment grade companies, such as DPL, may
experience higher costs to issue new securities. DP&L is still considered investment grade by one of the three
rating agencies above.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangemenis

DPL - Guarantees

In the normal course of business, DPL enters into various agreements with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, DPLE
and DPLER, and its wholly-owned subsidiary MC Squared, providing financial or performance assurance to third
patties. These agreements are entered into primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness otherwise
attributed to these subsidiaries on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to
accomplish these subsidiaries’ intended commercial purposes. During the year ended December 31, 2013, DPL
did not incur any losses related to the guarantees of these obligations and we believe it is unlikely that DPL
would be required to perform or incur any losses in the future associated with any of the above guarantees.

At December 31, 2013, DPL had $25.9 millicn of guarantees to third parties for future financial or performance
assurance under such agreements, on behalf of DPLE, DPLER and MC Squared. The guarantee arrangements
entered into by DPL with these third parties cover present and future obligations of DPLE, DPLER and MC
Squared to such beneficiaries and are terminable at any time by DPL upon written notice to the beneficiaries.
The carrying amount of obligations for commercial transactions covered by these guarantees and recorded in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets was $0.2 million at December 31, 2013 and $0.0 million at December 31, 2012.

DP&L owns a 4.9% equity ownership interest in an electric generation company which is recorded using the cost
method of accounting under GAAP. DP&L could be responsible for the repayment of 4.9%, or $76.4 million, of a
$1,558.4 million debt obtigation comprised of both fixed and variable rate securities with maturities between 2014
and 2040. This would only happen if this electric generation company defaulted on its debt payments. As of
December 31, 2013, we have no knowledge of such a default.
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Commercial Commitments and Contractual Obligations
We enter into various contractual obligations and other commercial commitments that may affect the liquidity of
our operations. At December 31, 2013, these include:

Payments due in:

Less than 2-3 4-5 More than
$ in millions Total 1 year years years 5 years
DPL:

Long:tetnrdebtssy 5a%
Interest Eﬂxments .

4

S ohalonandipostretirerment baymeHte.
Operatmg leases

Total contractual obligations $ 42428 $ 4241 $ 15380 $ 4670 $ 18137

Payments due in:
Less than 2-3 4-5 More than
$ in millions Total 1 year years years 5 years
DP&L:

Total contractual obltgatlons $ 22395 % 323.3 $ 846.9 $ 2472 % 822.1

(a) Total at PP&L operated units.

Long-term debt:
DPL’s Long-term debt as of December 31, 2013 consists of DPL’s unsecured notes and unsecured term loan,

along with DP&L’s first mortgage bonds, tax-exempt pollution control bonds, capital leases, and the Wright-
Patterson Air Force Base (WPAFB) note. These long-term debt amounts include current maturities but exclude
unamontized debt discounts, premiums and fair value adjustments,

DP&L’s Long-term debt as of December 31, 2013 consists of its first mortgage bonds, tax-exempt pollution
control bonds, capital leases and the WPAFB note. These long-term debt amounts include current maturities but
exclude unamortized debt discounts.

See Note 7 of the Notes to DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 6 of the Notes to DP&L’s
Financial Statements,

[nterest payments:
Interest payments are associated with the long-term debt described above. The interest payments relating to
variable-rate debt are projected using the interest rate prevailing at December 31, 2013.

Pension and postemployment paymentis:
As of December 31, 2013, DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, had estimated future benefit payments as

outlined in Note 9 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 8 of Notes to DP&L’s Financial
Statements. These estimated future benefit payments are projected through 2023.
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Capital leases:
As of December 31, 2013, DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, had one immaterial capital lease that

expires in 2014.

Operating leases:
As of December 31, 2013, DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, had several immaterial operating leases
with various terms and expiration dates.

Coal coniracis:

DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, has entered into various long-term coal contracts to supply the coal
requirements for the generating stations it operates. Some contract prices are subject to periodic adjustment and
have features that limit price escalation in any given year.

Limestone contracts:
DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, has entered into various limestone contracts to supply limestone
used in the operation of FGD equipment at its generating facilities.

Purchase orders and other contractual obligations:
As of December 31, 2013, DPL and DP&L had various other contractual obligations including non-cancelable
contracts to purchase goods and services with various terms and expiration dates.

Reserve for uncertain tax positions:

Due to the uncertainty regarding the timing of future cash outflows associated with our unrecognized tax benefits
of $8.8 million at December 31, 2013, we are unable to make a reliable estimate of the periods of cash settlement
with the respective tax authorities and have not included such amounts in the contractual ebligations table above.

MARKET RISK

We are subject to certain market risks including, but not limited to, changes in commodity prices for electricity,
coal, environmental emission aillowances, changes in capacity prices and fluctuations in interest rates. We use
various market risk-sensitive instruments, including derivative contracts, primarily to limit our exposure to
fluctuations in commodity pricing. Our Commodity Risk Management Committee (CRMC), comprised of
members of senior management, is responsible for establishing risk management policies and the monitoring and
reporting of risk exposures related to our DP&L operated generation units. The CRMC meets on a regular basis
with the objective of identifying, assessing and quantifying material risk issues and developing strategies to
manage these risks.

Commodity Pricing Risk
Commodity pricing risk exposure includes the impacts of weather, market demand, increased competition and

other economic conditions. To manage the volatility relating to these exposures at our DP&L operated
generation units, we use a variety of non-derivative and derivative instruments including forward contracts and
futures contracts. These instruments are used principally for economic hedging purposes and nene are heid for
trading purposes. Derivatives that fall within the scope of derivative accounting under GAAP must be recorded at
their fair value and marked to market unless they qualify for cash flow hedge accounting. MTM gains and losses
an derivative instruments that qualify for cash flow hedge accounting are deferred in AOCI until the forecasted
transactions occur. We adjust the derivative instruments that do not qualify for cash flow hedging to fair value on
a monthly basis and where applicable, we recognize a corresponding regulatory asset for above-market costs or
a regulatory liability for below-market costs in accordance with regulatory accounting under GAAP.

The coal market has increasingly been influenced by both international and domestic supply and consumption,
making the price of coal more volatile than in the past, and while we have substantially all of the total expected
coal volume needed to meet our retail and wholesale sales requirements for 2014 under contract, sales
requirements may change, particularly for retail load. The majority of the contracted coal is purchased at fixed
prices. Some contracts provide for periodic adjustments and some are priced based on market indices. Fuel
costs are affected by changes in volume and price and are driven by a number of variables including weather, the
wholesale market price of power, certain provisions in coal contracts related to government imposed costs,
counterparty performance and credit, scheduled outages and electric generation station mix. To the extent we
are not able to hedge against price volatility or recover increases through our fuel and purchased power recovery
rider that began in January 2010, our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows couid be materially
affected,
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In addition, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consurmer Protection Act (Dodd-Frank Act), signed into law
in July 2010, contains significant requirements relating to derivatives, including, among others, a requirement that
certain transactions be cleared on exchanges that would necessitate the posting of cash collateral for these
transactions. We are considered an end-user under the Dodd-Frank Act and therefore are exempt from most of
the collateral and margining requirements. We are required to report our bilateral derivative contracts, unless our
counterparty is a major swap participant or has elected to report on our behalf. Even though we qualify for an
exception from these requirements, our counterparties that do not qualify for the exception may pass along any
increased costs incurred by them through higher prices and reductions in unsecured credit limits or be unable to
enter into certain transactions with us.

For purposes of potential risk analysis, we use a sensitivity analysis to quantify potential impacts of market rate
changes on the statements of resuits of operations. The sensitivity analysis represents hypothetical changes in
market vaiues that may or may not occur in the fuiure.

Commedity derivatives
To minimize the risk of fluctuations in the market price of commodities, such as coal, power, and heating oil, we

may enter into commodity forward and futures contracts to effectively hedge the cost/revenues of the commodity.
Maturity dates of the contracts are scheduled to coincide with market purchases/sales of the commodity. Cash
proceeds or payments between us and the counterparty at maturity of the contracts are recognized as an
adjustment to the cost of the commaodity purchased or sold. We generally do not enter into forward contracts
beyond thirty-six months.

A 10% increase or decrease in the market price of our heating oil forwards at December 31, 2013 would not have
a significant effect on Net income.

The following table provides information regarding the volume and average market price of our power forward
derivative contracts at December 31, 2013 and the effect to Net income if the market price were to increase or
decrease by 10%:

Waeighted
Contract Average Increase /
Volume Market decrease in
{in millions Price Net income

Power FonNards of tons)
, Mchasel(SaleRosition 52 AR TR
2015 Net Purchase/ Saie) Position

B rehaseiSale) Rositione:

(in millions) _

Wholesale revenues

Approximately 16% of DPL’s and 45% of DP&L'’s electric revenues for the year ended December 31, 2013 were
from sales of excess energy and capacity in the wholesale market {(DP&L’s electric revenues in the wholesaie
market are reduced for sales to DPLER). Energy in excass of the needs of existing retail customers is sold in the
wholesale market when we can identify opportunities with positive margins.

Approximately 11% of DPL’s and 36% of DP&L's electric revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012 were
from sales of excess energy and capacity in the wholesale market (DP&L’s electric revenues in the wholesale
market are reduced for sales to DPLER). Energy in excess of the needs of existing retaif customers is sold in the
wholesale market when we can identify opportunities with positive margins.

Approximately 17% of DPL’s and 35% of DP&L’s electric revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011 were

from sales of excess energy and capacity in the wholesale market. Energy in excess of the needs of existing
retail customers is sold in the wholesale market when we can identify opportunities with positive margins.
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The table below provides the effect on annual Net income (net of an estimated income tax at 35%) as of
December 31, 2013 of a hypothetical increase or decrease of 10% in the price per megawatt hour of whelesale
power (DP&L’s electric revenues in the wholesale market are reduced for sales to DPLER), including the impact
of a corresponding 10% change in the portion of purchased power used as part of the sale (note the share of the
internal generation used to meet the DPLER wholesale sale would not be affected by the 10% change in
wholesale prices):

$ in millions DPL DP&L
Effect of 10% change in price per MWh $ 125 § 14.1

RPM Capacity revenues and costs

As a member of PJM, DP&L receives revenues from the RTO related to its transmission and generation assets
and incurs costs associated with its load obligations for retail customers. PJM, which has a delivery year which
runs from June 1 to May 31, has conducted auctions for capacity through the 2016/17 delivery year. The clearing
prices for capacity during the PJM delivery periods from 2012/13 through 2016/17 are as follows:

($MW-day) PJM Delivery Year
2012/13 201314 201415 2015/16 2016/17
Capacity clearing price $ 16 $ 28 % 126 § 136 $ 59

Our computed average capacity prices by calendar year are reflected in the table below:

Calendar Year
($/MW-day) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Computed average capacity price $ 55 § 23 §$ 85 % 132 § o1

Future RPM auction results are dependent on a number of factors, which include the overall supply and demand
of generation and load, other state legislation or regulation, transmission congestion, and PJM's RPM business
rules. The volatility in the RPM capacity auction pricing has had and will continue to have a significant impact on
DPL’s capacity revenues and costs. Although DP&L currently has an approved RPM rider in place to recover or
repay any excess capacity costs or revenues, the BPM rider only applies t¢ customers supplied under our SSO.
Customer switching reduces the number of customers supplied under our SSO, causing more of the RPM
capacity costs and revenues to be excluded from the RPM rider calculation.

The table below provides estimates of the effect on annual net income as of December 31, 2013 of a hypothetical
increase or decrease of $10/MW-day in the RPM auction price. The table shows the impact resulting from
capacity revenue changes. We did not include the impact of a change in the RPM capacity costs since these
costs will either be recovered through the RPM rider for SSO retail customers or recovered through the
development of our overall energy pricing for customers who do not fali under the SSO. These estimates include
the impact of the RPM rider and are based on the levels of customer switching experienced through December
31, 2013. As of December 31, 2013, approximately 28% of DP&L’s RPM capacity revenues and costs were
recoverable from SSO retail customers through the RPM rider.

$ in millions DPL DP&L
Effect of $10/MW-day change in capacity auction pricing $ 63 % 5.0

Capacity revenues and costs are also impacted by, among other factors, the levels of customer switching, our
generation capacity, the levels of wholesale revenues and our retail customer load. In determining the capacity
price sensitivity above, we did not consider the impact that may arise from the variability of these other factors.

Fuel and purchased power costs
DPL’s and DP&L’s fuel (including coal, gas, oil and emission allowances) and purchased power costs as a

percentage of total operating costs in the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were 45%, 39% and
37%, respectively. We have a significant portion of projected 2014 fuel needs under contract. The majority of
our contracted coal is purchased at fixed prices although some contracts provide for periodic pricing adjustments.
We may purchase SO, allowances for 2014; however, the exact consumption of SO; allowances will depend on
market prices for power, availability of our generation units and the actual suifur content of the coal burned. We
may purchase some NO, allowances for 2014 depending on NO, emissions. Fuel costs are affected by changes
in volume and price and are driven by a number of variables including weather, reliability of coal deliveries,
scheduled outages and electric generation station mix.
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Purchased power costs depend, in part, upon the timing and extent of planned and unplanned outages of our
generating capacity as well as requirement to supply an increasing percentage of SS0O load through the
competitive bid auction. We will purchase power on a discretionary basis when wholesale market conditions
provide opportunities to obtain power at a cost below our internal generation costs.

Effective January 1, 2010, DP&L was allowed to recover its fuel and purchased power costs associated with
supplying SSO load as part of the fuel rider approved by the PUCO. Since there has been an increase in
customer switching, SSO customers currently represent approximately 28% of DP&L's total fuel costs. The table
below provides the effect on annual Net income (net of an estimated income tax at 35%) as of December 31,
2013, of a hypothefical increase or decrease of 10% in the prices of fuel and purchased power, adjusted for the
approximate 28% recovery:

% in millions DPL DP&L
Effect of 10% change in fuel and purchased power $ 286 9% 28.0

Interest Rate Risk

As a result of our normal investing and borrowing activities, our financial results are exposed to fluctuations in
interest rates, which we manage through our regular financing activities. We maintain both cash on deposit and
investments in cash equivalents that may be affected by adverse interest rate fluctuations. DPL and DP&L have
both fixed-rate and variable rate long-term debt. DPL’s variable-rate debt consists of a $190 million unsecured
term loan with a syndicated bank group. The term loan interest rate fluctuates with changes in an underlying
interest rate index, typically LIBOR. DP&L’s variable-rate debt is comprised of publicly held pollution control
bonds. The variable-rate bonds bear interest based on a prevailing rate that is reset weekly based on a
comparable market index. Market indexes can be affected by market demand, supply, market interest rates and
other economic conditions. See Note 7 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

We partially hedged against interest rate fluctuations by entering into interest rate swap agreements to limit the
interest rate exposure on the underlying financing. These interest rate swap agreements had mandatory
settlement dates of September 30, 2013 and were being used to limit our exposure to changes in interest rates
and the effect this could have on our future borrowing costs. On September 16, 2013 and immediately after the
sale of DP&L’s new $445 million of First Morigage Bonds, DP&L seitled all of the above mentioned swap
agreements at a tofal net settlement of $0. As of December 31, 2013, we do not have any interest rate hedging
agreements still in place.

The carrying value of DPL’s debt was $2,294.4 million at December 31, 2013, consisting of DPL’s unsecured
notes and unsecured term loan, along with DP&L’s first mortgage bonds, tax-exempt pollution control bonds,
capital leases, and the WPAFB note. All of DPL’s debt was adjusted to fair value at the Merger date according to
FASC 805. The fair value of this debt at December 31, 2013 was $2,334.6 million, based on current market
prices or discounted cash flows using current rates for similar issues with similar terms and remaining maturities.
The following table provides information about PPL’s debt obligations that are sensitive to interest rate changes:

Principal Payments and Interest Rate Detail by Contractual Maturity Date

Principal Fair value

amoeunt at at
December December
DPL Years ending December 31, 3, 31,
$ in millions 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018  Thereafter 2013 {a) 2013
Long-term debt
Variable-rate debt $ 100% 400% 4008% 400 % 600 % 1000 $ 2900 $ 2900
Average interest rate 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 0.1%
Fixed-rate debt $ 02 § 01 $ 8751 % 01 % 0.1 % 1,132.8 2,0084 2,044.6
Average interest rate 5.2% 4.2% 4.2% 4.2% 4.2% 6.5%
Total $ 2,29084 $ 23346
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The carrying value of DP&L’s debt was $877.1 million at December 31, 2013, consisting of its first mortgage
bonds, tax-exempt pollution control bonds, capital leases and the WPAFB note. The fair value of this debt at
December 31, 2013 was $859.6 million, based on current market prices or discounted cash flows using current
rates for similar issues with similar terms and remaining maturities. The following table provides information
about DP&L’s debt obligaticns that are sensitive to interest rate changes. Note that the DP&L debt was not
revalued using push-down accounting as a result of the Merger.

Principal Payments and Interest Rate Detail by Contractual Maturity Date

Principal Fair value

amount at at
December December
DP&L Years ending December 31, 31, 31,
$ in millions 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter 2013 (a} 2013
Long-term debt
Variable-rate debt $ -$ -$ -% -$ -$ 1000 % 1000 $ 100.0
Average interest rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1%
Fixed-rate debt $ 02 % 01 $ 4451 $ 01 % 0.1 $§ 3322 777.8 759.6
Average interest rate 5.2% 4.2% 1.9% 4.2% 4.2% 4.8%
Total $ 8778 $ 85986

Long-term Debt Interest Rate Risk Sensitivity Analysis

Qur estimate of market risk exposure is presented for our fixed-rate and variable-rate debt at December 31, 2013
and 2012 for which an immediate adverse market movement causes a potential material effect on our financial
condition, results of operations, or the fair value of the debt. We believe that the adverse market movement
represents the hypothetical loss to future earnings and does not represent the maximum possible loss nor any
expected actual loss, even under adverse conditions, because actual adverse fluctuations would likely differ. As
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we did not hold any market risk sensitive instruments which were entered into
for trading purposes.
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Carrying value and fair value of debt with one percent interest rate risk

DPL
Carrying Cne Carrying One
value at Fair value Percent valueat Fairvalue Percent
December at Interest December at Interest
31,2013 December Rate 31,2012 December Rate
$ in millions {a) 31,2013 Risk (a) 31,2012 Risk

Long-term debt

Variableirataidep s

Eixed:ratedebt

Total

(a) Carrying value includes unamortized debt discounts and premiums.

DP&L
Carrying One Carrying Cne
value at  Fair value Percent value at  Fairvalue  Percent
December at Interest  December at Interest
31,2013 December Rate 31,2012 December Rate
$ in millions (a) 31, 2013 Risk {(a) 31,2012 Risk

Long-term debt

{a) Carrying value includes unamortized debt discounts and premiums.

DPL’s debt is comprised of both fixed-rate debt and variable-rate debt. In regard to fixed rate debt, the interest
rate risk with respect to DPL’s tong-term debt primarily relates to the potential impact a decrease of one
percentage point in interest rates has on the fair value of DPL’s $2,044.6 million of fixed-rate debt and not on
DPL’s financial condition or results of operations. On the variable-rate debt, the interest rate risk with respect to
DPL’s long-term debt represents the potential impact an increase of one percentage point in the interest rate has
on DPL’s results of operations related to the fair value of DPL’s $290.0 million variable-rate long-term debt
outstanding as of December 31, 2013.

DP&L’s interest rate risk with respect to DP&L’s long-term debt primarily relates to the potential impact a
decrease in interest rates of one percentage point has on the fair value of DP&L’s $759.6 million of fixed-rate
debt and not on DP&L's financial condition or DP&L’s results of operations. On the variable-rate debt, the
interest rate risk with respect to DP&L’s long-term debt represents the potential impact an increase of one
percentage point in the interest rate has on DP&L’s results of operations related to the fair value of DP&L’s
$100.0 million variable-rate long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2013.

Equity Price Risk

As of December 31, 2013, approximately 19% of the defined benefit pension plan assets were comprised of
investments in equity securities and 81% related to investments in fixed income securities, cash and cash
equivalents, and alternative investments. The equity securities are carried at their market value of approximately
$65.3 million at December 31, 2013. A hypothetical 10% decrease in prices quoted by stock exchanges would
result in a $6.5 million reduction in fair value as of December 31, 2013 and approximately a $0.4 million increase
to the 2014 pension expense,
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of an obligor's failure to meet the terms of any investment contract, loan agreement or
otherwise perform as agreed. Credit risk arises from all activities in which success depends on issuer, borrower
or counterparty performance, whether reflected on or off the balance sheet. We limit our credit risk by assessing
the creditworthiness of potential counterparties before entering into transactions with them and continue to
evaluate their creditworthiness after transactions have been originated. We use the three leading corporate
credit rating agencies and other current market-based qualitative and quantitative data to assess the financial
strength of counterparties on an ongoing basis. We may require various forms of credit assurance from
counterparties in order to mitigate credit risk.

Goodwill Impairments

In the fourth quarter of 2013, DPL completed its annual October 1 goodwill impairment tests and recognized
goodwill impairment expense of $306.3 million. The Company identified both the DP&L and DPLER reporting
units as “at risk.” A reporting unit is considered “at risk” when its fair value is not higher than its carrying amount
by more than 10%. The Company monitors its reporting units at risk of step 1 failure on an ongoing basis. Since
2012, the DP&L reporting unit remains at risk subsequent to its goodwill impairments of $1,817.2 million
recognized in 2012 and $306.3 million recognized in 2013. During the nine months ended September 30, 2013,
the Company continued to monitor the business environment and regulatory developments. In the fourth quarter
of 2013, the DPAL reporting unit recognized goodwill impairment expense of $306.3 million as part of its annual
goodwill impairment test. It is possible that we may incur goodwill impairment at DP&L or DPLER reporting units
in future periods if adverse changes in their business or operating environments occur. As of December 31,
2013, the DP&L and DPLER reporting units had goodwill of $317.0 million and $135.8 million, respectively. See
Note 18 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the impairment of
Goodwill.

Critical Accounting Estimates

DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements and DP&L’s Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with
GAAP. In connection with the preparation of these financial statements, our management is required to make
assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses
and the related disciosure of contingent liabilities. These assumptions, estimates and judgments are based on
our historical experience and assumptions that we believe to be reasonable at the time. However, because
future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty, the determination of estimates requires the
exercise of judgment. Cur critical accounting estimates are those which require assumptions te be made about
matters that are highly uncertain.

Different estimates could have a material effect on our financial results. Judgments and uncettainties affecting
the application of these policies and estimates may result in materially different amounts being reported under
different conditions or circumstances. Historically, however, recorded estimates have not differed materially from
actual results. Significant items subject to such judgments include: the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment; unbilled revenues; the valuation of derivative instruments; the valuation of insurance and claims
liabilities; the valuation of allowances for receivables and deferred income taxes; regulatory assets and liabilities;
reserves recorded for income tax exposures; litigation; contingencies; the valuation of AROs; and assets and
liabilities related to employee benefits.

Impairments and Assets Held for Sale

In accordance with the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for goodwill, goodwiil is not amortized, but
is evaluated for impairment at least annually or more frequently if impairment indicators are present. In
evaluating the potential impairment of goodwill, we make estimates and assumptions about revenue, operating
cash flows, capital expenditures, growth rates and discount rates based on our budgets and long term forecasts,
macroeconomic projections, and current market expectations of returns on similar assets. There are inherent
uncertainties related to these factors and management’s judgment in applying these factors. Generally, the fair
value of a reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow valuation model. We could be required to
evaluate the potential impairment of goodwill outside of the required annual assessment process if we experience
situations, including but not limited to: deterioration in general economic conditions; operating or regulatory
environment; increased competitive environment; increase in fuel costs particularly when we are unable to pass
its effect to customers; negative or declining cash flows; loss of a key contract or customer particularly when we
are unable to replace it on equally favorable terms; or adverse actions or assessments by a regulator. These
types of events and the resulting analyses could result in goodwill impairment expense, which could substantially
affect our results of operations for those periods. See Note 18 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated Financial
Statements discussing the impairment of goodwill at DPL in 2013 and 2012.
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In accordance with the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for impairments, long-lived assets to be
held and used are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. When required, impairment losses on assets o be held and used are recognized based
on the fair value of the asset. We determine the fair value of these assets based upon estimates of future cash
flows, market value of similar assets, if available, or independent appraisals, if required. In analyzing the fair
value and recoverability using future cash flows, we make projections based on a number of assumgptions and
estimates of growth rates, future economic conditions, assignment of discount rates and estimates of terminal
values, Animpairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the long-lived asset is not recoverable from its
undiscounted cash flows. The measurement of impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount
and fair value of the asset. See Note 15 of Notes to DP&L’s Financial Statements discussing the impairment of
long-lived assets at DP&L. in 2013 and 2012,

Revenue Recognition (including Unbilled Revenue)

We consider revenue realized, or realizable, and eared when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the
products or services have been provided to the customer, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collection
is reasonably assured. The determination of the energy sales to customers is based on the reading of their
meters, which occurs on a systematic basis throughout the month. We recognize revenues using an accrual
method for retail and other energy sales that have not yet been billed, but where electricity has been consumed.
This is termed “unbilled revenues” and is a widely recognized and accepted practice for utilities. At the end of
each month, unbilled revenues are determined by the estimation of unbilled energy provided to customers since
the date of the last meter reading, projected line losses, the assignment of unbilled energy provided to customer
classes and the average rate per customer class. Given our estimation method and the fact that customers are
billed monthly, we believe it is unlikely that materially different results will occur in future periods when these
amounts are subsequently billed.

Income Taxes
Judgment and the use of estimates are required in developing the provision for income taxes and reporting of

tax-related assets and liabilities. The interpretation of tax laws involves uncertainty, since taxing authorities may
interpret them differently. Ultimate resolution of income tax matters may result in favorable or unfavorable
impacts {o Net income and cash flows and adjustments to tax-related assets and liabilities could he material. We
have adopted the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. Taking into
consideration the uncertainty and judgment involved in the determination and filing of income taxes, these GAAP
provisions establish standards for recognition and measurement in financial statements of positions taken, or
expected to be taken, by an entity on its income tax returns. Positions taken by an entity on its income tax
returns that are recognized in the financial statements must satisfy a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold,
assuming that the position will be examined by taxing authorities with full knowledge of all relevant information.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities represent future effects on income taxes for temporary differences
between the bases of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and tax purposes. We evaluate quarterly the
probability of realizing deferred tax assets by reviewing a forecast of future taxable income and the availability of
tax planning strategies that can be implemented, if necessary, to realize deferred tax assets. Failure to achieve
forecasted taxable income or successfully implement tax planning strategies may affect the realization of
deferred tax assets.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
Application of the provisions of GAAP relating to regulatory accounting requires us to reflect the effect of rate

regulation in DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements and DP&L’s Financial Statements. For regulated
businesses subject to federal or state cost-of-service rate regulation, regulatory practices that assign costs to
accounting periods may differ from accounting methods generally applied by nonregulated companies. When it
is probable that regulators will permit the recovery of current costs through future rates charged to customers, we
defer these costs as Regulatory assets that otherwise would be expensed by nonregulated companies. Likewise,
we recognize Regulatory liabilities when it is probable that regulators will require customer refunds through future
rates and when revenue is collected from customers for expenses that are not yet incurred. Regulatory assets
are amortized into expense and Regulatory liabilities are amortized into income over the recovery period
authorized by the regulator.

We evaluate our Regulatory assets to determine whether or not they are probable of recovery through future
rates and make various assumptions in our analyses. The expectations of future recovery are generally based
on orders issued by regulatory commissions or historical experience, as well as discussions with applicable
regulatory authorities. If recovery of a regulatory asset is determined to be less than probable, it will be written off
in the period the assessment is made. We currently believe the recovery of our Regulatory assets is probable.
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See Note 4 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 4 of Notes to DP&L’s Financial
Statements.

AROs

In accordance with the provisions of GAAP relating o the accounting for AROs, legal obligations associated with
the retirement of long-lived assets are required to be recognized at their fair vaiue at the time those obligations
are incurred. Upon initial recognition of a legal liability, casts are capitalized as part of the related long-lived
asset and allocated to expense over the useful life of the asset. These GAAP provisions also require that
components of previously recorded depreciation related {o the cost of removal of assets upon future retirement,
whether legal AROs or not, must be removed from a company’s accumulated depreciation reserve and be
reclassified as a regulatory liability. We make assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities and expenses as they relate to AROs. These assumptions and estimates are based
on historical experience and assumptions that we believe to be reasonable at the time.

Insurance and Claims Costs

In addition to insurance obtained from third-party providers, MVIC, a wholly-owned captive subsidiary of DPL,
provides insurance coverage solely to us, our subsidiaries and, in some cases, our partners in commonly-owned
facilities we operate, for workers’ compensation, general liability, property damage, and directors’ and officers’
liability. Insurance and Claims Costs on DPL’s Consolidated Balance Sheets include estimated liabilities for
insurance and claims costs of approximately $6.7 million and $11.5 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Furthermore, DP&L is responsible for claim costs below certain coverage thresholds of MVIC for
the insurance coverage noted above. In addition, DP&L has estimated liabilities for medical, life and disability
claims costs below certain coverage thresholds of third-party providers. DPL and DP&L record these additional
insurance and claims costs of approximately $18.8 million and $17.7 million for 2013 and 2012, respectively,
within Other current liahilities and Other deferred credits on the balance sheets. The estimated liabilities for
MVIC at DPL and the estimated liabilities for workers' compensation, medical, life and disability claims at DP&L
are gctuarially determined using certain assumptions. There is uncertainty associated with the loss estimates
and actual results may differ from the estimates. Modification of these loss estimates based on experience and
changed circumstances is reflected in the period in which the estimate is re-evaluated.

Pension and Postretirement Benefits

We account for and disclose pension and postemployment benefits in accordance with the provisions of GAAP
relating to the accounting for pension and other postemploymenit plans. These GAAP provisions require the use
of assumptions, such as the discount rate for liabilities and long-term rate of return on assets, in determining the
obligations, annuat cost, and funding requirements of the plans.

For 2014, we are decreasing our long-term rate of return assumption from 7.00% to 8.75% for pension plan
assets and we are maintaining 6.00% for other postemployment benefit plan assets. These rates of return
represent our long-term assumptions based on our current portfolio mixes. Also, for 2014, we have increased
our assumed discount rate to 4.86% from 4.04% for pension and to 4.58% from 3.75% for postemployment
benefits expense to reflect current duration-hased yield curve discount rates. A one percent change in the rate of
return assumption for pension would result in an increase or decrease to the 2014 pension expense of
approximately $3.4 million. A 25 basis point increase in the discount rate for pension would result in a decrease
of approximately $0.3 million to 2014 pension expense. A 25 basis point decrease in the discount rate for
pension would result in an increase of approximately $0.3 million to 2014 pension expense.

A one percent change in the rate of return assumption for pension would result in an increase or decrease to the
2014 pension expense of approximately $3.5 million. A one percent increase in the discount rate for pension
would resuit in a decrease of approximately $1.5 million to 2014 pension expense. A one percent decrease in
the discount rate for pension would result in an increase of approximately $2.8 million to 2014 pension expense.

In future periods, differences in the actual return on pension and other post-employment benefit plan assets and
assumed return, or changes in the discount rate, will affect the timing of contributions, if any to the plans. We
provide postemployment health care benefits to employees who retired prior to 1987. A one percentage point
change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would affect postemployment benefit costs by less than $1.0
million.

Contingent and Other Obligations

During the conduct of our business, we are subject to a number of federal and state laws and regulations, as well
as other factors and conditions that potentially subject us to environmental, litigation, insurance and other risks.
We periadically evaluate our exposure to such risks and record estimated liabilities for those matters where a
loss is considered probable and reasonably estimable in accordance with GAAP. In recording such estimated
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liabilities, we may make assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities and expenses as they relate to contingent and other obligations. These assumptions and estimates are
based on historical experience and assumptions and may be subject to change. We, however, believe such
estimates and assumptions are reasonable.

LEGAL AND OTHER MATTERS

A discussion of LEGAL AND OTHER MATTERS is described in Note 16 of Notes to DPL’s Consolidated
Financial Statements and Note 14 of Notes to DP&L’s Financial Statements. A discussion of environmental
matters and competition and regulation matters affecting both DPL and DP&L is described in item 1 ~
Environmental Considerations and ltem 1 — Competition and Regulation. Such discussions are incorporated by
reference in this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and
made a part hereof.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

A discussion of recently issued accounting pronouncements is described in Note 1 of Notes to DPL’s
Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 1 of Notes to DP&L’s Financial Statements and such discussion is
incorporated by reference in this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations and made a part hereof.

Item 7A - Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The information required by this item of Form 10-K is set forth in the Market Risk section under ltem 7 -
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Iltem 8 — Financial Statementis and Supplementary Data

This repoert includes the combined filing of DPL and DP&L. Throughout this report, the terms "we,” “us,” "our”
and "ours” are used to refer to both DPL and DP&L, respectively and altogether, unless the context indicates
otherwise. Discussions or areas of this report that apply only to DPL or DP&L will clearly be noted in the section.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors of DPL Inc. and subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consclidated balance sheets of DPL inc. and subsidiaries as of December
31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of Results of Operations, Comprehensive
Income/(Loss), Cash Flows, and Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the
period from November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011. Our audit also included the consolidated financial
statement schedule “Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts” for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012 and the pericd from November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011. These consolidated financial
statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Qur responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an
audit of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consclidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of DPL Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
and the period from November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related consolidated financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial staternents taken as a whole, presents fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP
March 4, 2014
Louisville, Kentucky
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
DPL Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of results of operations, comprehensive income /
(loss), cash flows and shareholders’ equity of DPL Inc. and its subsidiaries (DPL) for the period from January 1,
2011 through November 27, 2011. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we also
have audited the consolidated financial statement schedule, “Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts”
for the period from January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011. These consolidated financial statements and
consolidated financial statement schedule are the responsibility of DPL's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement schedule
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that cur audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinicn.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of DPL referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the results of their operations and their cash flows for the period from January 1, 2011 through
November 27, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the
related consolidated financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

fs/ KPMG LLP

Philadeiphia, Pennsylvania
March 27, 2012
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DPL INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Successor Predecessor

November 28, January 1,
Year ended Year ended 2011 through | 2011 through
December 31, December 31, December31, |November27,
$ in millions except per share amounts 2013 2012 2011 2011

tintangiple e e A 6
Total cost of revenues 762.8 799.1 84.1 760.4

} @ﬂeratlon;amd m_ntenanc : , 40645 : 78
Deprematton and amortization 132.9 125.4 11.6 1294

Total operatlng expenses 943.0 2,428.5 A 66.7 582.7

ZGhargeHoriearly reterapliol
Othgr de:_ductioﬂns
At bIneRexpEnS

Net income / (10s5) $ 222.0) $ (172908) §  (62) § 150.5

Average number of common shares
outstandmg {millions):

D|Iuted

Earnmgs per share of common stock:

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DPL INC.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / {(LOSS)

Successor Predecessor
November 28, | January 1,
Year ended  Yearended 2011 through |2011 through
December December 31, December 31, |November 27,
$ in millions 31, 2013 2012 2011 2011

Reclassification to earnings, net of income tax
benefit / (expense) of $(0.7), $0.0, $0.0 and

$0 0 for each res eqtlve ggrlod

Reclassnflcatlon to earnings, net of income tax
benefit / (expense) of $(2.3), $0.4, $0.0 and

$ 0 3 for__each res eqtlve eriod

Net loss for the perlod, net of income tax
benefit / (expense) of $(2.7), $1.0, $(0.2) and
3(0.7) for each_resectlve period

Total change in unfunded pension and
postretirement

3.2

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DPL INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Successor Predecessor

November 28, January 1,
Year ended Year ended 2011 through 2011 through
December 31, December31, December 31, |November?27,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011 2011

Cash ﬂows from operatm actl\ntleS'_ ]

Adjustments to reconcile Net income
{loss) to Net cash from operating
actl\.rltles

Deferred income taxes
Chargedoreany redemption:of debt
Goodwill lmpafrment
e assatampairent
Recognition of deferred SECA
revenue - (17.8) - -

Changes in certain assets and

Accsuntsisrecelyatﬂe
Inventorles

. éura‘n“é*“ffaﬁ T IAImSI00ats

Other deferred debits, DPL stock
held trustr - e - _ (gs_g)m -

Nei cash fromroperatlng actlwtles T 3028 7“ 2915 o ‘(1J 4) 3344

Cash flows from mvestmg activities:

T

A4 ek

A

, HorEteTinvestmentss
Sales of short-term mvestments

OtharAnvEStnG AotV 2 1 e TR 3 2.
Net cash from mvestlng actlwtles {123.9) {198.2) {30.4) {120.7)
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DPL INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
Successor Predecessor

November 28, January 1,
Year ended Year ended 2011 through | 2011 through
December 31, December31, December31, |November 27,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011 2011

Cash flows from financing activities:

|: Dividendsipaid:on-commonstock
Contributions to additional paid-in capital
from parent

“Paymenttoformerwarrant-holders
Deferred flnancmg costs

Proceeds from liquidation of DPL stock,
heldintrust _ e l —

e — — _(2.4) - - -{12:2)

Repayment of borrowmgs from revolwng
_credlt facmtlee _ _ ,_L(5°'9)

Assump’uon of debt with acquisition $ - 3% - % 1,250.0 l$ -

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DPL INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012

ASSETS

Current assetS'

CAceolntsireceivabledretiNote 3)
Inventories _’_‘LNote 3)
TaxesTapplicablestosibs

Total current assets

Property,_ plant and equppment

ihatiofammontiz:

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DPL INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Current Ilabllmes: .
“Glrrent poriorslong.tert ‘ :
Accounts payable 78.2 83.2
Accrued taxess

Total non- current ||_abI|ItIeS 3,175.5 2,881 6 -

S

K:6f:isubsi

Common shareholder's equity:
Common stock:

S R 3 T

___(2'022 1) It 806. 0)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DPL INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common Stock ™

Common
Stock Accumulated
Held by Qther Other Retained
$ in millions (except Outstanding Employee Comprehensive  Paid-in Earnings/
Qutstanding Shares) Shares Amount  Warrants Plans  Income/ {Loss) Capital (Deficit) Total

6:024:844 3185

(1760)

(176.0)

Employee / Director stock
pl - . 7 12:7 7 1.8

5 A i3 e S Ty 22 2 i LRy - w' = T R &
Ending balance 117,720,894 $ 1.2 $ 1.6 $ 0.2 $ (74.3) $ -$ 12418 $§ 11,1705

November 28 201 1' t ough‘ December 31

Total comprehensive
income (Ioss)
R o

Ending balance 1 - - - {0.4) 2,237.3 (6.2} 2,230.7

Year ended December 31, 2012 (Successor)

Common stock dividends @

Ending balance 1 - - - (3.9) 2, 236 7 {1,8086.0} 426.8

Year ended December 31 2013 {Successor)

{a) Common stock dividends were $70.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2012, $0.00 per share in the period November 28, 2011
through December 31, 2011 and $1.54 per share in the pericd January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011.

(b) $90.01 par value, 250,000,000 shares authorized through December 31, 2011; 1,500 shares authorized from January 1, 2011 onwards.
{c) $5.9 million of dividends declared in 2012 were reversed in 2013.

See Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements.
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DPL Inc.
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Note 1- Overview and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business

DPL is a diversified regional energy company organized in 1985 under the laws of Ohio. DPL’s two reportable
segments are the Utility segment, comprised of its DP&L subsidiary, and the Competitive Retail segment,
comprised of its DPLER subsidiary. See Note 17 for more information relating to these reportable segments.
The terms "we,” "us,” "our” and “ours” are used to refer to DPL and its subsidiaries.

On November 28, 2011, DPL was acquired by AES in the Merger and DPL became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
AES. See Note 2. Following the merger of DPL and Dolphin Subsidiary Il, Inc., DPL became an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of AES.

DP&L is a public utility incorporated in 1911 under the laws of Ohio. Beginning in 2001, Ohio law gave Ohio
consumers the right to choose the electric generation supplier from whom they purchase retail generation
service, however distribution and transmission retail service are still regulated. DP&L has exclusive right to
provide such service to its more than 515,000 customers located in West Central Ohio. Additionally, DP&L offers
retail SSO electric service to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers in a 6,000 square
mile area of West Central Ohio and generates electricity at seven coal-fired power stations. Beginning in 2014,
DP&L no longer provides 100% of the generation for its SSO customers. Principal industries located in DP&L’s
service territory include automotive, food processing, paper, plastic, manufacturing and defense. DP&L'’s sales
reflect the general economic conditions, seascnal weather patterns of the area and the market price of electricity.
DP&L sells any excess energy and capacity into the wholesale market. DP&L also sells electricity to DPLER, an
affiliate, o satisfy the electric requirements of its retail customers.

DP&L filed a generation separation application at the end of December 2013, as required in its ESP order, with
the PUCO and on February 25, 201 3, filed a supplemental application. In the supplemental application, DP&L
reaffirmed its commitment to separate the generation assets on or before May 31, 2017. DP&L continues to look
at multiple options to effectuate the separation including transfer into a new unregulated affiliate of DPL or
through a sale.

DPLER sells competitive retail electric service, under contract, to residential, commercial and industrial
customers. DPLER’s operations include those of its wholly-owned subsidiary, MC Squared, which was acquired
on February 28, 2011. DPLER has approximately 308,000 customers currently located throughout Ohic and
illincis. Approximately 130,000 of DPLER's customers are also electric distribution custemers of DP&L. DPLER
does not own any transmission or generation assets, and all of DPLER's electric energy was purchased from
DP&L or PJM to meet its sales obligations. DPLER’s sales reflect the general economic conditions and seasonal
weather patterns of the area.

DPL’s other significant subsidiaries include DPLE, which owns and operates peaking generating facilities from
which it makes wholesale sales of electricity and MVIC, our captive insurance company that provides insurance
services to us and our other subsidiaries. All of DPL’s subsidiaries are wholly-owned.

DPL also has a wholly-owned business trust, DPL Capital Trust Il, formed for the purpose of issuing trust capital
securities to investors.

DP&L’s electric transmission and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state
regulators while its generation business is deemed competitive under Ohio law. Accordingly, DP&L applies the
accounting standards for regulated operations to its electric transmission and distribution businesses and records
regulatory assets when incurred costs are expected to be recovered in future customer rates, and regulatory
liabilities when current cost recoveries in customer rates relate to expected future costs.

DPL and its subsidiaries employed 1,266 people as of December 31, 2013, of which 1,218 employees were
employed by DP&L. Approximately 59% of all DPL employees are under a collective bargaining agreement
which expires on October 31, 2014.

Financial Statement Presentation

We prepare Consolidated Financial Statements for DPL. DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements include the
accounts of DPL and its wholly-owned subsidiaries except for DPL Capital Trust Il which is not consolidated,
consistent with the provisions of GAAP. DP&L’s undivided ownership interests in certain coal-fired generating
stations are included in the financial statements at amortized cost, which was adjusted to fair value at the Merger
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date. Operating revenues and expenses are included on a pro rata basis in the corresponding lines in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations. See Note 5 for more information.

Certain immaterial amounts from prior periods, including derivative assets and liabilities and restricted cash, have
been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

All material intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and
the revenues and expenses of the periods reported. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant
items subject to such estimates and judgments include: the carrying value of Property, plant and equipment;
unbilled revenues; the valuation of derivative instruments; the valuation of insurance and claims liabilities; the
valuation of allowances for receivables and deferred income taxes; regulatory assets and liabilities; reserves
recorded for income tax exposures; litigation; contingencies; the valuation of AROs; assets and liabilities related
to employee benefits; goodwill; and intangibles.

On November 28, 2011, AES completed the Merger with DPL. As a result of the Merger, DPL is an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of AES. DPL's basis of accounting incorporates the application of FASC 805,
"Business Combinations” (FASC 805) as of the Merger date. FASC 805 required the acquirer o recognize and
measure identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at fair value as of the Merger date. DPL’s
Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying footnotes have been segregated to present pre-merger
activity as the "Predecessor” Company and post-merger activity as the “Successor” Company. Purchase
accounting impacts, including goodwill recognition, have been “pushed down™ to DPL, resulting in the assets and
liabilities of DPL being recorded at their respective fair values as of November 28, 2011. See Note 2 for
additional information. AES finalized its purchase price allocation during the third quarter of 2012.

As g result of the push down accounting, DPL's Consolidated Statements of Operations subsequent to the
Merger include amortization expense relating to purchase accounting adjustments and depreciation of fixed
assets based upon their fair value. Therefore, the DPL financial data prior to the Merger will not generally be
comparable to its financial data subsequent to the Merger. See Note 2 for additional information.

DPL remeasured the carrying amount of all of its assets and liabilities to fair value, which resulted in the
recognition of approximately $2,576.3 million of goodwill, after adjustments. FASC 350, "Intangibles — Goodwill
and Other”, requires that goodwill be tested for impairment at the reporting unit level at least annually or more
frequently if impairment indicators are present. In evaluating the potential impairment of goodwill, we make
estimates and assumptions about revenue, operating cash flows, capital expenditures, growth rates and discount
rates based on our budgets and long term forecasts, macroeconomic projections, and current market
expectations of returns on similar assets. There are inherent uncertainties related to these factors and
management's judgment in applying these factors. Generally, the fair value of a reporting unit is determined
using a discounted cash flow valuation model. We could be required to evaluate the potential impairment of
goodwill cutside of the required annual assessment process if we experience situations, including but not limited
to: deterioration in general economic conditions; operating or regulatory environment; increased competitive
environment; increase in fuel costs particularly when we are unable to pass its effect to customers; negative or
declining cash flows; loss of a key contract or customer particularly when we are unable to replace it on equally
favorable terms; or adverse actions or assessments by a regulator. These types of evenis and the resulting
analyses could result in goodwill impairment expense, which could substantially affect our results of operations
for those periods. in the fourth quarter of 2013, we recorded an impairment of $306.3 against the goodwill at
DPL’s DP&L reporting unit. In the third quarter of 2012, we recorded an estimated impairment charge of
$1,850.0 million against the goodwill at DPL's DP&L reporting unit. This was adjusted to $1,817.2 million in the
fourth quarter of 2012. See Note 18 for information regarding the impairments of goodwill in 2013 and 2012,

As part of the purchase accounting, values were assigned to various intangible assets, including customer
relationships, customer contracts and the value of our electric security plan. See Note 6 for more information.

Revenue Recognition

Hevenues are recognized from retail and wholesale electricity sales and electricity transmission and distribution
delivery services. We consider revenue realized, or realizable, and earned when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, the products or services have been provided to the customer, the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. Energy sales to customers are based on the reading of their
meters that occurs on a systematic basis throughout the month. We recognize the revenues on our statements
of results of operations using an accrual method for retail and other energy sales that have not yet been billed,
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but where electricity has been consumed. This is termed “unbilled revenues” and is a widely recognized and
accepted practice for utilities. At the end of each month, unbilled revenues are determined by the estimation of
unbilled energy provided to customers since the date of the last meter reading, estimated line losses, the
assignment of unbilled energy provided to customer classes and the average rate per customer class.

All of the power produced at the generation stations is sold to an RTO and we in turn purchase it back from the
RTO to supply our customers. These power sales and purchases are reported on a net hourly basis as revenues
or purchased power on our Statements of Results of Operations. We record expenses when purchased
electricity is received and when expenses are incurred, with the exception of the ineffective portion of certain
power purchase contracts that are derivatives and qualify for hedge accounting. We also have certain derivative
contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting, and their unrealized gains or losses are recorded pricr to the
receipt of electricity.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts
We establish provisions for uncollectible accounts by using both historical average loss percentages fo project
future losses and by establishing specific provisions for known credit issues.

Sale of Receivables

In the first quarter of 2012, DPLER began selling receivables from DPLER customers in Duke Energy's territory
to Duke Energy. These sales are at face value for cash at the billed amounts for DPLER customers’ use of
energy. There is no recourse or any other continuing involvement associated with the sold receivables. Total
receivables sold to Duke Energy during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $20.7 million and
$15.7 million, respectively. In addition, MC Squared sells receivables from their customers in ComEd territory to
ComEd. Total receivables sold to ComEd during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $75.4
million and $27.7 million, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

We record our ownership share of our undivided interest in jointly-held stations as an asset in property, piant and
equipment. New property, plant and equipment additions are stated at cost. For regulated transmission and
distribution property, cost includes direct labor and material, allocable overhead expenses and an allowance for
funds used during construction (AFUDC). AFUDC represents the cost of borrowed funds and equity used to
finance regulated construction projects. For non-regulated property, cost also includes capitalized interest.
Capitalization of AFUDC and interest ceases at either project completion or at the date specified by regulators.
AFUDC and capitalized interest was $1.5 million, $4.0 million, $0.5 million and $3.9 million in the years ended
December 31, 2013, and 2012, the period from November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011, and the period
January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011, respectively.

For unregulated generation property, cost includes direct labor and matetial, allocable overhead expenses and
interest capitalized during construction using the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for capitalized
interest.

For substantially ail depreciable property, when a unit of property is retired, the original cost of that property less
any salvage value is charged to Accumulated depreciation and amortization.

Property is evaluated for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

Repairs and Maintenance

Costs associated with maintenance activities, primarily power station outages, are recognized at the time the
work is performed. These costs, which include labor, materials and supplies, and outside services required to
maintain equipment and facilities, are capitalized or expensed based on defined units of property.

Depreciation — Changes in Estimates

Depreciation expense is calculated using the straight-line method, which allocates the cost of property over its
estimated useful life. For DPL’s generation, transmission and distribution assets, straight-line depreciation is
applied monthly on an average composite basis using group rates.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company tested the recoverability of long-lived assets at certain generating
stations. See Note 19 for more information. Gradual decreases in power prices as well as lower estimates of
future capacity prices in conjunction with the DP&L reporting unit of DPL failing step 1 of the annual goodwill
impairment test were collectively determined to be an impairment indicator. The effect of this impairment will be
to reduce future depreciation related to these stations by approximately $1.6 miilion per year.
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For DPL’s generation, transmission, and distribution assets, straight-line depreciation is applied on an average
annual composite basis using group rates that approximated 5.8% in 2013, 4.8% in 2012 and 5.8% in 2011.

The following is a summary of DPL’s Property, plant and equipment with corresponding composite depreciation
rates at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

December 31,
Composite Composite
$ in millions 2013 Rate 2012 Rate

Regulated
Transrmiss!

ArSHiSsion
D_|str|butron

" 'Nron-d‘e;-)reciabie

otalregulated::

AROs

We recognize AROs in accordance with GAAP which requires legal obligations associated with the retirement of
long-lived assets to be recognized at their fair value at the time those cbligations are incurred. Upon initial
recognition of a legal liability, costs are capitalized as part of the related long-lived asset and depreciated avert the
useful life of the related asset. Our legal obligations associated with the retirement of our long-lived assets
cansists primarily of river intake and discharge structures, coal unloading facilities, loading docks, ice breakers
and ash disposal facilities. Our generation AROs are recorded within Other deferred cradits on the consolidated
balance sheets.

Estimating the amount and timing of future expenditures of this type requires significant judgment. Management
routinely updates these estimates as additional information becomes available.

Changes in the Liability for Generation AROs

$in mxlhons_

Balance a December 31 2012“

Calendar 2013 _
Acerstioniexpense:
Settlements
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Asset Removal Costs

We continue to record costs of removal for our regulated transmission and distribution assets through our
depreciation rates and recover those amounts in rates charged to our customers. There are no known legal
AROs associated with these assets. We have recorded $114.9 million and $112.1 million in estimated costs of
removal at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, as regulatory liabilities for our transmission and
distribution property. These amounts represent the excess of the cumulative removal costs recorded through
depreciation rates versus the cumulative removal costs actually incurred. See Note 4 for additional information.

Changes in the Liability for Transmission and Distribution Asset Hemoval Costs

$in milrliovnsr
BalaficeiatHack

Calendar 2012
Settlements 7
Alance AtDBGAMBeral. 201

Calem_:lar 2013
Addition
Settlements

RTINS AT

Balance atbacembers:

Regulatory Accounting

As a regulated utility, we apply the provisions of FASC 980 "Regulafed Operations,” which gives recognition to
the ratemaking and accounting practices of the PUCO and the FERC. Regulatory assets generally represent
incurred costs that have been deferred because such costs are probable of future recovery in customer

rates. Regulatory assets can also represent performance incentives permitted by the regulator, such as with our
CCEM energy efficiency program. Regulatory assets have been included as allowable costs for ratemaking
purposes, as authorized by the PUCO or established regulatory practices. Regulatory liabilities generally
represent obligations to make refunds or future rate reductions to customers for previous over collections or the
deferral of revenues collected for costs that DPL expects to incur in the future.

The deferral of costs (as regulatory assets) is appropriate only when the future recovery of such costs is
probable. In assessing probability, we consider such factors as specific orders from the PUCO or FERC,
regulatory precedent and the current regulatory environment. To the extent recovery of costs is no longer
deemed probable, related regulatory assets would be required to be expensed in current period earnings. Qur
regulatory assets and liabilities have been created pursuant to a specific order of the PUCO or FERC or
established regulatory practices, such as other utilities under the jurisdiction of the PUCO or FERC being granted
recovery of similar costs. It is probable, but not certain, that these regulatory assets will be recoverable, subject
to PUCO or FERC approval. Regulatory assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current based on
the term in which recovery is expected. See Note 4 for more information about Regulatory Assets and Liabilities.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at average cost and include coal, limestone, oil and gas used for electric generation, and
materials and supplies used for utility operations.

Intangibles

Intangibles include emission allowances, renewable energy credits, customer relationships, customer contracts
and the value of our ESP. Emission allowances are carried on a first-in, first-out {FIFO) basis for purchased
emission allowances. In addition, we recorded emission allowances at their fair value as of the Merger date. Net
gains or losses on the sale of excess emission allowances, representing the difference between the sales
proceeds and the cost of emission allowances, are recorded as a component of our fuel costs and are reflected
in Operating income when realized.

Customer relationships recognized as pant of the purchase accounting are amortized over nine to fifteen years
and customer contracts are amortized over the average length of the contracts. The ESP was amortized over
one year on a straight-line basis. Emission allowances are amortized as they are used in our operations on a
FIFO basis. Renewable energy credits are amortized as they are used or retired. See Note 6 for additional
information.
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Income Taxes

GAAP requires an asset and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting of income taxes with tax
effects of differences, based on currently enacted income tax rates, between the financial reporting and tax basis
of accounting reported as Deferred tax assets or liabilities in the balance sheets. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for deductible temporary differences. Valuation allowances are provided against deferred tax assets
unless it is more likely than not that the asset will be realized.

Investment tax credits, which have been used to reduce federal income taxes payable, are deferred for financial
reporting purposes and are amortized over the useful lives of the property to which they relate. For rate-
regulated operations, additional deferred income taxes and offsetiing regulatory assets or liabilities are recorded
to recognize that income taxes will be recoverable or refundable through future revenues.

DPL and its subsidiaries file U.S. federal income tax returns as part of the consolidated U.S. income tax return
filed by AES. Prior to the Merger, DPL and its subsidiaries filed a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return.
The consolidated tax liability is allocated to each subsidiary based on the separate return method which is
specified in our tax allocation agreement and which provides a consistent, systematic and rational approach.
See Note 8 for additional information.

Financial Instruments

We classify our investments in debt and equity financial instruments of publicly traded entities into different
categories: held-to-maturity and available-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value and
unrealized gains and losses on those securities, net of deferred income taxes, are presented as a separate
component of shareholders' equity. Other than temporary declines in value are recognized currently in earnings.
Financial instruments classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortized cost. The cost basis for public equity
security and fixed maturity investments is average cost and amortized cost, respectively.

Accounting for Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities

DP&L collects certain excise taxes levied by state or local governments from its customers. DP&L’s excise taxes
are accounted for an a net basis and recorded as a reduction in revenues in the accompanying Statements of
Results of Operations. These and certain other taxes are accounted for on a net basis and recorded as a
reduction in revenues., The amounts for the years ended December 31, 2013, and 2012, the period November
28, 2011 through December 31, 2011, and the period January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011, were $50.5
million, $50.5 million, $4.3 million and $49.4 million, respectively.

Share-Based Compensation

We measure the cost of employee services received and paid with equity instruments based on the fair vatue of
such equity instrument on the grant date. This cost is recognized in resuits of operations over the period that
employees are required to provide service. Liability awards are initially recorded based on the fair value of equity
instruments and are to be re-measured for the change in stock price at each subsequent reporting date until the
liability is ultimately settled. The fair value for employee share options and other similar instruments at the grant
date are estimated using option-pricing models and any excess tax benefits are recognized as an addition to
paid-in capital. The reduction in income taxes payable from the excess tax benefits is presented in the
Statements of Cash Flows within Cash flows from financing activities. See Note 12 for additional information. As
a result of the Merger, discussed in Note 2, vesting of all share-based awards was accelerated as of the Merger
date, and none are in existence at December 31, 2013 or 2012,

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. All highly liquid short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash
Restricted cash includes cash which is restricted as to withdrawal or usage. The nature of the restrictions include
restrictions imposed by agreements related to deposits held as collateral.

Financial Derivatives

All derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheets and are measured at fair value.
Changes in the fair value are recorded in earnings unless the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge of a
forecasted transaction or it qualifies for the normal purchases and sales exception.

We use forward contracts to reduce our exposure to changes in energy and commodity prices and as a hedge
against the risk of changes in cash flows associated with expected electricity purchases. These purchases are
used to hedge our full load requirements. We also hold forward sales contracts that hedge against the risk of
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changes in cash flows associated with power sales during periods of projected generation facility availability. We
use cash flow hedge accounting when the hedge or a portion of the hedge is deemed to be highly effective and
MTM accounting when the hedge or a portion of the hedge is not effective. We have elected not to offset net
derivative positions in the financial statements. Accordingly, we do not offset such derivative positions against
the fair value of amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral or the obligation to return cash
collateral under master netting agreements. See Note 11 for additional information.

Insurance and Claims Costs

In addition to insurance obtained from third-party providers, MVIC, a wholly-owned captive subsidiary of DPL,
provides insurance coverage to us, our subsidiaries and, in some cases, our partners in commonly-owned
facilities we operate, for workers' compensation, general liability, property damage, and directors’ and officers’
liability. DP&L is responsible for claim costs below certain coverage thresholds of MVIC for the insurance
coverage noted above. |n addition, DP&L has estimated liabilities for medical, life, and disability reserves for
claims costs below certain coverage thresholds of third-party providers. We record these additional insurance
and claims costs of approximately $18.8 million and $17.7 million at 2013 and 2012, respectively, within Other
current liabilities and Other deferred credits on the balance sheets. The estimated liabilities for workers’
compensation, medical, life and disability costs at DP&L are actuarially determined based using certain
assumptions. There is uncertainty associated with these loss estimates and actual results may differ from the
estimates. Modification of these loss estimates based on experience and changed circumstances is reflected in
the period in which the estimate is re-evaluated.

Related Party Transactions

Effective December 22, 2013, AES US Services, LLC (the "Service Company”) began providing services
including accounting, legal, human resources, informaticn technology and other services of a similar nature on
behaif of the AES U.S. Strategic Business Unit (“U.S. SBU"). The Service Company allocates the costs for
these services bhased on cost drivers designed to result in fair and equitable distribution. This includes ensuring
that the regulatory utilities served, including DP&L, are not subsidizing costs incurred for the benefit of non-
regulated businesses.

DPL Capital Trust Il

DPL has a wholly-owned business trust, DPL Capital Trust Il (the Trust), formed for the purpose of issuing trust
capital securities to third-party investors. Effective in 2003, DPL deconsolidated the Trust upon adopticn of the
accounting standards related to variable interest entities and currently treats the Trust as a nonconsolidated
subsidiary. The Trust holds mandatorily redeemabils trust capital securities. The investment in the Trust, which
amounts to $0.4 million and $0.5 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, is included in Other
deferred assets within Other noncurrent assets. DPL also has a note payable to the Trust amounting to $19.6
million at December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively, that was established upon the Trust's deconsolidation in
2003, See Note 7 for additional information.

In addition to the obligations under the note payable mentioned above, DPL also agreed to a security obligation
which represents a full and unconditional guarantee of payments to the capital security holders of the Trust.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11 "Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities” (ASU
2011-11) effective for interim and annuai reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. We adopted
ASU 2011-11 on January 1, 2013. This standard was clarified by ASU 2013-01 "Scope Clarification of
Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities”, which also was effective on January 1, 2013. This standard
updates FASC Topic 210 "Balance Sheet.” ASU 2011-11 updates the disclosures for financial instruments and
derivatives to provide more transparent information around the offsetting of assets and liabilities. Entities are
required to disclose both gross and net information about both instruments and transacticns eligible for offsst in
the statement of financial position and/or subject to an agreement similar to @ master netting agreement. In ASU
2013-01, the FASB clarified that the disclosures were not intended to include trade receivables and other
contracts for financial instruments that may be subject to a master netting arrangement. We adopted this rule,
which resulted in enhanced disclosures, but it did not have an effect on our overall results of operations, financial
position or cash flows.

Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairments

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-02 “Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment” (ASU
2012-02) effective for interim and annual impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September
15, 2012. We adopted ASU 2012-02 on January 1, 2013. This standard updates FASC Topic 350 “Intangibles-

94



Goodwill and Other.” ASU 2012-02 permits an entity first to assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is
more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired as a basis for determining whether it is
necessary to perform the quantitative impairment test in accordance with FASC Subtopic 350-30. We adopted
this rule but it did not have an effect on our overall results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Comprehensive income

The FASB recently issued ASU 2013-02 “Comprehensive Income {Topic 220). Reporting of Amounts
Reclassified out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income” effective for annual and interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2012. ASU 2013-02 does not change the current requirements for reporting net
income or OCI in financial statements. However, this ASU requires an entity to provide information about the
amounts reclassified out of AOCI by component. In addition, an entity is required to present, either on the face of
the statement where net income is presented or in the Notes, significant amounts reclassified out of AOCI by the
respective line items of net income, but only if the amount reclassified is required under GAAP to be reclassified
to net income in its entirety in the same reporting period. For other amounts that are not required under GAAP to
be reclassified in their entirety to net income, an entity is required to cross-reference to other disclosures required
under GAAP that provide additional detail about those amounts. We adopted this rule, which resulted in
enhanced disclosures, but it did not have an effect on our overall results of operations, financial position or cash
flows.

Note 2 — Business Combination

On November 28, 2011, AES completed its acquisition of DPL. AES paid cash consideration of approximately
$3,483.6 million. The allocation of the purchase price was based on the estimated fair value of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. In addition, Dolphin Subsidiary II, Inc. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES} issued
$1,250.0 million of debt, which, as a result of the Merger of DPL and Dolphin Subsidiary Il, Inc. was assumed by
DPL. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition were recorded at estimated amounts based
on the purchase price allocation. We finalized the allocation of the purchase price in the third quarter of 2012.

From November 28, 2011 through September 30, 2012, we recognized the following changes to our preliminary
purchase price allocation:

Decrease / (increase)
to preliminary goodwill

Change before
deferred Deferred
income tax income tax
$ in miflions effect effect

e Te TR

iy IERG A SOt

(a) related to refined information associated with certain contractual arrangements, growth and anciflary revenue assumptions.
(b} related to refined market and contractuat information.

{¢) related to a change in certain assumptions related to an out of market coal contract.

(d) related to an assessment of our overall deferred tax liabilities on regulated property, plant and equipment.

(2) related to the increase in deferred taxes discussed in {d) above.

(f) related to the final 2011 DPL Inc. standalone federal tax return.

95




These purchase price adjustments increased the provisionally recognized goodwil! by $87.0 million and have
been reffected retrospectively as of December 31, 2011 in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The effect on net income for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 of $8.7 million was recorded in
the second and third quarters. The effect on net income for the period November 28, 2011 through December
31, 2011 was not material.

Estimated preliminary and final fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the Merger date are as
follows:

Preliminary
Final purchase purchase price
$ in millions price allocation allocation

Ca3st <%
Restrlcted cash
=2 gt =

ﬂ_g:1uIatttz»i_fﬁ@ssetsE
Other non current assets

R_egﬁiatggy Ilabllltles
Otherr rentliabilities

Note 3 — Supplemental Financial Information

December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012
Accounts recelvable, net

' otal mventorles at average cost | 7 7 $ - 82.f $ - 110.1 7
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)

The amounts reclassified out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) by component during the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the periods November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011 and

January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011 are as follows:

Details about
Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Affected line item in the

Income / (Loss) Consolidated Statements of
Components Operations Successor Predecessor
November
Year Year 28, 2011 January 1,
ended ended through 2011 through
December December December { November
$ in millions 31,2013 31,2012 31, 2011 27,201

Gains and losses on Available for-sale securitiesractivity {Note 10):

T'amexpens.'é—,

Net of income taxes

Galns and !osses‘on cash_flow 4hedgesr ‘Note 11):

SeaPlirohasedipoy

Total before income taxes

A

S A e XS 2

Net of income taxes
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The changes in the components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) during the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

= R

42012

Gains / Gains / Change in
flosses) on (losses) on unfunded
available-for- cash flow pension
$ in millions sale securities hedges obligation Total

Balanca Januat.

Note 4 — Regulatory Matters

In accordance with FASC 980, we have recognized total regulatory assets of $180.5 million and $206.6 million as
of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and total regulatory liabilities of $121.1 million and $117.4 million as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012. Regulatory assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current based on
the term in which recovery is expected. See Note 1 for accounting policies regarding Regulatory Assets and
Liabilities.
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The following table presents DPL’s Regulatory assets and Habilities:

December 31,

Type of Amortization
$ in millions Recovery (@) Through 2013 2012
Regulatory assets, current:

&“y-h-;; i S

Eransmission:costs

FEneroviaHiciencyiproaram . =
Other miscellaneous

A P

Juile ato assets*icurrent

Pensron beneflts
Flinamortizediic

Total regulatory assets non-current $ 159.7 $ 185.-5

Regulatory Irabllltles, current

Total regulatory liabilities, non-current $ 1211 § 117.3

(a) B - Balance has an offsetting liability resulting in no effect on rate base.
C — Recovery of incurred costs without a rate of return.
D — Recovery not yet determined, but is probable of occurring in future rate proceedings.
F — Recovery of incurred costs plus rate of return.

Regulatory Assets

Transmission costs represent the costs related to transmission, ancillary service and other PJM-related charges
that have been incurred as a member of PJM. On an annual basis, retai! rates are adjusted to true-up costs with
recovery in rates.

Euel and purchased power recovery costs represent prudently incurred fuel, purchased power, derivative,
emission and other related costs which will be recovered from or returned to customers in the future through the
operation of the fuel and purchased power recovery rider. The fuel and purchased power recovery rider
fluctuates based on actual costs and recoveries and is modified at the start of each seasonal quanter. As part of
the PUCO approval process, an outside auditor reviews fuel costs and the fuel procurement process. An audit of
2012 fuel costs ocecurred in 2013. On June 12, 2013, and applicable for the calendar year 2012 period, we
received a report from that external auditor recommending a pre-tax disallowance of $5.3 million in charges to
the fuel and purchased power recovery rider in 2012; a portion of which was recorded as a reserve against the
regulatory asset. A hearing in this case was held on December 9, 2013, and we expect an order in the case in
the second quarter of 2014.
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Deferred recoverable income taxes represent deferred income tax assets recognized from the normalization of
flow-through items as the result of tax benefits previously provided to customers. This is the cumulative flow-
through benefit given fo regulated customers that will be coliected from them in future years. Since currently
existing temporary differences between the financial statements and the related tax basis of assets will reverse in
subsequent periods, these deferred recoverable income taxes will decrease over time.

Pension benefits represent the qualifying FASC 715 “"Compensation — Retirement Benefits” costs of our reguiated
operations that for ratemaking purposes are deferred for future recovery. We recognize an asset for a plan's
overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status, and recognize, as a component of Other
Comprehensive Income {OCI), the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not
recognized as a component of net perfodic benefit cost. This regulatory asset represents the regulated portion
that would ctherwise be charged as a loss to OCL

Unamortized loss on reacquired debt represents losses on long-term debt reacquired or redeemed in prior
periods. These costs are being amortized over the lives of the original issues in accordance with FERC and
PUCO rules.

Regional transmissicn organization costs represent costs incurred to join an RTO. The recovery of these costs
will be requested in a future FERC rate case. In accordance with FERC precedence, we are amortizing these
costs over a 10-year period that began in 2004 when we joined the PJM RTO. Due to the short-term nature of
the remaining amortization period, the balance was reclassified to current regulatory assets in 2013 and is
included in Other misceflaneous in the table above.

Deferred storm costs relate to costs incurred to repair the damage caused to DP&L’s transmission and
distribution equipment by major storms in 2008, 2011 and 2012. DP&L filed an application with the PUCO in
2012 to recover these costs. There has been disagreement among DP&L, the PUCO staff and other intervenors
in the case as to what portion of these storm costs should be recoverable. We continue to believe the costs we
have deferred are probable for recovery based on established regulatory practices in the state of Ohio. A hearing
is scheduled for this matter in March 2014. The outcome of this case is uncertain at this time.

CCEM smart grid and AMI| costs represent costs incurred as a result of studying and developing distribution
system upgrades and implementation of AMI. On Octcber 19, 2010, DP&L elected to withdraw its case
pertaining to the Smart Grid and AMI programs. The PUCO accepted the withdrawal in an order issued on
January 5, 2011. The PUCO also indicated that it expects DP&L to continue to monitor other utilities’ Smart Grid
and AM! programs and to explore the potential benefits of investing in Smart Grid and AMI programs and that
DP&L will, when appropriate, file new Smart Grid and/or AMI business cases in the future. We plan to file to
recover these deferred costs in a future regulatory rate proceeding. Based on past PUCQ precedent, we believe
these costs are probable of future recovery in rates.

Energy efficiency program costs represent costs incurred to develop and implement various customer programs
addressing energy efficiency. These costs are being recovered through an Energy Efficiency Rider (EER) that
began July 1, 2009 and that is subject to an annual true-up for any overfunder recovery of costs.

Consumer education campaign represents costs for consumer education advertising regarding electric
deregulation. DP&L will be seeking recovery of these costs as part of our next distribution rate case filing at the
PUCQ. The timing of such a filing has not yet been determined.

Retail settlement system costs represent costs to impiement a retail settlement system that reconciles the energy
a CRES supplier delivers to its customers with what its customers actually use. Based on case precedent in
other utilities’ cases, the costs are recoverable through a future DP&L rate proceeding.

Other costs primarily include RPM capacity, other PJM and rate case costs and alternative energy costs that are
or will be recovered over various periods.

Regulatory Liabilities

Fuel and purchased power recovery costs Please see “Regulatory Assets — Fuel and purchased power recovery
costs" above.
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Estimated costs of removal — regulated property reflect an estimate of amounts collected in customer rates for
costs that are expected to be incurred in the future to remove existing transmission and distribution propenty from
service when the property is retired.

Postretirement benefits represent the qualifying FASC 715 “Compensation ~ Retirement Benefits” gains related
to our regulated operations that, for ratemaking purposes, are probable of being reflected in future rates. We
recognize an asset for a plan’s overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status, and recognize, as
a component of QCl, the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not
recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost. This regulatory liability represents the regulated portion
that would otherwise be reflected as a gain to OCI.

Note 5 — Ownership of Coal-fired Facilities

DP&L. and certain other Ohio utilities have undivided ownership interests in seven coal-fired electric generating
facilities and numerous transmission facilities. Certain expenses, primarily fuel costs for the generating units, are
allocated to the owners based on their energy usage. The remaining expenses, investments in fuel inventory,
plant materials and operating supplies, and capital additions are allocated to the owners in accordance with their
respective ownership interests. As of December 31, 2013, DP&L had $24.0 million of construction work in
process at such facilities. DP&L’s share of the operating cost of such facilities is included within the
corresponding line in the Statements of Results of Operations, and DP&L’s share of the investment in the
facilities is included within Total net property, plant and equipment in the Balance Sheets. Each joint owner
provides their own financing for their share of the operations and capital expenditures of the jointly-owned station.

DP&L’s undivided ownership interest in such facilities, as well as the coal portion of our wholly-owned coal fired
Hutchings Station at December 31, 2013, is as follows:

DP&L Investment

DP&L Share {adjusted to fair value as of Merger date)
SCR and
FGD
Gross Construction Eguipment
Summer Plant  Accumulated Workin Instalied
Production in Service Depreciation Process and in
Ownership Capacity ($in ($in ($in Service
(%) {MW) millions) millions) millions) {Yes/No)

Currently, our coal-fired generation units at Hutchings and Beckjord do not have the SCR and FGD emission-
control equipment installed. DP&L owns 100% of the Hutchings Station and has a 50% interest in Beckjord Unit
6. OnJuly 15, 2011, Duke Energy, a co-owner at the Beckjord Unit 6 facility, filed their Long-term Forecast
Report with the PUCO. The plan indicated that Duke Energy plans to cease production at the Beckjord Station,
including our commonly-owned Unit 6, in December 2014. This was followed by a notification by the joint owners
of Beckjord Unit 6 to PJM, dated April 12, 2012, of a planned June 1, 2015 deactivation of this unit. Beckjord Unit
6 was valued at zero at the Merger date.
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As part of a settlement with the USEPA regarding Hutchings Station, DP&L signed an Administrative Consent
Order and a Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) that was filed on September 26, 2013. Together, these
two agreements resolved the opacity and particulate emissions NOV at the Hutchings Station and required that
alt six coal-fired units at Hutchings cease operating on coal by September 30, 2013, and included an immaterial
penalty and the completion of a Supplemental Environmental Project of $0.2 million within one year. The units
were disabled for coal operations prior to September 30, 2013. We do not believe that any additiona! accruals
are needed related to the Hutchings Station. A related agreement in the form of Administrative Findings and
Order, also involving an immaterial penalty, was executed October 4, 2013, with Ohio’s Regional Air Pollution
Control Agency, which resolves a separate but related NOV relating to a failed stack test in 2006. These
agreements do not affect Hutchings unit 7, a small combustion turbine.

Note 6 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the value assigned at the Merger date, as adjusted for subsequent changes in the purchase
price allocation, less recognized impairments. In the fourth quarter of 2013, DPL recognized an impairment of
goodwill in the amount of $306.3 million. In the third quarter of 2012, DPL recognized an estimated impairment
of geodwill of $1,850.0 million; the valuation of the goodwill impairment was finalized and adjusted to $1,817.2
million in the fourth quarter of 2012. See Note 18 for more information about these impairments.

The following table summarizes the changes in Goodwill:

DP&L DPLER
$ in millions Reporting Unit Reporting Unit Total

Balance at December 31, 2011

rment losses
DECember3120"

eﬁtsrdurmg:ZO‘Er )

Baiance at December 31 2012

,-

RBaimentsIaUnnGg-201:3:

Balance:at December 31, 2013
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The following tables summarize the balances cornprising intangible assets as of December 31, 2013:

$ in millions December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Gross Accumulated Net Gross  Accumulated Net
Balance Amortization Balance Balance Amortization Balance

Sub'ect to Amortlzatlon

FGustomerReIatonehip

5%

Tdte{i .niang.bles' - $ 733 (305)$ 428 § 1582 $  (108.1)$ 5041

During 2012, $1.1 million of intangibles related to the MC Squared Trademark/Trade name was reclassified from
Subject to Amortization to Not subject to Amortization.

{a) Represents the value of DP&L's Electric Security Plan which is a rate plan for the supply and pricing of electric generation
services. It provides a level of price stability to consumers of electricity compared to market-based electricity prices.

(b} Represents above market contracts that DPLER has with third party customers existing as of the Merger date.

{c) Represents relationships DPLER has with third party customers as of the Merger date, where DPLER has regular contact with the
customer, and the customer has the ability to make direct contact with DPLER.

{d) Consists of various intangible assets including renewable energy credits, emission allowances, and other intangibles, none of
which are individually significant.

(e) Trademark/Trade name represents the value assigned to the trade names of DPLER and MC Squared.

The following table summarizes, by category, intangible assets acquired during the period ended December 31,
2013:

Weighted
Average
Subiject to Amortization
Amortization/ Period Amortization
$ in millions Amount Indefinite-lived (years) Method

The following table summarizes the amortization expense, broken down by intangible asset category for 2014
through 2018;

Estimated amortization expense
Years ending December 31,
$ in millions 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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| Note 7— Debt Obiigations

Long-term debt
$ in millions December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

s

3 G"L‘if»’f«gw —%

Pollutlon controi series due in January 2028 - 4.7% 36.0

Totai Iong-term debt $ 22842 $ 2,025.0

{a) - range of interest rates for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively

Current portion - long-term debt
$ in millions December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Total current por’non long-term debt $ 102 % 584.9

{a) - range of interest rates for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively
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The presentation above for the Successor is based on the revaluation of the debt at the Merger date. At
December 31, 2013, maturities of long-term debt, including capital lease obligations, are summarized as follows:

Due within the twelve months ending December 31,
$(i.r) millions

o0}

SUCIVR LRI 5
eafter

Thler

|3 Tet
Unamortized discounts and premiums, net
Totallong:teim;debts:

Premiums or discounts recognized at the Merger date are amortized over the life of the debt using the effective
interest method.

On December 4, 2008, the QAQDA issued $100.0 million of collateralized, variable rate Revenue Refunding
Bonds Series A and B due November 1, 2040. In turn, DP&L borrowed these funds from the OAQDA and issued
corresponding first mortgage bonds to support repayment of the funds. The payment of principal and interest on
each series of the bonds when due is backed by a standby letter of credit issued by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
This letter of credit facility, which expires in December 2013, is irrevocable and has no subjective acceleration
clauses. DP&L amended these standby letters of credit on May 31, 2013 and extended the stated maturities to
June 2018. These amended facilities are irrevocable, have no subjective acceleration clauses and remain
subject to terms and conditions that are substantially similar to those of the pre-existing facilities. Fees
asscciated with this letter of credit facility were not material during the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012, the period November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011 and the period January 1, 2011 through
November 27, 2011.

On April 20, 2010, DP&L entered into a $200.0 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated
bank group. This agreement was for a three year term expiring on April 20, 2013, was extended through May 31,
2013 pursuant to an amendment dated April 11, 2013 and provided DP&L with the ability to increase the size of
the facility by an additional $50.0 million. DP&L had no outstanding borrowings under this credit facility at
December 31, 2012 or at the termination of the agreement in May 2013. Fees associated with this revolving
credit facility were not material during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the period November 28,
2011 through December 31, 2011, the period January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011, This facility also
contained a $50.0 million letter of credit sublimit. DP&L had no outstanding letters of credit against the facility at
December 31, 2012 or at the termination of the agreement in May 2013.

On August 24, 2011, DP&L entered into a $200.0 million unsecured revelving credit agreement with a syndicated
bank group. This agreement, originally for a three year term expiring on April 20, 2013, was extended through
May 31, 2013 pursuant to an amendment dated April 11, 2013 and provided DP&L with the ability to increase the
size of the facility by an additional $50.0 million. DP&L had no outstanding borrowings under this credit facility at
December 31, 2012 or at the termination of the agreement in May 2013. Fees associated with this revolving
credit facility were not material during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 or the five months ended
December 31, 2011. This facility also contained a $50.0 million letter of credit subfimit. DP&L had no
outstanding letters of credit against the facility at December 31, 2012 or at the termination of the agreement in
May 2013.

On May 10, 2013, DP&L terminated both of the unsecured revolving credit agreements mentioned above and
concurrently closed a new $300.0 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated bank group.
This new $300.0 million facility has a five year term expiring on May 10, 2018, a $100.0 million letter of credit
sublimit and a feature which provides DP&L the ability to increase the size of the facility by an additional $100.0
million. The other terms and conditions of this new revolving credit facility are substantially similar to those of the
pre-existing DP&L revolving credit facilities. DP&L had no outstanding borrowings under this facility at
December 31, 2013. At December 31, 2013, there was a letter of credit in the amount of $0.4 million
outstanding, with the remaining $299.6 million available to DP&L. Fees associated with this revoiving credit
facility were not material during the twelve months ended December 31, 2013.
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DP&L’s prior unsecured revolving credit agreements and DP&L’s standby letters of credit had one financial
covenant which measured Total Debt to Total Capitalization. The Total Debt to Total Capitalization ratio is
calculated, at the end of each fiscal quarter, by dividing total debt at the end of the quarter by total capitalization
at the end of the quarter. DP&L’s new unsecured revolving credit agreement and DP&L’s amended standby
letters of credit maintain the Total Debt to Total Capitalization financial covenant and add the EBITDA to Interest
Expense ratio as a second financial covenant. The EBITDA to interest Expense ratio is cafculated, at the end of
each fiscal quarter, by dividing EBITDA for the four prior fiscal quarters by the consolidated interest charges for
the same period.

On March 1, 2011, DP&L completed the purchase of $18.7 million of electric transmission and distribution assets
from the federal government that are located at the Wright-Patterson Air Force Base (WPAFB). DP&L financed
the acquisition of these assets with a note payable to the federal government that is payable monthly over 50
years and bears inferest at 4.2% per annum.

On September 19, 2013, DP&L closed a $445.0 million issuance of senior secured first mortgage bonds. These
new bonds mature on September 15, 2016, and are secured by DP&L’s First & Refunding Mortgage.
Substantially all property, plant and equipment of DP&L is subject to the lien of the First and Refunding
Mortgage. On October 1, 2013, DP&L used the net proceeds of these new bonds, along with cash on hand, to
redeem, at par value, the $470.0 million of first mortgage bonds that matured on October 1, 2013.

On August 24, 2011, DPL entered into a $125.0 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated
bank group. This agreement was for a three year term expiring on August 24, 2014. The size of the facility was
reduced from $125.0 million to $75.0 million as part of an amendment dated October 19, 2012 that was
negotiated between DPL and the syndicated bank group. DPL had no outstanding borrowings under this credit
facility at December 31, 2013 or at the termination of the agreement in May 2013. Fees associated with this
revolving credit facility were not material during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. This facility also
could have been used to issue letters of credit up to the $75.0 million limit. DPL had no outstanding letters of
credit against the facility at December 31, 2012 or at the termination of the agreement in May 2013.

On August 24, 2011, DPL entered into a $425.0 million unsecured term loan agreement with a syndicated bank
group. This agreement was for a three year term expiring on August 24, 2014. Concurrent with the inception of
the new term loan discussed below, this term loan was terminated on May 10, 2013. DPL had borrowed the
entire $425.0 million available under the facility at December 31, 2013. Fees associated with this term loan were
not materiai during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

On May 10, 2013, DPL entered into a new $200.0 million unsecured term loan agreement. This new term loan
has a five year term expiring on May 10, 2018; however, if DPL has not either: (a} prepaid the full $200.0 million
term loan balance; or (b) refinanced its senior unsecured bonds due October 2016 before July 15, 2016, then the
maturity of this new DPL term loan shall be July 15, 2016. This term loan amortizes at 5% of the original balance
per quarter from September 2014 to maturity. The other terms and conditions of this new revolving credit faciiity
are substantially similar to those of the pre-existing DPL term loan. Fees associated with this new term loan
were not material during the year ended December 31, 2013.

On May 10, 2013, DPL entered into a new $100.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility and concurrently
terminated the existing $75.0 million facility. This new $100.0 million facility has a $100.0 million letter of credit
sublimit and a feature which provides DPL the ability to increase the size of the facility by an additional $50.0
million. This new facility has a five year term expiring on May 10, 2018; however, if DPL has not refinanced its
senior unsecured bonds due October 2016 before July 15, 2016, then the maturity of this new DPL credit facility
shall be July 15, 2016. The other terms and conditions of this new revolving credit facility are substantially similar
to those of the pre-existing DPL revolving credit facility. DPL had no outstanding letters of credit under this credit
facility at December 31, 2013. Fees associated with this revolving credit facility were not material during the year
ended December 31, 2013.

Concurrent with the inception of the new revolving credit facility and term loan, DPL terminated the $425.0 million
term loan agreement, and used $175.0 million of cash on hand, $50.0 million from the new DPL. credit facility and
$200.0 million from a one-time draw on the new term loan, to prepay the outstanding $425.0 million term loan
halance. The $50.0 million draw on the DPL revolving credit facility was repaid on July 10, 2013 and DPL
prepaid $10 million of the outstanding balance on this new term loan in December 2013 reducing the outstanding
balance as of December 31, 2013 to $190.0 million.

DPL’s prior unsecured revolving credit agreement and unsecured term loan had and DPL’s new unsecured
revolving credit agreement and unsecured term loan have, two financial covenants. The first financial covenant,
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a Total Debt to EBITDA ratio, is calculated at the end of each fiscal quarter by dividing total debt at the end of the
current quarter by consolidated EBITDA for the four prior fiscal quarters. The second financial covenant is an
EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio that is calculated, at the end of each fiscal quarter, by dividing EBITDA for the
four prior fiscal quarters by the consolidated interest charges for the same period.

DPL’s prior and new (executed on May 10, 2013), unsecured revolving credit agreement and unsecured term
loan restrict dividend payments from DPL to AES and adjust the cost of borrowing under the facilities under
certain credit rating scenarios.

In connection with the closing of the Merger, discussed in Note 2, DPL assumed $1,250.0 million of debt that
Dolphin Subsidiary I, Inc., a subsidiary of AES, issued on October 3, 2011 to pantially finance the Merger. The
$1,250.0 million was issued in two tranches. The first tranche was $450.0 million of five year senior unsecured
notes issued with a 6.50% coupon maturing on October 15, 2016. The second tranche was $800.0 million of ten
year senior unsecured notes issued with a 7.25% coupon maturing on October 15, 2021.  In December 2013,
DPL executed an Open Market Repurchase Program and successfully bought back $20 million of the first
tranche of five year senior unsecured notes issued with a 6.50% coupon and $20 million ¢f the second tranche of
ten year senior unsecured notes issued with a 7.25% coupen. DPL paid a $1.9 million and a $0.5 million
premium, respectively, to repurchase these bonds. Subsequent to repurchasing these bonds DPL immediately
retired them.
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Note 8 — [ncome Taxes

DPL’s components of income tax expense were as follows:

Successor Predecessor

November 28, January 1,
Year ended Yearended 2011 through |2011 through
December 31, December 31, December 31, |November 27,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011 2011

Computat:on of tax expense
Fadats *:lhcemeé_ X;

Increases (decreases) in tax resulting from:
[ Stateincoms taxessnat-of fedetalisfieet
Depreciation of AFUDC - Equity
[ Avestmentaax-croai amonize {0; : ( .3)
Section 199 - domestic production deduction {4.1) (2.1) - (3.6)
“Nonsdeductible:mergercosts £6.0

Total tax expense $ 223 $ . 47.7 $ 06 '$ 102.0

Components of tax ex en:
CESieraleunante

State and Local - current
VA TotaL Currant:
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Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities (Successor)
Years ended December 31,

2013 2012

$ in millions
Net non-current Assets / (Liabilities)

-Depreciation/iptopeny:basi
Income taxes recoverable

rllnvest'ment tax credit
intangiblés:

(a) The statutory tax rate of 35% was applied to pre-tax earnings.
() Includes expense of $0.0 million, $1.2 million and benefits of $0.0 million and $2.3 million in the years ended December 31, 2013

and 2012, the period November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011 and the period January 1, 2011 through Novernber 27,

2011, respectively, of income tax related to adjustments from prior years.
{c) The Other non-current liabilities caption includes deferred tax assets of $20.7 million in 2013 and $20.4 million in 2012 related to
state and local tax net operating loss carryforwards, net of related valuation allowances of $16.6 miflion in 2013 and $16.2 million

in 2012, These net operating loss carryforwards expire from 2014 to 2027.
(d) Amounts are included within Other prepayments and current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets of DPL.

The following table presents the tax expense / {benefit) related to pensions, postemployment benefits, cash flow
hedges and financial instruments that were credited to Accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Successor Predecessor

November 28, January 1,
Year ended Yearended 2011 through |2011 through
December 31, December 31, December 31, |November 27,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011 2011

Tax expense / {benefit) $ 154 § (2.5) % (1.2) B (33.2)
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Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
We apply the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. A reconciliation of
the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

$ in millions
Jalantelatiannany

Janua;y 1 '_2011 thrOL_L h November 27, 2011 (Predecessor) A

Settlement with taxlnc
BalarceatNove

emberfi"'-"f’»-'? ;

November 28, 2011 through December 31 2011 (Succ ssor)
Balancé b*NGVer’ﬁﬁ'éF:QB,‘%’-f 3
Tax posmons taken during eurrent perlod _ 04

BalafAce atDacembar.315:2011: «

Balance at December 31, 2013 - 7 $ o 8.8

None of the unrecognized tax benefits are expected to significantly increase or decrease within the next twelve
months other than those subject to expiring statutes of limitations.

We recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. The following
table represents the amounts accrued as well as the expense / (benefit) recorded as of and for the periods noted
below:

Amounts in Balance Shest Successor
December December
$ in millions 31, 2013 31, 2012
Liability $ 02 3% 0.8
Amounts in Statement of Operations Successor Predecessor
Novermnber
28, 2011

Year ended Yearended through
December December December |January 1, 2011 through
$ in millions 31, 2013 31,2012 31, 2011 November 27, 2011

Expense / {benefit) $ {0.6)% {0.1) $ -5 0.6

Following is & summary of the tax years open to examination by major tax jurisdiction:
U.S. Federal — 2010 and forward
State and Local — 2010 and forward

Nene of the unrecognized tax benefits are expected to significantly increase or decrease within the next twelve
months other than those subject to expiring statutes of limitations.

The Internal Revenue Service began an examination of our 2008 Federal income tax return during the second
quarter of 2010. The results of the examination were approved by the Joint Committee on Taxation on January
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18, 2013. As a result of the examination, DPL received a refund of $19.9 million and recorded a $1.2 miliion
reduction o income tax expense.

Note 9 — Pension and Postretirement Benefits

DP&L sponsors a traditional defined benefit pension plan for most of the employees of DPL and its subsidiaries.
For collective bargaining employees, the defined benefits are based on a specific dollar amount per year of
service. For all other employees {(management employees), the traditional defined benefit pension plan is based
primarily on compensation and years of service. As of December 31, 2010, this traditional pension plan was
closed to new management employees. A participant is 100% vested in all amounts credited to his or her
account upon the completion of five vesting years, as defined in The Dayton Power and Light Company
Retirement Income Plan, or the participant’s death or disability. If a participant's employment is terminated, other
than by death or disability, prior to such participant becoming 100% vested in his or her account, the account
shall be forfeited as of the date of termination. Effective December 22, 2013, certain employees of DP&L
became employees of the Service Company of the US SBU. Employees that transferred from DP&L to the
Service Company maintain their previous eligibility to participate in the DP&L pensicn plan.

Almost all management employees beginning employment on or after January 1, 2011 participate in a cash
balance pension plan. Similar to the traditional pension plan for management employees, the cash balance
benefits are based on compensation and years of service. A participant shall become 100% vested in all
amounts credited to his or her account upon the completion of three vesting years, as defined in The Dayton
Power and Light Company Retirement Income Plan, or the participant’'s death or disability. If a participant’s
employment is terminated, other than by death or disability, prior to such participant becoming 100% vested in his
or her acceunt, the account shall be forfeited as of the date of termination. Vested benefits in the cash balance
plan are fully portable upon termination of employment.

In addition, we have a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) for certain retired key executives. The
SERP was replaced by the DPL Inc. Supplemental Executive Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (SEDCRP)
effective January 1, 2008, which is for certain active and former key executives. Pursuant to the SEDCRP, we
provided a supplemental retirement benefit to participants by crediting an account established for each participant
in accordance with the Plan requirements. We designated as hypothetical investment funds under the SEDCRP
one or more of the investment funds provided under The Dayton Power and Light Company Employee Savings
Plan. Each participant could change his or her hypothetical investment fund selection at specified times. If a
participant did not elect a hypothetical investment fundi(s), then we selected the hypothetical investment fund(s)
for such participant. Per the SEDCRP plan document, the balances in the SEDCRP, including earnings on
contributions, were paid out to participants in December 2011, following the merger with AES on November 28,
2011. However, the SEDCRP continued and 2012 and 2011 contributions were calculated and paid in March
2013 and 2012, respectively. The SEDCRP was terminated by the Board of Directors as of December 31, 2012,
We also have an immaterial unfunded liability related to agreements for retirement benefits of certain terminated
and retired key executives.

We generally fund pension plan benefits as accrued in accordance with the minimum funding requirements of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and, in addition, make voluntary contributions from
time to time. There were no contributions during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 during the
pericd November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011. DP&L made a discretionary contribution of $40.0 million
to the defined benefit plan during the period January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011.

Quialified employees who retired prior o 1887 and their dependents are eligibie for health care and life insurance
benefits until their death, while qualified employees who retired after 1987 are eligible for life insurance benefits
and partially subsidized health care. The partially subsidized heaith care is at the election of the employee, who
pays the majority of the cost, and is available only from their retirement until they are covered by Medicare. We
have funded a portion of the union-eligible benefits using a Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association Trust.

We recognize an asset for a plan’s overfunded status and a liability for a plan’s underfunded status and
recognize, as a component of OCI, the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that
are not recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost. For the transmission and distribution areas of
our electric business, these amounts are recorded as regulatery assets and liabilities which represent the
regulated portion that would otherwise be charged or credited to AOCE We have historically recorded these
costs on the accrual basis and this is how these costs have been historically recovered through customer rates.
This factor, combined with the historical precedents from the PUCO and FERC, make these costs probable of
future rate recovery.
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The following tables set forth the changes in our pension and postemployment benefit plans’ obligations and
assets recorded on the balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. The amounts presented in the
following tables for pension include the collective bargaining plan formula, traditional management plan formula
and cash balance plan formula and the SERP in the aggregate. The amounts presented for postemployment
include both health and life insurance benefits.

$ in millions Pension

Year ended Year ended
December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Chan_ge in benefit obligation

Plan amendments - -
Actianalieain):L i (26 29:1°
Benefits paid

Bénefitobligationatand-ot-period:

ange m plan assets

$ in millions Postretirement

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
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$ in millions Pension Postretirement
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Amounts recognized in the Balance sheets
Ciitrentliabiliies
Non-current liahilities

Netliability akYearendea Becemberai

Amounts recoghnized in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income, Regulatory Assets
and Regulatory Liabilities, pre-tax

Com onents

H_eccrded as:
Bequlatonyiasset s
Ilablhty

Accumulated Other Comprehenswe Income
Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liabilities,
pre-tax 3 71.8 $ 90.2 % (5.5) $ {4.0)

The accumulated benefit obligation for our defined benefit pension plans was $359.8 million and $382.5 million at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The net pericdic benefit cost (income) of the pension and postemployment benefit plans were:

Net Periodic Benefit Cost - Pension Successor Predecessor

November 28, January 1,
Year ended Yearended 2011 through | 2011 through
December 31, December 31, December 31, |November 27,
$in millions 7 2013 2012 _ 2011 2011
erv:c*é?dc*o‘st% TRy G iy '
[nterest cost
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Net Periodic Benefit Cost / (Income) -

Postretirement Successor Predecessor
November 28, January 1,

Year ended Yearended 2011 through | 2011 through

December 31, December 31, December 31, |November 27,

${n millions ‘ _2013 2012 2011 _ 2011 7

(a) For purposes of calculating the expected return on pension plan assets under GAAP, the market-related value of assets (MRVA)
is ugsed. GAAP requires that the difference between actual pian asset returns and estimated plan asset returns be amortized into
the MRVA equally over a period not to exceed five years. We use a methodology under which we include the difference between
actual and estimated asset returns in the MRVA equally over a three year period. The MRVA used in the calculation of expected
return on pension pfan assets was approximately $359.8 million in 2013, $346.0 million in 2012, and $335.0 million in 2011.

Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligation Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income, Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liahilities

Pension Successor Predecessor

November 28, January 1,
Year ended Yearended 2011 through |2011 through
December 31, December 31, December 31, {November 27,

$ in millions 2011 2011

Pnor service credlt - - - (2.2

Reversal of am_ortlzatron |tem

ENetactuavallosss i QYT (5 07 £ (7.6
Pnor serwce cost (1.5) {1.5) (0.1) (2.0)
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Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligation Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income, Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liabilities (cont.)

Postretirement Successor Predecessor

November 28, | January 1,
Year ended Year ended 2011 through | 2011 through
December 31, December 31, December 31, |Novembar 27,
$ in mllllons 2013 2012 2011 ! 2011

Prior sérvuce cost/ (cred|t) - -
Reversaliofiamortization;ite
Net actuarlal gam

Estimated amounts that will be amortized from AOCI, Regulatory assets and Regulatery liabilities into net
periodic benefit costs during 2014 are:

$ in millions Pension Postret:rement
o i oy o 7 -
etackia : -

riakgain /eSS : : =t ‘ -
Prior service cost $ 15 % -

Our expected return on plan asset assumptions, used to determine benefit obligations, are based on historical
long-term rates of return on investments, which use the widely accepted capital market principle that assets with
higher volatility generate a greater return over the long run. Current market factors, such as inflation and interest
rates, as well as asset diversification and portfolio rebalancing, are evaluated when long-term capital market
assumptions are determined. Peer data and histotical returns are reviewed to verify reasonableness and
appropriateness.

For 2014, we have decreased our expected long-term rate of return assumption from 7.00% to 6.75% for pension
plan assets and we have maintained our expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption of 6.00% for
postemployment benefit plan assets. These rates of return represent cur long-term assumptions based on our
current portfolic mixes. Alse, for 2014, we have increased our assumed discount rate to 4.86% from 4.04% for
pension and to 4.58% from 3.75% for postemployment benefits expense to reflect current duration-based yield
curve discount rates. A one percent change in the rate of return assumption for pension would result in an
increase or decrease to the 2014 pension expense of approximately $3.4 million. A 25 basis point change in the
discount rate for pension would result in an increase or decrease of approximately $0.3 million to 2014 pension
expense.

Cur overall discount rate was evaluated in relation to the Aon Hewitt AA Above Median Yield Curve which
reprasents a portfolio of above median AA-rated bonds used to setlle pension obligations. Peer data and
historical returns were also reviewed to verify the reasonableness and appropriateness of our discount rate used
in the calculation of benefit obligations and expense.
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The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
were:

Benefit Obligation Assumptions Pension Postretirement
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

DisGountratesorabligations 86%: 04% 4:88% :58%: 3175%: .62%:

Rate of compensation increases 3.94% 3.94% 3.84% N/A N/A N/A

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost (income) for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

Net Periodic Benefit
Cost/ (Income)} Assumptions Pension Postretirement

2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
A B R BT L 058 2% A% -
4.88% 4.62%

Discount rate - Predecessor
Expectet ?‘%gf%» et
oniplain-dssets:Siicees
Expected rate of return
on plan assets - Predecessor
%

6.00%

The assumed health care cost trend rates at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Health Care Cost Assumptions Expense Benefit Obligation
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

Pre - age 65
e

T
GLUFent:

Year trend reaches ultimate -
Predecessor 2019 2019

Current health care cost trend rate 7.50% 8.00% 8.00% 6.75% 7.50% 8.00%

Year trend reaches ultimate -
Predecessor 2018 2018

The assumed health care cost trend rates have an effect on the amounts reported for the health care pians. A
one-percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects on the net
periodic postemployment benefit cost and the accumulated postemployment bensfit obligation:

Effect of change in health care cost trend rate

One-percent One-percent

increase decrease
A R R 7
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Benefit payments, which reflect future service, are expected to be paid as follows:

Estimated future benefit payments and Medicare Part D reimbursements

$ in millions due within the following years: Pension 7 Postretiremenp

2019 - 2023 $ 1265 $ 6.4

We expect to make contributions of $0.4 miillion to our SERP in 2014 to cover benefit payments. We also expect
to contribute $1.9 miltion to our other postemployment benefit plans in 2014 to cover benefit payments.

The Pension Protection Act of 2006 {the Act) contained new requirements for our single employer defined benefit
pension plan. [n addition to establishing a 100% funding target for plan years beginning after December 31,
2008, the Act also limits some benefits if the funded status of pension plans drops below certain thresholds.
Among other restrictions under the Act, if the funded status of a plan falls below a predetermined ratio of 80%,
lump-sum payments to new retirees are limited to 50% of amounts that ctherwise would have been paid and new
benefit improvements may not go into effect. For the 2013 plan year, the funded status of our defined benefit
pension plan as calculated under the requirements of the Act was 113.96% and is estimated to be 113.96% until
the 2014 status is certified in September 2014 for the 2014 plan year. The Worker, Retiree, and Employer
Recovery Act of 2008 (WRERA), which was signed into law on December 23, 2008, grants plan sponsors certain
relief from funding requirements and benefit restrictions of the Act.

Plan Assets

Plan assets are invested using a total return investment approach whereby a mix of equity securities, debt
securities and other investments are used to preserve asset values, diversify risk and achieve our target
investment return benchmark. Investment strategies and asset allocations are based on careful consideration of
plan liabilities, the plan's funded status and our financial condition. Investment performance and asset allocation
are measured and menitored on an ongoing basis.

Plan assets are managed in a balanced portfolio comprised of two major components: an equity portion and a
fixed income portion. The expected role of plan equity investments is to maximize the long-term real growth of
plan assets, while the role of fixed income investments is to generate current income, provide for more stable
periodic returns and provide some protection against a prolonged decline in the market value of plan equity
investments.

Long-term strategic asset allocation guidelines are determined by management and take into account the Plan’s
long-term objectives as well as its short-term constraints. The target allocations for plan assets are 30 — 80% for
equity securities, 30 — 65% for fixed income securities, 0 — 10% for cash, and 0 — 25% for alternative
investments. Equity securities inciude U.S. and international equity, while fixed income securities include long-
duration and high-yield bond funds and emerging market debt funds. Other types of investments include hedge
funds that follow several different strategies.
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The fair values of our pension plan assets at December 31, 2013 by asset category are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Plan Assets at December 31, 2013

Quoted
prices
in active
Market Value markets for Significant Significant

Asset Category at December identical observable unobservable
$ in millions 31, 2013 assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)

Equity :ecurities_'{“’

SiallMid:Eab:
,I_.g’[ge cap equity
lnti‘a’rﬁé\‘tlbnfél Uity

Sifzdynanmicieaui 0 :
Total equity securities 65.3 65.3 - -

Debt securities ! ) N

T ey

oniplaniagse

{a) This category includes investments in equity securities of large, small and medium sized companies and equity securities of
foreign companies including those in developing countries. The funds are valued using the net asset value method in which an
average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the fund.

{b} This category includes investments in investment-grade fixed-income instruments that are designed to mirvor the term of the
pension assets and generally have a tenor between 10 and 30 years. The funds are valued using the net asset value method in
which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the fund.

(c) This category comprises cash held to pay beneficiaries. The fair value of cash equals its book value.

{d} This category represents a hedge fund of funds made up of 30+ different hedge fund managers diversified over eight different
hedge strategies. The fair value of the hedge fund is valued using the net asset value method in which an average of the market
prices for the underlying investments is used to value the fund.
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The fair values of our pension plan assets at December 31, 2012 by asset category are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Pian Assets at December 31, 2012

Quoted prices

in active
Market Value  markets for Significant Significant
Asset Category at December identical cbservable  unobservabie
$ in millions 31, 2012 assets inputs inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Leve! 3)

Eguity securitles @)

Total eqwty securities 101.8 101 8 - -

Debt securities ©
ey S Erd o

=merg “gﬂna;rketsfdebt
ngh |elqkb_c‘>nd

Total debt securities

Cash and cash e uwalents _(c)

Comnjqn coIIectlve fuﬁd - 37.(}”. - | 37.0

(&) This category includes investments in equity securities of large, small and medium sized companies and equity securities of
foreign companies including those in developing countries. The funds are valued using the net asset value methed in which an
average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the funds.

(b} This category includes investments in investment-grade fixed-income instruments, U.S. dollar-denominated debt securities of
emerging market issuers and high yield fixed-income securities that are rated below investment grade. The funds are valued using
the net asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the fund.

(¢) This category comprises cash held to pay beneficiaries. The fair value of cash equals its book value.

(d) This category represents & hedge fund of funds made up of 30+ different hedge fund managers diversified over eight different

hedge strategies. The fair value of the hedge fund is valued using the net asset value method in which an average of the market
prices for the underlying investments is used fo value the fund.
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The fair values of our other postemployment benefit plan assets at December 31, 2013 by asset category are as
follows:

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Plan Assets at December 31, 2013

Quoted
prices
in active
Market Value markets for Significant Significant
Asset Category at December identical observable unobservable
$ in millions 31,2013 asseis inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
JP Morgan Core Bond Fund © $ 37 $ 37 $ - $ -

{a) This category includes investments in U.S. government obligations and mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. The funds
are valued using the net asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to
value the fund.

The fair values of our other postemployment benefit plan assets at December 31, 2012 by asset category are as
follows:

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Plan Assets at December 31, 2012

Quoted prices

in active
Market Value markets for Significant Significant
Asset Category at December identical observable uncbservable
% in millions 31, 2012 assets inputs inputs
{Leve! 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
JP Morgan Core Bond Fund $ 42 $ 42 % - % -

(@) This category includes investments in U.S. government obligations and mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. The funds
are valued using the net asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to
value the fund.

This disclosure reflects changes in the 2012 presentation for $4.2 million of debt mutual funds that were
previously presented as Level 2 fair value measurements which have been reclassified as Level 1 fair value
measurements. This change in presentation does not impact the fair value of the securities or the financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2012,

Note 10 — Fair Value Measurements

The fair values of cur financial instruments are based on published sources for pricing when possible. We rely on
valuation models only when no other method is available to us. The fair value of our financial instruments
represents estimates of possible value that may or may not be realized in the future. The table below presents
the fair value and cost of our non-derivative instruments at December 31, 2013 and 2012. See Note 11 for the
fair values of our derivative instruments.

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
$ in millions Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Total assets $ 103 $ 15 $ 91 $ 106

Llablllt|es
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Debt

The carrying value of DPL’s debt was adjusted to fair value at the Merger date. The fair value of the debt at
December 31, 2013 did not change substantially from the value at the Merger date. Unrealized gains or losses
are not recognized in the financial statements as debt is presented at the carrying value established at the
Merger date, net of unamortized premium or discount in the financial statements. The debt amounts include the
current portion payable in the next twelve months and have maturities that range from 2016 to 2061.

Master Trust Assets

DP&L established a Master Trust to hold assets that could be used for the benefit of employees participating in
employee henefit plans. These assets are primarily comprised of open-ended mutual funds which are valued
using the net asset value per unit. These investments are recorded at fair value within Other deferred assets on
the balance sheets and classified as available for sale. Any unrealized gains or losses are recorded in AOCI until
the securities are sold.

DPL had $0.9 million ($0.6 million after tax) in unrealized gains and immaterial unrealized losses on the Master
Trust assets in AOCI at December 31, 2013 and $0.7 million ($0.5 million after tax) in unrealized gains and
immaterial unrealized losses in AOCI at December 31, 2012.

Various investments were sold during the past twelve months 1o facilitate the distribution of benefits. During the
past twelve months, $2.1 million ($1.4 million after tax} of unrealized gains were reversed into eamnings. Over the
next twelve months, $0.1 million ($0.1 million after tax) of unrealized gains are expected to be reversed to
earnings.

Net Asset Value (NAV) per Unit

The following table discloses the fair value and redemption frequency for those assets whose fair value is
estimated using the NAV per unit as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. These assets are part of the Master Trust.
Fair values estimated using the NAV per unit are considered Level 2 inputs within the fair value hierarchy, unless
they cannot be redeemed at the NAV per unit on the reporting date. Investments that have restrictions on the
redemption of the investments are Level 3 inputs. As of December 31, 2013, DPL did not have any investments
for sale at a price different from the NAV per unit.

Fair Value Estimated Using Net Asset Value per Unit

Fair Value at
December 31, Unfunded Redemption
C rmt ents Frequency

$ in mllllons_

ket

Equiysocur

D“*btiSeeLgit@‘_-;

Hedge Funds @

RCAEstates e
Total

(a) This category includes investments in high-quality, short-tenm securiies. Investments in this category can be redeemed
immediately at the current NAV.

(b) This category includes investments in hedge funds representing an S&P 500 Index and the Morgan Stanley Capital International
U.8. Small Cap 1750 Index. Investments in this category can be redeemed immediately at the current NAV per unit.

(c) This category includes investments in U.S. Treasury obligations and U.S. investment grade bonds. Investments in this category
can be redesmed immediately at the current NAV per unit.

(d) This category includes hedge funds investing in fixed income securities and currencies, short and long-term equity investments,
and a diversified fund with investments in bonds, stocks, real estate and commodities.

{e) This category includes EFT real estate funds that invest in U.S. and International properties.
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Fair Value Estimated Using Net Asset Value per Unit

Fair Value at
December 31, Unfunded Redemption
$ in millions 2012 Commitments Frequency

‘Iiimadiate; " :
Immediate
Immediate
- Immediate

Multl strategy fund @

(a) This category includes investments in high-quality, short-term securities. Investments in this category can be redeemed
immediately at the current net asset value per unit.

{b) This category includes investments in hedge funds representing an S&P 500 index and the Morgan Stanley Capital International
{MSCI) U.S. Small Cap 1750 Index. Investments in this category can be redeemed immediately at the current net asset value per
unit.

(c) This category includes investments in U.S. Treasury obligations and U.S. investment grade bonds. Investments in this category
can be redeemed immediately at the current net asset value per unit.

{(d) This category inciudes a mix of actively managed funds holding investments In stocks, bonds and short-term investments in a mix
of actively managed funds. Investments in this category can be redeemed Immediately at the current net asset value per unit.

Fair Value Hierarchy
Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an
exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants on the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy requires an entity to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of uncbservable inputs when measuring fair value. These inputs are
then categorized as:

s |evel 1 {quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities);

* Levei 2 (observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities or quoted prices in
markeis that are not active);

» Level 3 (unobservable inputs).

Valuations of assets and liabilities reflect the value of the instrument including the values associated with
counterparty risk. We include our own credit risk and our counterparty's credit risk in our calculation of fair value
using global average default rates based on an annual study conducted by a large rating agency.

We did not have any transfers of the fair values of our financial instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy during the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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The fair value of assets and liabilities at December 31, 2013 measured on a recurring basis and the raspective
category within the fair value hierarchy for DPL was determined as follows:

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Based on
Quoted
Prices
Fair Value at in Other
December 31, Active observable Unobservable
$ in millions 2013 (a) Markets inputs inputs

Assets
Master trust assets

Total Master trust assets 15 0.3 11.2 N

Derivative assels

a“rd;‘pow“érce‘ﬁtré‘c - LSt g s TR ; e
Total derivative assets 13.8 0.2 13.4 0.2

Liabilities
Derlvatwe'_llabllltles

(@) Includes credit vaiuation adjustment.

123



The falr value of assets and liabilities at December 31, 2012 measured on a recurring basis and the respective
category within the fair value hierarchy for DPL was determined as follows:

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Based on
Fair Value at Quoted Prices Other
December 31, in observable Unobservable
$ in millions 2012 (a) Active Markets inputs inputs

Assets
Master trust assetss

ofﬂ?MasiﬁEus;’t?é%?é‘

Der:vatlve assets

Liabilities
VDerlvatlve llabll't es B _

lnt_erest ra'ge_ hed es

FE T oRWardpoMeriConiractes:
Total derivative liabilities

(a) Includes credit valuation adjustment.

Our financial instruments are valued using the market approach in the following categories:
* Level 1 inputs are used for derivative contracts such as heating oil futures and for money market
accounts that are considered cash equivalents. The fair value is determined by reference to quoted
market prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions.

s Level 2 inputs are used to value derivatives such as forward power contracts and forward NYMEX-quality
coal contracts (which are traded on the OTC market but which are valued using ptices on the NYMEX for
similar contracts on the OTC market). Other Level 2 assets include: open-ended mutual funds that are
in the Master Trust, which are valued using the end of day NAV per unit; and interest rate hedges, which
use observable inputs to populate a pricing model.

* Level 3 inputs such as financial transmission rights are considered a Level 3 input because the monthly
auctions are considered inactive. Our Level 3 inputs are immaterial to our derivative balances as a whole
and as such no further disclosures are presented.

Our debt is fair valued for disclosure purposes only and most of the fair values are determined using quoted
market prices in inactive markets. These fair value inputs are considered Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. Our
long-term leases and the WPAFB note are not publicly traded. Fair value is assumed to equal carrying value.
These fair value inputs are considered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as there are no observable inputs.
Additional Level 3 disclosures were not presented since debt is not recorded at fair value.

Approximately 95% of the inputs to the fair value of our derivative instruments are from quoted market prices.
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Non-recurring Fair Value Measurements

We use the cost approach to determine the fair value of our AROs which are estimated by discounting expected
cash outflows to their present value at the initial recording of the liability. Cash outflows are based on the
approximate future disposal cost as determined by market information, historical information or other
management estimates. These inputs to the fair value of the AROs would be considered Level 3 inputs under
the fair value hierarchy. An ARO liability in the amount of $0.1 million was established in 2012 associated with a
gypsum landfill disposal site that is presently under construction. This increase in 2012 was offset by a $0.1
million reduction in ARO for asbestos as a result of an acceleration of removal and remediation activities. There
were no additions to eur AROs during the year ended December 31, 2013.

When evaluating impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets, we measure fair value using the applicable fair
value measurement guidance. Impairment expense is measured by comparing the fair value at the evaluation
date to the carrying amount. The following table summarizes major categories of assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis during the period and their level within the fair value hierarchy:

$ in millions Year ended December 31, 2013
Carrying Fair Value Gross
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Loss
Assets

Ijqng:livgd assets held and used
DP&LHCOnEsVillg):

Gogdwgll @
-DPR& 3
$ in millions Year ended December 31, 2012
Carrying Fair Value Gross
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Loss
Assets

Goodwnl )
£ 4 bx 3 e gl -

(@) See Note 18 for further information
(b) See Note 18 for further information

The following table summarizes the significant unobservable inputs used in the Level 3 measurement of long-
lived assets during the year ended December 31, 2013:

Fair Range (Weighted
$ in millions Value  Valuation Technique Unobservable input Average)
Long-llvedassets held and used:

Cash Equivalents

DPL had $0.0 millian and $130.0 million in money market funds classified as cash and cash equivalents in its
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The money market funds have
quoted prices that are generally equivalent to par.

Note 11— Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

In the normal course of business, DPL enters into various financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments. We use derivatives principally to manage the risk of changes in market prices for commodities and
interest rate risk associated with our long-term debt. The derivatives that we use to economically hedge these
risks are governed by our risk management policies for forward and futures contracts. Qur net positions are
continually assessed within our structured hedging pregrams to determine whether new or offsetting transactions
are required. The objective of the hedging program is to mitigate financial risks while ensuring that we have
adequate resources to meet our requirements. We monitor and value derivative positions monthly as part of our
risk management processes. We use published sources for pricing, when possible, to mark positions to market.
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All of our derivative instruments are used for risk management purposes and are designated as cash flow hedges
or marked to market each reporting period.

At December 31, 2013, DPL had the following outstanding derivative instruments:

Net
Purchases/
Accounting Purchases Sales {Sales)

_ Commodity Treatment Unit {in thousands) _(in thousands) (in thousands)
T & , ; s "
Heating Oil Futures Mark to Market Gallons 1,428.0 - 1,428.0

Forward:PoWeriGi -Hedge:; ! 140 £
Forward Power Contracts Mark to Market MWh 3,177.8 (2,883.1) 294.7

At Decernber 31, 2012, DPL had the following outstanding derivative instruments:

Net
Purchases/

Accounting Purchases Sales {Sales)
Treatment i (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands)

Mark to Market Gallons

%

o Market . (4,760.4}

Cash Flow Hedges

As part of our risk management processes, we identify the relationships between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
The fair values of cash flow hedges determined by current public market prices will continue to fluctuate with
changes in market prices up to contract expiration. The effective portion of the hedging transaction is recognized
in AOCI and transferred to earnings using specific identification of each contract when the forecasted hedged
transaction takes place or when the forecasted hedged transaction is probabile of not occurring. The ineffective
portion of the cash flow hedge is recognized in earnings in the current period. All risk components were taken
into account to determine the hedge effectiveness of the cash flow hedges.

We enter into forward power contracts to manage commodity price risk exposure related to our generation of
electricity and our sale of retail power to third parties through our subsidiary DPLER. We do not hedge all
commodity price risk. We reclassify gains and losses on forward power contracts from AQCI into earnings in
those periods in which the contracts settle.

We also entered into interest rate derivative contracts to manage interest rate exposure related to anticipated
borrowings of fixed-rate debt. These interest rate derivative contracts were seitfed in the third quarter of 2013.
We do not hedge all interest rate exposure. We reclassify gains and losses on interest rate derivative hedges out
of AOCI and into earnings in those periods in which hedged interest payments occur.
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The following table provides information for DPL concerning gains or losses recognized in AQCI for the cash flow
hedges:

Successor Predecessor
Year ended November 28, 2011 | January 1, 2011
December 31, Year ended through December |through November
2013 December 31, 2012 31, 2011 27, 2011
Interest Interest Interest Interest
Rate Rate Rate Rate

Power Hedges rPowefr Hedges 7 Power' Hed es

Net gains / (losses)
associated with the
ineffective portion of the
hedging transaction
HintereskExpenses

(a) Approximately $38.9 million of unrealized losses previously deferred into AOCI wers removed as a result of purchase accounting.
See Note 2 for further details of the purchase price alfocation.

(b} The actual amounts that we reclassify from AOCI to earnings related to power can differ from the estimate above due to market
price changes.

Mark to Market Accounting

Certain derivative contracts are entered into on a regular basis as part of our risk management program but do
not qualify for hedge accounting or the normal purchases and sales exceptions under FASC 815. Accordingly,
such contracts are recorded at fair value with changes in the fair value charged or credited to the consolidated
statements of resuits of operations in the period in which the change occurred. This is commonly referred to as
“MTM accounting.” Contracts we enter into as part of our risk management program may be settled financiaily,
by physical delivery or net settled with the counterparty. We mark to market FTRs, heating oil futures and certain
forward power contracts.

Certain qualitying derivative instruments have been designated as normal purchases or normal sales contracts,
as provided under GAAP. Derivative contracts that have been designated as normal purchases or normal sales
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under GAAP are not subject to MTM accounting treatment and are recognized in the consolidated statements of
results of operations on an accrual basis.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

In accordance with regulatory accounting under GAAP, a cost that is probable of recovery in future rates should
be deferred as a regulatory asset and a gain that is probabie of being retumed to customers should be deferred
as a regulatory liability. Portions of the derivative contracts that are marked to market each reporting period and
are related to the retail portion of DP&L’s load requirements are included as part of the fuel and purchased
power recovery rider approved by the PUCO which began January 1, 2010. Therefore, the Ohio retail customers’
portion of the heating oil futures are deferred as a regulatory asset or liability until the contracts settle. If these
unrealized gains and losses are no longer deemed to be probable of recovery through our rates, they will be
reclassified into earnings in the period such determination is made.

The following tables show the amount and classification within the consolidated statements of results of
operations or balance sheets of the gains and losses on DPL’s derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the period November 28, 2011 through
December 31, 2011, and the period January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011.

Successor
Year ended December 31, 2013
NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating Qil FTRs Power Total
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

L ‘h‘"'r,awz- B - T

ngezinidl

Regulatory asset - - - - -

Recorded in Inco e St
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Year ended December 31, 2012

NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating Oil FTRs Power Total
Derlvatlves not demgnated as hedgln instruments

Regulatory (asset) / liability 1.0 - (0.6) - - 0.4

Recorded in Income Statement: gain / (loss)

November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011

NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating Oil FTRs Power Total

Derwat:ves not desugnated as hedging mstruments

‘Regulatoryasset o (01) (0.1) ‘ S - (0.2)

Recorded in Income Statement gain / (loss)
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Predecessor
January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011

NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating Oil FTRs Power Total

Derlvatwes not designated as hedging mstruments
FChanoginamrealized gain/(10ss) )
Reahzed gain / {loss)

Recorded on Balance Sheet:
RS Y

Partners~share@f loss:

Regulatory {(asset} / liability

ent:
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The following tables show the fair value and balance sheet classification of DPL’s derivative instruments at
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments
December 31, 2013

Gross Amounts Not
Offset in the
Consolidated Balance

Sheets
Gross Fair

Value as Financial

presented in Instruments
the with Same

Consolidated Counterparty

Hedging Balance in Offsetting Cash Net
$ in millions Designation _Sheets (a) Position Collateral Amount

Assets
Shor‘t-term derlvatlve posmons (presented i Oth r current assets)

Heatmg oil futures

Long-term derivative posmons (presented in Other deferred assets)

 Forwardipower-contracts ashiElow o

Forward power contracts MTM
"m B3

Total assets $

Liabilities
Short-term derwatwe osnt'ons

( : (233): :
(4.2) (2.3) 0.1

Forward power contracts

Long-term denvat:ve posmons (presented in Other deferred Ilabllltles)

(a) Includes credit valuation adjustment.
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As of December 31, 2013, the above table includes Forward power contracts in a short-term asset position of
$5.4 million and a long-term asset position of $8.0 million. This table does not include a short-term asset position
of $0.9 million or a long-term asset position of $0.1 million of Forward power contracts that had been, but no
longer need to be, accounted for as derivatives at fair value that are to be amortized to earnings over the
remaining term of the associated forward contract.

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments
December 31, 2012

Gross Amounts Not Offset
in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets

Gross Fair
Value as Financial
presented in  Instruments
the with Same

Consolidated Counterparty
Hedging Balance in Oftsetting Cash

§ in millions Designation  Sheets (a) Position Collateral  Net Amount
Assets
Short-term derivative positions (presented in Other current assels)
- Fomart poWer-contras 3

Forward power contracts
Hoatingiol fatres

Long-term derivative ’_[_;_)osmons {presented in Other deferred assets)

- FORWATd POWST CONTacts: ~Gash Flowes
Forward power contracts MTM

Forward power contracts MTM 4.1 (1.5) (2.0) 0.6

Longiterm Vdenrvatlve positions {presented in Other deferred liabilities)
Forward powercontractss sHEK >
Forward power contracts MTM 0.8

(a} Includes credit valuation adjustment.

As of December 31, 2012, this table includes Forward power contracts in a shornt-term asset position of $2.7
million and a long-term asset position of $3.6 million. This table does not include a short-term asset position of
$7.2 million or a long-term asset position of $1.0 million of Forward power contracts that had been, but no longer
need to be, accounted for as derivatives at fair value that are to be amortized to earnings over the remaining term
of the associated forward contract.

Certain of our OTC commodity derivative contracts are under master netting agreements that contain provisions
that require our debt to maintain an investment grade credit rating from credit rating agencies. Since our debt
has fallen below investment grade, we are in violation of these provisions, and the counterparties to the derivative
instruments could request immediate payment or demand immediate and ongoing full overnight collateralization
of the MTM loss. Since our debt has fallen below investment grade, some of our counterparties to the derivative
instruments have requested collateralization of the MTM loss.
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The aggregate fair value of DPL's derivative instruments that are in a MTM loss position at December 31, 2013 is
$10.6 million. This amount is offset by $5.6 million of collateral posted directly with third parties and in a broker
margin account which offsets our loss positions on the forward contracts. This Kability position is further offset by
the asset position of counterparties with master netting agreements of $4.7 million. Since our debt is below
investment grade, we could have to pest collateral for the remaining $0.3 million.

Note 12— Share-based Compensation

In April 2006, DPL’s shareholders approved The DPL Inc. Equity and Performance Incentive Plan (the EPIP)
which became immediately effective for a term of ten years. The Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors designated the employees and directors eligible to participate in the EPIP and the times and types of
awards to be granted. A total of 4,500,000 shares of DPL common stock had been reserved for issuance under
the EPIP.

As a result of the Merger, discussed in Note 2, vesting of all share-based awards was accelerated as of the
Merger date. The remaining compensation expense of $5.5 million ($3.6 million after tax) was expensed as of
the Merger date.

The following table summarizes share-based compensation expense (note that there is no share-based
compensation activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Predecessor

January 1, 2011
through November
$ in mm[ons 27, 2011
2 TR “:ﬂs—j_; T

Management erformance shares
‘zﬂ,\. R TR RS ’w—w R

oiripensation: Included ,Jni.

Share-based awards issued in DPL’s common stock were distributed from treasury stock prior to the Merger; as
of the Merger date, remaining share-based awards were distributed in cash in accordance with the Merger
agreement.

Determining Fair Value

Valuation and Amortization Method — We estimated the fair value of performance shares using a Monte Carlo
simulation; restricted shares were valued at the closing market price on the day of grant and the Directors’ RSUs
were valued at the closing market price on the day prior to the grant date. We amoriized the fair value of all
awards on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods, which were generally the vesting periods.

Expected Volatifity — Our expected volatility assumptions were based on the historical volatility of DPL common
stock. The volatility range captured the high and low volatility values for each award granted based on its specific
terms.

Expected Life — The expected life assumption represented the estimated period of time from the grant date until
the exercise date and reflected historical employee exercise patterns.

Risk-Free Interest Rate — The risk-free interest rate for the expected term of the award was based on the
corresponding yield curve in effect at the time of the valuation for U.S. Treasury bonds having the same term as
the expected life of the award, i.e., a five-year bond rate was used for valuing an award with a five year expected
life.

Expected Dividend Yield - The expected dividend vield was based on DPL’s current dividend rate, adjusted as
necessary to capture anticipated dividend changes and the 12 month average DPL common stock price.

Expected Forfeitures — The forfeiture rate used to calculate compensation expense was based on DPL’s
historical experience, adjusted as necessary to reflect special circumstances.
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Stock Options

In 2000, DPL’s Board of Directors adopted and DPL’s shareholders approved The DPL Inc. Stock Option Plan.
With the approval of the EPIP in April 2006, no hew awards were granted under The DPL Inc. Stock Option Plan.
Prior to the Merger, all outstanding stock options had been exercised or had expired.

Summarized stock option activity was as follows {note that there is no stock option activity after November 27,
2011 as a result of the Merger):

Predecessor

January 1, 2011
through November
27, 2011

Optlons

Weighted a?% EEEIOH prlc?fJ%er share:
Ofiperiod

‘Outstahdingiatbeginn

The following table reflects information about stock option activity during the period (note that there is no stock
option activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Predecessor

January 1, 2011
through November

$in miIIions

n exgense

OO RO aE6ONIZE coMpEnsalonEXponsa N ears

Performance Shares

Under the EPIP, the Board of Directors adopted a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) under which DPL granted a
targeted number of performance shares of common stock to executives. Grants under the LTIP were awarded
based on a Total Shareholder Return Relative to Peers performance. The Total Shareholder Return Relative to
Peers is considered a market condition in accordance with the accounting guidance for share-based
compensation.

At the Merger date, vesting for all non-vested LTIP performance shares was accelerated on a pro rata basis and
such shares were cashed out at the $30.00 per share merger consideration price in accordance with the Merger
agreement.
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Summarized performance share activity was as follows (note that there is no performance share activity after
November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Predecessor

January 1, 2011
through November
27, 2011

Granted

o DividendsE:
7 Exercrsed

The following table reflects information about performance share activity during the period (note that there is nc
performance share activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Predecessor

January 1, 2011
through November
27, 2011

Intrmsm value of performance shares exermsed durlng the penod 3 6.0
B i i . LB ey ,.,1_,‘, 55 ,a),!"‘_ AT, ZCITI Y oy g S T N o
o fr rf'é‘nn ceshares:exercised:c

A

{Derformanceshares thatvestedidunnathe perioais
‘ com ensa’uor! expense o
E -ée AGeIDetON e e oaN Ze compansalionieXpanat

The following table shows the assumptions used in the Monte Carlo simulation to calculate the fair value of the
performance shares granted during the period:

Predecessor

January 1, 2011
through November
27,2011

Rlsk free mterest rate ' 1.

Restricted Shares

Under the EPIP, the Board of Directors granted shares of DPL Restricted Shares to various executives and other
key employees. These Restricted Shares were registered in the recipient’'s name, carried full voting privileges,
received dividends as declared and paid on all DPL common stock and vested after a specified service period.

In July 2008, the Board of Directors granted Restricted Share awards under the EPIP to a select group of
management employees. The management Restricted Share awards had a three-year requisite service period,
carried fuil voting privileges and received dividends as declared and paid on all DPL common stock.

On September 17, 2009, the Board of Directors approved a two-part equity compensation award under the EPIP
for certain of DPL’s executive officers. The first part was a Restricted Share grant and the second part was a
matching Restricted Share grant. These Restricted Share grants generally vested after five years if the
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participant remained continuously employed with DPL. or a DPL subsidiary and if the year-over-year average
EPS had increased by at least 1% from 2009 to 2013, Under the matching Restricted Share grant, participants
had a three-year period from the date of plan implementation during which they could purchase DPL common
stock equal in value to up to two times their 2009 base salary. DPL matched the shares purchased with ancther
grant of Restricted Shares (matching Restricted Share grant). The percentage match by DPL is detailed in the
table below. The matching Restricted Share grant would have generally vested over a three-year period if the
participant continued to hold the originally purchased shares and remained continuously employed with DPL or a
DPL subsidiary. The Restricted Shares were registered in the recipient's name, carried full voting privileges and
received dividends as declared and paid on all BPL common stock.

The matching criteria were:

Company %
Match of
Value (Cost Basis) of Shared Purchased Value of Shares

‘a.‘V of 2009 qu Sal Ty ‘I?urchgsed
N .~ . 50/ £ —-. r 1’__:

>25% to 509
50%::: 00%

>100% to 200% 125%

The matching percentage was applied on a cumulative basis and the resulting Restricted Share grant was
adjusted at the end of each calendar quarter. As a result of the Merger, the matching Restricted Share grants
were suspended in March 2011.

In February 2011, the Board of Directors granted a targeted number of time-vested Restricted Shares to
executives under the LTIP. These Restricted Shares did not carry voting privileges nor did they receive dividend
rights during the vesting period. In addition, a one-year holding period was implemented after the three-year
vesting period was completed.

Restricted Shares could only be awarded in DPL common stock.

At the Merger date, vesting for all non-vested Restricted Shares was accelerated and all outstanding shares were
cashed out at the $30.00 per share merger consideration price in accordance with the Merger agreement.

Summarized Restricted Share activity was as follows (note that there is no Restricted Share activity after
November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Predecessor

January 1, 2011
through November
27, 2011

Granted 67,346
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The following table reflects information about Restricted Share activity during the period (note that there is no
Restricted Share activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Predecessor

January 1, 2011
through November
$ in millions 27, 2011

Intrinsic value of restncted shares exerc1sed duﬁng the perlod $ 8.6

Trans Su

Rrodegdsifromire sf;;lct”edashares*exerclsedadurmq;ltheﬁpene e
Excess tax benefit from proceeds of restricted shares exercised $

Faif valis ofrestricied ehareahativestedduring the:perio
Unrecogmzed compensatlon expense $ -
Wéightediaverage: period 1. r6cognize; compensation:expense (incyears

Non-Employee Director RSUs

Under the EPIP, as part of their annual compensation for service to DPL and DP&L, each hon-employee Director
received a retainer in RSUs on the date of the shareholders’ annual meeting. The RSUs became non-forfeitable
on April 15 of the following year. The RSUs accrued quarterly dividends in the form of additional RSUs. Upon
vesting, the RSUs became exercisable and were distributed in DPL common stock, unless the Director chose to
defer receipt of the shares until a later date. The RSUs were valued at the closing stock price on the day prior to
the grant and the compensation expense was recognized evenly over the vesting period.

At the Merger date, vesting for the remaining non-vested RSUs was accelerated and all vested RSUs (current
and prior years) were cashed out at the $30.00 per share merger consideration price in accordance with the
Merger agreement.

The following table reflects information about RSU activity (note that there is no non-employee Director RSU
activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Predecessor

January 1, 2011
through November
27, 2011

Restncted stock umts
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The following table reflects information about non-employee Director RSU activity during the period (note that
there is no non-employee Director RSU activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Predecessor

January 1, 2011
through November
$ in millions 27,2011

Pro eedséfre‘iﬁ‘?rfeﬁ’“e‘mploy eiDire $ix L
Excess tax benefit from proceeds of non- employee Dlrector RSUS exermsed $ -
Ealtvahiaof nonemployes: Dirset o
Unrecognlzed compensahon e>93ense

Management Performance Shares

Under the EPIP, the Board of Directors granted compensation awards for select management employees. The
grants had a three year requisite service period and certain performance conditions during the performance
pericd. The management performance shares couid only be awarded in DPL common stock.

At the Merger date, vesting for all non-vested management performance shares was accelerated; some of the
awards vested at target shares and other awards vested at a pro rata share of target. All vested shares were
cashed out at the $30.00 per share merger consideration price in accordance with the Merger agreement.

Summarized management performance share activity was as follows (note that there is no management
performance share activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Predecessor

January 1, 2011
through November
27, 2011

Management performance shares:
dingatbegibningtof-period

31.081)
(111 289)

Outstandlng at end of period T

The following table shows the assumptions used in the Monte Carlo simulation to calculate the fair value of the
management performance shares granted during the period:

Predecessor

January 1, 2011
through November

Risk- free mterest rate
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The following table reflects information about management performance share activity during the period (note
that there is no management performance share activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Predecessor

January 1, 2011
through November
$|n millions __ _ 27, 2011

the period
TTReE ehpeno

S oLman a“%m“e‘n t:performance sharesthatvested'during the:period
Unrecognlzed com ensat[on ex ense

Note 13— Redeemable Preferred Stock

DP&L has $100 par value preferred stock, 4,000,000 shares authorized, of which 228,508 were outstanding as of
December 31, 2013. DP&L also has $25 par value preferred stock, 4,000,000 shares authorized, none of which
was outstanding as of December 31, 2013. The table below details the preferred shares outstanding at
December 31, 2013:

December 31, 2013 and Carrying Value @
2012 {$ in millions)
Preferred  Redemption
Stock price Shares December  December

7 per share) Outstandin
53 02350 H RSP0
103 00 69,398

HDTO0UEE 165 B0 A s
228,508 $ 184 §

(@) Carrying value is fair value at Merger date.

The DP&L preferred stock may be redeemed at DP&L’s option as determined by its Board of Directors at the
per-share redemption prices indicated above, plus cumulative accrued dividends. In addition, DP&L’s Amended
Articles of Incorporation contain provisions that permit preferred stockhelders to elect members of the Board of
Directors in the event that cumulative dividends on the preferred stock are in arrears in an aggregate amount
equivalent to at least four full quarterly dividends. Since this potential redemption-triggering event is not solely
within the control of DP&L, the preferred stock is presented on the Concolidated Balance Sheets as
“Redeemable Preferred Stock” in a manner consistent with temporary equity.

As long as any DP&L preferred stock is ocutstanding, DP&L’s Amended Aticles of Incorporation also contain
provisions restricting the payment of cash dividends on any of its common stock if, after giving effect to such
dividend, the aggregate of all such dividends distributed subsequent to December 31, 1946 exceeds the net
income of DP&L available for dividends on its common stock subsequent to December 31, 1946, plus $1.2
millien. This dividend restriction has historically not affected DP&L’s ability to pay cash dividends and, as of
December 31, 2013, DP&L’s retained earnings of $426.8 million were all available for common stock dividends
payable to DPL. We do not expect this restriction to have an effect on the payment of cash dividends in the
future. DPL recards dividends on preferred stock of DP&L within Inierest expense on the Statements of Results
of Operations.
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Noie 14 — Common Shareholders’ Equity

Effective on the Merger date, DPL adopted Amended Arlicles of Incorporation providing for 1,500 authorized
common shares, of which one share is outstanding at December 31, 2013,

On October 27, 2010, the DPL Board of Directors approved a new Stock Repurchase Program that permitted
DPL to repurchase up to $200 million of its common stock from time to time in the open market, through private
fransactions or otherwise. This 2010 Stock Repurchase Program was scheduled to run through December 31,
2013, but was suspended in connection with the Merger. See Note 2 for further discussion.

On October 28, 2009, the DPL Board of Directors approved a Stock Repurchase Program that permitted DPL to
use proceeds from the exercise of DPL warrants by warrant holders to repurchase other cutstanding DPL
warrants or its common stock from time to time in the open market, through private transactions or otherwise.
This 2009 Stock Repurchase Program was scheduled to run through June 30, 2012, but was suspended in
connection with the Merger. See Note 2 for further discussion. In June 2011, 0.7 million warrants were
exercised with proceeds of $14.7 million. Since the Stock Repurchase Program was suspended, the proceeds
from the June 2011 exercise of warrants were not used to repurchase stock.

As a result of the Merger involving DPL and AES, the outstanding shares of DPL common stock were converted
into the right to receive merger consideration of $30.00 per share. When the remaining warrants were exercised
in March 2012, DPL paid the warrant holders an amount equal to $9.00 per warrant, which is the difference
between the merger consideration of $30.00 per share of DPL common stock and the exercise price of $21.00
per share. This amount was previously recorded as a $9.0 million liability at the Merger date. At December 31,
2011, DPL had 1.0 million ocutstanding warrants which were exercised in March 2012,

Rights Agreement

DPL'’s Rights Agreement, dated as of September 25, 2001, with Computershare Trust Company, N.A. (the
‘Rights Agreement”} expired in December 2011. The Rights Agreement attached one right to each common
share outstanding at the close of business on December 31, 2001. The rights were separate from the common
shares and had been exercisable at the exercise price of $130 per right in the event of ceriain attempted
business combinations.

The Rights Agreement was amended as of April 18, 2011, to provide that neither the execution of the Merger
agreement not the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Merger agreement would trigger the
provisions of the Rights Agreement.

ESOP

During October 1992, our Board of Directors approved the formation of a Company-sponsored ESCP to fund
matching contributions to DP&L’s 401(k) retirement savings plan and certain other payments to eligible full-time
employees. ESOP shares used o fund maiching contributions to DP&L’s 401(k} vested after either two or three
years of service in accordance with the match formula effective for the respective plan match year; other
compensation shares awarded vested immediately. In 1892, the ESOP Plan entered into a $20 million loan
agreement with DPL in order to purchase shares of DPL common stock in the open market. The leveraged
ESOP was funded by an exempt loan, which was secured by the ESOP shares. As debt service payments were
made on the loan, shares weare released on a pro rata basis. The term loan agreement provided for principal and
interest on the loan to be paid prior to October 9, 2007, with the right to extend the loan for an additional ten
years. In 2007, the maturity date was exiended to October 7, 2017, Effective January 1, 2009, the interest on
the loan was amended to a fixed rate of 2.06%, payable annually. Dividends received by the ESOP were used to
repay the principal and interest on the ESOP loan to DPL. Dividends on the allocated shares were charged to
retained earnings and the share value of these dividends was allocated to paricipants.

During December 2011, the ESOP Plan was terminated and participant balances were transferred to one of the
two DP&L sponsored defined contribution 401(k) plans. On December 5, 2011, the ESOP Trust paid the total
outstanding principal and interest of $68 million on the loan with DPL using the merger proceeds from DPL
common stock held within the ESOP suspense account.

Compensation expense recorded, based on the fair value of the shares committed to be released, amounted to

zero from November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011 and forward (successor), and $4.8 milfion from
January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011 (predecessor).
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Note 15— Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is based on the weighted-average number of DPL common shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS is based on the weighted-average number of DPL common and common-equivalent shares
outstanding during the year, except in periods where the inclusion of such common-equivalent shares is anti-
dilutive. Excluded from outstanding shares for these weighted-average computations are shares held by DP&L'’s
Master Trust Plan for deferred compensation and unreleased shares held by DPL’s ESOP.

The common-equivalent shares excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS, because they were anti-dilutive,
were not material for the period January 1, 2011, through November 27, 2011. Effective at the Merger date, DPL
is an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of AES and earnings per share information is no longer required.

The following shows the reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS
computations:

January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011

$ and shares in millions except per share amounts

Income . Shares Per Share
5 4 $1:31-

Note 16 — Contractual Obligations, Commercial Commitments and Contingencies

DPL - Guarantees

In the normal course of business, DPL enters into various agreements with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, DPLE
and DPLER and its wholly-owned subsidiary, MC Squared, providing financial or performance assurance to third
parties. These agreements are entered into.primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness otherwise
attributed to these subsidiaries on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to
accomplish these subsidiaries’ intended commercial purposes.

At December 31, 2013, DPL had $25.9 million of guarantees fo third parties for future financial or performance
assurance under such agreements, including $25.6 million of guarantees on behalf of DPLE and DPLER and
$0.3 million of guarantees on behalf of MC Squared. The guarantee arrangements entered into by DPL with
these third parties cover select present and future obligations of DPLE, DPLER and MC Squared to such
beneficiaries and are terminable by DPL upon written notice within a certain time to the beneficiaries. The
carrying amount of obligations for commaercial transactions covered by these guarantees and recorded in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets was $0.2 million and $0.0 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

To date, DPL has not incurred any losses related to the guarantees of DPLE's, DPLER's and MC Squared’s
obligations and we believe it is remote that DPL would be required to perform or incur any losses in the future
associated with any of the above guarantees of DPLE's, DPLER's and MC Squared’s obligations.

Equity Ownership Interest

DP&L has a 4.9% equity ownership interest in an electric generation company which is recorded using the cost
method of accounting under GAAP. As of December 31, 2013, DP&L could be responsible for the repayment of
4.9%, or $76.4 million, of a $1,558.4 million debt obligation comprised of both fixed and variable rate securities
with maturities between 2014 and 2040. This would only happen if this electric generation company defaulted on
its debt payments. At December 31, 2013, we have no knowledge of such a default.
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Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
We enter into various contractual obligations and other commercial commitments that may affect the liquidity of
our operations. At December 31, 2013, these include:

Payments due in:
Less than 2-3 4-5 More than
$ in millions Total 1 year years years 5 years
DPL:

Echgiterm dent:
Interest payments

E"’nsmn andipostretifement:payme
Operating leases

a4

é"' ContraciE

Total contractual obligations $ 42428 $ 4241 $ 15380 $ 4670 $ 1,813.7

(a) Total at DP&L operated units.

Long-term debt:
DPL’s long-term debt as of December 31, 2013, consists of DPL’s unsecured notes and unsecured term loan,

along with DP&L’s first mortgage bonds, tax-exempt poliution control bonds, capital leases, and the WPAFB
note. These long-term debt amounts include current maturities but exclude unamortized debt discounts,
premiums and fair value adjustments.

See Note 7 for additional information.

Interest payments:
Interest payments are associated with the long-term debt described above. The interest payments relating to

variable-rate debt are projected using the interest rate prevailing at December 31, 2013.

Pension and postemployment payments:
As of December 31, 2013, DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, had estimated future benefit payments as

outlined in Note 9. These estimated future benefit payments are projected through 2023.

Capital leases:
As of December 31, 2013, DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, has one immaterial capital lease that

expires in 2014,

Operating leases:
As of December 31, 2013, DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, had several immaterial operating leases

with various terms and expiration dates.

Coal coniracts:

DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, has entered into various long-term coal contracts to supply the coal
requirements for the generating stations it operates. Some contract prices are subject to periedic adjustment and
have features that limit price escalation in any given year.

Limestone contracts:
DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, has entered into various limestone contracts to supply limestone
used in the operation of FGD equipment at its generating facilities.

Purchase orders and other contractual obligations:
As of December 31, 2013, DPL had various other confractual obligations including non-cancelable contracts to
purchase goods and services with various terms and expiration dates.
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Reserve for uncertain tax positions:

Due to the uncertainty regarding the timing of future cash outflows associated with our unrecognized tax benefits

of $8.8 million at December 31, 2013, we are unable to make a reliable estimate of the periods of cash settlement
with the respective tax authorities and have not included such amounts in the contractual obligations table above.

Contingencies

in the normal course of business, we are subject to various lawsuits, actions, proceedings, claims and other
matters asserted under laws and regulations. We believe the amounts provided in our Consolidated Financial
Statements, as prescribed by GAAP, are adequate in light of the probable and estimable contingencies.
However, there can be no assurances that the actual amounts required to satisfy alleged liabilities from various
legal proceedings, claims, tax examinations, and other matters, including the matters discussed below, and to
comply with applicable laws and regulations, will not exceed the amounts reflected in our Consolidated Financial
Statements. As such, costs, if any, that may be incurred in excess of those amounts provided as of December
31, 2013, cannot be reasonably determined.

Environmental Matters
DPL’s and DP&L’s facilities and operations are subject to a wide range of federal, state and local environmental
regulations and laws. The environmental issues that may affect us include:

¢ The federal CAA and state laws and regulations {including State Implementation Plans) which require
compliance, obtaining permits and reporting as to air emissions,

« Litigation with federal and certain state governments and certain special interest groups regarding
whether modifications to or maintenance of certain coal-fired generating stations require additional
permitting or pollution control technology, or whether emissions from coal-fired generating stations cause
or contribute to globkal climate changes,

* Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA and the Ohio EPA that require substantiai reductions in
S0,, particulates, mercury, acid gases, NO,, and other air emissions. DP&L has installed emission
control technology and is taking other measures to comply with required and anticipated reductions,

¢ Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA and the Ohio EPA that require reporting and may require
reductions of GHGs,

s Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA associated with the federal Clean Water Act, which prohibits
the discharge of pollutants into waters of the United States except pursuant to appropriate permits, and

s Solid and hazardous waste laws and regulations, which govern the management and disposal of cerfain
waste. The majority of solid waste created from the combustion of coal and fossil fuels is fly ash and
other coal combustion by-products. The USEPA has previously determined that fly ash and other coal
combustion by-products are not hazardous waste subject to the Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act (RCRA), but the USEPA is reconsidering that determination and planning to propose a new rule
regulating coal combustion by-products. A change in determination or other additional regulation of fly
ash or other coal combustion byproducts could significantly increase the costs of disposing of such by-
products.

In addition to imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws and regulations authorize the imposition of
substantial penalties for noncompliance, including fines, injunctive relief and other sanctions. In the normal
course of business, we have investigatory and remedial activities underway at our facilities to comply, or to
determine compliance, with such regulations. We record liabilities for loss contingencies related to environmental
matters when a loss is probable of occurring and can be reasonably estimated in accordance with the provisions
of GAAP. Accordingly, we have accruals for loss contingencies of approximately $1.1 million for environmental
matters. We also have a number of environmental matters for which we have not accrued loss contingencies
because the risk of loss is not probable of a loss cannot be reasonably estimated, which are disclosed in the
paragraphs below. We evaluate the potential liability related to environmental matters quarterly and may revise
our estimates. Such revisions in the estimates of the potential liabilities could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

We have several pending envircnmental matters associated with our coal-fired generation units. Some of these
matters could have material adverse impacts on the operation of the power stations; especially the stations that
do not have SCR and FGD equipment installed to further control certain emissions. Currently, the coal-fired
generation unit Beckjord Unit 6, in which DP&L has a 50% ownership interest, does not have such emission-
control equipment installed. This unit is scheduled to be deactivated on June 1, 2015. DPL valued Beckjord Unit

143



6 at zero at the Merger date. DP&L is depreciating Unit 6 through December 2014 and does not believe that any
additional accruals or impairment charges are needed as a result of this decision.

DP&L deactivated the coal units at Hutchings Station in September 2013 as part of a settlement with the USEPA
discussed in more detail below.

Environmental Matters Related to Air Quality

Clean Air Act Compliance
In 1990, the federal government amended the CAA to further regulate air pollution. Under the CAA, the USEPA

sets limits on how much of a pollutant can be in the ambient air anywhere in the United States. The CAA allows
individual states to have stronger pollution controis than those set under the CAA, but states are not allowed to
have weaker pollution controls than those set for the whole country. The CAA has a material effect on our
operations and such effects are detailed below with respect to certain programs under the CAA.

Clean Air Interstate Rule/Cross-State Air Pollution Rule

The USEPA promulgated the “Clean Air Interstate Rule” (CAIR) on March 10, 2005, which required allowance
surrender for SO, and NO, emissions from existing power stations located in 27 eastern states and the District of
Columbia. CAIR contemplated two implementation phases. The first phase began in 2009 and 2010 for NO, and
S0, respectively. A second phase with additional allowance surrender obligations for both air emissions is
scheduled to begin in 2015. To implement the required emission reductions for this rule, the states were to
establish emission-allowance-based “"cap-and-trade’ programs. CAIR was subsequently challenged in federal
court, and on July 11, 2008, the United States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit issued an opinion striking
down much of CAIR and remanding it to the USEPA.

In response to the D.C. Circuit's opinion, on July 7, 2011, the USEPA the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule
(CSAPR). Starting in 2012, CSAPR would have required significant reductions in 3O, and NO, emissions from
covered sources, such as power stations in 28 eastern states. Once fully implemented in 2014, the rule would
have required additional SO, emission reductions of 73% and additional NO, reductions of 54% from 2005 levels.
Many states, utilities and other affected parties filed petitions for review, challenging the CSAPR before the U.S.
Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. On August 21, 2012, a three-judge panel of the D.C. Circuit Court
vacated CSAPR, ruling that the USEPA overstepped its regulatory authority by requiring states to make
reductions beyond the levels required in the CAA and failed to provide states an initial opportunity to adopt their
own measures for achieving federal compliance. As a result of this ruling, the surviving provisions of CAIR are to
continue to serve as the governing program until the USEPA takes further action or the U.S. Congress
intervenes. On QOctocber 5, 2012, the USEPA, several states and cities, as well as environmentai and health
organizations, filed petitions with the D.C. Chrcuit Court requesting a rehearing by all of the judges of the D.C.
Circuit Court of the case pursuant to which the three-judge panel ruled that CSAPR be vacated, which were
denied. On June 24, 2013, the U.S. Supreme Court agreed to review the D.C. Circuit Court’s decision to vacate
CSAPR and heard oral arguments in the matter on December 10, 2013. Currently, CAIR remains in effect. If
CSAPR were to be reinstated in its current form, we do not expect any material capital costs for DP&L’s stations,
assuming Beckjord unit 6 will not operate on coal in 2015 due to implementation of the Mercury and Air Toxics
Standards (MATS). If the USEPA issues a replacement interstate transport rule addressing the D.C. Circuit
Court's ruling, we believe companies will have three years or more before they would be required to comply with
a replacement rule. At this time, it is not possible to predict the details of such a replacement transport rule or
what impacts it may have on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Mercury and Other Hazardous Air Pollutants

On May 3, 2011, the USEPA published proposed Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) standards
for coal- and oil-fired electric generating units. The standards include new requirements for emissions of mercury
and a number of other heavy metals. The USEPA Administrator signed the final rule, now called MATS, on
December 16, 2011, and the rule was published in the Federal Register on February 16, 2012, Our affected
EGUs must come into compliance with the new requirements by April 16, 2015, but may be granted an additional
year to become compliant contingent on Chio EPA approval. DP&L is evaluating the costs that may be incurred
to comply with the new requirement; however, MATS could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations and result in material compliance costs.

OCn January 31, 2013, the USEPA finalized a rule regulating emissions of toxic air pollutants from new and
existing industrial, commercial and institutional boilers and process heaters at major and area source facilities.
This regulation affects seven auxiliary boilers used for start-up purposes at DP&L's generation facilities. The
regulation contains emissions limitations, operating limitations and other requirements. DP&L expects to be in
compliance with this rule and the costs are not currently expected to be material to DP&L’s operations.
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National Ambient Air Quality Standards

On January 5, 2005, the USEPA published its final non-attainment designations for the National Ambient Air
Quality Standard {(NAAQIS) for Fine Particulate Matter 2.5 (PM 2.5). These designations included counties and
partfal counties in which DP&L. operates and/or owns generating facilities. On December 31, 2012, the USEPA
redesignated Adams County, where Stuart and Killen are located, to attainment status. On December 14, 2012,
the USEPA tightened the PM 2.5 standard to 12.0 micrograms per cubic meter. This will begin a process of
redesignations during 2014, including in counties where we have generating stations. We cannot predict the
effect the revisions to the PM 2.5 standard will have on DP&L’s financial condition or results of operations.

The USEPA published the naticnal ground level ozone standard on March 12, 2008, lowering the 8-hour level
from 0.08 ppm te 0.075 ppm, which was upheld by the U.S. Circuit Count of Appeals in July 2013. No DP&L
operations are currently located in non-attainment areas. The USEPA was expected to review the ozone NAAQS
in 2013 but delayed such a review. Certain environmental groups have sued the USEPA in federal district court
to force the USEPA to set a September 30, 2014 deadline for such review. It is generally expected that any
revised standard resulting from such review would be more stringent than the current 0.075 ppm standard. In
addition, in December 2013, eight northeastern states petitioned the USEPA to add nine upwind states, including
Chig, to the Ozone Transport Region, a group of states required to impose enhanced restrictions on ozone
emissions. If the petition is granted, our facilities could be subject to such enhanced requirements.

Effective April 12, 2010, the USEPA implemented revisions to its primary NAAQS for nitrogen dioxide. This
change may affect certain emission sources in heavy traffic areas like the I-75 corridor between Cincinnati and
Dayton after 2016. Several of our facilities or co-owned facilities are within this area. DP&L cannot determine
the effect of this potential change, if any, on its operations.

Effective August 23, 2010, the USEPA implemented revisions to its primary NAAQS for SO, replacing the current
24-hour standard and annual standard with a ocne-hour standard. DP&L cannot determine the effect of this
potential change, if any, on its operations. Initial non-attainment designations were made July 25, 2013. Non-
attainment areas will be required to meet the new standard by October 2018,

On May 5, 2004, the USEPA issued its proposed regional haze rule, which addresses how states should
determine the Best Available Retrofit Technology (BART) for sources covered under the regional haze rule. Final
rules were published July 6, 2005, providing states with several options for determining whether sources in the
state should be subject to BART. Numerous units owned and operated by us will be affected by BART. We
cannot determine the extent of the impact until Chio determines how BART will be implemented.

Carbon Dioxide and Other Greenhouse Gas Emissions

In response to a U.S. Supreme Court decision that the USEPA has the authority to regulate GHG emissions from
motor vehicles, the USEPA made a finding that CO, and certain other GHGs are pollutants under the CAA.
Subsequently, under the CAA, the USEPA determined that CO, and other GHGs from motor vehicles threaten
the health and welfare of future generations by contributing to climate change. This finding became effective in
January 2010. Numerous affected parties have petitioned the USEPA Administrator to reconsider this decision.
On April 1, 2010, the USEPA signed the “Light-Duty Vehicle Greenhouse Gas Emission Standards and
Corporate Average Fuel Economy Standards” rule. Under the USEPA’s view, this is the final action that renders
GO, and certain other GHGs “regulated air pollutants” under the CAA.

Under USEPA regulations finalized in May 2010 (referred to as the “Tailoring Rule™), the USEPA hegan
regulating GHG emissions from certain stationary sources in January 2011. The Tailoring Rule sets forth criteria
for determining which facilities are required to obtain permits for their GHG emissions pursuant to the CAA
Prevention of Significant Deterioration and Title V aperating permit programs. Under the Tailoring Ruls,
permitting requirements are being phased in through successive steps that may expand the scope of covered
sources over time. The USEPA has issued guidance on what the best available control technology entails for the
control of GHGs; and individual states are required to determine what controls are required for facilities on a
case-by-case basis. Various industry groups and states petitioned the U.S. Supreme Court to review the D.C.
Circuit Court’s recent decision to uphold the USEPA’s endangerment finding, its April 2010 GHG rule and the
Tailoring Rule. On October 15, 2013, the U.S. Supreme Court agreed to review several related cases addressing
the USEPA's authority fo issue GHG Prevention of Significant Deterioration permits under Section 165 of the
CAA. We cannot predict the outcome of this review. The ultimate impact of the Tailoring Rule to DP&L cannot
be determined at this time, but the cost of compliance could be material.

On September 20, 2013, the USEPA proposed revised GHG New Source Performance Standards for new
electric generating units (EGUs) under CAA subsection 111(b), which wouid require new EGUs to limit the
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amount of CO, emitted per megawatt-hour. The proposal anticipates that affected coal-fired units would need to
rely upon partial implementation of carbon capture and storage or other expensive CO, emission controi
technology to meet the standard. Furthermore, President Obama directed the USEPA to propose new
standards, reguiations, or guidelines, as appropriate, to address GHG emissions from existing EGUs under CAA
subsection 111(d) by June 1, 2014, and finalize them by June 1, 2015. These latter rules may focus on energy
efficiency improvements at power stations. We cannot predict the effect of these proposed or forthcoming
standards on DP&L’s operations.

Approximately 98% of the energy we produce is generated by coal. DP&L’s share of CO, emissions at
generating stations we own and co-own is approximately 14 million tons annually. Further GHG legislation or
regulation implemented at a future date could have a significant effect on DP&L’s operations and costs, which
could adversely affect our net income, cash flows and financial condition. However, due to the uncertainty
associated with such legislation or regulation, we cannot predict the final outcome or the financial effect that such
legislation or regulation may have on DP&L.

Litigation, Notices of Violation and Other Matters Related to Air Quality

Litigation [nvolving Co-Owned Staticns

On June 20, 2011, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that the USEPA’s regulation of GHGs under the CAA displaced
any right that plaintiffs may have had to seek similar regulation through federal common law litigation in the court
system. Afthough we are not named as a party to these lawsuits, DP&L is a co-owner of coal-fired stations with
Duke Energy and AEP (or their subsidiaries) that could have been affected by the outcome of these lawsuits or
similar suits that may have been filed against other electric power companies, including DP&L. Because the
issue was not squarely before it, the U.S. Supreme Court did not rule against the portion of plaintiffs’ original suits
that sought relief under state law.

As a result of a 2008 consent decree entered into with the Sierra Club and approved by the U.S. District Count for
the Southern District of Ohio, DP&L and the other owners of the Stuart generating station are subject to certain
specified emission targets related to NO,, SO, and particulate matter. The consent decree also includes
commitments for energy efficiency and renewable energy activities. An amendment to the consent decree was
entered into and approved in 2010 to clarify how emissions would be computed during maffunctions. Continued
compliance with the consent decree, as amended, is not expected to have a material effect on DP&L’s results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows in the fuiure.

Notices of Viofation Involving Co-Owned Units
In November 1998, the USEPA filed civil complaints and NOVs against operators and owners of certain

generation facilities for alleged violations of the CAA. Generation units operated by Duke Energy (Beckjord Unit
8) and AEP Generation (Conesville Unit 4) and co-owned by DP&L were referenced in these actions. The
Conesville complaint was resolved in 2007 as part of a larger settlement with the USEPA. Conesville was
required to install FGD and SCR at the unit by the end of 2010, and those retrofits have been completed. The
Beckjord complaint was also resolved through litigation. There were no penalties or settlement agreements that
affected Beckjord 6.

In June 2000, the USEPA issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated Stuart generating station (co-owned by DP&L,
Duke Energy and AEP Generation) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOV contained allegations consistent
with NOVs and complaints that the USEPA had brought against numerous other coal-fired utilities in the Midwest.
The NOV indicated the USEPA may: (1) issue an order requiring compliance with the requirements of the Ohio
SIP; or {2) bring a civil action seeking injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for each
violation. To date, neither action has been taken. DP&L cannct predict the outcome of this matter.

In December 2007, the Ohio EPA issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated Killen generating station (co-owned by
DP&L and Duke Energy) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOV alleged deficiencies in the continuous
monitoring of opacity. We submitted a compliance plan to the Ohio EPA on December 18, 2007. To date, no
further actions have been taken by the Ohio EPA.

On March 13, 2008, Duke Energy, the operator of the Zimmer generating station, received an NOV and a Finding
of Violation (FOV) from the USEPA alleging violations of the CAA, the Ohio State Implementation Program (SIP)
and permits for the Station in areas including SO,, opacity and increased heat input. A second NOV and FOV
with similar allegations was issued on November 4, 2010, Also in 2010, the USEPA issued an NOV to Zimmer
for excess emissions. DP&L is a co-owner of the Zimmer generating station and could be affected by the
eventual resolution of these matters. Duke Energy is expected to act on behalf of itself and the co-owners with
respect to these matters. DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of these matters.
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Notices of Violation Involving Wholly-Owned Stations

In 2007, the Chio EPA and the USEPA issued NOVs to DP&L for alleged violations of the CAA at the Hutchings
Station. The NOVs' alleged deficiencies relate to stack opacity and particulate emissions. On November 18,
2009, the USEPA issued an NOV to DP&L for alleged NSR violations of the CAA at the Hutchings Station
relating to capital projects performed in 2001 involving Unit 3 and Unit 6. DP&L does not believe that the two
projects described in the NOV were modifications subject to NSR. As a result of the cessation of operations at
the Hutchings Station discussed in the next paragraph, DP&L believes that the USEPA is unlikely to pursue the
NSR complaint.

As part of a settlement with the USEPA, DP&L signed a Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) that was
filed on September 26, 2013 and an Administrative Consent Agreement. Together, these two agreements
resolved the opacity and patticulate emissions NOV at the Hutchings Station and required that all six coal-fired
units at Hutchings cease operating on coal by September 30, 2013, and included an immaterial penalty and the
completion of a Supplemental Environmental Project of $0.2 million within one year. The units were disabled for
coal operations prior to September 30, 2013.

DP&L also resolved all issues associated with the Ohio EPA NOV through a settlement signed October 4, 2013.
The settlement included the payment of an immaterial penalty.

Environmental Matters Related to Water Quality, Waste Disposal and Ash Ponds

Clean Water Act— Regulation of Waler intake

On July 9, 2004, the USEPA issued final rules pursuant to the Clean Water Act governing existing facilities that
have cooling water intake structures. The rules required an assessment of impingement and/or entrainment of
organisms as a result of cooling water withdrawal. A number of parties appealed the rules. In April 2009, the
U.S. Supreme Court ruled that the USEPA did have the authority to compare costs with benefits in determining
best technology available. The USEPA released new proposed regulations on March 28, 2011, which were
published in the Federal Register on April 20, 2011. We submitted comments to the proposed regulations on
August 17, 2011. The USEPA is required pursuant to a settlement agreement to issue a final rule by April 17,
2014. We do not yet know the impact the final rules will have on our operations.

Clean Water Act— Regulation of Water Discharge
In December 2006, DP&L submitted a renewal application for the Stuart Station NPDES permit that was due to

expire on June 30, 2007. The Ohio EPA issued a revised draft permit that was received on November 12, 2008.
In September 2010, the USEPA formally objected to the November 12, 2008 revised permit due to questions
regarding the basis for the alternate thermal limitation. At DP&L’s request, a public hearing was held on March
23, 2011, where DP&L presented its position on the issue and provided written comments. In a letter to the Qhio
EPA dated September 28, 2011, the USEPA reaffirmed its objection to the revised permit as previously drafted
by the Ohio EPA. This reaffirmation stipulated that if the Ohic EPA did not re-draft the permit to address the
USEPA's objection, then the authority for issuing the permit would pass to the USEPA. The Ohio EPA issued
another draft permit in December 2011 and a public hearing was held on February 2, 2012,

The draft permit required DP&L, over the 54 months following issuance of a final permit, to take undefined
actions to lower the temperature of its discharged water to a level unachievable by the station under its current
design or alternatively make other significant modifications to the cocling water system. DP&L submitted
comments to the draft permit. In November 2012, the Ohio EPA issued another draft which included a
compliance schedule for performing a study to justify an alternate thermal limitation and to which DP&L
_submitted comments. In December 2012, the USEPA formally withdrew their objection to the permit. On
January 7, 2013, the Chio EPA issued a final permit. On February 1, 2013, DP&L appealed various aspects of
the final permit to the Environmental Review Appeals Commission. Depending on the outcome of the appeal
process, the effects could be material on DP&L’s operations.

In September 2009, the USEPA announced that it would be revising technology-based regulations governing
water discharges from steam electric generating facilities. The rulemaking included the collection of information
via an industry-wide guestionnaire as well as targeted water sampling efforts at selected facilities. Subsequent to
the information collection effort, it was anticipated that the USEPA would release a proposed rule by mid-2012
with a final regulation in place by early 2014. The proposed rule was released on June 7, 2013, with a deadline
for a final rule on May 22, 2014, though such final rule’s issuance is expected to be delayed. At present, DP&L is
unable to predict the impact this rulemaking will have on its operations.
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In August 2012, DP&L submitted an application for the renewal of the Killen Station NPDES permit which expired
in January 2013. At present, the outcome of this proceeding is not known.

In January 2014, DP&L submitted an application for the renewal of the Hutchings Station NPDES permit which
expires in July 2014. At present, the outcome of this proceeding is not known.

In April 2012, DP&L received an NOV related to the construction of the Carter Hollow landfill at the Stuar
Station. The NOV indicated that construction activities caused sediment to flow into downstream creeks. In
addition, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers issued a Cease and Desist order followed by a notice suspending the
previously issued Corps permit authorizing work associated with the landfill. DP&L installed sedimentation ponds
as part of the runoff control measures to address this issue and worked with the various agencies to resolve their
concerns. DP&L signed an Administrative Order from the USEPA on May 30, 2013. A final Consent Agreement
and Final Order was executed on July 8, 2013, and the previously issued permit was reinstated by the Corps on
October 29, 2013.

Reguiation of Waste Disposal
In September 2002, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP

for the clean-up of hazardous substances at the South Dayton Dump landfill site. In August 2005, DP&L and
other parties received a general notice regarding the performance of a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility
Study (RI/FS) under a Superfund Alternative Approach. In QOctober 2005, DP&L received a special notice letter
inviting it to enter into negotiations with the USEPA to conduct the RI/FS. No recent activity has occurred with
respect to that notice or PRP status. However, on August 25, 2009, the USEPA issued an Administrative Order
requiring that access to DP&L’s service center building site, which is across the street from the landfill site, be
given to the USEPA and the existing PRP group to help determine the extent of the landfill site's contamination
as well as to assess whether certain chemicals used at the service center building site might have migrated
through groundwater to the landfili site. DP&L granted such access and drilling of soil borings and installation of
monitoring wells occurred in late 2009 and early 2010. On May 24, 2010, three members of the existing PRP
group, Hobart Corporation, Kelsey-Hayes Company and NCR Corporation, filed a civil complaint in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio against DP&L and numerous other defendants alleging that
DP&L and the other defendants contributed to the contamination at the South Dayton Dump landfill site and
seeking reimbursement of the PRP group's costs associated with the investigation and remediation of the site.
On February 10, 2011, the Court dismissed claims against DP&L that related to allegations that chemicals used
by DP&L at its service center contributed to the landfill site’s contamination. The Court, however, did not dismiss
claims alleging financial responsibility for remediation costs based on hazardous substances from DP&L that
were allegedly directly delivered by truck to the landfill. Discovery, including depositions of past and present
DP&L employees, was conducted in 2012. On February 8, 2013, the Court granted DP&L’s motion for summary
judgment on statute of limitations grounds with respect to claims seeking a contribution toward the costs that are
expected to be incurred by the PRP group in performing an RI/FS. That summary judgment ruling was appealed
on March 4, 2013 and the appeal is pending. DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of the appeal. Additionally,
the Court’s ruling does not address future litigation that may arise with respect to actual remediation costs. While
DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of these matters, if DP&L were required to contribute to the clean-up of
the site, it could have a material adverse effect on its operations.

Beginning in mid-2012, the USEPA began investigating whether explosive or other dangerous conditions exist
under structures located at or near the South Dayton Dump landfill site. [n October 2012, DP&L received a
request from the PRP group’s consultant to conduct additional soil and groundwater sampling on DP&L’s service
center property. After informal discussions with the USEPA, DP&L complied with this sampling request and the
sampling was conducted in February 2013. On February 28, 2013, the plaintiffs group referenced above entered
into an Administrative Settlement Agreement Consent Order (ASACO) that establishes procedures for further
sub-slab testing under structures at the South Dayton Dump [andfill site and remediation of vapor intrusion issues
relating to trichloroethylene (TCE), percholorethylene (PCE), and methane. On April 16, 2013, the plaintiffs
group filed a new complaint in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio against DP&L and
34 other defendants alleging that they share liability for these costs. DP&L has opposed the allegations that it
bears any responsibility under the February 2013 ASACO and will actively oppose any attempt that the plaintiffs
group may have to expand the scope of the new complaint to resurrect issues dismissed by the Court in February
2013 under the first complaint. A metion to dismiss portions of this second complaint relating to alleged migration
of chemicals from DP&L property to the landfill was denied February 18, 2014, as were motions filed by DP&L
and others to dismiss other portions of the complaint that were viewed by defendants as identical to the
allegations dismissed in the first complaint proceeding. The Judge found that there were differences in the
allegations and is permitting those allegations to proceed.. Limited discovery has been permitied pending
resalution of the motion including some depositions of former DP&L employees during 2013 and into 2014.
DP&L cannot predict the outcome of this proceeding.
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In December 2003, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us io be a PRP
for the clean-up of hazardous substances at the Tremont City landfill site. Information available to DP&L does
not demonstrate that it contributed hazardous substances to the site. While DP&L is unable to predict the
outcome of this matter, if DP&L were required to contribute to the clean-up of the site, it could have a material
adverse effect on its operations.

On April 7, 2010, the USEPA published an Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking announcing that it is
reassessing existing regulations governing the use and distribution in commerce of polychlorinated biphenyls
(PCBs). While this reassessment is in the early stages and the USEPA is seeking information from potentially
affected parties on how it should proceed, the outcome may have a material effect on DP&L. While the USEPA
previously indicated that the official release date for a proposed rule was in April 2013, it has been delayed, likely
until late 2014. At present, DP&L is unable to predict the impact this initiative will have on its operations.

Requlation of Ash Ponds

In March 20089, the USEPA, through a formal Information Collection Request, collected information on ash pond
facilities across the country, including those at Killen and Stuart Stations. Subsequently, the USEPA collected
similar information for the Hutchings Station.

In August 2010, the USEPA conducted an inspection of the Hutchings Station ash ponds. In June 2011, the
USEPA issued a final report from the inspection including recommendations relative to the Hutchings Station ash
ponds. DP&L is unable to predict whether there will be additional USEPA action relative to DP&L’s proposed
plan or the effect on opsrations that might arise under a different plan.

In June 2011, the USEPA conducted an inspection of the Killen Station ash ponds. In May 2012, we received a
draft report on the inspection. DP&L submitted comments on the draft reponrt in June 2012. On March 14, 2013,
DP&L received the final report on the inspection of the Killen Station ash pond inspection from the USEPA which
included recommended actions. DP&L has submitted a response with its actions to the USEPA. DP&L is
unable to predict the ocutcome this inspection will have on its operations.

There has been increasing advocacy to regulate coal combustion byproducts under the Resource Conservation
Recovery Act (RCRA). On June 21, 2010, the USEPA published a proposed rule seeking comments on two
options under consideration for the regulation of coal combustion byproducts including regulating the material as
a hazardous waste under RCRA Subtitle C or as a solid waste under RCRA Subtitle D. Litigation has been filed
by several groups seeking a court-ordered deadline for the issuance of a final rule which the USEPA has
opposed. On January 29, 2014, the parties to the litigation entered into a consent decree setting forth the
USEPA's obligation to sign, by December 19, 2014, a notice for publication in the Federal Register taking action
on the Agency’s proposed Subtitle D option. The decree does not require Subfitle D regulation of coal
combustion byproducts — it only requires the Agency to decide by that date whether or not to adopt the Subtitle D
option. At present, the timing for a final rule regulating coal combustion byproducts cannot be determined.
DP&L is unable to predict the financial effect of this regulation, but if coal combustion byproducts are regulated
as hazardous waste, it is expected to have a material adverse effect onh its operations.

Notice of Violation Involving Co-Owned Units
On September 9, 2011, DP&L received an NOV from the USEPA with respect to its co-owned Stuart generating

station based on a compliance evaluation inspection conducted by the USEPA and Ohio EPA in 2009. The
nctice alleged non-compliance by DP&L with certain provisions of the RCRA, the Clean Water Act NPDES permit
program and the station's storm water pollution prevention plan. The notice requested that DP&L respond with
the actions it has subsequently taken or plans to take to remedy the USEPA's findings and ensure that further
violations will not occur. Based on its review of the findings, although there can be no assurance, we believe that
the notice will not result in any material sffect on DP&L’s results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Legal and Cther Matters

In February 2007, DP&L filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for Southern District of Ohio against
Appalachian Fuels, LLC ("Appalachian”) seeking damages incurred due to Appalachian’s failure to supply
approximately 1.5 million tons of coal to two commonly-owned stations under a coal supply agreement, of which
approximately 570 thousand tons was DP&L’s share. DP&L obtained replacement coal to meet its needs.
Appalachian has denied liability, and is currently in federal bankruptey proceedings in which DP&L is participating
as an unsecured creditor. DP&L is unable to determine the ultimate resolution of this matter. DP&L has not
recorded any assets relating to possible recovery of costs in this lawsuit.
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In connection with DP&L and other utilities joining PJM, in 2006, the FERC ordered utilities to eliminate certain
charges to implement transitional payments, known as SECA, effective December 1, 2004 through March 31,
20086, subject to refund. Through this proceeding, DP&L was obligated to pay SECA charges to other utilities, but
received a net benefit from these transitional payments. A hearing was held and an initial decision was issued in
August 2006. A final FERC order on this issue was issued on May 21, 2010 that substantially supports DP&L’s
and other utilities’ position that SECA obligations should be paid by parties that used the transmission system
during the timeframe stated above. Prior to this final order being issued, DP&L entered into a significant number
of bilateral settlement agreements with certain parties to resclve the matter, which by design will be unaffected by
the final decision. On July 5, 2012, a Stipulation was executed and filed with the FERC that resolved SECA
claims against BP Energy Company (“"BP") and DP&L, AEP (and its subsidiaries) and Exelon Corporation (and
its subsidiaries). On October 1, 2012, DP&L received the $14.6 million (including interest income of $1.8 million)
from BP and recorded the settlement in the third quarter; at December 31, 2012, there is no remaining balance in
other deferred credits related to SECA.

Note 17— Business Segmenis

DPPL operates through two segments consisting of the operations of two of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, DP&L
{Utility segment) and DPLER (Competitive Retail segment} and DPLER’s wholly-owned subsidiary, MC Squared
(Competitive Retail segment). This is how we view our business and make decisions on how to allocate
resources and evaluate performance.

The Utility segment is comprised of DP&L’s electric generation, transmission and distribution businesses which
generate and sell electricity to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers. Electricity for the
segment’s 24 county service area is primarily generated at seven coal-fired electric generating stations and is
distributed to more than 515,000 retail customers who are located in a 6,000 square mile area of West Central
Ohio. DP&L also sells electricity to DPLER and any excess energy and capacity is sold into the wholesale
market. DP&L’s transmission and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state
reguiators while rates for its generation business are deemed competitive under Ohio law.

The Competitive Retail segment is DPLER’s and MC Squared’s competitive retail electric service businesses
which sell retail electric energy under contract to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers
who have selected DPLER or MC Squared as their alternative electric supplier. The Competitive Retail segment
sells electricity to approximately 308,000 customers currently located throughout Ohio and in lllincis. In February
2011, DPLER purchased MC Squared, a Chicagoc-based retail electricity supplier, which served approximately
3,157 customers in Northern lilinois. Due to increased competition in Ohio and lllinois, we have increased the
number of employees and resources assigned to manage the Competitive Retail segment and increased its
marketing to customers. The Competitive Retail segment’s electric energy used to meet its sales obligations was
purchased from DP&L and PJM. Intercompany sales from DP&L to DPLER are based on fixed-price contracts
for each DPLER customer; the price approximates market prices for wholesale power at the inception of each
customer's contract. DP&L started selling physical power to MC Squared during June 2012 and became their
sole source of power in September, 2012 under the same terms as above. The cperations of the Competitive
Retail segment are not subject to cost-of-service rate regulation by federal or state regulators.

Included within the “Other” column are other businesses that do not meet the GAAP requirements for disclosure
as reportable segments as well as certain corporate costs which include interest expense on DPL’s deht.

Management evaluates segment performance based on gross margin. The accounting policies of the reportable

segments are the same as those described in Note 1 — Overview and Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies. Intersegment sales and profits are eliminated in consolidation.
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The following tables present financial information for each of DPL’s reportable business segments:

Successor
Adjustments
Competitive and DPL
$ in millions Utility Retail Other Eliminations Consolidated

Year ended D_ecember 31 2013
Bevenussromrexternalic
Intersegment revenues

Totalrevenuoss

‘ }e‘clétr@n‘?andéa‘ﬁmrtfz‘éﬂo

(a) For purposes of discussing operating results, we present and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same information that is used by management to make
decisions regarding our financial performance.
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Successor

Adjustments
Competitive and DPL
$ in millions Utility Retail Other Eliminations Consolidated

Year ended December 31 2012

R&vi

P S e oy
Purchased power
RRoriZatomoRinangibIes s

g elk ] fnlo g JL%1EL)
Goodwnl impairment gNote 18)
EiXed assetimpanrment

Interest expense

(1 729778)

228 § (17254) $  (118.4) $

(a) For purposes of discussing operating results, we prasent and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same information that is used by management to make
decisions regarding our financial performance.
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Successor

Adijustments
Competitive and DPL
$ in millions Utility Retail Other Eliminations Consolidated

November 28 2011 throu h December 31 2011

Intersegment revenues o7 - 0.3 (81) -

egiationand amortzation: -
Interest _expense
Omedaxaxpanse: 4 : ; iy
Net income / (loss) $ 458 $ 1.7 $

(a) For purposes of discussing operating resuits, we present and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same information that is used by management to make
decisions regarding our financial performance.

Predecessor
Adjustments
Competitive and DPL
$ in millions Utility Retail Other Eliminations Consolidated

Januar 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011

(@) For purpeses of discussing operating results, we present and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same information that is used by management to make
decisions regarding our financial petfermance.
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Note 18 — Goodwill Impairment

In connection with the acquisition of DPL by AES, DPL allocated the purchase price to goodwill for two reporting
units, the DP&L reporting unit, which includes DP&L and other entities, and DPLER. Of the total goodwill,
approximately $2.4 billion was allocated to the DP&L reporting unit and the remainder was allocated to DPLER,

As of October 1, 2013, DPL performed its annual goodwill impairment test at its DP&L reporting unit and
recognized a goodwill impairment expense of $306.3 miillion. In performing the annual goodwill impairment test
as of October 1, 2013, Step 1 of the test failed as the fair value of the reporting unit no longer exceeded its
carrying amount due primarily to lower estimates of capacity prices in future years as well as lower dark spreads
contributing to lower overall operating margins for the business. The fair value of the reporting unit was
determined under the income approach using a discounted cash flow valuation maodel. The significant
assumptions included within the discounted cash flow valuation mode! were capacity price curves, amount of the
non-bypassable charge, commodity price curves, dispatching, valuation of regulatory assets and liabilities,
discount rates and deferred income taxes. In Step 2, goodwill was determined to have an implied fair value of
$317.0 million after the hypothetical purchase price allocation under the accounting guidance for business
combinations.

DPL recognized a goodwill impairment expense of $1.817.2 million in 2012 at the DP&L reporting unit. During
2012, North American natural gas prices fell significantly compared to the previous year, which exerted
downward pressure on wholesale power prices in the Ohio power market. These falling power prices compressed
wholesale margins at DP&L and led to increased customer switching fromn DP&L to other CRES providers,
including DPLER, who were offering retail prices lower than DP&L’s standard service offer. In addition, several
municipalities in DP&L’s service territory passed ordinances allowing them to become government aggregators
and contracted with CRES providers to provide generation service to the customers located within the municipal
boundaries, further contributing to the switching trend. CRES providers also became more active in DP&L’s
service territory. These developments reduced DP&L’s forecasted profitability, operating cash flows and
liquidity. As a result, in September 2012, management lowered its previous forecasts of profitability and operating
cash flows. Collectively, these events were considered an interim goodwill impairment indicator at the DP&L
reporting unit. There were no interim impairment indicators identified for the goodwili at DPLER.

The goodwilt associated with the Merger is not deductible for tax purposes. Accordingly, there is no cash tax or
financial statement tax benefit related to the impairment. The Company's effective tax rates were impacted by
the pretax impairment, however. The Company’s effective tax rates were (11.2%) and (2.8%) for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Note 19— Fixed-asset impairment

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company tested the recoverability of long-lived assets at Conesville,

a 129 MW coal-fired station in Ohio jointly-owned by DP&L. Gradual decreases in power prices as well as lower
estimates of future capacity prices in conjunction with the DP&L reporting unit failing step 1 of the annual goodwill
impairment test were determined to be an impairment indicator for long-lived assets. The Company performed a
long-lived asset impairment test and determined that the carrying amount of the asset group was not recoverable.
The long-lived asset group subject to the impairment evaluation was determined to be each individual station of
DP&L. This determination was based on the assessment of the stations’ ability to generate independent cash
flows. The Conesville asset group was determined to have zero fair value using discounted cash flows under the
income approach. As a result, the Company recognized an asset impairment expense of $26.2 million.
Conesville is reported in the Utility segment.
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Note 20 - Selected Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

For the 2011 periods ended (a):

Predecessor Successor
September  November December
$ in mllhons exce t per share amounts Marchr 3_1 June 30

31

Dividenos:declarediperahare: .

{a) Periods ended March 31, June 30, and September 30 represent three months then ended. Period ended November 27 represents
approximately two months then ended and period ended December 31 represents approximately one manth then ended.

As of the Merger date, DPL is indirectly wholly-owned by AES and quarterly information and earnings per share
information are no longer required.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors of The Dayton Power and Light Company

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The Dayton Power and Light Company (DP&L) as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of Results of Operations, Comprehensive
Income/(Loss), Cash Flows, and Shareholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.0ur
audit also included the consolidated financial statement schedule *Schedule il — Valuation and Qualifying
Accounts” for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. These financial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an
audit of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal
contrel over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinicn. An audit also includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We beligve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for cur opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of DP&L at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 , in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
March 4, 2014
Louisville, Kentucky
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
The Dayton Power and Light Company:

We have audited the accompanying statements of results of operations, comprehensive income / (loss), cash
flows and shareholder's equity of The Dayton Power and Light Company (DP&L) for the year ended

December 31, 2011. In connection with cur audit of the financial statements, we also have audited the financial
statement schedule, "Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts” for the year ended December 31, 2011.
These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of DP&L’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on
our audit.

We canducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstaiement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We belteve that our audit provides a reascnable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements of DP&L referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects,
the information set forth therein.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsyivania
March 27, 2012

158



THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year ended December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS)
Year ended December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011

Reclassification to earnings, net of income tax benefit /
{expense) of $(0.7), $0.0 and $0.0 for each respective

Reclassification of earnings, net of income tax benefit /
(expense) of $(2.5), $0.5 and $0.1 for each respective

Beratili
s s
Net loss for the period, net of income tax benefit /
(expense) of $(1.9), $0.8 and $5.4 for each respective
erfiod _ 4.3 (1.5) (8.0)

SeYond(QF

Total change in unfunded pension and postretirement
obligation 8.6 2.0 (6.2)

See Notes to Financial Statements,
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:

Adjustments to reconcile Net income (loss) to

Net cash fvromdoperagwng activities
- Depreciationand:amortization
Deferred income taxes
aironiigtidationzof DPL:stock: theld:initrust
leed-asset |mpa|rment

=T

écognitior on:otfdefer d:SECA'T revenue:

Net cash from operating activities 335.3 339.8 ' 364.27

M

Cash flows irominvestingactvities : :
_V_Qa, _ltal_ e_x endyﬁprgs___ e (1221) (195.5) (204 5)

Other m_vtm__a_ctlwtles net
i Neticashdrominvesting activitios
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
Year ended December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011

Cash flows from financing activiti
| Dividefids paidion.common sStockt
Dividends pald on preferred st
I ‘Retirsrentioflongaterm:aen
Cash contribution from par
[Ssuaiice omong-term:de
Deferred financin costs
t:Borrowingssrom:
Repayment of borrowings from revolving credit
facilities
“INstcasharomdinancing activiies

Cash and cash equivalents:

1 p g A [alized. fE 5 A
Income taxes (refunded)/pald net $ (20.3) $ 61 9 $ 13.9
Non-cash flnancmg and investin iviti
A CErA e APAReXpenditure
Long-term liability incurred for the purchase of
plant assets $ - 3 - % 18.7

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
BALANCE SHEETS

December 3f, Decembear 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012

ASSETS

Current assets:

- Gashiarid:cash-quivalents

Restrlcted funds

< Acceunts recewab}
Inventories (Note 3)

I'Taxesapplicablsigisubseqiientyears:

Regu[atoy assets, current (Note 4)

L Oharprepaymentsiand-cutrent assels

Total current assets

Property, plant and equlpment-

See Notes fo Financial Statements.

163



THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Current habllmes:

iterm debt:(Note 6)

Tota! current habﬂxhes 245-7 5 842 2

Non—current IIabllltles

i) :.‘ S, 1 "?.:“':E. Al _—,-_' B[=1ek { f
L s_ega'
SACEUmUY ‘iaied?otherqcé risive:lo =

Retalned.earnlngs

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Common Stock ®

Accumuiated
Other
$ in millions (except Outstanding Qutstanding Other Paid-in  Comprehensive  Retained
Shares) Shares Amount Capital Income / (Loss) Earnings Total

Ending balance 41,172,173 04 803.2 (34.7) 589.0 1,357.9

Year ended December31 201 2

(a) $0.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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The Dayton Power and Light Company
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1- Overview and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business

DP&L is a public utility incorporated in 1811 under the laws of Ohio. Beginning in 2001, Ohio law gave Ohio
consumers the right to choose the electric generation supplier from whom they purchase retail generation
service, however distribution and transmission retail service are still requlated. DP&L has exclusive right to
provide such service to its more than 515,000 customers located in West Central Ohio. Additionally, DP&L offers
retail SSO electric service to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers in a 6,000 square
mile area of West Central Chio and generates electricity at seven coal-fired power stations. Beginning in 2014,
DP&L no longer provides 100% of the generation for its SSO customers. Principal industries located in DP&L’s
service territory include automotive, food processing, paper, plastic, manufacturing and defense. DP&L's sales
reflect the general economic conditions, seasonal weather patterns of the area and the market price of electricity.
DP&L sells any excess energy and capacity into the wholesale market. DP&L also sells electricity to DPLER, an
affiliate, to satisfy the electric requirements of its retail customers.

DP&L filed a generation separation application at the end of December 2013, as required in its ESP order, with
the PUCO and on February 25, 2013, filed a supplemental application. In the supplemental application, DP&L
reaffirmed its commitment to separate the generation assets on or before May 31, 2017. DP&L continues to look
at multiple options to effectuate the separation including transfer into a new unregulated affiliate of DPL or
through a sale.

On November 28, 2011, DP&L’s parent company DPL was acquired by AES in the Merger and DPL became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of AES. See Note 2 for more information. Following the Merger of DPL and Dolphin
Subsidiary Il, Inc., DPL became an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of AES.

DP&L’s electric transmission and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state
regulators while its generation business is deemed competitive under Ohio law. Accordingly, DP&L applies the
accounting standards for regulated operations to its electric transmission and distribution businesses and records
regulatory assets when incurred costs are expected to be recovered in future customer rates, and regulatory
liabilities when current cost recoveries in customer rates relate to expected future costs.

DP&L employed 1,218 people as of December 31, 2013. Approximately 62% of all employees are under a
collective bargaining agreement which expires on October 31, 2014.

Financial Statement Presentation

DP&L does not have any subsidiaries. DP&L has undivided ownership interests in seven electric generating
facilities and numerous transmission facilities. These undivided interests in jointly-owned facilities are accounted
for on a pro rata basis in DP&L’s Financial Statements.

Certain immaterial amounts from prior periods, including derivative assets and liabilities and restricted cash, have
been reclassified to conform to the current pericd presentation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and
the revenues and expenses of the periods reported. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant
items subject fo such estimates and judgrents include: the carrying value of Property, plant and eguipment;
unbilled revenues; the valuation of derivative instruments; the valuation of insurance and claims liabilities; the
valuation of allowances for receivables and deferred income taxes; Regulatory assets and liabilities; reserves
recorded for income tax exposures; litigation; contingencies; the valuation of AROs; and assets and liabilities
related to employee benefits.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized from retail and wholesale electricity sales and electricity transmission and distribution
delivery services. We consider revenue realized, or realizable, and earned when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, the products or services have been provided to the customer, the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. Energy sales to customers are based on the reading of their
meters that occurs on a systematic basis throughout the month. We recognize the revenues on our statements
of results of operations using an accrual method for retail and other energy sales that have not yet been billed,
but where electricity has been consumed. This is termed “unbilled revenues” and is a widely recognized and
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accepted practice for utilities. At the end of each month, unbilled revenues are determined by the estimation of
unbilled energy provided to customers since the date of the last meter reading, estimated line losses, the
assignment of unbilled energy provided to customer classes and the average rate per customer class.

All of the power produced at the generation stations is sold to an RTO and we in turn purchase it back from the
RTO to supply our customers. These power sales and purchases are reported on a net hourly basis as revenues
or purchased power on our statements of results of operations. We record expenses when purchased electricity
is received and when expenses are incurred, with the exception of the ineffective portion of certain power
purchase contracts that are derivatives and qualify for hedge accounting. We also have certain derivative
contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting, and their unrealized gains or losses are recorded prior to the
receipt of electricity.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts
We establish provisions for uncollectible accounts by using both historical average loss percentages to project
future losses and by estahlishing specific provisions for known credit issues.

Property, Plant and Equipment

We record our ownership share of our undivided interest in jointly-held stations as an asset in property, plant and
equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. For regulated transmission and distribution
property, cost includes direct labor and material, allocable overhead expenses and an allowance for funds used
during construction (AFUDC). AFUDC represents the cost of borrowed funds and equity used to finance
regulated construction projects. For non-regulated property, cost also includes capitalized interest.
Capitalization of AFUDC and interest ceases at either project completion or at the date specified by regulators.
AFUDC and capitalized interest was $1.5 million, $4.0 million, and $4.4 million for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

For unregulated generation property, cost includes direct labor and material, allocable overhead expenses and
interast capitalized during construction using the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for capitalized
interest.

For substantially all depreciable property, when a unit of property is retired, the original cost of that property less
any salvage value is charged to Accumulated depreciation and amortization.

Property is evaluated for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

At December 31, 2013, DP&L did not have any material plant acquisition adjustments or other plant-related
adjustments.

Repairs and Maintenance

Costs associated with maintenance activities, primarily station outages, are recognized at the time the work is
performed. These costs, which include labor, materials and supplies, and outside services required to maintain
equipment and facilities, are capitalized or expensed based on defined units of property.

Depreciation — Changes in Estimates

Depreciation expense is calculated using the straight-line method, whlch allocates the cost of property over its
estimated useful life. For DP&L’s generation, transmission and distribution assets, straight-line depreciation is
applied monthly on an average composite basis using group rates.

Duting the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company tested the recoverability of long-lived assets at certain generating
stations. See Note 15 for more information. Gradual decreases in power prices as well as lower estimates of
future capacity prices in conjunction with the DP&L reporting unit of DPL failing step 1 of the annual goodwill
impairment test were collectively determined to be an impairment indicator. The effect of this impairment will be
to reduce future depreciation related to these stations by approximately $3.8 miillion per year.

In the third quarter of 2012, a series of events led DP&L management to conclude that there was an impairment
in the value of certain generating stations. See Note 15 for more information. The effect of this impairment will
be to reduce future depreciation related to these stations by approximately $7.1 million per year. The effect in the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was a reduction of approximately $5.4 million and $1.8 million,
respectively.
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For DP&L’s generation, transmission, and distribution assets, straight-line depreciation is applied on an average
annual composite basis using group rates that approximated 4.4% in 2013, 4.2% in 2012 and 2.6% in 2011.

The following is a summary of DP&L’s Property, plant and equipment with corresponding composite depreciation
rates at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012;

December 31,
Composite Composite
$ in millions 2013 Rate 2012 Rate

Regulated 7

AROs

We recognize AROs in accordance with GAAP which requires legal obligations associated with the retirement of
long-lived assets to be recognized at their fair value at the time those obligations are incurred. Upon initial
recognition of a legal liability, costs are capitalized as part of the related long-lived asset and depreciated over the
useful life of the related asset. Our legal obligations associated with the retirement of our long-lived assets
consisted primarily of river intake and discharge structures, coal unloading facilities, loading docks, ice breakers
and ash disposal facilities. Our generation AROs are recorded within other deferred credits on the balance
sheets.

Estimating the amount and timing of future expenditures of this type requires significant judgment. Management
. routinely updates these estimates as additional information becomes available.

Changes in the Liability for Generation AROs

$ in millions

Balance at December 31 2012 19.2

Calendar 2013

Accretionexpensert
Settlements

Asset Removal Costs

Woe continue to record cost of removal for our regulated transmission and distribution assets through cur
depreciation rates and recover those amounts in rates charged to our customers. There are ne known legal
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AROs associated with these assets. We have recorded $114.2 million and $112.1 million in estimated costs of
removal at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, as regulatory liabilities for our transmission and
distribution property. These amounts represent the excess of the cumulative removal costs recorded through
depreciation rates versus the cumulative removal costs actually incurred. See Note 4 for additional information.

Changes in the Liability for Transmission and Distribution Asset Removal Costs

$in millions
Balahés afDacambar

Additions
Settle_mentsﬂ

Regqulatory Accounting

As a regulated utility, we apply the provisions of FASC 980 “Regulated Operations,” which gives recognition to
the ratemaking and accounting practices of the PUCQO and the FERC. Regulatory assets generally represent
incurred costs that have been deferred because such costs are probable of future recovery in customer

rates. Regulatory assets can also represent performance incentives permitted by the regulator, such as with our
CCEM energy efficiency program. Regulatory assets have been included as allowable costs for ratemaking
purposes, as authorized by the PUCO or established regulatory practices. Regulatory fiabilities generally
represent obligations to make refunds or future rate reductions to customers for previous over collections or the
deferral of revenues collected for costs that DPL expects to incur in the future.

The deferral of costs (as regulatory assets) is appropriate only when the future recovery of such costs is
probable. In assessing probability, we consider such factors as specific orders from the PUCO or FERC,
regulatory precedent and the current regulatory environment. To the extent recovery of costs is no longer
deemed probable, related regulatory assets would be required to be expensed in current period earnings. Our
regulatory assets and liabilities have been created pursuant to a specific order of the PUCO or FERC or
established reguiatory practices, such as other utilities under the jurisdiction of the PUCO or FERC being granted
recovery of similar costs. It is probable, but not certain, that these regulatory assets will be recoverable, subject
to PUCO or FERC approval. Regulatory assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current based on
the term in which recovery is expected. See Note 4 for more information about Regulatory Assets and Liabilities.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at average cost and include coal, limestone, oil and gas used for electric generation, and
materials and supplies used for utility operations.

Intangibles

Intangibles consist of emission allowances and renewable energy credits. Emission allowances are carried on a
first-in, first out (FIFO) basis for purchased emission allowances. Net gains or losses on the sale of excess
emission allowances, representing the difference between the sales proceeds and the cost of emission
allowances, are recorded as a component of our fuel costs and are reflected in Operating income when realized.
Beginning in January 2010, part of the gains on emission allowances were used to reduce the overall fuel rider
charged to our SSO retail customers. Emission allowances are amortized as they are used in our operations.
Renewable energy credits are amortized as they are used or retired.

Prior to the Merger date, emission allowances and renewable energy credits were carried as inventory. Emission
allowances and renewable energy credits are now carried as intangibles in accordance with AES’ policy.

Income Taxes

GAAP requires an asset and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting of income taxes with tax
effects of differences, based on currently enacted income tax rates, between the financial reporting and tax basis
of accounting reported as deferred tax assets or liabilities in the balance sheets. Deferred tax assets are
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recognized for deductible temporary differences. Valuation allowances are provided against deferred tax assets
unless it is more likely than not that the asset will be realized.

Investment tax credits, which have been used to reduce federal income taxes payable, are deferred for financial
reporting purposes and are amortized over the useful lives of the property to which they relate. For rate-
regulated operations, additional deferred income taxes and offsetting regulatory assets or liabilities are recorded
to recognize that income taxes will be recoverable or refundable through future revenues.

DPL and its subsidiaries file U.S. federal income tax returns as part of the consolidated U.S. income tax return
filed by AES. Prior to the Merger, DPL and its subsidiaries filed a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return.
The consolidated tax liability is allocated to each subsidiary based on the separate return method which is
specified in our tax allocation agreement and which provides a consistent, systematic and rational approach.
See Note 7 for additional information.

Financial Instruments

We classify our investments in debt and equity financial instruments of publicly traded entities into different
categories: available-for-sale and held-to-maturity. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value and
unrealized gains and losses on those securities, net of deferred income taxes, are presented as a separate
component of shareholders’ equity. Other-than-temporary declines in value are recognized currently in earnings.
Financial instruments classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortized cost. The cost basis for public equity
security and fixed maturity investments is average cost and amortized cost, respectively.

Accounting for Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities

DP&L collects certain excise taxes levied by state or local governments from its customers. DP&L’s excise taxes
are accounted for on a net basis and recorded as a reduction in revenues in the accompanying Statements of
Results of Operations in accordance with AES policy. The amounts for the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011 were $50.5 million, $50.5 million and $53.7 million, respectively.

Share-Based Compensation

We measure the cost of employee services received and paid with equity instruments based on the fair value of
such equity instrument on the grant date. This cost is recognized in results of operations over the period that
employees are required to provide service. Liability awards are initially recorded based on the fair value of equity
instruments and are to be re-measured for the change in stock price at each subsequent reporting date until the
liability is ultimately settled. The fair value for employee share options and other similar instruments at the grant
date are estimated using option-pricing models and any excess tax benefits are recognized as an addition to
paid-in capital. The reduction in income taxes payable from the excess tax benefits is presented in the
statements of cash flows within Cash flows from financing activities. See Note 11 for additional information. As a
result of the Merger, discussed in Note 2, vesting of all share-based awards was accelerated as of the Merger
date, and none are in existence at December 31, 2013 or 2012.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. All highly liquid short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash
Restricted cash includes cash which is restricted as to withdrawal or usage. The nature of the restrictions include
restrictions imposed by agreements related to deposits held as collateral.

Financial Derivatives

All derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheets and are measured at fair value,
Changes in the fair value are recorded in earnings unless they are designated as a cash flow hedge of a
forecasted transaction or qualify for the normal purchases and sales exception.

We use forward contracts to reduce our exposure to changes in energy and commaodity prices and as a hedge
against the risk of changes in cash flows associated with expected electricity purchases. These purchases are
used to hedge our full load requirements. We also hold forward sales contracts that hedge against the risk of
changes in cash flows associated with power sales during periods of projected generation facility availability. We
use cash flow hedge accounting when the hedge or a portion of the hedge is deemed to be highly effective and
MTM accounting when the hedge or a portion of the hedge is not effective. We have elected not to offset net
derivative positions in the financial statements. Accordingly, we do not offset such derivative positions against
the fair value of amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral or the obligation to return cash
collateral under master netting agreements. See Note 10 for additional information.
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Insurance and Claims Costs

In addition to insurance obtained from third-party providers, MVIC, a wholly-owned captive subsidiary of DPL,
provides insurance coverage to DP&L and, in some cases, our partners in commonly-owned facilities we
operate, for workers’ compensation, general liability, property damage, and directors’ and officers’ liability.
Furthermore, DP&L is responsible for claim costs below certain coverage thresholds of MVIC for the insurance
coverage noted above. In addition, DP&L has estimated liabilities for medical, life, and disability reserves for
claims costs below certain coverage thresholds of third-party providers. We record these additional insurance
and claims costs of approximately $18.8 million and $17.7 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively,
within Other current liabilities and Other deferred credits on the balance sheets. The estimated liabilities for
MVIC at DPL and the estimated liabilities for workers' compensation, medical, life and disability costs at DP&L
are actuarially determined based on certain assumptions. There is uncertainty associated with these loss
estimates and actual results may differ from the estimates. Modification of these loss estimates based on
experience and changed circumstances is reflected in the period in which the estimate is re-evaluated.

Related Party Transactions
In the normal course of business, DP&L enters into transactions with other subsidiaries of DPL. All material
intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in DPL’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Effective December 22, 2013, AES US Services, LLC (the "Service Company”) began providing services
including accounting, legal, human rescurces, information technology and other services of a similar nature on
behalf of the AES U.S. Strategic Business Unit ("U.S. SBU"). The Service Company allocates the costs for
these services based on cost drivers designed to result in fair and equitable distribution. This includes ensuring
that the regulatory utilities served, including DP&L, are not subsidizing costs incurred for the benefit of non-
regulated businesses,

The following table provides a summary of these transactions:

Years ended December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011

DIf’&L revgmgs_ .
FSEeaio DREE! 35 35002 807:0°
Sales to MC Squared @ $ 1081 & 400 $ -

DP&L Operatlon & Malntenance Expenses
,—;}'-jﬁ:r%*%‘rfﬁ

nstpaic
b

Expense recoveties for services
provided to DPLER @ $ 52 § 40 8§ 4.6

DP&L Customer securlt deposns
F — %

(a) DPB8L sells power to DPLER and MC Squared to satisfy the electric requirements of their retail customers. The revenue dollars
associated with sales to DPLER and MC Squared are recorded as wholesale revenues in DP&L’s Financial Statements. The
increase in DP&L’s sales to DPLER during the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to the year ended December 31, 2011
is primarily due to customers electing to switch their generation service from DP&L to DPLER. DP&L started selling physical
power to MC Squared during June 2012 and became their sole source of power in Septernber 2012,

(b) MVIC, a wholly-owned captive insurance subsidiary of DPL, provides insurance coverage to DP&L and other DPL subsidiaries for
workers’ compensation, general liability, property damages and directors’ and officers’ liability. These amounts represent
insurance premiums paid by DP&L to MVIC.

(c) Inthe normal course of business DP&L incurs and records expenses on behalf of DPLER. Such expenses include but are not
limited to employee-related expanses, accounting, information technology, payroll, legal and other administration expenses, DP&L
subsequently charges these expenses to DPLER at DP&L’s cost and credits the expense in which they were initially recorded.

{d) DP&L requires credit assurance from the CRES providers serving customers in its service territory because DP&L is the default
energy provider should the CRES provider fail to fulfill its obligations to provide electricity. Due to DPL’s credit downgrade, DP&L
required cash collateral from DPLER.
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Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11 “Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities” (ASU
2011-11) effective for interim and annual reporting pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2013. We adopted
this ASU on January 1, 2013. This standard was clarified by ASU 2013-01 “Scope Clarification of Disclosures
about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities”, which also was effective on January 1, 2013. This standard updates
FASC Topic 210 “Balance Sheet.” ASU 2011-11 updates the disclosures for financial instruments and
derivatives to provide more fransparent information around the offsetting of assets and liabilities. Entities are
required to disclose both gross and net information about both instruments and transactions eligible for offset in
the statement of financial position and/or subject to an agreement similar to a master netting agreement. In ASU
2013-01, the FASB clarified that the disclosures were not intended to include trade receivables and other
contracts for financial instruments that may be subject to a master netting arrangement. We adopted this rule,
which resulted in enhanced disclosures, but it did not have an effect on our overall results of operations, financial
position or cash flows.

Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairments

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-02 “Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment” (ASU
2012-02) effective for interim and annual impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September
15, 2012. We adopted this ASU on January 1, 2013. This standard updates FASC Topic 350 “Intangibles-
Goodwill and Other.” ASU 2012-02 permits an entity first to assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is
more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired as a basis for determining whether it is
nacessary to perform the quantitative impairment test in accordance with FASC Subtopic 350-30. We adopted
this rule but it did not have an effect on our overall results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Comprehensive Income

The FASB recently issued ASU 2013-02 “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Amounts
Reclassified out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income” effective for annual and interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2012. This ASU does not change the current requirements for reporting net income
or OCl in financial statements. However, this ASU requires an entity to provide information about the amounts
reclassified out of AOCI by component. in addition, an entity is required to present, either on the face of the
statement where net income is presented or in the Notes, significant amounts reclassified out of AOCI by the
respective line items of net income, but only if the amount reclassified is required under GAAP to be reclassified
to net income in its entirety in the same reporting period. For other amounts that are not required under GAAP to
be reclassified in their entirety to net income, an entity is required to cross-reference to other disclosures required
under GAAP that provide additional detail about those amounts. We adopted this rule, which resulted in
enhanced disclosures, but it did not have an effect on our overall results of operations, financial position or cash
flows.

Note 2 - Business Combination

©n November 28, 2011, all of the outstanding common stock of DP&L’s parent company, DPL, was acquired by
AES. In accordance with FASC 8085, the assets and Habilities of DPL were valued at their fair value at the Merger
date. These adjustments were “pushed down” to DPL’s records. These adjustments were not pushed down to
DP&L which will continue to present its assets and liabilities on its historical cost basis. Therefore, DP&L does
not need to show a Predecessor and Successor split of its financial statements.
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Note 3 — Supplemental Financial Information

December 31,

Accounts recelvable, net
_ el

‘ Coal sales
b @the

taliac é‘%ntsif‘eé’eiirable,

inventories

EEuelanddirieston
Plant materials and supplies . . 37 0 39.8

Total inventories, at average cost $ B 81.7 3 1089

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The amounts reclassified out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) by component during the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Details about
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive

Income / (Loss) Affected line item in the Statements of
Components Operations Years ended December 31,
% in millions 2013 2012 2011

Net of income taxes 1.4 (0.1) )

Gains and Iosses on cash flow hedges (Note 10):
htarastiexpens: :
Revefue 22

Nét of rlncdme taxes { 2.6 - (3.4) (6.2)

Amomzanon of deﬂned beneﬂt ensmn tems (Note 8)
=
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The changes in the components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / {Loss) during the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Gains / Gains / Change in
(losses) on (losses) on unfunded
available-for- cash flow pension

$ in millions _ sale securities hedges obligation Total _
Balanceilantiary 1720 e ‘ -

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehenswe mcome / (loss) (3.4) 27 (07_8_).

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comrehenswe mcome/(loss) 1.4 i 26 3.8 7.8

Note 4 — Regulatory Matters

In accordance with FASC 980, we have recognized total regulatory assets of $180.5 million and $203.8 million as
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively and total regulatory liabilities of $121.1 million and $117.4 milion
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Regulatory assets and liabilities are classified as current or
non-current based on the term in which recovery is expected. See Note 1 for accounting policies regarding
Regulatory Assets and Liabilities,
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The following table presents DP&L’s Regulatory assets and liabilities:

December 31,

Type ot Amortization
$. in miIIions Recovery @ Through 2013 2012

_-Energy efﬂmency program
- Othermisceliznedszai s w sy o 27 §.2:
Total regulatory assets, current $ 208 & 18.3

Regulatory assets non current-

Total regulatory liabilities, current $ ' - 8 0.1 '

Regulator Irabllltles non-current:

Total regulatory liabilities, non-current $ 1211 $ 117.3

{(a) B - Balance has an offsetting liability resulting in no effect on rate base.
C — Recovery of incurred costs without a rate of return.
D - Recovery not yet determined, but is probable of occurring in future rate proceedings.
F - Recovery of incurred costs plus rate of return.

Regulatory Assets
Transmission costs represent the costs related to transmission, ancillary service and other PJM-related charges

that have been incurred as a member of PJM. On an annual basis, retail rates are adjusted to true-up costs with
recovery in rates.

Fuel and purchased power recovery costs represent prudently incurred fuel, purchased power, derivative,
emission and other related costs which will be recovered from or returned to customers in the future through the
operation of the fuel and purchased power recovery rider. The fuel and purchased power recovery rider
fluctuates based on actual costs and recoveries and is modified at the start of each seasonal quarter. As part of
the PUCO approval process, an outside auditor reviews fuel costs and the fuel procurement process. An audit of
2012 fuel costs occurred in 2013. On June 12, 2013, we received a report from that external auditor
recommending a pre-tax disallowance of $5.3 million of costs; a portion of which was recorded as a reserve
against the regulatory asset. A hearing in this case was held on December 9, 2013 and we expect an order in
the case in the second quarter of 2014,

Deferred recoverable income taxes represent deferred income tax assets recognized from the normalization of
flow-through items as the result of tax benefits previously provided to customers. This is the cumulative flow-
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through benefit given to regulated customers that will be collected from them in future years. Since currently
existing temporary differences between the financial statements and the related tax basis of assets will reverse in
subsequent periods, these deferred recoverable income taxes will decrease over fime.

Pension benefits represent the gualifying FASC 715 "Compensation — Retirement Benefits” costs of our regulated
operations that for ratemaking purposes are deferred for future recovery. We recognize an asset for a plan’s
overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status, and recognize, as a component of Other
Comprehensive Incorne (OCI), the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not
recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost. This regulatory asset represents the regulated portion
that would otherwise be charged as a loss to OCI.

Unamortized loss on reacquired debt represents losses on long-term debt reacquired or redeemed in prior
periods. These costs are being amortized over the lives of the original issues in accordance with FERC and
PUCO rules.

Regional transmission organization costs represent costs incurred to join an RTO. The recovery of these costs
will be requested in a future FERC rate case. In accordance with FERC precedence, we are amortizing these
costs over a 10-year period that began in 2004 when we joined the PJM RTO. Due to the short-term nature of
the remaining amortization period, the balance was reclassified to current regulatory assets in 2013 and is
included in Other miscellaneous in the table above.

Deferred storm costs relate to costs incurred to repair the damage caused to DP&L’s transmission and
distribution equipment by major storms in 2008, 2011 and 2012. DP&L filed an application with the PUCO in
2012 to recover these costs. There has been disagreement among DP&L, the PUCO staff and other intervenors
in the case as to what portion of these storm costs should be recoverable. We continue to believe the costs we
have deferred are probable for recovery based on established regulatory practices in the state of Ohic. A hearing
is scheduled for this matter in March 2014. The outcome of this case is uncertain at this time.

CCEM smart grid and AMI costs represent costs incurred as a result of studying and developing distribution
system upgrades and implementation of AMI. On October 19, 2010, DP&L elected to withdraw its case
pertaining to the Smart Grid and AMI programs. The PUCO accepted the withdrawal in an order issued on
January 5, 2011. The PUCQ also indicated that it expects DP&L {o continue to monitor other utilities’ Smart Grid
and AMI programs and to explore the potential benefits of investing in Smart Grid and AMI| programs and that
DP&L will, when appropriate, file new Smart Grid and/or AMI business cases in the fufure. We plan to file to
recover these deferred costs in a future regulatory rate proceeding. Based on past PUCQO precedent, we believe
these costs are probable of future recovery in rates.

Energy efficiency program costs represent costs incurred to develop and implement various customer programs
addressing energy efficiency. These costs are being recovered through an Energy Efficiency Rider (EER) that
began July 1, 2009 and that is subject to an annual true-up for any over/under recovery of costs.

Consumer education campaign represents costs for consumer education advertising regarding electric
deregulation. DP&L will be seeking recoverty of these costs as part of our next distsibution rate case filing at the
PUCOQ. The timing of such a filing has not yet been determined.

Retail settlement system costs represent costs to implement a retail settlement system that reconciles the energy
a CRES supplier delivers 1o its custorners with what its custorners actually use. Based on case precedent in
other utilities’ cases, the costs are recoverable through a future DP&L rate proceeding.

Other costs primarily include RPM capacity, other PJM and rate case costs and alternative energy costs that are
or will be recovered over various periods.

Regulatory Liabilities

Fuel and purchased power recovery costs Please see “Hegulatory Assets — Fuef and purchased power recovery
costs” above.

Estimated costs of removal — requlated property reflect an estimate of amounts collected in customer rates for

costs that are expected to be incurred in the future to remove existing transmission and distribution property from
service when the property is retired.
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Postretirement benefits represent the qualifying FASC 715 “Compensation — Retirement Benefits” gains related
to our regulated operations that, for ratemaking purposes, are probable of being reflected in future rates. We
recoghize an asset for a plan’s overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status, and recognize, as
a compoenent of OCI, the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not
recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost. This regulatory liability represents the regulated portion
that would otherwise be reflected as a gain to OCI.

Note 5 — Ownership of Coal-fired Facilities

DP&L and certain other Ohio utilities have undivided ownership interests in seven coal-fired electric generating
facilities and numerous transmission facilities. Certain expenses, primarily fuel costs for the generating units, are
allocated to the owners based on their energy usage. The remaining expenses, investments in fuel inventory,
plant materials and operating supplies, and capital additions are allocated to the owners in accordance with their
respective ownership interests. As of December 31, 2013, DP&L had $24.0 million of construction work in
process at such facilities. DP&L’s share of the operating cost of such facilities is included within the
corresponding line in the Statements of Results of Operations and DP&L’s share of the investment in the
facilities is included within Total net property, plant and equipment in the Balance Sheets. Each joint owner
provides their own financing for their share of the operations and capital expenditures of the jointly-owned station.

DP&L’s undivided ownership interest in such facilities, as well as the coal portion of our wholly-owned coal fired
Hutchings Station at December 31, 2013, is as follows:

DP&L Share DP&L Investment

SCR and

FGD

Gross Construction Equipment

Summer Plant  Accumulated Workin installed

Production In Service Depreciation Process and in
Ownership Capagcity $in ($in ($in Service
% (MW) millions) millions) millions) (Yes/No)

Jomtly,owned roductio _unlts

Currently, our coal-fired electric generation units at Hutchings and Beckjord do not have the SCR and FGD
emission-control equipment installed. DP&L owns 100% of the Hutchings Station and has a 50% interest in
Beckjord Unit 6. On July 15, 2011, Duke Energy, a co-owner at the Beckjord Unit 6 facility, filed their Long-term
Forecast Report with the PUCO. The plan indicated that Duke Energy plans to cease production at the Beckjord
Station, including cur commonly-owned Unit 8, in December 2014. This was followed by a notification by the joint
owners of Beckjord Unit 6 to PJM, dated April 12, 2012, of a planned June 1, 2015 deactivation of this unit. We
are depreciating Unit 6 through December 2014 and do not believe that any additional accruals or impairment
charges are needed as a result of this decision.

As part of a settlement with the USEPA regarding Hutchings Station, DP&L signed an Administrative Consent
Order and a Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) that was filed on September 26, 2013. Together, these
two agreements resclved the opacity and particulate emissions NOV at the Hutchings Station and required that
all six coal-fired units at Hutchings cease operating on coal by September 30, 2013, and included an immaterial
penalty and the completion of a Supplemental Environmental Project of $0.2 million within one year. The units
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were disabled for coal operations prior to September 30, 2013. We do not believe that any additional accruals
are needed related to the Hutchings Station. These agreements do not affect Hutchings unit 7, a small
combustion turbine.

As part of the provisional DPL purchase accounting adjustmenis related to the Merger, four stations (Beckjord,
Conesville, East Bend and Hutchings} had future expected cash flows that, when discounted, produced a fair
market value different than DP&L’s carrying value. Since DP&L did not apply push down accounting, this
valuation did not affect the carrying value of these stations’ valuation at DP&L. In the fourth quarter of 2013,
DP&L performed an impairment review of its stations and recorded an impairment of $86.0 million related to two
of its stations, Conesville and East Bend. In the third quarter of 2012, PP&L performed an impairment review of
its stations, and recorded an impairment of $80.8 million related to two of the stations, Conesville and Hutchings.
See Note 15 for more information on these impairments.

Note 6 — Debt Obligations

Long-term debt is as follows:

Long-term debt
$ in millions December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Eirstmorgagebonds dueif-September.2016

Poltutlon control senes due m January 2028 - 4. 7%

e :::-_;.z_-.";u;"';’

s:ehded! 1

Current portion - long-term debt
$ in millions December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
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At December 31, 2013, maturities of long-term debt, including capital lease obligations, are summarized as
follows:

Due within the twelve months ending December 31,
$ in millions

On December 4, 2008, the QAQDA issued $100.0 millicn of collateralized, variable rate Revenue Refunding
Bonds Series A and B due November 1, 2040. In turn, DP&L borrowed these funds from the OAQDA and issued
corresponding first mortgage bonds to support repayment of the funds. The payment of principal and interest on
each series of the bonds when due is backed by two standby letters of credit issued by JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A. DP&L amended these standby letters of credit on May 31, 2013 and extended the stated maturities to June
2018. These amended facilities are irrevocable, have no subjective acceleration clauses and remain subject to
terms and conditions that are substantially similar to those of the pre-existing facilities. Fees associated with this
letter of credit facility were not material during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

On April 20, 2010, DP&L entered into a $200.0 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated
bank group. The agreement provided DP&L with the ability to increase the size of the facility by an additional
$50.0 million. This agreement, originally for a three year term expiring on April 20, 2013, was extended through
May 31, 2013 pursuant to an amendment dated April 11, 2013. DP&L had no outstanding borrowings under this
credit facility at December 31, 2012 or at the termination of the agreement in May 2013. Fees associated with
this revolving credit facility were not material during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011. This
facility also contained a $50.0 million letter of credit sublimit. DP&L had no outstanding letters of credit against
the facility at December 31, 2012 or at the termination of the agreement in May 2013.

On August 24, 2011, DP&L entered into a $200.0 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated
bank group. This agreement was for a four year term expiring on August 24, 2015 and provided DP&L with the
ability to increase the size of the facility by an additional $50.0 million. DP&L had no outstanding borrowings
under this credit facility at December 31, 2012 or at the termination of the agreement in May 2013. Fees
associated with this revolving credit facility were not material during the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012 or the five months ended December 31, 2011, This facility also contains a $50.0 million letter of credit
sublimit, DP&L had no cutstanding letters of credit against the facility at December 31, 2012 or at the termination
of the agreement in May 2013.

On May 10, 2013, DP&L terminated both of the unsecured revolving credit agreements mentioned above and
concurrently closed a new $300.0 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated bank group.
This new $300.0 million facility has a five year term expiring on May 10, 2018, a $100.0 million letter of credit
sublimit and a feature which provides DP&L the ability to increase the size of the facility by an additional $100.0
million. The other terms and conditions of this new revolving credit facility are substantially similar to those of the
pre-existing DP&L revolving credit facilities. DP&L had no cutstanding borrowings under this facility at
December 31, 2013. At December 31, 2013, there was a letter of credit in the amount of $0.4 million
outstanding, with the remaining $299.6 million available to DP&L. Fees associated with this revolving credit
facility were not material during the year ended December 31, 2013.

DP&L’s prior unsecured revolving credit agreements and DP&L’s standby letters of credit had one financial
covenant which measured Total Debt to Total Capitalization. The Total Debt to Total Capitalization ratio is
calculated, at the end of each fiscal quarter, by dividing total debt at the end of the quarter by total capitalization
at the end of the quarter. DP&L’s new unsecured revolving credit agreement and DP&L’s amended standby
letters of credit maintain the Total Debt to Total Capitaiization financial covenant and add the EBITDA to Interest
Expense ratio as a second financial covenant. The EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio is calculated, at the end of
each fiscal quarter, by dividing EBITDA for the four prior fiscal quarters by the consolidated interest charges for
the same period.
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On March 1, 2011, DP&L compieted the purchase of $18.7 million of electric transmission and distribution assets
from the federal government that are located at the Wright-Patterson Air Force Base (WPAFB). DP&L financed
the acquisition of these assets with a note payable to the federal government that is payable monthly over 50
years and bears interest at 4.2% per annum.

On September 19, 2013, DP&L closed a $445.0 million issuance of senior secured first mortgage bonds. These
new bonds mature on September 15, 2016, and are secured by DP&L’s First & Refunding Mortgage. On
October 1, 2013, DP&L used the net proceeds of these new bonds, along with cash on hand, to redeem, at par
value, the $470.0 million of first mortgage bonds that matured on October 1, 2013.

Substantially all property, plant and equipment of DP&L is subject to the lien of the First and Refunding
Morigage.

Note 7 — Income Taxes

DP&L’s components of income tax expense were as follows:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011

Computatlon of tax expense

i T

Stateting nco T eataxés&néi’féf,efederal ,effect 2

Total tax expense

Components of Tax Expense

T (e S

o AL ik A k3 g fa EEor el M
State and Local current (01) 1.0 0.9
srdlotals SUrrent ASiEs TR
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December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012
Net non-current Assets / (Li abllltles)
iGN property: '

=

S Regulatoryiaseets
‘ Investment tax_cred|t

Net current assets / (liabilities)

(a) The statutory tax rate of 35% was applied to pre-tax eamings.

(b) Includes expense of $1.1 million, $7.6 million and benefit of $2.4 million in the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, of income tax related o adjustments from prior years.

{c) Amounts are included within Other prepayments and current assets on the Batance Sheets of DP&L.

The following table presents the tax (benefit) / expense related to pensicns, postemployment benefits, cash flow
hedges and financial instruments that were credited to Accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011
Tax expense / {benefit) $ 70 $ (0.8) $ (7.2)

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
We apply the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. A reconciliation of
the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits for DP&L is as follows:

$ in mtl[tons

TR

Wthi axXing rauthorit : : ; s G228
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 8.8

Of the December 31, 2013 balance of unrecognized tax benefits, $8.8 million is due to uncertainty in the timing of
deductibitity.
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We recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in Income tax expense. The following
table represents the amounts accrued as well as the expense / (benefit) recorded as of and for the pericds noted
below:

Amounts in Balance Sheet

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011
Liabiiity $ 0.2 % 08 $ 0.9
Amounts in Statement of Operations
Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011
Expense / (benefit) $ (0.6) $ 1) % 0.6

Following is a summary of the tax years open to examination by major tax jurisdiction:
U.S. Federal — 2010 and forward
State and Local — 2010 and forward

None of the unrecognized tax benefits are expected to significantly increase or decrease within the next twelve
mornths other than those subject to expiring statutes of limitations.

The Internal Revenue Service began an examination of our 2008 Federal income tax return during the second
quarter of 2010. The results of the examination were approved by the Joint Committee on Taxation on January
18, 2013. As a result of the examination, DPL received a refund of $19.9 million and recorded a $1.2 million
reduction to income tax expense.

Note 8 — Pension and Postretirement Benefits

DP&L sponsors a traditional defined benefit pension plan for most of the employees of DPL and its subsidiaries.
For collective bargaining employees, the defined benefits are based on a specific dollar amount per year of
service. For all other employees (management employees}, the traditional defined benefit pension plan is based
primarily on compensation and years of service. As of December 31, 2010, this traditional pension plan was
closed to new management employees. A participant is 100% vested in all amounts credited to his or her
account upon the completion of five vesting years, as defined in The Dayton Power and Light Company
Retirement Income Plan, or the participant's death or disability. If a participant's employment is terminated, other
than by death or disability, prior to such participant becoming 100% vested in his or her account, the account
shall be forfeited as of the date of termination. Effective December 22, 2013, certain employees of DP&L
became employees of the Service Company of the US SBU. Employees that transferred from DP&L to the
Service Company maintain their previous eligibility to participate in the DP&L pension plan.

Almost all management employees beginning employment on or after January 1, 2011 participate in a cash
balance pension plan. Similar to the traditicnal pension plan for management employees, the cash balance
benefits are based on compensation and years of service. A participant shali become 100% vested in all
amounts credited to his or her account upon the completion of three vesting years, as defined in The Dayton
Power and Light Company Retirement Income Plan, or the participant's death or disability. If a participant's
employment is terminated, other than by death or disability, prior to such participant becoming 100% vested in his
or her account, the account shall be forfeited as of the date of termination. Vested benefits in the cash balance
plan are fully portable upon termination of employment.

In addition, we have a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) for certain retired key executives. The
SERP was replaced by the DPL Inc. Supplemental Executive Defined Contribution Retirement Plan {SEDCRF)
effective January 1, 2006, which is for certain active and former key executives. Pursuant to the SEDCRP, we
provided a supplemental retirement benefit to participants by crediting an account established for each participant
in accordance with the Plan requirements. We designated as hypothetical investment funds under the SEDCRP
one or more of the investment funds provided under The Dayton Power and Light Company Employee Savings
Plan. Each participant could change his or her hypothetical investment fund selection at specified times. If a
participant did not elect a hypothetical investment fund(s), then we selected the hypothetical investment fund(s)
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for such participant. Per the SEDCRP plan document, the balances in the SEDCRP, including earnings on
contributions, were paid out to participants in December 2011, following the merger with AES on November 28,
2011. However, the SEDCRP continued and 2012 and 2011 contributions were calculated and paid in March
2013 and 2012, respectively. The SEDCRP was terminated by the Board of Directors as of December 31, 2012,
We also have an immaterial unfunded liability related to agreements for retirement benefits of certain terminated
and retired key executives.

We generally fund pension plan benefits as accrued in accordance with the minimum funding requirements of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and, in addition, make voluntary contributions from
time to time. There were no contributions during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. DP&L made a
discretionary contribution of $40.0 million during the year ended December 31, 2011.

Qualified employees who retired prior to 1987 and their dependents are eligible for health care and life insurance
benefits until their death, while qualified employees who retited after 1987 are eligible for life insurance benefits
and partially subsidized health care. The partially subsidized health care is at the election of the employee, who
pays the majority of the cost, and is available only from their retirement until they are covered by Medicare. We
have funded a portion of the unien-eligible benefits using a Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association Trust.

We recognize an asset for a plan’s overfunded status and a liability for a plan’s underfunded status and
recognize, as a component of OCl, the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that
are not recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost. For the transmission and distribution areas of
our electric business, these amounts are recorded as regulatory assets and liabilities which represent the
regulated portion that would otherwise be charged or credited to AOCI. We have historically recorded these
costs on the accrual basis and this is how these costs have been historically recovered through customer rates.
This factor, combined with the historical precedents from the PUCQO and FERC, make these costs probable of
future rate recovery.

The following tables set forth the changes in our pension and postemployment benefit plans' obligations and
assets recorded on the balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, The amounts presented in the
following tables for pension include the collective bargaining plan formula, traditional management plan formula
and cash balance plan formula and the SERP in the aggregate. The amounts presented for postemployment
include both health and life insurance benefits.

$ in millions Pension
Years ended December 31,
2013 2012

Change_m bei‘leflt obligation
B é‘héfltrb BliGAtoHatbeginnIRg

Sri6d

e z-( i

Gtiarai{gain)7:1os
Beneflts pa:d ]

e A.-' £ 35

HplaniassetaatbeginnNg orpe
Actual return on‘
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$ in millions Postretirement
Years ended December 31,
2013 2012

Change in bensf_lt pbl‘lgﬂon _

Serwce cost
Intefestice
Actuarial (galn) / Ioss
Banefits ipaids
Medicare Part D relmbursement
Benelifcbligation at

{003 A S

Change in plan assets

TR

lisiofiblaniassetsratbeginning:of
Actual return on plan assets

Eundedstatis’ofiplan

$ in millions Pension Postretirement
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Amounts recognized in the Balance sheets
Cirrentiiabilities 5&*

Non current Ilabilmes

NEtTiabiity aavearendeaiDe

Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income, Regulatory Assets
and Regulatory Liabilities, pre-tax
Components

Accumuiated Other Comprehensive Income,
Regulatory Assets and Regulaiory Liabilities,
pre-tax $ 131.4 $ 155.1 $ 6.2) § (4.9)
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The accumulated benefit obligation for our defined benefit pension plans was $359.8 million and $382.5 miilion at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The net periodic benefit cost (income) of the pension and postemployment benefit plans were:

Net Periodic Benefit Cost - Pension

Years ended December 31,
$ in millions 2013 2012 2011
Sérvice costa $ : -5
Interest cost

iuActutétr}lal\»qaln
Prior service cost

NEtipetivdic benefitcost:before adjustments:

Settlement Expense

Neétpetiddichenetitic

taftatatjustiments:

(a) For purposes of calculating the expected return on pension plan assets under GAAP, the market-related value of assets (MRVA)
is used. GAAP requires that the difference between actual plan asset returns and estimated plan asset returns be amortized into
the MRVA equally over a period not to exceed five years. We use a methodology under which we include the difference between
actual and estimated asset returns in the MRVA equally over a three year period. The MRVA used in the caiculation of expected
return on pension plan assets was approximately $351.2 million in 2013, $346.0 million in 2012, and $335.0 millicn in 2011,

Net Periodic Benefit Cost/ (Income) -
Postretirement

Years ended December 31,
$in millions 2013 2012 2011

Sérvice tost

Interest cost e 0,8 _ 0.9 1.‘07

Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligation Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income, Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liabilities

Pension

Years ended December 31,
$l|nr_rr_1'|lhqns 2013 _ 2012 2011

Prlor service cost - - 7.1
Fteversal of amortlzatron item:

Total recognlzed in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income, Regulatory Assets and
Regulatory Liabilities $ (23.8) $ (7.0) $ 19.9

Postretirement
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Years ended December 31,

$ in millions 2013

Net.actuanalloss Al AE ,

Prior service credit - - -

Reversal of amortization item:

I’ Net'actuarial gain: 0:7 20,90 A2
Prior service credit {0.1) (0.1) (0.1)

L Tansition:asset:

Total recognized in Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income, Regulatory Assets and

Regulatory Liabilities $ (1.3) $ 1.9 § (0.2)

Li

e

Aeg

Estimated amounts that will be amortized from AOCI, Regulatory assets and Regulatory liabilities into net
periodic benefit costs during 2014 are:

S Pension 7 Postretirement 7
Prnor service cost $ 28 % 0.1

$ in mllllons

Our expected return on plan asset assumptions, used to determine benefit obligations, are based on historical
long-term rates of return on investments, which use the widely accepted capital market principle that assets with
higher volatility generate a greater return over the long run. Current market factors, such as inflation and interest
rates, as well as asset diversification and portfolio rebalancing, are evaluated when long-term capital market
assumptions are determined. Peer data and historical returns are reviewed to verify reasonableness and
appropriatenass.

For 2014, we are decreasing our expected long-term rate of return assumption from 7.00% to 6.75% for pension
plan assets and we are maintaining 6.00% for postemployment benefit plan assets. These rates of return
represent our long-term assumptions based on our current portfolio mixes. Also, for 2014, we have increased
our assumed discount rate to 4.86% from 4.04% for pension and to 4.58% from 3.75% for postemployment
benefits expense to reflect current duration-based vield curve discount rates. A one percent change in the rate of
return assumption for pension would result in an increase or decrease to the 2014 pension expense of
approximately $3.4 million. A 25 basis point change in the discount rate for pension would result in an increase
or decrease of approximately $0.3 miliion to 2014 pension expense.

Our overall discount rate was evaluated in relation to the Aon AA Above Median Yield Curve which represents a
portfolic of Above Median AA-rated bonds used to settle pension obligations. Peer data and historical returns
were also reviewed to verify the reasonableness and appropriateness of our discount rate used in the calculation
of benefit obligations and expense.
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The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations during the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

Benefit Obligation Assumptions Pension Postretirement
2012 2011
4% 4.62%."

3.94% 3.94% 3.94% N/A N/A

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost (income) for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

Net Periodic Benefit
Cost / (Income)} Assumptions Pension Postretirement

2012

Expected rate of return
on plan assets 6 35%

Bétsiotcompansationincraase 3:94%

7.00%

949

The assumed health care cost trend rates at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Health Care Cost Assumptions Expense Benefit Obligation

2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

Bte healcaraGostittendia
The assumed health care cost trend rates have an effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A

one-percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects on the net
periodic postemployment benefit cost and the accumulated postemployment benefit obligation:

Effect of change in health care cost trend rate

One-percent One-percent
iﬂ rggllgqs E— mcreaigi? decrease _
SETicesatplusHinteresticost : 0N, (01
Benefit obligation $ 09 $ {0.8)

Benefit payments, which reflect future service, are expected to be paid as follows:

Estimated future benefit payments and Medicare Part D reimbursements
. . P

We expect to make contributions of $0.4 million to cur SERP in 2014 to cover benefit payments. We also expect
to contribute $1.9 million to our other postemployment benefit plans in 2014 to cover benefit payments,
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The Pension Protection Act of 2006 (the Act) contained new requirements for our single employer defined benefit
pension plan. In addition to establishing a 100% funding target for plan years beginning after December 31,
2008, the Act also limits some benefits if the funded status of pension plans drops below certain thresholds.
Among other restrictions under the Act, if the funded status of a plan falls below a predetermined ratio of 80%,
lump-sum payments to new retirees are limited to 50% of amounts that otherwise would have been paid and new
benefit improvements may not go into effect. Forthe 2013 plan year, the funded status of our defined benefit
pensicn plan as calculated under the requirements of the Act was 113.96% and is estimated to be 113.96% until
the 2014 status is certified in September 2014 for the 2014 plan year. The Worker, Retiree, and Employer
Recovery Act of 2008 (WRERA), which was signed into law on December 23, 2008, grants plan sponsors certain
relief from funding requirements and benefit restrictions of the Act.

Plan Assets

Plan assets are invested using a total return investment approach whereby a mix of equity securities, debt
securities and other investments are used to preserve asset values, diversify risk and achieve our target
investment return benchmark. Investment strategies and asset allocations are based on careful consideration of
plan liabilities, the plan's funded status and our financial condition. Investment performance and asset allocation
are measured and monitored on an ongoing basis.

Plan assets are managed in a balanced portfolic comprised of two major components: an equity portion and a
fixed income portion. The expected role of Plan equity investments is to maximize the long-term real growth of
Plan assets, while the role of fixed income investments is to generate current income, provide for more stable
periodic returns and provide some protection against a prolonged decline in the market vaiue of Plan equity
investments.

Long-term strategic asset allocation guidelines are determined by management and take into account the Plan's
long-term objectives as well as its shont-term constraints. The target allocations for plan assets are 30 - 80% for
equity securities, 30 - 65% for fixed income securities, 0 — 10% for cash, and Q - 25% for alternative investments.
Equity securities include U.S. and international equity, while fixed income securities include long-duration and
high-vyield bond funds and emerging market debt funds. Other types of investments include hedge funds that
follow several different strategies.
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The fair values of our pension plan assets at December 31, 2013 by asset category are as foliows:

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Plan Assets at December 31, 2013

Ctuoted
prices
in active
Market Value markets for  Significant Significant
Asset Category at December identical observable unobservable
$ in millions 31,2013 assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)

Equity securities */
Small/iidcap gty
Large cap equity
onaliequi : = ;2 i 3 : =
Emerglng markets equlty 3.2 3.2 - -
SliT-dynamiciequrt 10;
Total equity securities 65.3 65.3 - -

Debt Securities ©
EicrgingianeiEiies

Total debt securities

Cash and cash equivalents (c}

{a) This category includes investments in equity securities of large, small and medium sized companies and equity securities of
foreign companies including those in developing countries. The funds are valued using the net asset value method in which an
average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the funds.

{b) This category includes invesiments in investment-grade fixed-income instruments that are designed to mirror the term of the
pension assets and generally have a tenor between 10 and 30 years. The funds are valued using the net asset value method in
which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the fund.

{c) This category comprises cash held to pay beneficiaries. The fair value of cash equals its book value.

(d) This category represents a property fund that invests in commercial real estate and a hedge fund of funds made up of 30+
different hedge fund managers diversified over gight different hedge strategies. The fair value of the funds is valued using the net
asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the fund.
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The fair values of our pension plan assets at December 31, 2012 by asset category are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Plan Assets at December 31, 2012

Quoted prices

in active
Market Value  markets for Significant Significant
Asset Category at December identical cbservable  unobservable
$ in millions 31, 2012 assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

{a)

Sinal

T

Equity securltles

nterhatlenalfequ ity B 2 B
Total equity securities 101.8 101.8 - -

Debt S_ecunhes ’

Total -debt securities 208.7 208.7 ) A

Cash and cash equivalents e}

{a) This category includes investments in equity securities of large, small and medium sized companies and equity securities of
foreign companies including those in developing countries. The funds are valued using the net asset value method in which an
average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the fund except for the DPL common stock which is
valued using the closing price on the New York Stock Exchange.

(b} This category includes investments in investment-grade fixed-income instruments, U.S. dollar-denominated debt securities of
emerging market issuers and high yield fixed-income securities that are rated below investment grade. The funds are valued using
the net assef value method in which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the fund.

(c) This category comptises cash held to pay beneficiaries. The fair value of cash equals its book value.

(d) This category represents a hedge fund of funds made up of 30+ different hedge fund managers diversified over eight different
hedge strategies. The fair value of the hedge fund is valued using the net asset value method in which an average of the market
prices for the underlying investments is used to value the fund.

This disclosure reflects changes in the 2012 presentation for $310.5 million of equity and debt mutual funds that
were previously presented as Level 2 fair value measurements which have been reclassified as Level 1 fair value
measurements. In addition, this disclosure reflects changes in the 2012 presentation for $37.0 million of
alternative investment funds that were previously presented as Level 3 fair value measurements which have
been reclassified as Level 2 fair value measurements. This change in presentaticn does not impact the fair value
of the securities or the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012,
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The fair values of our other postemployment benefit plan assets at December 31, 2013 by asset category are as
follows:

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Plan Assets at December 31, 2013

Quoted
prices
in active
Market Value  markets for Significant Significant
Asset Category at December identical observable unohservable
$ in millions 31,2013 assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
JP Morgan Core Bond Fund # $ 37 $ 37 $ - % -

(a} This category includes investments in U.S. government obligations and mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. The funds
are valued using the net asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to
valus the fund.

The fair values of our other postemployment benefit plan assets at December 31, 2012 by asset category are as
follows:

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Plan Assets at December 31, 2012

Quoted prices

in active
Market Value  markets for Significant Significant
Asset Category at December identical observable  uncbservable
$ in miflions 31, 2012 assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
JP Morgan Core Bond Fund $ 42 $ 42 % - % -

(a) This category includes investments in U.S. government obligations and mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. The funds
are valued using the net asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to
value the fund.

This disclosure reflects changes in the 2012 presentation for $4.2 million of debt mutual funds that were
previously presented as Level 2 fair value measurements which have been reclassified as Level 1 fair value
measurements. This change in presentation does not impact the fair value of the securities or the financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2012.

During October 1992, our Board of Directors approved the formation of a Company-sponsored ESOP to fund
matching contributions to DP&L’s 401 (k) retirement savings plan and certain other payments to eligible full-time
employees. ESOP shares that were used to fund matching contributions to DP&L’s 401(k) vested after either
two or three years of service in accordance with the match formula effective for the respective plan match year,
other compensation shares awarded vested immediately. In 1992, the ESOP Plan entered into a $90 millien loan
agreement with DPL in order to putchase shares of DPL common stock in the open market. The leveraged
ESOP was funded by an exempt loan, which was secured by the ESOP shares. As debt service payments were
made on the loan, shares were released on a pro rata basis. The term loan agreement provided for principal and
interest on the loan to be paid prior to October 9, 2007, with the right to extend the loan for an additional ten
years. In 2007, the maturity date was extended to October 7, 2017, Effective January 1, 2009, the interest on
the loan was amended to a fixed rate of 2.06%, payable annually. Dividends received by the ESOP were used to
repay the principal and interest on the ESOP loan to DPL. Dividends on the allocated shares were charged to
retained earnings and the share value of these dividends was allocated to participants.

During December 2011, the ESOP Plan was terminated and paricipant balances were transferred to one of the
two DP&L sponsored defined contribution 401 (k) plans. On December 5, 2011, the ESOP Trust paid the total
outstanding principal and interest of $68 million on the loan with DPL, using the merger proceeds from DPL
common stock held within the ESQOP suspense account.

Compensation expense recorded, based on the fair value of the shares committed to be released, amounied to
$4.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Note 9 — Fair Vaiue Measurements

The fair values of our financial instruments are based on published sources for pricing when possible. We rely on
valuation models only when no other method is available to us. The fair value of our financial instruments
represents estimates of possible value that may or may not be realized in the future. The table below presents
the fair value and cost of our non-detivative instruments at December 31, 2013 and 2012. See also Note 10 for
the fair values of our derivative instruments.

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
8§ in millions Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Assets
i Moneyimatkat funds
Equity securities
| Dbt sacuities:
_Hedge Funds
‘RealEstatss: -
Total assets $

Liab_ilities
['Déb

Debt

The fair value of debt is based on current public market prices for disclosure purposes only. Unrealized gains or
losses are not recognized in the financial statements as debt is presented at amortized cost in the financial
statements. The debt amounts inciude the current portion payable in the next twelve months and have maturities
that range from 2013 to 2061.

Master Trust Assets

DP&L established a Master Trust to hold assets that could be used for the benefit of employees participating in
employee benefii plans and these assets are not used for general operating purposes. These assels are
primarily comprised of open-ended mutual funds which are valued using the net asset value per unit. These
investments are recorded at fair value within Other assets on the balance sheets and classified as available for
sale. Any unrealized gains or losses are recorded in AQCI until the securities are soid.

DP&L had $1.2 million ($0.7 million after tax) in unrealized gains and immaterial unrealized losses on the Master
Trust assets in AOCI at December 31, 2013 and $1.6 million ($1 million after tax) in unrealized gains and
immaterial unrealized losses in AQCI at December 31, 2012.

Various investments were sold during the past twelve moenths to facilitate the distribution of benefits. During the
past twelve months, $2.1 million ($1.4 mittion after tax) of unrealized gains were reversed into earnings. Over the
next twelve months, $0.1 million ($0.1 million after tax) of unrealized gains are expected to be reversed to
earnings.

Net Asset Value {(NAV) per Unit

The following tables disclose the fair value and redemption frequency for those assets whose fair value is
estimated using the NAV per unit as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. These assets are part of the Master Trust.
Fair values estimated using the NAV per unit are considered Level 2 inputs within the fair value hierarchy, unless
they cannot be redeemed at the NAV per unit on the reporting date. Investments that have restrictions on the
redemption of the investments are Level 3 inputs. As of December 31, 2013, DP&L did not have any
investments for sale at a price different from the NAV per unit.
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Fair Value Estimated Using Net Asset Value per Unit

Fair Value at
December 31, Unfunded Redemption
$ |n mllllons _ 2013 Commitments VFrreqL_JenCy

medi e
Quarterly

$ 115 §$

(a) This category includes investments in high-quality, short-term securities. Investments in this category can be redeemed
immediately at the current NAV.

(b) This category includes investments in hedge funds representing an S&P 500 Index and the Morgan Stanley Capital International
U.8. Small Cap 1750 Index. Investments in this category can be redeemed immediately at the current NAV per unit.

{c) This category includes investments in U.S. Treasury obligations and U.S. investment grade bonds. Investments in this category
can be redeemed immediately at the current NAV per unit.

{d) This category includes hedge funds investing in fixed income securities and currencies, short and long-term equity investments,
and a diversified fund with investments in bonds, stocks, real estate and commodities.

(e} This category includes EFT real estate funds that investin U.S. and International properties.

Fair Value Estimated Using Net Asset Value per Unit

Fair Value at
December 31, Unfunded Redemption
$ in mllllons _ ‘ ‘2012 Commitments Fre_quency

Zimmediate’
Immediate
Imimediate:
Immediate

(a) This category includes investments in high-quality, short-term securities. Investments in this category can be redeemed
immediately at the current net asset value per unit.

{b) This category includes investments in hedge funds representing an S&P 500 index and the Morgan Stanley Capital International
(MSCI) U.S. Small Cap 1750 Index. Investments in this category can be redeemed immediately at the current net asset value per

unit.
{c) This category includes investments in U.S. Treasury obligations and U.S. investment grade bonds. Investments in this category

can be redeemed immediately at the current net asset value per unit.
(d) This category includes a mix of actively managed funds holding investments in stocks, bonds and short-term investments in a mix
of actively managed funds. Investments in this category can be redesemed immaediately at the current nat asset value per unit.

Fair Value Hierarchy
Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an
exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants on the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy requires an entity to maximize the use of
abservable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. These inputs are
then categorized as:

* Level 1 (quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities);

¢ Level 2 (observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities or quoted prices in
markets that are not active);

¢ level 3 {(unobservable inputs).

Valuations of assets and liabilities reflect the value of the instrument including the values associated with
counterparty risk. We include our own credit risk and our counterparty’s credit risk in our calculation of fair value
using global average default rates based on an annual study conducted by a farge rating agency.

We did not have any transfers of the fair values of our financial instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy during the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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The fair value of assets and liabilities at December 31, 2013 and 2012 measured on a recurring basis and the
respective category within the fair value hierarchy for DP&L was determined as follows:

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Level! 1 Level 2 Level 3
Based on
Quoted
Prices
Fair Value at in Other
December 31, Active observable Unobservable
$ in millions 2013 (a) Markets inputs inputs
Assets

Master trus;_ assets
iMorieymarket
Equn ty secu rities 4.4

Total Master trust assets ' 115 03 1.2 ;

Denvatlve assets

A

- 4Fon; ardipo\}vergcmtracts

(a}) Includes credit valuation adjustment.
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Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Based on
Fair Value at  Quoted Prices QOther
December 31, in observable  Unobservable
$ in millions 2012 (a) Active Markets inputs inputs

Assets
Master trust assets
[ Mon&y market tings:
Equity securities
Jebt:sEcurtEs
Multi-strategy fund
“TotaliMastertrustasset:

prarmny
g

ey

Derivative assets
- Heating oirutlires: e - ,
Forward power contracts o 73 7.3

-,

idetivativeiassat

Liabilities
Denvatwe habnhhes

_Forward power contacrs ,_ 16
ETotaldeivatvaiiabilitios S 2

{a) Includes credit valuation adjustment.

Qur financial instruments are valued using the market approach in the following categories:
» Level 1 inputs are used for derivative contracts such as heating oil futures and for money market
accounts that are considered cash equivalents. The fair value is determined by reference to quoted
market prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions.

* Level 2 inputs are used to value derivatives such as forward power contracts and forward NYMEX-quality
coal contracts (which are traded on the OTC market but which are valued using prices on the NYMEX for
similar contracts on the OTC market). Other Level 2 assets include: open-ended mutual funds that are
in the Master Trust, which are valued using the end of day NAV per unit; and interest rate hedges, which
use observable inputs to populate a pricing model.

¢ Level 3 inputs such as financial transmission rights are considered a Leve! 3 input because the monthly
auctions are considered inactive. Qur Level 3 inputs are immaterial to our derivative balances as a whole
and as such ne further disclosures are presented.

Our debt is fair valued for disclosure purposes only and most of the fair values are determined using quoted
market prices in inactive markets. These fair value inputs are considered Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. Our
long-term leases and the WPAFB note are not publicly traded. Fair value is assumed to equal carrying value,
These fair value inputs are considered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as there are no observable inputs.
Additional Level 3 disclosures were not presented since debt is not recorded at fair value.

Approximately 95% of the inputs to the fair value of our derivative instruments are from quoted market prices for
DP&L.
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Non-recurring Fair Value Measurements

We use the cost approach to determine the fair value of our AROs which are estimated by discounting expected
cash outflows to their present value at the initial recording of the liability. Cash outflows are based on the
approximate future disposal cost as determined by market information, historical information or other
management estimates. These inputs to the fair value of the AROs would be considered Level 3 inputs under
the fair value hierarchy. An ARO liability in the amount of $0.1 million was established in 2012 associated with a
gypsum landfill disposal site that is presently under construction. This increase in 2012 was offset by a $0.1
million reduction in ARO for asbestos as a result of an acceleration of removal and remediation activities. There
were no additions to our ARQOs during the year ended December 31, 2013.

When evaluating impairment of goodwill and fong-lived assets, we measure fair value using the applicable fair
value measurement guidance. Impairment expense is measured by comparing the fair value at the evaluation
date to the carrying amount. The following table summarizes major categories of assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis during the period and their level within the fair value hierarchy:

$ in millions Year ended December 31, 2013
Carrying Fair Value Gross
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Loss
Assets

Long-lived assets held and used @

R L R

East Bend

$ in millions Year ended December 31, 2012
Carrying Fair Value Gross
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Loss

‘Hutchlngs' - $ 8.3 $ s - 3 - % 8.3

(@) See Note 15 for further information.

The following table summarizes the significant unobservable inputs used in the Level 3 measurement of long-
lived assets during the year ended December 31, 2013:

Fair Range {(Weighted
$ in millions Value  Valuation Technigue _ Unobservable input Average)
Long-lived assets held and used:
F’"—E‘

%)

Annual pretax
operatlng margln

% 10 18% (10%)

MA.n‘nuai pretax
operating margin -3% to 34% (15%)

Note 10— Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

in the normal course of business, DP&L enters into various financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments. We use derivatives principally to manage the risk of changes in market prices for commodities and
interest rate risk associated with our long-term debt. The derivatives that we use to economically hedge these
risks are governed by our risk management policies for forward and futures contracts. Qur net positions are
continually assessed within our structured hedging programs to determine whether new or offsetting transactions
are required. The objective of the hedging program is to mitigate financial risks while ensuring that we have
adequate resources to meet our requirements. We monitor and value derivative positions monthly as part of our
risk management processes. We use published sources for pricing, when possibie, to mark positions to market.
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All of our derivative instruments are used for risk management purposes and are designated as cash flow hedges
or marked to market each reporting period.

At December 31, 2013, DP&L had the following cutstanding derivative instruments:

Net
Purchases/
Accounting Purchases Sales (Sales)
Treatment Unit (in thousands) (in thousands) ({in thousands)
‘Marke 1:

MW

Forward Power Contracts Mark to Market MWh 3,172.4 (2,888.5) 283.9

At December 31, 2012, DP&L had the following outstanding derivative instruments:

Net
Purchases/
Accounting
Commodit Treatment

hMarkhto I\-Ila-rket - éaliéns
MW

Mark to Market

vy

(4,760.4)

T (2,4638)

Cash Flow Hedges

As part of our risk management processes, we identify the relationships between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
The fair values of cash flow hedges determined by current public market prices will continue to fluctuate with
changes in market prices up to contract expiration. The effective portion of the hedging transaction is recognized
in AOCI and transferred to earnings using specific identification of each contract when the forecasted hedged
transaction takes place or when the forecasted hedged transaction is probable of not occurring. The ineffective
portion of the cash flow hedge is recognized in earnings in the current period. All risk components were taken
into account to determine the hedge effectiveness of the cash flow hedges.

We enter into forward power contracts to manage commodity price risk exposure related to our generation of

electricity. We do not hedge all commaodity price risk. We reclassify gains and losses on forward power contracts
from AQCI into earnings in those periods in which the contracts settle.
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The following table provides information for DP&L concerning gains or losses recognized in AOCI for the cash
flow hedges:

Year ended December Year ended December Year ended December

31, 2013 31,2012 31, 2011
Interest Interest interest
Rate Rate Rate
$ in millions (net of tax) Power Hedge Power Hedge Power Hedge _

Ne loS8Es
RUfrehtpericahedgikg:

Net galns recIaSS|f|ed to earnlngs

Net gains or losses associated with the ineffective portion of the hedging transactions were immaterial in the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

(a) The actual amounts that we raclassify from AOCI to eamings related to power can differ from the estimate above due to market
price changes.

Mark to Market Accounting

Certain derivative contracts are entered into on a regular basis as part of our risk management program but do
not qualify for hedge accounting or the normal purchases and sales exceptions under FASC 815. Accordingly,
such contracts are recorded at fair value with changes in the fair value charged or credited to the statements of
results of operations in the period in which the change occurred. This is commonly referred to as “MTM
accounting.” Contracts we enter into as part of our risk management program may be settled financially, by
physical delivery or net settled with the counterparty. We mark to market FTRs, heating oil futures, forward
NYMEX-quality coal contracts and certain forward power contracts.

Certain qualifying derivative instruments have been designated as normal purchases or normal sales contracts,
as provided under GAAP. Derivative contracts that have been designated as normal purchases or normal sales
under GAAP are not subject to MTM accounting treatment and are recognized in the statements of results of
operations on an accrual basis.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

In accordance with regulatory accounting under GAAP, a cost that is probable of recovery in future rates shouid
be deferred as a regulatory asset and a gain that is probable of being returned to customers should be deferred
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as a regulatory liability. Portions of the derivative contracts that are marked to market each reporting period and
are related to the retail portion of DP&L’s icad requirements are included as part of the fuel and purchased
power recovery rider approved by the PUCO which began January 1, 2010. Therefore, the Ohio retail customers’
portion of the heating oil futures are deferred as a regulatory asset or liability until the contracts settle. If these
unrealized gains and losses are no longer deemed to be probable of recovery through our rates, they will be
reclassified into earnings in the period such determination is made.

The following tables show the amount and classification within the statements of results of operations or balance
sheets of the gains and losses on DP&L’s detivatives not designated as hedging instruments for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Year ended December 31, 2013
NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating Oil FTRs Power Total
Derivatives not designated as hedgmg instruments
FChangeimn unrealiize 8
Reahzed gam

R

Regulatory asset - - - - -

Recorded in Income Statement: gain/ (loss)

Year ended December 31, 2012
NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating Qil FTRs Power Total
Derlvatwes not deSIgnated as | hed mg mstruments

Regulatory(asset / Ilablllty 1.0 (0.6) - - 0.4

Recorded in Income Statement: gain / (loss)
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Year ended December 31, 2011

NYMEX
$ in millions Coal Heating Qil FTRs Power Total
Derlvatlves not demgnated as hed ing instr um ntsr )

Re-gulatory asset (7.1) - - o (7.1)

Recorded in Income Statement: gain / (loss)

FBevenie Y-
Purchased Power - - (0.7) 3.86) (4.3)
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The following tables show the fair value and balance sheet classification of DP&L’s derivative instruments at
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments
December 31, 2013

Gross Amounts Not
Offset in the Balance
Sheets

Gross Fair  Financial
Value as  Instruments
presented  with Same
in the Counterparty
Hedging Balance in Offsetting Cash
$ in millions Designation _ Sheets Position Collateral Net Amount
Assets
Short-term derwatlve positions resented in Other current assets

d assets)
305

Forward power contracts MTM 6.6 7 (4.2)‘ (2.3) 0.1

Long-term derlyatlve posmons {presented in Other deferred Ilablllties
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Fair Values of Derivative Instruments
December 31, 2012

Gross Amounts Not Offset
in the Balance Sheets

Financial
Gross Fair  Instruments
Value as with Same
presented in Counterparty
Hedging  the Balance in Offsetting Cash
$ in millions Designation Sheets Position Collateral  Net Amount

Assets
Short-term detivative po

sitions (presented in Other current assets)

Liabilities
Short-term derwatwe posmons {presented in Other current liabilities)

Tdibowercontras

Forward power contracts

Certain of our OTC commodity derivative contracts are under master netting agreemenits that contain provisions
that require our debt to maintain an investment grade credit rating from credit rating agencies. Since our debt
has fallen below investment grade, we are in viclation of these provisions, and the counterparties to the derivative
instruments could request immediate payment or demand immediate and ongoeing full overnight collateralization
of the MTM loss. Since our debt has fallen below investment grade, some of our counterparties to the derivative
instruments have requested collateralization of the MTM loss.,

The aggregate fair value of DP&L’s derivative instruments that are in a MTM loss position at December 31, 2013
is $10.6 million. This amount is offset by $5.6 million in a broker margin account and with other counterparties
which offsets our loss positions on the forward contracts. This liability position is further offset by the asset
position of counterparties with master netting agreements of $4.7 million. If DP&L debt were to fall below
investment grade, DP&L could be required to post collateral for the remaining $0.3 million.

Note 11 — Share-based Compensation

In April 2006, DPL’s shareholders approved The DPL Inc. Equity and Performance Incentive Plan {the EPIP)
which became immediately effective for a term of ten years. The Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors designated the employees and directors eligible to participate in the EPIP and the times and types of
awards to be granted. A total of 4,500,000 shares of DPL common stock had been reserved for issuance under
the EPIP. The EPIP also covered certain employees of DP&L.
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As a result of the Merger, discussed in Note 2, vesting cf all share-based awards was accelerated as of the
Merger date. The remaining compensation expense of $5.5 million ($3.6 million after tax) was expensed as of
the Merger date.

The following table summarizes share-based compensation expense (note that there is no share-based
compensation activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Year ended
8§ in millions December 31, 2011
Performance shares 2.4
Restiictedshares T T 5a
Non-employee directors' RSUs @ 0.6
Share-baged compensation included in Operation and maintenance expense _ 10.1
ireone taxberet T {3
Total share-based compensation, net of tax $ 6.6

{a) Includes an amount associated with compensation awarded to DPL’s Board of Directors which is immaterial in total.

Share-based awards issued in DPL’s common stock were distributed from treasury stock prior to the Merger; as
of the Merger date, remaining share-based awards were distributed in cash in accordance with the Merger
agreement.

Determining Fair Value

Valuation and Amortizafion Method — We estimated the fair value of performance shares using a Monte Carlo
simulation; restricted shares were valued at the closing market price on the day of grant and the Directors’ RSUs
were valued at the closing market price on the day prior to the grant date. We amortized the fair value of all
awards on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods, which are generally the vesting periods.

Expected Volatility — Our expected volatility assumptions were based on the historical volatility of DPL common
stock. The volatility range captured the high and low volatility values for each award granted based on its specific
terms.

Expected Life -~ The expected life assumption represented the estimated period of time from the grant date until
the exercise date and teflected historical employee exercise patterns.

Risk-Free Interest Rafe — The risk-free interest rate for the expected term of the award was based on the
corresponding yield curve in effect at the time of the valuation for U.S. Treasury bonds having the same term as
the expected life of the award, i.e., a five-year bond rate was used for valuing an award with a five year expected
lite.

Expected Dividend Yield — The expected dividend yield was based on DPL’s current dividend rate, adjusted as
necessary to capture anticipated dividend changes and the 12 month average DPL common stock price.

Expected Forfeitures — The forfeiture rate used to calculate compensation expense was based on DPL’s
historical experience, adjusted as necessary to reflect special circumstances.

Stock Options

In 2000, DPL's Board of Directors adopted and DPL's sharehotders approved The DPL tnc. Stock Option Plan.
With the approval of the EPIP in April 2006, no new awards were granted under The DPL Inc. Stock Option Plan.
Prior to the Merger, all outstanding stack options had been exercised or had expired.
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Summarized stock option activity was as follows (note that there is no stock option activity after November 27,
2011 as a result of the Merger):

Year ended
December 31, 2011
Options: _ L
{outstanding: T 3B 500
Granted B -
\Exergised: [75:500)
Expired (276,000)
I:aForfeited: T L

Outstanding at end of period T

Rableatend oh period TE _ RS

Wetghted average o optlon prices per share:
e andingsat beginningiof:period

Outstandmg at end of penod ' s S

Exeroisable atendotpaniod

The following table reflects information about stock option activity during the pericd (note that there is no stock
option activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Year ended

$ in millions _ December 31, 2011

e\ ) gra; Gaunng: eriod: e
Intrlnsm value of OQtIOHS exermsed dur Jllg thel period $ 07
S¥bcestsHrom-options.exercisediunng the:paric =§ P )
Excess tax beneﬁt from proceeds of opttons exercrsed 0.2

oensatlon expense

ge perbdio recoanize Compensationiexpenaesin Vears

Performance Shares

Under the EPIP, the Board of Directors adopted a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) under which DPL granted a
targeted number of performance shares of common stock to executives. Grants under the LTIP were awarded
based on a Total Shareholder Return Relative to Peers performance. The Total Shareholder Return Relative to
Peers is considered a market condition in accordance with the accounting guidance for share-based
compensation.

At the Merger date, vesting for all non-vested LTIP performance shares was accelerated on a pro rata basis and

such shares were cashed out at the $30.00 per share merger consideration price in accordance with the Merger
agreement.
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Summarized performance share activity was as follows (note that there is no performance share activity after
November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Year ended
December 31, 2011

Performance shares

[ EDividendst
Exercised

Outstandlng at end of period ' _

- Seea

xercisablesatiendiofperiod:

The following table reflects information about performance share activity during the period (note that there is no
performance share activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Year ended
December 31, 2011

e

frdceeds FrON DN O NANGE Bh aT"‘és“f’exerc;sed*dunhq;th’e DEfod s
Excess tax benefit from proceeds of performance shares exercnsed

T Tt e o W o E N e F‘"t-'
Fairvalie ofiperormance shares that edrrr
Unrecogmzed compensatlo expense

A L

Weighted averagaineriod toracognizes

compénsationieXpense-inyears):

The following table shows the assumptions used in the Monte Carlo simulation to calculate the fair value of the
performance shares granted during the period:

Year ended
$in mliilons December 31, 2011
ExpEcisduor S &
Weighted average expected volatility

SR

Sightediavarageiexpectaddividends.
Risk-free interest rate

%pecteﬁd dlwdends‘
&i

Restricted Shares

Under the EPIP, the Board of Directors granted shares of DPL Restricted Shares to various executives and other
key employees. These Restricted Shares were registered in the recipient’'s name, carried full voting privileges,
received dividends as declared and paid on all DPL common stock and vested after a specified service period.

In July 2008, the Board of Directors granted Restricted Share awards under the EPIP 1o a select group of
management employees. The management Restricted Share awards had a three-year requisite service period,
carried full voting privileges and received dividends as declared and paid on all DPL commen stock.

On September 17, 2009, the Board of Directors approved a two-part equity compensation award under the EPIP
for certain of DPL’s executive officers. The first part was a Restricted Share grant and the second part was a
matching Restricted Share grant. These Restricted Share grants generally vested after five years if the
participant remained continuously employed with DPL or a DPL subsidiary and if the year-over-year average
EPS had increased by at least 1% from 2009 to 2013. Under the matching Restricted Share grant, participants
had a three-year period from the date of plan implementation during which they could purchase DPL common
stock equal in value to up to two times their 2009 base salary. DPL matched the shares purchased with another
grant of Restricted Shares {matching Restricted Share grant). The percentage match by DPL is detailed in the
table below. The matching Restricted Share grant would have generaily vested over a three-year period if the
participant continued to hold the originally purchased shares and remained continuously employed with DPL ora
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DPL subsidiary. The Restricted Shares were registered in the recipient’s name, carried full voting privileges and
received dividends as declared and paid on all DPL common stock.

The matching criteria were:

Company % Match of
Value (Cost Basis) of Shared Purchased Value of Shares

~100% 1o 200% 125%

The matching percentage was applied on a cumulative basis and the resulting Restricted Share grant was
adjusted at the end of each calendar quarter. As a result of the Merger, the matching Restricted Share grants
were suspended in March 2011.

In February 2011, the Board of Directors granted a targeted number of time-vested Restricted Shares to
executives under the LTIP. These Restricted Shares did not carry voting privileges nor did they receive dividend
rights during the vesting period. In addition, a one-year holding period was implemented after the three-year
vesting period was completed.

Restricted Shares could only be awarded in DPL common stock.

At the Merger date, vesting for all non-vested Restricted Shares was accelerated and all outstanding shares were
cashed out at the $30.00 per share merger consideration price in accordance with the Merger agreement.

Summarized Restricted Share activity was as follows (note that there is no Restricted Share activity after
November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Year ended
December 31, 2011

Restncted shares

219;391:
67,346
(286:737)

The following table reflects information about Restricted Share activity during the period (note that there is no
Restricted Share activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Year ended
$ in millions December 31, 2011

P

pensexinyeal

Non-Employee Director RSUs

Under the EPIP, as part of their annual compensation for service to DPL and DP&L, each non-employee Director
received a retainer in RSUs on the date of the shareholders’ annual meeting. The RSUs became non-forfeitable
on April 15 of the following year. The RSUs accrued quarterly dividends in the form of additional RSUs. Upon
vesting, the RSUs became exercisable and were distributed in DPL common stock, unless the Director chose to
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defer receipt of the shares until a later date. The RSUs were valued at the closing stock price on the day prior to
the grant and the compensation expense was recognized evenly over the vesting period.

At the Merger date, vesting for the remaining non-vested RSUs was accelerated and all vested RSUs (current
and prior years) were cashed out at the $30.00 per share merger consideration price in accordance with the
Merger agreement.

The following table reflects information about RSU activity (note that there is no non-employee Director RSU
activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Year ended
December 31, 2011

Restr cied stock units:

LOutstanding:at:be
Granted

| Dividsndsiaccried:

Ve ted and exercised

eXercisedtanddeterred:

Forfeited

“@utstandingiatend:ofpetio

o TV

Exercisableiat:endibfiperio

(hetsl

The following table reflects information about non-employee Director RSU activity during the period (note that
there is no non-employee Director RSU activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Year ended
$ in millions _ __ __ _ ] December 31, 2011

Unrecogmzed compensatlon expens _
Waightedaverageipetioanomecounizacompensatonexpanse Tnme:

Management Performance Shares

Under the EPIP, the Board of Directors granted compensation awards for select management employees. The
grants had a three year requisite service period and ceriain performance conditions during the performance
period. The management performance shares could only be awarded in DPL common stock.

At the Merger date, vesting for all non-vested management performance shares was accelerated; some of the

awards vested at target shares and other awards vested at a pro rata share of target. All vested shares were
cashed out at the $30.00 per share merger consideration price in accordance with the Merger agreement.
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Summarized management perforrance share activity was as follows (note that there is no management
performance share activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Year ended
December 31, 2011

104,1 24
49,510
(31,081)

3 i Ay T A 89)
_Forfeited - (11 264)
[Gutstandingatien

The following table shows the assumptions used in the Monte Carlo simulation 1o calculate the fair value of the
management performance shares granted during the period:

Year ended
$in miIIions December 31 2011

ExpettedVolatilit
Welghted-averque expected volatlllty

Rlsk-free interest rate 1.

The following table reflects information about management performance share activity during the period (note
that there is no management performance share activity after November 27, 2011 as a result of the Merger):

Year ended
December 31, 2011

n expense
Fé\v_— '.‘--"“-w > “—-—{l‘m":ﬂ'{ \ #Wr‘;\-»

cognizescompensat X
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Note 12— Redeemabie Preferred Stock

DP&L has $100 par value preferred stock, 4,000,000 shares authorized, of which 228,508 were outstanding as of
December 31, 2013, DP&L also has $25 par value preferred stock, 4,000,000 shares authorized, none of which
was outstanding as of December 31, 2013. The table below details the preferred shares outstanding at
December 31, 2013 and 2012:

December 31, 2013 and Par Value
2012 {$ in millions)
Preferred Redemption
Stock price Shares December  December

$ in millions except per share amounts Rate ($ per shar_l Outstand:ng 31,2013 31, 2012 '

DE&L Séries A= 53175 5 505 :

DP&L Series B 3.76% $ 103 00 69 398

DRALSerssic - 90%: BRI 5,830 675168
Total 228 508 $ 22 9 $ 22.9

The DP&L preferred stock may be redeemed at DP&L’s cption as determined hy its Board of Directors at the
per-share redernption prices indicated above, plus cumulative accrued dividends. In addition, DP&L's Amended
Articles of Incorporation contain provisions that permit preferred stockholders to elect members of the Board of
Directors in the event that cumulative dividends on the preferred stock are in arrears in an aggregate amount
equivalent to at least four full quarterly dividends. Since this potential redemption-triggering event is not solely
within the control of DP&L, the preferred stock is presented on the Balance Sheets as "Redeemable Preferred
Stock” in @ manner consistent with temporary equity.

As long as any DP&L preferred stock is outstanding, DP&L.’s Amended Articles of Incorporation also contain
provisions restricting the payment of cash dividends on any of its common stock if, after giving effect to such
dividend, the aggregaie of all such dividends distributed subsequent to December 31, 1946 exceeds the net
income of DP&L available for dividends on its common stock subsequent to December 31, 1946, plus

$1.2 million. This dividend restriction has historically not impacted DP&L’s ability to pay cash dividends and, as
of December 31, 2013, DP&L’s retained earnings of $426.8 million were all available for common stock
dividends payable to DPL. We do not expect this restriction to have an effect on the payment of cash dividends
in the future.

Note 13— Common Shareholders’ Equity

DP&L has 250,000,000 authorized common shares, of which 41,172,173 are outstanding at December 31, 2013,
All common shares are held by DP&L’s parent, DPL.

As part of the PUCO’s approval of the Merger, DP&L agreed to maintain a capital structure that includes an
equity ratio of at least 50 percent and not to have a negative retained earnings balance.

Note 14 - Contractual Obligations, Commercial Commitments and Contingencies

DP&L — Equity Ownership Interest

DP&L has a 4.9% equity ownership interest in an electric generation company which is recorded using the cost
method of accounting under GAAP. As of December 31, 2013, DP&L could be responsible for the repayment of
4.9%, or $76.4 million, of a $1,558.4 million debt obligation comprised of both fixed and variable rate securities
with maturities between 2014 and 2040. This would only happen if this electric generation company defaulted on
its debt payments. As of December 31, 2013, we have no knowledge of such a default.
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Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
We enter into various contractual obligations and other commercial commitments that may affect the liquidity of
our operations. At December 31, 2013, these include:

Payments due in:
Less than 2-3 4-5 More than
$ in millions Total 1 year years years 5 years
DP&L:

Long-term:débt::
Interest payments
Pétisioniandipostretirement:p

37 2‘56 8

Total contraéfuai obligations $ 2,239.5 $ 323.3 $ 846.9 $ 247.2 5 '-822:1

(a) Total at DP&L operated units.

Long-term debt:
DP&L’s long-term debt as of December 31, 2013, consists of first mortgage bonds and tax-exempt pollution

control bonds. These long-term debt amounts include current maturities but exclude unamortized debt discounts.
See Note 6 for additional information.
Interest payments:

Interest payments are associated with the long-term debt described above. The interest payments relating to
variable-rate debt are projected using the interest rate prevailing at December 31, 2013.

Pension and postemployment paymenis:
As of December 31, 2013, DP&L had estimated future benefit payments as outlined in Note 8. These estimated

future benefit payments are projected through 2023.

Capital leases:
As of December 31, 2013, DP&L had one immaterial capital lease that expires in 2014.

Operating leases:
As of December 31, 2013, DP&L. had several immaterial operating leases with various terms and expiration

dates.

Coal contragts:

DP&L has entered into various long-term coal contracts to supply the coal requirements for the generating
stations it operates. Some contract prices are subject to periodic adjustment and have features that limit price
escalation in any given year.

Limestone contracts:
DP&l. has entered into various limestone contracts to supply limestone used in the operation of FGD equipment
at its generating facilities.

Purchase orders and other contractual obligations:
As of December 31, 2013, DP&L had various other contractual obligations including hon-cancelable contracts o

purchase goods and services with various terms and expiration dates.

Reserve for uncertain tax positions:

Due to the uncertainty regarding the timing of future cash outflows associated with our unrecognized tax benefits
of $8.8 million at December 31, 2013, we are unable to make a reliable estimate of the periods of cash settlement
with the respective tax authorities and have not included such amounts in the contractual obligations table above.
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Contingencies

In the normal course of business, we are subject to various lawsuits, actions, proceedings, claims and other
matters asserted under laws and regulations. We believe the amounts provided in our Financial Statements, as
prescribed by GAAP, are adequate in light of the probable and estimable contingencies. However, there can be
no assurances that the actual amounts required to satisfy alleged liabilities from various legal proceedings,
claims, tax examinations, and other matters, including the matters discussed below, and to comply with
applicable laws and regulations, will not exceed the amounits reflected in our Financial Statements. As such,
costs, if any, that may be incurred in excess of those amounts provided as of December 31, 2013, cannot be
reasonably determined.

Environmental Matiers
DP&L’s facilities and operations are subject to a wide range of federal, state and local environmental regulations
and laws. The environmental issues that may affect us include:

¢ The federal CAA and state laws and regulations (including State Implementation Plans) which require
compliance, obtaining permits and reporting as to air emissions,

¢ Litigation with federal and certain state governments and certain special interest groups regarding
whether modifications to or maintenance of certain coal-fired generating stations require additional
permitting or pollution control technology, or whether emissions from coal-fired generating stations cause
or contribute to global climate changes,

+ Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA and the Ohio EPA that require substantial reductions in
S0, particulates, mercury, acid gases, NO,, and other air emissions. DP&L has installed emission
control technology and is taking other measures to comply with required and anticipated reductions,

* Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA and the Ohio EPA that require reporting and may require
reductions of GHGs,

» Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA assaciated with the federal Clean Water Act, which prohibits
ihe discharge of pollutants into waters of the United States except pursuant o appropriate permits, and

¢ Solid and hazardous waste laws and regulations, which govern the management and disposal of certain

waste. The majority of solid waste created from the combustion of coal and fossil fuels is fly ash and
other coal combustion by-products. The USEPA has previously determined that fly ash and other coal
combustion by-products are not hazardous waste subject to the Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act (RCRA), but the USEPA is reconsidering that determination and planning to propose a new rule
regulating coal combustion by-products. A change in determination or other additional regulation of fly
ash or other coal combustion byproducts could significantly increase the costs of disposing of such by-
products.

In addition to imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws and regulations authorize the imposition of
substantial penalties for noncomgliance, including fines, injunctive relief and other sanctions. In the normal
course of business, we have investigatory and remedial activities underway at our facilities to comply, or to
determine compliance, with such regulations. We record liabilities for loss contingencies related to environmental
matters when a loss is probable of occurring and can be reasonably estimated in accordance with the provisions
of GAAP. Accordingly, we have accruals for loss contingencies of approximately $1.1 million for environmental
matters. We also have a number of envircnmental matters for which we have not accrued loss contingencies
because the risk of loss is not probable of a loss cannot be reasonably estimated, which are disclosed in the
paragraphs below. We evaluate the potential liability related to environmental matters quarterly and may revise
our estimates. Such revisions in the estimates of the potential liabilities could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

We have several pending environmenial matters associated with our coal-ired generation units. Some of these
matters could have material adverse impacts on the operation of the power stations; especially the stations that
do not have SCR and FGD equipment installed to further control certain emissions. Currently, the coal-fired
generation unit Beckjord Unit 6, in which DP&L has a 50% ownership interest, does not have such emission-
control equipment installed. This unit is scheduled to be deactivated on June 1, 2015. DPL valued Beckjord Unit
6 at zero at the Merger date. DP&L is depreciating Unit 6 through December 2014 and does not believe that any
additional accruals or impairment charges are needed as a result of this decision.

DP&L deactivated the coal units at Hutchings Station in September 2013 as part of a settlement with the USEPA
discussed in more detail below.
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Environmental Matters Related to Air Quality

Clean Air Act Compliance

In 1390, the federal government amended the CAA to further regulate air pollution. Under the CAA, the USEPA
sets limits on how much of a pollutant can be in the ambient air anywhere in the United States. The CAA allows
individual states to have stronger pollution controls than those set under the CAA, but states are not allowed to
have weaker poilution controls than those set for the whole country. The CAA has a material effect on our
operations and such effects are detailed below with respect to certain programs under the CAA.

Clean Air Interstate Rule/Cross-State Air Pollution Rule

The USEPA promulgated the “Clean Air Interstate Rule” (CAIR) on March 10, 2005, which required allowance
surrender for 80, and NO,, emissions from existing power stations located in 27 eastern states and the District of
Caolumbia. CAIR contemplated two implementation phases. The first phase began in 2009 and 2010 for NO, and
80,, respectively. A second phase with additional allowance surrender cobligations for both air emissions is
scheduiled to begin in 2015. To implement the required emission reductions for this rule, the states were to
establish emission-allowance-based "cap-and-trade” programs. CAIR was subsequently challenged in federal
court, and on July 11, 2008, the United States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit issued an opinion striking
down much of CAIR and remanding it to the USEPA.

In response to the D.C. Circuit's opinion, on July 7, 2011, the USEPA the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule
(CSAPR). Starting in 2012, CSAPR would have required significant reductions in SO, and NO, emissions from
covered sources, such as power stations in 28 eastemn states. Once fully implemented in 2014, the rule would
have required additional SO, emission reductions of 73% and additional NO, reductions of 54% from 2005 levels.
Many states, utilities and other affected parties filed petitions for review, challenging the CSAPR before the U.S.
Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. On August 21, 2012, a three-judge panel of the D.C. Circuit Court
vacated CSAPR, ruling that the USEPA overstepped its regulatory authority by requiring states to make
reductions beyond the levels required in the CAA and failed to provide states an initia! opportunity to adopt their
own measures for achieving federal compliance. As a result of this ruling, the surviving provisions of CAIR are to
continue to serve as the governing program until the USEPA takes further action or the U.S. Congress
intervenes. On October 5, 2012, the USEPA, several states and cities, as well as environmental and health
organizations, filed petitions with the D.C. Circuit Court requesting a rehearing by all of the judges of the D.C.
Circuit Court of the case pursuant to which the three-judge panel ruled that CSAPR be vacated, which were
denfed. On June 24, 2013, the U.S. Supreme Court agreed to review the D.C. Circuit Court's decision to vacate
CSAPR and heard oral arguments in the matter on December 10, 2013. Currently, CAIR remains in effect. If
CSAPR were to be reinstated in its current form, we do not expect any materiai capital costs for DP&L’s stations,
assuming Beckjord unit 6 will not operate on coal in 2015 due to implementation of the Mercury and Air Toxics
Standards (MATS). If the USEPA issues a replacement interstate transport rule addressing the D.C. Circuit
Court’s ruling, we believe companies will have three years or more before they would be required to comply with
a replacement rule. At this time, it is not possible to predict the details of such a replacement transport rule or
what impacts it may have on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Mercury and Other Hazardous Air Follutants
On May 3, 2011, the USEPA published proposed Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) standards

for coal- and oil-fired electric generating units. The standards include new requirements for emissions of mercury
and & number of other heavy metals. The USEPA Administrator signed the final rule, now called MATS, on
December 16, 2011, and the rule was published in the Federal Register on February 16, 2012, Our affected
EGUs must come into compliance with the new requirements by April 16, 2015, but may be granted an additional
year to become compliant contingent on Ohio EPA approval. DP&L is evaluating the costs that may be incurred
to comply with the new requirement; however, MATS could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations and result in material compliance costs.

On January 31, 2013, the USEPA finalized a rule regulating emissions of toxic air pollutants from new and
existing industrial, commercial and instituticnal boilers and process heaters at major and area source facilities.
This regulation affects seven auxiliary boilers used for start-up purposes at DP&L’s generation facilities. The
regulation contains emissions limitations, operating limitations and other requirements. DP&L expects to be in
compliance with this rule and the costs are not currently expected to be material to DP&L’s operations.

National Ambient Air Quality Standards
On January 5, 2005, the USEPA published its final non-attainment designations for the National Ambient Air

Quallity Standard (NAAQS) for Fine Particulate Matter 2.5 (PM 2.5). These designations included counties and
partial counties in which DP&L operates and/or owns generating facilities. On December 31, 2012, the USEPA
redesignated Adams County, where Stuart and Killen are located, to attainment status. On December 14, 2012,
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the USEPA tightened the PM 2.5 standard to 12.0 micrograms per cubic meter. This will begin a process of
redesignations during 2014, including in counties where we have generating stations. We cannot predict the
effect the revisions to the PM 2.5 standard will have on DP&L’s financial condition or results of operations.

The USEPA published the national ground level ozone standard on March 12, 2008, lowering the 8-hour level
from 0.08 ppm to 0.075 ppm, which was upheld by the U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals in July 2013. No DP&L
operations are currently located in non-attainment areas. The USEPA was expected to review the ozone NAAQS
in 2013 but delayed such a review. Certain environmental groups have sued the USEPA in federal district court
to force the USEPA to set a September 30, 2014 deadline for such review. Itis generally expected that any
revised standard resulting from such review would be more stringent than the current 0.075 ppm standard. In
addition, in December 2013, sight northeastern states petitioned the USEPA to add nine upwind states, including
Ohio, to the Ozone Transport Region, a group of states required to impose enhanced restrictions on ozone
emissions. [f the petition is granted, our facilities could be subject to such enhanced requirements.

Effective April 12, 2010, the USEPA implemented revisions to its primary NAAQGS for nitrogen dioxide. This
change may affect certain emission sources in heavy traffic areas like the 1-75 corridor between Cincinnati and
Dayton after 2016. Several of our facilities or co-owned facilities are within this area. DP&L cannot determine
the effect of this potential change, if any, on its operations.

Effective August 23, 2010, the USEPA implemented revisions to its primary NAAQS for SO, replacing the current
24-hour standard and annual standard with a one-hour standard. DP&L cannot determine the effect of this
potential change, if any, on its operations. Initial non-attainment designations were made July 25, 2013. Non-
attainment areas will be required to meet the new standard by October 2018.

On May 5, 2004, the USEPA issued its proposed regional haze rule, which addresses how states should
determine the Best Available Retrofit Technology (BART) for sources covered under the regional haze rule. Final
rules were published July 8, 2005, providing states with several options for determining whether sources in the
state should be subject to BART. Numerous units owned and operated by us will be affected by BART. We
cannot determine the extent of the impact until Ohio determines how BART will be implemented.

Carbon Dioxide and Other Greenhouse Gas Emissions
In response to a U.S. Supreme Court decision that the USEPA has the authority to regulate GHG emissions from

motor vehicles, the USEPA made a finding that CO; and certain other GHGs are poflutants under the CAA,
Subsequently, under the CAA, the USEPA determined that CO, and other GHGs from motor vehicles threaten
the health and welfare of future generations by contributing to climate change. This finding became effective in
January 2010. Numerous affected parties have petitioned the USEPA Administrator to reconsider this decision.
On April 1, 2010, the USEPA signed the “Light-Duty Vehicle Greenhouse Gas Emission Standards and
Corporate Average Fuel Economy Standards” rule. Under the USEPA's view, this is the final action that renders
CO; and certain other GHGs "“regulated air pollutants” under the CAA.

Under USEPA regulations finalized in May 2010 (referred to as the “Tailoring Rule”), the USEPA began
regulating GHG emissions from certain stationary sources in January 2011, The Tailoring Rule sets forth criteria
for determining which facilities are required to obtain permits for their GHG emissions pursuant to the CAA
Prevention of Significant Deterioration and Title V operating permit programs. Under the Tailoring Rule,
permitting requirements are being phased in through successive steps that may expand the scope of covered
sources over time. The USEPA has issued guidance on what the hest available control technology entails for the
control of GHGs; and individual states are reguired to determine what controls are required for facilities on a
case-by-case basis. Various industry groups and states petitioned the U.S. Supreme Court to review the D.C.
Circuit Court’s recent decision to uphold the USEPA’s endangerment finding, its April 2010 GHG rule and the
Tailoring Rule. On QOctober 15, 2013, the U.S. Supreme Court agreed to review several related cases addressing
the USEPA's authority to issue GHG Prevention of Significant Deterioration permits under Section 165 of the
CAA. We cannot predict the outcome of this review. The ultimate impact of the Tailoring Rule to DP&L cannot
be determined at this time, but the cost of compliance could be material.

On September 20, 2013, the USEPA proposed revised GHG New Source Performance Standards for new
electric generating units (EGUs) under CAA subsection 111(b), which would reguire new EGUs to limit the
amount of CO, emitted per megawatt-hour. The proposal anticipates that affected coal-fired units would need to
rely upon partial implementation of carbon capture and storage or other expensive CO, emission control
technology to meet the standard. Furthermore, President Obama directed the USEPA to propose new
standards, regulations, or guidelines, as appropriate, to address GHG emissions from existing EGUs under CAA
subsection 111(d} by June 1, 2014, and finalize them by June 1, 2015. These latter rules may focus on energy
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efficiency improvements at power stations. We cannct predict the effect of these proposed or forthcoming
standards on DP&L’s operations.

Approximately 99% of the energy we produce is generated by coal. DP&L’s share of CO, emissions at
generating stations we own and co-own is approximately 14 million tons annually. Further GHG legislation or
reguiation implemented at a future date could have a significant effect on DP&L’s operations and costs, which
could adversely affect our net income, cash flows and financial condition. However, due to the uncertainty
associated with such legislation or regulation, we cannot predict the final outcome or the financial effect that such
legislation or regulation may have on DP&L.

Litigation, Notices of Violation and Other Matters Related to Air Guality

Litigation Involving Co-Owned Stations
On June 20, 2011, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that the USEPA’s regulation of GHGs under the CAA displaced

any right that plaintiffs may have had to seek similar regulation through federal common law litigation in the court
system. Although we are not named as a party to these lawsuits, DP&L is a co-owner of coal-fired stations with
Duke Energy and AEP (or their subsidiaries) that could have been affected by the cutcome of these lawsuits or
similar suits that may have been filed against other electric power companies, including DP&L. Because the
issue was not squarely before it, the U.S. Supreme Court did not rule against the portion of plaintiffs’ original suits
that sought relief under state law.

As a result of a 2008 consent decree entered into with the Sierra Club and approved by the U.S. District Court for
the Southern District of Ohio, DP&L and the other owners of the Stuart generating station are subject to certain
specified emission targets related to NO,, SO, and particulate matter. The consent decree also includes
commitments for energy efficiency and renewabie energy activities. An amendment to the consent decree was
entered into and approved in 2010 to clarify how emissions would be computed during malfunctions. Continued
compliance with the consent decree, as amended, is not expected to have a material effect on DP&L’s results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows in the future.

Notices of Violgtion Involving Co-Owned Unifs
In November 1999, the USEPA filed civil complaints and NOVs against operators and owners of certain

generation facilities for alleged violations of the CAA. Generation units operated by Duke Energy (Beckjord Unit
6) and AEP Generation {Conesville Unit 4) and co-owned by DP&L were referenced in these actions. The
Conesville complaint was resolved in 2007 as part ¢f a larger settlement with the USEPA. Conesville was
required to install FGD and SCR at the unit by the end of 2010, and those retrofits have been completed. The
Beckjord complaint was also resolved through litigation. There were no penalties or settlement agreements that
affected Beckjord 6.

In June 2000, the USEPA issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated Stuart generating station {co-owned by DP&L,
Duke Energy and AEP Generation) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOV contained allegations consistent
with NOVs and complaints that the USEPA had brought against numerous other coal-fired utilities in the Midwest.
The NOV indicated the USEPA may: (1) issue an order requiring compliance with the requirements of the Ohio
SIP; or (2) bring a civil action seeking injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for each
violation. To date, neither action has been taken. DP&L. cannot predict the outcome of this matter.

In December 2007, the Chio EPA issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated Killen generating station (co-owned by
DP&L and Duke Energy) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NQV alleged deficiencies in the continuous
monitoring of opacity. We submitted a compliance plan to the Ohio EPA on December 19, 2007. To date, no
further actions have been taken by the Ohio EPA.

On March 13, 2008, Duke Energy, the operator of the Zimmer generating station, received an NOV and a Finding
of Violation (FOV) from the USEPA alleging violations of the CAA, the Ohio State Implementation Program (SIF)
and permits for the Station in areas including SO,, opacity and increased heat input. A second NOV and FOV
with similar allegations was issued on November 4, 2010. Also in 2010, the USEPA issued an NOV to Zimmer
for excess emissions. DP&L is a co-owner of the Zimmer generating station and could be affected by the
eventual resolution of these matters. Duke Energy is expected to act on behalf of itself and the co-owners with
respect to these matters. DP&L is unable to predict the outicome of these matters.

Notices of Viclation Involving Wholly-Owned Stations
In 2007, the Ohio EPA and the USEPA issued NOVs to DP&L for alleged violations of the CAA at the Hutchings

Station. The NOVs' alleged deficiencies relate to stack opacity and particulate emissions. On November 18,
2009, the USEPA issued an NOV 1o DP&L for alleged NSR violaticns of the CAA at the Hutchings Station
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relating to capital projects performed in 2001 involving Unit 3 and Unit 6. DP&L does not believe that the two
projects described in the NOV were modifications subject to NSR. As a result of the cessation of operations at
the Hutchings Station discussed in the next paragraph, DP&L believes that the USEPA is unlikely to pursue the
NSR complaint.

As part of a settlement with the USEPA, DP&L signed a Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) that was
filed on September 26, 2013 and an Administrative Consent Agreement. Together, these two agreements
resolved the opacity and particulate emissions NOV at the Hutchings Station and required that all six coal-fired
units at Hutchings cease operating on coal by September 30, 2013, and included an immaterial penalty and the
completion of a Supplemental Environmental Project of $0.2 million within one year. The units were disabled for
coal operations prior to September 30, 2013.

DP&L alse resclved all issues associated with the Ohio EPA NOV through a settlement signed October 4, 2013.
The settlement included the payment of an immaterial penalty.

Environmental Matters Related to Water Quality, Waste Disposal and Ash Ponds

Clean Water Act — Regulation of Water intake

On July 9, 2004, the USEPA issued final rules pursuant to the Clean Water Act governing existing facilitics that
have cooling water intake structures. The rules required an assessment of impingement and/or entrainment of
organisms as a result of cooling water withdrawal. A number of parties appealed the rules. In April 2009, the
U.S, Supreme Court ruled that the USEPA did have the authority to compare costs with benefits in determining
best technology available. The USEPA released new proposed regulations on March 28, 2011, which were
published in the Federal Register on April 20, 2011. We submitted comments to the proposed regulations on
August 17, 2011. The USEPA is required pursuant to a settlement agreement to issue a finai rule by April 17,
2014. We do not yet know the impact the final rules will have on our operations.

Clean Water Act— Reguiation of Water Discharge
In December 2006, DP&L submitted a renewal application for the Stuart Station NPDES permit that was due to

expire on June 30, 2007. The Ohio EPA issued a revised draft permit that was received on November 12, 2008.
In September 2010, the USEPA formaily objected to the November 12, 2008 revised permit due to questions
regarding the basis for the alternate thermal limitation. At DP&L’s request, a public hearing was held on March
23, 2011, where DP&L presented its position on the issue and provided written commaents. In a letter to the Ohio
EPA dated September 28, 2011, the USEPA reaffirmed its objection to the revised permit as previously drafted
by the Ohio EPA. This reaffirmation stipulated that if the Ohio EPA did not re-draft the permit to address the
USEPA’s objection, then the authority for issuing the permit would pass to the USEPA. The Ohio EPA issued
another draft permit in December 2011 and a public hearing was held on February 2, 2012,

The draft permit required DP&L, over the 54 months following issuance of a final permit, to take undefined
actions to lower the temperature of its discharged water to a level unachievable by the station under its current
design or alternatively make other significant modifications to the cooling water system. DP&L submitted
comments to the draft permit. In November 2012, the Chio EPA issued another draft which included a
compliance schedule for performing a study to justify an alternate thermal limitation and to which DP&L
submitted comments. In December 2012, the USEPA formally withdrew their objection to the permit. On
January 7, 2013, the Chio EPA issued a final permit. On February 1, 2013, DP&L appealed various aspects of
the final permit to the Environmental Review Appeals Commission. Depending on the outcome of the appeal
process, the effects could be material on DP&L’s operations.

In September 2009, the USEPA announced that it would be revising technology-based regulations governing
water discharges from steam electric generating facilities. The rulemaking included the collection of infarmation
via an industry-wide questionnaire as well as targeted water sampling efforts at selected facilities. Subsequent to
the information collection effort, it was anticipated that the USEPA would release a proposed rule by mid-2012
with a final regulation in place by early 2014. The proposed rule was released on June 7, 2013, with a deadline
for a final rule on May 22, 2014, though such final rule's issuance is expected to be delayed. At present, DP&L is
unable to predict the impact this rulemaking will have on its operations.

In August 2012, DP&L submitted an application for the renewal of the Killen Station NPDES permit which expired
in January 2013. At present, the outcome of this proceeding is not known.

in January 2014, DP&L submitted an application for the renewal of the Hutchings Station NPDES permit which
expires in July 2014. At present, the outcome of this proceeding is not known.
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In April 2012, DP&L received an NOV related to the construction of the Carter Hollow landfill at the Stuart
Station. The NOV indicated that construction activities caused sediment to flow into downstream creeks. In
addition, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers issued a Cease and Desist order followed by a notice suspending the
previously issued Corps permit authorizing work associated with the landfill. DP&L instalied sedimentation ponds
as part of the runoff control measures to address this issue and worked with the various agencies to resolve their
concerns. DP&L signed an Administrative Order from the USEPA on May 30, 2013. A final Consent Agreement
and Final Order was executed on July 8, 2013, and the previously issued permit was reinstated by the Corps on
October 29, 2013.

Regulation of Wastfe Disposal

In September 2002, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP
for the clean-up of hazardous substances at the South Dayton Dump landfill site. In August 2005, DP&L and
other parties received a general notice regarding the performance of a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility
Study (RI/FS) under a Superfund Alternative Approach. In October 2005, DP&L received a special notice letter
inviting it to enter into negotiations with the USEPA to conduct the RI/FS. No recent activity has occurred with
respect to that notice or PRP status. However, on August 25, 2009, the USEPA issued an Administrative Order
requiring that access to DP&L’s setvice center building site, which is across the street from the landfill site, be
given to the USEPA and the existing PRP group to help determine the extent of the landfill site’s contamination
as well as to assess whether certain chemicals used at the service center building site might have migrated
through groundwater to the landfill site. DP&L granted such access and drilling of soil borings and installation of
monitoring wells occurred in late 2009 and early 2010. On May 24, 2010, three members of the existing PRP
group, Hobart Corporation, Kelsey-Hayes Company and NCR Corporation, filed a civil complaint in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio against DP&L and numerous other defendants alleging that
DP&L and the other defendants contributed to the contamination at the South Dayton Dump landfill site and
seeking reimbursement of the PRP group's costs associated with the investigation and remediation of the site.
On February 10, 2011, the Court dismissed claims against DP&L that related to allegations that chemicals used
by DP&L at its service center contributed to the landfill site’'s contamination. The Court, however, did not dismiss
claims alleging financial responsibility for remediation costs based on hazardous substances from DP&L that
were allegedly directly delivered by truck to the landfill. Discovery, including depositions of past and present
DP&L employees, was conducted in 2012. On February 8, 2013, the Court granted DP&L’s motion for summary
judgment on statute of limitations grounds with respect to claims seeking a contribution toward the costs that are
expected to be incurred by the PRP group in performing an RI/FS. That summary judgment ruling was appealed
on March 4, 2013 and the appeal is pending. DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of the appeal. Additionally,
the Court's ruling does not address future litigation that may arise with respect to actual remediation costs. While
DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of these matters, if DP&L were required to contribute to the clean-up of
the site, it could have a material adverse effect on its operations.

Beginning in mid-2012, the USEPA began investigating whether explosive or other dangerous conditions exist
under structures located at or near the South Dayton Dump landfill site. In Qctober 2012, DP&L received a
request from the PRP group’s consultant to conduct additional soil and groundwater sampling on DP&L’s service
center property. After informal discussions with the USEPA, DP&L complied with this sampling request and the
sampling was conducted in February 2013. On February 28, 2013, the plaintiffs group referenced above entered
into an Administrative Settlernent Agreement Consent Order (ASACO) that establishes procedures for further
sub-slab testing under structures at the South Dayton Dump landfill site and remediation of vapor intrusion issues
relating to trichloroethylene (TCE), percholorethylene (PCE), and methane. On April 16, 2013, the plaintiffs
group filed a new complaint in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio against DP&L and
34 other defendants alleging that they share liability for these costs. DP&L has opposed the allegations that it
bears any responsibiiity under the February 2013 ASACO and will actively oppose any attempt that the plaintiffs
group may have to expand the scope of the new complaint to resurrect issues dismissed by the Court in February
2013 under the first complaint. A motion to dismiss portions of this second complaint relating to alleged migration
of chemicals from DP&L property to the landfill was denied February 18, 2014, as were motions filed by DP&L
and others to dismiss other portions of the complaint that were viewed by defendants as identical to the
allegations dismissed in the first complaint proceeding. The Judge found that there were differences in the
allegations and is permitting those allegations to proceed.. Limited discovery has been permitted pending
resolution of the motion including some depositions of former DP&L employees during 2013 and into 2014,
DP&L cannot predict the outcome of this proceeding.

In December 2003, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP
for the clean-up of hazardous substances at the Tremont City landfill site. Information available to DP&L does
not demonstrate that it contributed hazardous substances to the site. While DP&L is unable to predict the
outcome of this matter, if DP&L were required to contribute to the clean-up of the site, it could have a material
adverse effect on its operations.
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On April 7, 2010, the USEPA published an Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking announcing that it is
reassessing existing regulations governing the use and distribution in commerce of polychlorinated biphenyls
(PCBs). While this reassessment is in the early stages and the USEPA is seeking information from potentially
affected parties on how it should proceed, the outcome may have a material effect on DP&L. While the USEPA
previously indicated that the official release date for a proposed rule was in April 2013, it has been delayed, likely
until late 2014. At present, DP&L is unable to predict the impact this initiative will have on its operations.

Regufation of Ash Ponds
In March 2009, the USEPA, through a formal Information Collection Request, collected information on ash pond

facilities across the country, including those at Killen and Stuart Stations. Subsequently, the USEPA collected
similar information for the Hutchings Station.

In August 2010, the USEPA conducted an inspection of the Hutchings Station ash ponds. In June 2011, the
USEPA issued a final report from the inspection including recommendations relative to the Hutchings Station ash
ponds. DP&L is unable to predict whether there will be additional USEPA action relative to DP&L’s proposed
plan or the effect on operations that might arise under a different plan.

In June 2011, the USEPA conducted an inspection of the Killen Station ash ponds. tn May 2012, we received a
draft report on the inspection. DP&L submitted comments on the draft report in June 2012, On March 14, 2013,
DP&L received the final report on the inspection of the Killen Station ash pond inspection from the USEPA which
included recommended actions. DP&L has submitted a response with its actions to the USEPA. DP&L is
unable to predict the cutcome this inspection will have on its operations.

There has been increasing advocacy to regulate coal combustion byproducts under the Resource Conservation
Recovery Act (RCRA). On June 21, 2010, the USEPA published a proposed rule seeking comments on two
options under consideration for the regulation of coal combustion byproducts including regulating the material as
a hazardous waste under RCRA Subtitle C or as a solid waste under RCRA Subtitle D. Litigation has been filed
by several groups seeking a court-ordered deadline for the issuance of a final rule which the USEPA has
opposed. On January 29, 2014, the parties to the litigation entered into a consent decree setting forth the
USEPA's obligation to sign, by December 19, 2014, a notice for publication in the Federal Register taking action
on the Agency’s proposed Subtitle D option. The decree does not require Subtitle D regulation of coal
combustion byproducts — it anly reguires the Agency to decide by that date whether or not to adopt the Subtitle D
option. At present, the timing for a final rule regulating coal combustion byproducts cannot be determined.
DP&L is unable to predict the financial effect of this regulation, but if coal combustion byproducts are regulated
as hazardous waste, it is expected to have a material adverse effect on its operations.

Notice of Violation Involving Co-Owned Units
On September 9, 2011, DP&L received an NOV from the USEPA with respect to its co-owned Stuart generating

station based on a compliance evaluation inspection conducted by the USEPA and Chio EPA in 2009. The
notice alleged non-compliance by DP&L with certain provisions of the RCRA, the Clean Water Act NPDES permit
program and the station’s storm water poltution prevention plan. The notice requested that DP&L respond with
the actions it has subsequently taken or plans to take to remedy the USEPA’s findings and ensure that further
violations will not occur. Based on its review of the findings, although there can be no assurance, we believe that
the notice will not result in any material effect on DP&L’s results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Legal and Other Matters

In February 2007, DP&L filed a lawsuit against a coal supplier seeking damages incurred due fo the supplier's
failure to supply approximately 1.5 million tons of coal to two commonly-owned stations under a coal supply
agreament, of which approximately 570 thousand tons was DP&L’s share. DP&L obtained replacemant coal to
meet its needs. The supplier has denied liability, and is currently in federal bankruptcy proceedings in which
DP&L. is participating as an unsecured creditor. DP&L is unable to determine the ultimate resolution of this
matter. DP&L has not recorded any assets relating to possible recovery of costs in this fawsuit.

In connection with DP&L and cther utilities joining PJM, in 2006 the FERC ordered utilities to eliminate certain
charges to implement transitional payments, known as SECA, effective Decemnber 1, 2004 through March 31,
2006, subject to refund. Through this proceeding, DP&L was obligated to pay SECA charges to other utilities, but
received a net benefit from these transiticnal payments. A hearing was held and an initial decision was issued in
August 2006. A final FERC order on this issue was issued on May 21, 2010 that substantially supports DP&L’s
and other utilities’ position that SECA obligations should be paid by parties that used the transmission system
during the timeframe stated above. Prior to this final order being issued, DP&L entered into a significant number
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of bilateral seitlerment agreements with certain parties to resolve the matter, which by design will be unaffected by
the final decision. On July 5, 2012, a Stipulation was executed and filed with the FERC that resolves SECA
claims against BP Energy Company (“BP") and DP&L, AEP (and its subsidiaries) and Exelon Corporation {and
its subsidiaries). On October 1, 2012, DP&L received $14.6 million (including interest income of $1.8 million)
from BP and recorded the settlement in the third quarter; at December 31, 2012, there is no remaining balance in
other deferred credits reiated to SECA.

Note 15— Fixed-asset Impairment

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company tested the recoverability of long-lived assets at Conesville, a 129
MW coal-fired station in Ohio, and East Bend, a 186 MW coal-fired station in Kentucky jointly-owned by DP&L.
Gradual decreases in power prices, as well as lower estimates of future capacity prices in conjunction with the
DP&L reporting unit of DPL failing step 1 of the annual goodwill impairment test were collectively determined to
be an impairment indicator for the BP&L long-lived assets. The Company performed a long-lived asset
impairment test and determined that the carrying amounts of the asset groups were not recoverable. The long-
lived asset group subject to the impairment evaluation was determined to be each individual station of DP&L.
This determination was based on the assessment of the stations’ ability to generate independent cash flows. The
Conesville and East Bend asset groups were each determined to have a zero fair value using discounted cash
flows under the income approach. As a result, the Company recognized an asset impairment expense of $10.0
million and $76.0 million for Conesville and East Bend, respectively.

On October 5, 2012, DP&L filed for approval an ESP with the PUCO which reflects a shift in our outlook for the
regulatory environment, Within the ESP filing, DP&L agreed to request a separation of its generation assets from
its transmission and distribution assets in recognition that a restructuring of DP&L operations will be necessary,
in compliance with Ohio law. Also, during 2012, North American natural gas prices fell significantly from the
previous year, exerting downward pressure on wholesale electricity prices in the Chio power market. Falling
power prices have compressed wholesale margins at DP&L’s generating stations. Furthermore, these lower
power prices have led to increased customer switching from DP&L to CRES providers, who are offering retail
prices lower than DP&L’s standard service offer. Also, several municipalities in DP&L’s service territory have
passed ordinances allowing them to become government aggregators with some having already contracted with
CRES providers, further contributing to the switching trend. In September 2012, managsment revised its cash
flow forecasts based on these developments as part of its annual budgeting process and forecasted lower
operating cash flows than in prior reporting periods. Collectively, in the third quarter of 2012, these events were
considered to be an impairment indicator for the long-lived asset group as management believes that these
developments represent a significant adverse change in the business climate that could affect the value of the
long-tived asset group.

The long-lived asset group subject to the impairment evaluation was determined to be each individual station of
DP&L. This determination was based on the assessment of the stations’ ability to generate independent cash
flows. When the recoverability test of the long-lived asset group was performed, management concluded that, on
an undiscounted cash flow basis, the carrying amount of two stations, Conesville and Hutchings, were not
recoverable. To measure the amount of impairment loss, management was required to determine the fair value
of the two stations. Cash flow forecasts and the underlying assumptions for the valuation were developed by
management. While there were numerous assumptions that impact the fair value, forward power prices, dark
spreads and the transition to a merchant model were the most significant.

in determining the fair value of the Conesville station, the three valuation approaches prescribed by the fair value
measursment accounting guidance were considered. The fair value under the income approach was considered
the most appropriate and resulted in a $25.0 million fair value. The carrying value of the Conesville station prior
to the impairment was $97.5 million. Accordingly, the Conesville station was considered impaired and $72.5
million of impairment expense was recognized in the third quarter of 2012.

In determining the fair value of the Hutchings Station, the three valuation approaches prescribed by the fair value
measurement accounting guidance were considered. The fair value under the income approach was considered
the most appropriate and resulted in a zero fair value. The carrying value of the Hutchings Staticn prior to the
impairment was $8.3 million. Accordingly, the Huichings Station was considered impaired and $8.3 million of
impairment expense was recognized in the third quarter of 2012.
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Note 16 — Selected Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

From 2012 onwards, quarterly information is no longer required.
For the 2011 quarters ended

$ in millions except per share amounts
June 30

March 31

Operating inco
Netingone
Earnings on common stock

DiVidendstpaid-sri:common stockito:DPE:
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Iltem 9 -~ Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

On November 28, 2011, DPL changed auditors to Ernst & Young LLP. DP&L continued to use KPMG LLP
through December 31, 2011 but changed auditors to Ernst & Young LLP effective January 1, 2012, Emst &
Young LLP are the auditors of AES. These changes were not a result of any disagreement with KPMG LLP.

item 9A — Controls and Procedures

Disclostire Controls and Procedures

Our Chief Executive Officer {CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFQ) are responsible for establishing and
maintaining our disclosure controls and procedures. These controls and procedures were designed to ensure
that material information relating to us and our subsidiaries are communicated to the CEO and CFQ. We
evaluated these disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report with the
participation of our CEO and CFO. Based on this evaluation, our CEQ and CFO concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures are effective: (i) to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports
that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms; and {ii) to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us
in the reports that we submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including our principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as
appropriate, to allow fimely decisions regarding required disclosure.

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2013
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial reporting.

The following report is our report on internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Wae are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such
term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f}. Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013. In making this assessment, management used the criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
(*COS0"y in 1992. Based on this assessment, management believes that the Company maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013.

Item 9B — Other Information

None.
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PART Il

Item 10 — Directors, Executive Cfficers and Corporate Governance

Not applicable pursuant to General Instruction | of the Form 10-K.

Item 11 — Executive Compensation

Not applicable pursuant to General Instruction | of the Form 10-K.

ltem 12 - Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder
Matters

Not applicable pursuant to General Instruction | of the Form 10-K.

Item 13 — Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Not applicable pursuant to General Instruction | of the Form 10-K.

Iltem 14 - Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Accountant Fees and Services

The following table presents the aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered to DPL and DP&L by
Emst & Young LLP for 2013 and 2012. Cther than as set forth below, no professional services were rendered or
fees billed by Ernst & Young LLP during 2013 and 2012.

(a) Audit fees relate to professional services rendered for the audit of our annual financial statements and the reviews of our quartetly
financial statements and cther services that are normally provided in connection with regulatory filing or engagements and
services rendered under an agreed upon procedure engagement related to environmental studies..

{b) Audit-related fees relate to services rendered to us for agsurance and related services.
{c) Taxfees consisted principally of tax compliance services.

The Boards of Directors of DPL Inc. and The Dayton Power and Light Company (collectively, the “Board”} pre-
approve all audit and permitted non-audit services, including engagement fees and terms for such services in
accordance with Section 10A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Board will generally pre-
approve a listing of specific services and categories of services, including audit, audit-related and other services,
for the upcoming or current fiscal year, subject to a specified cost level. Any material service not included in the
pre-approved list of services must be separately pre-approved by the Board. In addition, all audit and permissible
non-audit services in excess of the pre-approved cost level, whether or not such services are included on the pre-
approved list of services, must be separately pre-approved by the Board.
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PART IV

Item 15 — Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this report:

1.  Financial Statements

DPL - Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms 79
DPL - Consolidated Statements of Results of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013,

2012 and the periods November 27, 2011 through December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011 through

November 27, 2011 81
DPL - Consolidated Statements of Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the years ended

December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the periods November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011 and

January 1, 2011 through Noverber 27, 2011 82
DPL - Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

and the periods November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011 through

November 27, 2011 83
DPL - Consclidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2013 and 2012 85
DPL - Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013 and

2012 and the periods November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011 through

November 27, 2011 87
DPL - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 88
DP&L - Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 157
DP&L - Statements of Results of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2013 169
DP&L - Statements of Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for each of the three years in the

period ended December 31, 2013 160
DP&L - Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,

2013 161
DP&L - Balance Sheets at December 31, 2013 and 2012 163
DP&L - Statement of Shareholder's Equity for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2013 165
PP&L — Notes to Financial Statements 166
2.  Financial Statement Schedules

For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013:

Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 231
The information required to be submitted in Schedules 1, ill, IV and V is omitted as not applicable or not required

under rules of Regulation S-X.
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Exhibits

DPL and DP&L exhibits are incorporated by reference as described unless otherwise filed as
set forth herein.

The exhibits filed as part of DPL’s and DP&L’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, respectively, are:

DPL. DP&L Exhibit
Number [Exhibit Location
X 2(a) Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of  [Exhibit 2.1 to Report on Form 8-
April 19, 2011, by and among DPL Inc., The K filed April 20, 2011 (File
IAES Corporation and Dolphin Sub, Inc. No. 1-9052)
X 3(a) Amended Articles of Incorporation of DPL Inc., [Exhibit 3(a) to Report on Form
as amended through January 6, 2012 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2011 (File No. 1-
2385)
X 3(b} Amended Regulations of DPL Inc., as Exhibit 3.2 to Report on Form 8-
amended through November 28, 2011 K filed November 28, 2011 (File
No. 1-9052)
X 3(c) Amended Articles of incorporation of The Exhibit 3(b} to Report on
Dayton Power and Light Company, as of Form 10-K/A for the year ended
January 4, 1991 December 31, 1991 (File No. 1-
2385)
X 3(d) Regulations of The Dayton Power and Light  [Exhibit 3(a) to Report on
Company, as of April 9, 1981 Form 8-K filed on May 3, 2004
(File No. 1-2385)
X X 4(a) Composite indenture dated as of October 1,  [Exhibit 4(a) to Report on
1935, between The Dayton Power and Light  |[Form 10-K for the year ended
Company and Irving Trust Company, Trustee [December 31, 1985 (File No. 1-
with all amendments through the Twenty-Ninth [2388)
Supplemental Indenture
X X 4(b) Fonty-First Supplemental Indenture dated as of [Exhibit 4(m) to Report on
February 1, 1999, between The Dayton Power [Form 10-K for the year ended
and Light Company and The Bank of New December 31, 1998 (File No. 1-
York, Trustee 2385)
X X 4(c) Forty-Second Supplemental Indenture dated  [Exhibit 4(r) to Report on
as of September 1, 2003, between The Dayton|Form 10-K for the year ended
Power and Light Company and The Bank of  |December 31, 2003 (File No. 1-
New York, Trustee 9052)
X X 4(d) Forty-Third Supplemental Indenture dated as  [Exhibit 4.4 to Report on Form 8-
lof August 1, 2005, between The Dayton Power|K filed August 24, 2005 (File
and Light Company and The Bank of New No. 1-2385)
York, Trustee
X 4(e) Indenture dated as of August 31, 2001 Exhibit 4(a) to Registration
between DPL Inc. and The Bank of New York, [Statement No. 333-74630
Trustee
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DPL DP&L Exhibit
Number |[Exhibit Location
X 4{f) First Supplemental Indenture dated as of Exhibit 4(b) to Registration
August 31, 2001 between DPL Inc. and The  [Statement No. 333-74630
Bank of New York, as Trustee
X 4(g) Amended and Restated Trust Agreement Exhibit 4(c) to Registration
dated as of August 31, 2001 among DPL Inc., {Statement No. 333-74630
The Bank of New York, The Bank of New York
{Delaware), the administrative trustees named
therein, and several Holders as defined therein
X X 4(h) Forty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as [Exhibit 4(s) to Report on Farm
of September 1, 2006 between the Bank of 10-K for the year ended
New York, Trustee and The Dayton Power and |December 31, 2009 (File No. 1-
Light Company 2385)
X X 4(i) Forty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture dated as  [Exhibit 4(x) to Report on Form
of December 1, 2008 between The Bank of  [10-K for the year ended
New York Mellon, Trustee and The Dayton December 31, 2008 (File No. 1-
Power and Light Company 2385)
X 4(j) Indenture, dated October 3, 2011, between  [Exhibit 4.1 to Report on Form 8-
Dolphin Subsidiary 11, Inc. and Wells Fargo K filed October 5, 2011 by The
Bank, Naticnal Association AES Corporation (File No. 1-
12291)
X 4(k) Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Exhibit 4{k} to Report on Form
November 28, 2011, between DPL Inc. and 10-K for the year ended
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association December 31, 2011 (File No. 1-
2385)
X 4(1) Registration Rights Agreement, dated Cctober | Exhibit 4(1) to Report on Form
3, 2011, between Dolphin Subsidiary Il, Inc.  [10-K for the year ended
and Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner & Smith December 31, 2011 (File No. 1-
Incorperated and each of the initial purchasers 2385)
named therein
X 4{(m) Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of  |Exhibit 4.1 to Report on Form 8-
September 19, 2013, by and between Merrill K filed September 25, 2013 (Fiie
Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated  {No. 1-2385)
and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, as
representatives of the initial purchasers
X 4(n)  [47" Supplemental Indenture to the First and  [Exhibit 4.2 to Report on Form 8-
Refunding Mortgage, dated as of September 1,K filed September 25, 2013 (File
2013, by and between the Bank of New York |No. 1-2385)
Mellon, as Trustee, and The Dayton Power
and Light Company
X X 10(a) Credit Agreement, dated as of April 20, 2010, [Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed

among the Dayton Power and Light Company,
Bank of America, N.A_, as Administrative
Agent and an L/C Issuer, and the lenders party
to the Credit Agreement

Aptil 22, 2010 (File No. 1-2385)
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DPL DP&L Exhibit
Number [Exhibit Location

X X 10(b}) Limited Consent and Waiver, dated as of Exhibit 10.1 to Report on Form
May 24, 2011, to the Credit Agreement, dated |8-K filed May 31, 2011
as of April 20, 2010, among The Dayton Power|(File No. 1-2385)
and Light Company, Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent and an L/C Issuer, and
the lenders party to the Credit Agreement

X X 10(c) First Amendment Agreement, dated as of Exhibit 10{c) to Report on Form
November 18, 2011, to the Credit Agreement, [10-K for the year ended
dated as of April 20, 2010, among The Dayton [Decernber 31, 2011 (File No. 1-
Power and Light Company, Bank of America, [2385)
N.A., as Administrative Agent and an L/C
Issuer, and the lender party to the Credit
Agreement

X X 10(d) Credit Agreement, dated as of August 24, Exhibit 10(d) to Report on Form
2011, among DPL Inc., PNC Bank, National  [10-K for the year ended
Association, as Administrative Agent, Swing  [December 31, 2011 (File No. 1-
Line Lender and an L/C Issuer, Bank of 2385)
IAmerica, N.A., Fifth Third Bank and U.S. Bank,
National Association, as Co-Syndication
IAgents, Bank of America, N.A., as
Docurmnentation Agent, and the lenders party to
the Credit Agreement

X 10{e) Credit Agreement, dated as of August 24, Exhibit 10(e) to Report on Form
2011, among DPL Inc., U.8. Bank, National  [10-Q for the quarter ended
Association, as Administrative Agent, Swing  [September 30, 2011 (File No. 1-
Line Lender and an L/C Issuer, Bank of 9052)
America, N.A., Fifth Third Bank and PNC
Bank, National Association, as Co-Syndication
Agents, Bank of America, N.A., as
Documentation Agent, and the lenders party to
the Credit Agreement

X X 10(f) Credit Agreement, dated as of August 24, Exhibit 10(b} to Report on Form
2011, among The Dayton Power and Light 10-Q for the quarter ended
Company, Fifth Third Bank, as Administrative [September 30, 2011 {File No. 1-
Agent, Swing Line Lender and an L/C lssuer, [2385)
Bank of America, N.A., U.S. Bank, National
Association and PNGC Bank, National
Association, as Co-Syndication Agents, Bank
of America, N.A., as Documentation Agent,
and the lenders party to the Credit Agreement

X 10(g} Credit Agreement, dated as of May 10, 2013, |Exhibit 10.1 to Report on Form

among DPL Inc., PNC Bank, National
Association, as Administrative Agent, Fifth
Third Bank and U.S. Bank, National
Association, as Co-Syndication Agents, Bank
of America, N.A., as Documentation Agent,
and the other lenders party to the Credit

Agreement

8-K filed May 16, 2013 (File No.
1-2385)
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10(h)

Credit Agreament, dated as of May 10, 2013,
among DPL Inc., U.S. Bank, National
IAssociation, as Administrative Agent, Swing
Line Lender and an L/C Issuer, Fifth Third
Bank and PNC Bank, National Association, as
Co-Syndication Agents, Bank of America,
N.A., as Documentation Agent, and the other
lenders party to the Credit Agreement

Exhibit 10.2 to Report on Form
8-K filed May 16, 2013 (File No.
1-2385)

10()

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 10, 2013,
among The Dayton Power and Light
Company, Fifth Third Bank, as Administrative
Agent, Swing Line Lender and an L/C Issuer,
U.S. Bank, National Association and PNC
Bank, National Association, as Co-Syndication
iAgents, Bank of America, N.A., as
Documentation Agent, and the other lenders
party to the Credit Agreement

Exhibit 10.3 to Report on Form
3-K filed May 16, 2013 (File No.
1-2385)

31(a)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

Filed herewith as Exhibit 31(a)

31(b)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

Filed herewith as Exhibit 31{b)

31{c)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley|
Act of 2002

Filed herewith as Exhibit 31{c)

31(d)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

Filed herewith as Exhibit 31(d)

32(a)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Section 8086 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(a)

32(b)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

Fited herewith as Exhibit 32(b)

32(c)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(c)

32(d)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(d)
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Number |Exhibit Location
X X 101.INS  [XBRL Instance Furnished herewith as
Exhibit 101.INS
X X 101.SCH [XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Furnished herewith as
Exhibit 101.SCH
X X 101.CAL [XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Furnished herewith as
Linkbase Exhibit 101.CAL
X X 101.DEF [XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Furnished herewith as
Linkbase Exhibit 101.DEF
X X 101.LAB |XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase  [Furnished herewith as
Exhibit 101.LAB
X X 101.PRE [XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Furnished herewith as
Linkbase Exhibit 101.PRE

Exhibits referencing File No. 1-9052 have been filed by DPL Inc. and those referencing File No. 1-2385 have
been filed by The Dayton Power and Light Company.

Pursuant to paragraph {b){4){iii)(A) of ltem 601 of Regulation S-K, we have not filed as an exhibit to this Form 10-
K certain instruments with respect to long-term debt if the total amount of secutities authorized thereunder does
not exceed 10% of the total assets of us and our subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, but we hereby agree to
furnish to the SEC on reguest any such instruments.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, DPL Inc. and The

Dayton Power and Light Company have duly caused this report to be signed on their behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authotized

DPL Inc.

March 4, 2014 By: /s/ Kenneth J. Zagzebski
(Kenneth J. Zagzebski)
President and Chief Executive Officer
{principal executive officer)

The Dayton Power and Light Company

March 4, 2014 By: /s/ Derek A. Porter
(Derek A. Porter)
President and Chief Executive Officer
{principal executive officer)
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of DPL Inc. and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Elizabeth Hackenson Director March 4, 2014
(Elizabeth Hackensaon)

/s/ Philip R. Herrington Director March 4, 2014
{Philip R. Herrington)

s/ Willard C. Hoagland, 111 Director March 4, 2014
{willard C. Hoagland, 111)

/s/ Brian A. Miller Director March 4, 2014
{Brian A. Miller)

/s/ Thomas M. O’Flynn Director March 4, 2014
{Thomas M. O'Flynn)

Director March 4, 2014
(Mary Stawikey)

Director and Chairman March 4, 2014
(Andrew M. Vesey)
/s Craig L. Jackson Chief Financial Officer March 4, 2014
{Craig L. Jackson}) (principal financial officer)
/s/ Kurt A. Tornguist Controller March 4, 2014
{Kurt A. Tornquist) (principal accounting officer)
/s/ Kenneth J. Zagzebski President and Chief Executive Officer March 4, 2014
(Kenneth J. Zagzebski) (principal executive officer)
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of The Dayton Power and Light Company and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated.

fs/ Willard C. Hoagland, Il

(Willard C. Hoagland, 1)

/s/ Elizabeth Hackenson

(Elizabeth Hackenson)

/s Derek A. Porter

(Derek A. Porter)

/sf Vincent W. Mathis

(Vincent W. Mathis)

/s/ Brian A. Miller

(Brian A. Miller)

/s/ Britaldo Pedrosa Soares

(Britaldo Pedrosa Soares)

{(Andrew M. Vesey)

/sf Thomas M. O'Flynn

{Thomas M. O’Flynn)

/s/ Kenneth J. Zagzebski

{Kenneth J. Zagzebski)

/s/ Craig L. Jackson

(Craig L. Jackson)

fsf Kurt A Tornquist

{Kurt A. Tornquist)

Director

Director

Director, President and Chief

Executive Officer (principal executive

officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director and Chairman

Director

Director

Chief Financial Officer

(principal financial officer)

Controller
(principal accounting officer)
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Schedule I

DPL Inc.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the years ended Year ended December 31, 2011 - 2013
$ in thousands

Balance at
Beginning Balance at
Description of Period Additions  Deductions ®  End of Period
Successor
Year ended December 31, 2013
Deducted from accounts receivable -
Provision for uncollectible accounts $ 1,084 § 6,156 § 6,080 § 1,160
Deducted from deferred tax assets -
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets  § 12,349 § 2,159 % 787 % 13,721
Year ended December 31, 2012
Deducted from accounts receivable -
Provision for uncollectible accounts $ 1,136 $ 5,802 $ 5,854 § 1,084
Deducted from deferred tax assets -
Valuation allowance for deferred 1ax assets  $ 6,702 % 8,747 % 1,900 § 12,349
November 28, 2011 through December 31,
20119
Deducted from accounts receivable -
Provision for uncollectible accounts $ 1,082 §$ 643 §$ 569 $ 1,136
Deducted from deferred tax asssts -
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets $ 7,086 $ 349 §$ 733 §$ 6,702
Predecessor
January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011
Deducted from accounts receivable -
Provision for uncollectible accounts $ 871 % 5716 §$ 5525 § 1,062
Deducted from deferred tax assets -
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets  § 13,078 § 2705 % 8,698 §% 7,086

@ Amounts written off, net of recoveries of accounts previously written off.
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the years ended Year ended December 31, 2011 - 2013

$ in thousands

Description

Balance at
End of Period

Year ended December 31, 2013
Deducted from accounts receivable -
Provision for uncollectible accounts

Year ended December 31, 2012
Deducted from accounts receivable -
Provision for uncollectible accounts

Year ended December 31, 2011
Deducted from accounts receivable -
Provision for uncollectible accounts

Balance at

Beginning

of Period Additions Deductions @
$ 923 §$ 4924 $ 4,938
$ 941 $ 5393 $ 5,411
$ 832 § 6,137 $ 6,028

@ Amounts written off, net of recoveries of accounts previously written off.
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